
The YouTube channel "City ofFranklin WI" will be live streaming the Common Council meeting so
that the public will be able to view and listen to the meeting.

https://www.youtube.com/c/CityofFranklinWIGov

CITY OF FRANKLIN
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING

FRANKLIN CITY HALL - COMMON COUNCIL CHAMBERS
9229 WEST LOOMIS ROAD, FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

AGENDA*
TUESDAY OCTOBER 17, 2023 AT 6:30 P.M.

A. Call to Order, Roll Call and Pledge ofAllegiance.

B. 1.
2.

Citizen Comment Period.
Mayoral Announcement - Red Ribbon Week Proclamation.

C. Approval ofMinutes: Regular Common Council Meeting of October 3, 2023.

D. Hearings.

E. Organizational.

F. Letters and Petitions - Email from Chief Oliva.

G. Reports and Recommendations:
1. Solutions to Noise Issues at the ROC Ballpark Commons Update.
2. Enchant Christmas Event at the ROC Ballpark Commons Presentation.
3. Authorize the Subscription to USC Communication Services and Equipment Leasing

from Ring Central/Cornerstone for $185,000 Capitalized for Three Years to Replace
Existing Phone Systems - Account 41-0181-5812.

4. Presentation of Franklin Health Department Opioid Misuse and Overdose Prevention
Toolkit.

5. Request from the Director of Health and Human Services to accept the State of
Wisconsin Department of Health Services Local Public Health Department Public
Health Infrastructure Grant.

6. Request from the Director of Health and Human Services to Accept the 2023 Division
of Public Health Communicable Disease Control and Prevention Grant to Continue
Funding Health Department Grants.

7. An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 2022-2521, an Ordinance Adopting the 2023
Annual Budget for the Police Department Grant Fund to Provide Carryforward
Resources and Appropriations from 2022 to 2023 for a Police Department MILO Use of
Force Training Simulator in the Amount of $79,735.

8. An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 2022-2521, an Ordinance Adopting the 2023
Annual Budget for the General Fund to Provide Additional $5,025 Appropriations for
Unanticipated Labor Legal Services.

9. A Resolution for Acceptance of a Storm Water Facilities Maintenance Agreement and
Easements for Storm Drainage, Storm Water Management Access, and Temporary
Turnaround at 11595 and 11600 West Forest Home Avenue (TKNs 796-9987-001 and



Common Council Meeting Agenda
October 17, 2023
Page 2

751-9001-000).
10. Recommendation for 2024 Employee Benefit-Related Coverages, Carriers, and

Premium Shares, Including Health Insurance, Wellness, Health and Wellness
Supplementary Programs, Dental Insurance and Related Contracts.

11. Reschedule Common Council and License Committee Meetings Due to the New Year
and City Offices Being Closed for the Holiday, and for Certain Elections that Fall on
Council Meeting Nights.

12. An Ordinance to Amend §133-14 A.(4)(d)[2] of the Municipal Code to Increase the
Time of Submission of an Application for a Permit to Display or Discharge Fireworks
from Not Less Than Seven Days Prior to the Date of Such Display to Not Less Than
Thirty Days Prior to the Date of Such Display to Allow More Time for Review and
Consideration of the Application.

13. An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 2022-2521, An Ordinance Adopting the 2023
Annual Budgets for the Capital Improvement and Street Improvement Funds to Transfer
and Repurpose Unused Appropriations in Street Improvement Outlay, Recreation/Bike
Trail Outlay and Parking Lot Pavement Resurface Outlay to the Parks Capital
Improvement Fund for Pickleball Court Repair Appropriations.

14. A Resolution to Award the 2023 Lions Legend Park Pickleball Courts Contract to DK
Contractors, Inc., in the Amount of$431,375.

15. A Resolution for Acceptance of a Storm Water Facilities Maintenance Agreement and
Easements for Storm Water Management Access and Water Main at 3303 W. Oakwood
Road (TKN 951-9994-002).

16. An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 2022-2521, an Ordinance Adopting the 2023
Annual Budget for the Capital Outlay Fund to Provide Carryforward Appropriations
from 2022 to 2023 of Unused Funds for Police Department Computer Equipment in the
Amount of $25,000.

17. A Resolution Approving the Project Plan and Establishing the Boundaries for and the
Creation ofTax Incremental District No. 9, City of Franklin, Wisconsin.

18. An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 2022-2521, an Ordinance Adopting the 2023
Annual Budget for the Fire Department Grant Fund to Provide for $11,916 of Grant
Resources and up to $11,916 of Grant Appropriations for the Wisconsin Department of
Health Leave Behind Kits Project.

19. An Ordinance to Amend §121-9E.(1) of the Municipal Code to Allow for an Extension
of the Consecutive Days of Duration and/or Daily Hours of a Special Event Being Open
to the Public for a Special Event Determined to be Extraordinary and Unique in the
Benefits Provided to the Public and the Community and the Special Event Being
Substantially Controlled and Contained Within the Premises of the Special Event to
Protect the Public Health, Safety and Welfare.

20. Authorize Promotion and Wage Adjustment for Aimee Schlueter to Permit Technician
(Grade Level 6; Hourly Rate of$30.50)-Account 01-0231-5111.



Common Council Meeting Agenda
October 17, 2023
Page 3

21. City personnel performance evaluation. The Common Council may enter closed session
pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(l)(c), considering employment, promotion, compensation
or performance evaluation data of any public employee over which the governing body
has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility, Wis. Stat. § 19.85(1)(f), considering
financial, medical, social, or personal histories or disciplinary data of specific persons,
preliminary consideration of specific personnel problems, or the investigation of
charges against specific persons except where par. (b) applies which, if discussed in
public, would be likely to have a substantial adverse effect upon the reputation of any
person referred to in such histories or data, or involved in such problems or
investigations, and Wis. Stat. § 19.85(l)(g), conferring with legal counsel for the
governmental body who is rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy to be
adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which it is likely to become involved,
and to reenter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed
therein as it deems appropriate

H. Licenses and Permits: License Committee Meeting of October 17, 2023.

I. Bills.
Request for Approval of Vouchers and Payroll.

J. Adjournment.

Supporting documentation and details of these agenda items are available at City Hall during normal business hours

[Note Upon reasonable notice, efforts wall be made to accommodate the needs of disabled mdrv1duals through appropriate aids
and services For additional information, contact the City Clerk's office at (414) 425-7500]

REMINDERS:

October 19
October 28
November 7
November 9
November 21

Plan Commission
Trick or Treat
Common Council Meeting
Plan Commission
Common Council Meeting

6:00 p.m.
4:00-7:00 p.m.
6:30 p.m.
6:00p.m.
6:30p.m.



BLANK PAGE



29t otratun
3F Tola.nation-_3

Wbereas, Red Ribbon Week will be recognized in communities across the nation from
October 23"" through October 31, 2023; and

Wbereas, Red Ribbon Week offers citizens the opportunity to join the mission to help keep
kids drug-free; and

399hereas, Community members are urged to participate in Red Ribbon Week activities and
use the Red Ribbon as a way of symbolizing local efforts to prevent substance misuse and promote
a healthy lifestyle; and

Wbereas, Volition Franklin will be engaging the community in awareness raising activities
and educational events throughout the city during Red Ribbon week; and

Wbereas, Volition Franklin will continue their commitment to alcohol, tobacco, and other
drug education and prevention; and

399hyereas Volition Franklin has recently been recognized by the Wisconsin Department of
Health Services as 'Protecting the Pond: Outstanding Substance Misuse Prevention Coalition; and

Wbereas, Volition Franklin Youth Member Zaira Shaker has recently been recognized by
the Wisconsin Department ofHealth Services as 'Leaders of the Next Generation: Outstanding
Youth Advocate for Substance Use Prevention'; and

jij,ob.1 \lrberefore, be it proclaimed, that I, John Nelson, Mayor of the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin, on behalf of all the Citizens of Franklin, hereby declare the week of October 23rd-

October 31st, 2023 to be Red Ribbon Week in the City and ask all citizens and businesses to join me
in recognizing this week.

Presented to the City of Franklin Common Council this 17 day of October, 2023.

John Nelson, Mayor



BLANK PAGE



ROLL CALL A.

CITIZEN COMMENT B.

e
CITY OF FRANKLIN

COMMON COUNCIL MEETING
OCTOBER 3, 2023

MINUTES

The regular meeting of the Franklin Common Council was held on
October 3, 2023, and was called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Mayor Nelson
in the Franklin City Hall Council Chambers, 9229 W. Loomis Road,
Franklin, Wisconsin. On roll call, the following were present:
Alderman Ed Holpfer, Alderwoman Michelle Eichmann, Alderwoman
Michelle Eichmann, Alderman Yousef Hasan, Alderwoman Courtney
Day, Alderman Mike Barber, and Alderman Jason Craig. Also in
attendance were Director of Administration Kelly Hersh, City
Engineer Glen Morrow, City Attorney Jesse A. Wesolowski, and City
Clerk Karen Kastenson.

Citizen comment period was opened at 6:31 p.m. and was closed at
7:36 p.m.

MOU WITH POLICE
UNION TO CHANGE
PATROL OFFICER
SHIFT HOURS

G.3

Alderman Barber moved to approve the minutes of the Common
Council meeting of September 19, 2023, as presented. Seconded by
Alderwoman Eichmann. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Presentation and Discussion of a Memorandum of Understanding
Document Regarding Solutions to Noise Issues at the ROC.

Alderman Barber moved to adopt Resolution No. 2023-8050, A
RESOLUTION TO SUBMIT A 2024 GRANT APPLICATION
REQUEST FROM THE WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF
NATURAL RESOURCES URBAN FORESTRY GRANT
PROGRAM AND UNSPECIFIED AMOUNTS FOR YET TO BE
DETERMINED CATASTROPHIC STORM EVENTS. Seconded by
Alderman Holpfer. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Holpfer moved to authorize city officials to enter into a
Memorandum of Understanding with the police union to change patrol
officer shift hours to one hour earlier than current shift hours with
technical corrections. Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye;
motion carried.

MINUTES C.
SEPTEMBER 19, 2023

PRESENTATION AND G.l.
DISCUSSION OF MOU
NOISE ISSUES AT THE
ROC

RES 2023-8050 G.2.
GRANT APPLICATION
FROM WI DEPT.
NATURAL RESOURCES
-CATASTROPHIC
STORM EVENTS

INFORMATIONAL- G.4.
FEMA FLOODPLAIN
VIOLATION PROGRAM

Alderman Holpfer moved to receive and place on file the Federal
Emergency Management Agency's Floodplain Violation Resolution
Program. Seconded by Alderwoman Eichmann. All voted Aye;
motion carried.



Common Council Meeting
October 3, 2023
Page 2

POTENTIAL WATER
SERVICE TO HALE
PARK HIGHLANDS
AREA

G.5. Mr. Dennis Engl - 11702 W. James Avenue spoke on this item prior to
the Council discussion.
Patti Logsdon - 12100 W. Velmar Drive spoke against this item, and
spoke for residents in her area.

Alderwoman Eichmann moved to suspend the rules to allow Mr. Jim
Asti - 1155 W. Shield Drive to speak on this item. Seconded by
Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Craig moved to return to regular order. Seconded by
Alderwoman Eichmann. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Eichmann moved to direct staff to survey the un-served
properties for desire of water service from W. Woods Road to the
North and return to Common Council when surveys are tabulated and
analyzed for a recommendation. Seconded by Alderman Hasan. All
voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to approve the acceptance of the 2023-2024
Division of Public Health Consolidated Contract Grants for the
Franklin Health Department. Seconded by Alderwoman Day. All
voted Aye; motion carried.

Mayor Nelson took a five-minute break at 8 :48 p.m. The Mayor
returned to open session at 8:56 p.m.

Alderman Barber moved to accept and place on file the 2022 Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report for the City of Franklin. Seconded
by Alderman Holpfer. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to authorize $10,000 for General Planning
Services provided by MDRoffers Consulting subject to the adoption of
an ordinance to amend the budget therefore. Seconded by
Alderwoman Eichmann. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2023-2556, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2022-2521, AN
ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE 2023 ANNUAL BUDGET FOR
THE GENERAL FUND TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL $10,000
APPROPRIATIONS FOR CONSULTING SERVICES IN THE
PLANNING DEPARTMENT. Seconded by Alderwoman Eichmann.
On roll call; All voted Aye. Motion carried.

2023-2024 G.6.
CONSOLIDATED
CONTRACT GRANTS
HEALTH DEPARTMENT

2022 ANNUAL G.7.
COMPREHENSIVE
FINANCIAL REPORT

BUDGET AMENDMENT G.8.
FOR GENERAL
PLANNING SERVICES

ORD. 2023-2556 G.9.
ADOPTING 2023
ANNUAL BUDGET FOR
GENERAL FUND -
CONSULTING
SERVICES PLANNING
DEPARTMENT



Common Council Meeting
October 3, 2023
Page 3

ORD. 2023-2557 G.10.
2023 ANNUAL BUDGET
GENERAL FUND
PART-TIME PLANNER

RECIND MOTION TO G.11.
AUTHORIZE
CONSULTING
SERVICES AGREEMENT
WRAYBURN
CONSULTING, LLC

RENEWAL OF PALO G.12.
ALTO ANNUAL
SUPPORT AND
LICENSING

EXPENDITURE OF G.13.
$62,202.65 TRENCHING
AND FIBER
RELOCATION CHANGE
ORDERS

MISCELLANEOUS H.
LICENSES

Alderman Barber moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2023-2557, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2022-2521, AN
ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE 2023 ANNUAL BUDGET FOR
THE GENERAL FUND TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL $9,500
APPROPRIATIONS FOR A PART-TIME PRINCIPAL PLANNER.
Seconded by Alderwoman Day. On roll call; All voted Aye. Motion
carried.

Alderman Barber moved to Rescind the Motion to Authorize a
Consulting Services Agreement with Wraybum Consulting, LLC,
Adopted on September 19, 2023, and in Place of the Agreement
Approve Nicholas Fuchs's Hiring as a .48 part-time Planner at
$46/hour. Seconded by Alderwoman Eichmann. All voted Aye;
motion carried.

Alderman Craig moved to authorize the expenditure of $25,280.79 for
the twelve-month annual Palo Alto maintenance and licensing. The
expenditure will be posted to account 01-0144-5242. Seconded by
Alderwoman Eichmann. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to authorize the expenditure of $62,202.65
for trenching and fiber relocation change orders, American Rescue
Plan Act Funding to account 46-0181-5846.9650. Seconded by
Alderman Holpfer. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Day moved to approve the following licenses:

License Meeting of October 3, 2023:

Grant 2023-24 Operator License to: Amy Analla, Jennifer Halser,
Joshua Ninabuck, & Brian Shulta;
Grant Class B Beer & Class B Wine Only Entertainment &
Amusement License to DBA On Cloud Wine, On Cloud Wine, LLC,
10062 W Loomis Rd, Agent John "Randy" Larson;
Grant Amendment to Public Grant for Civic Celebration for Civic
Celebration Commission to Include Horne for the Holidays Event,
Temporary Entertainment & Amusement License, 11/25/23, Franklin
City Hall, Lions Legend Park I, John Bergner, Chairman of Civic
Celebration Commission; and
Hold Temporary Entertainment & Amusement License to Civic
Celebration Committee-Horne for the Holidays Event, 11/25/23,
Franklin City Hall, Lions Legend Park I, Mira Kresovic.

Seconded by Alderman Craig. All voted Aye; motion carried.



Common Council Meeting
October 3, 2023
Page 4

VOUCHERS AND I.
PAYROLL

Alderman Barber moved to approve City vouchers with an ending date
of September 28, 2023, in the amount of $1,132,706.69, and payroll
dated September 22, 2023, in the amount of $479,371.70 and payments
of the various payroll deductions in the amount of $509,456.96, plus
City matching payments, and estimated payroll dated October 6, 2023,
in the amount of $470,000 and payments of the various payroll
deductions in the amount of $245,000, plus City matching payments.
Seconded by Alderman Hasan. On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion
carried.

ADJOURNMENT J.

Alderwoman Eichmann moved to enter closed session at 9: 19 p.m.,
pursuant to Wis. Stat. §19.85(l)(d), to consider strategy for crime
prevention, and the implementation of a program and policy and tools
therefore for crime prevention, i.e., cyberattack prevention and
technological crimes in relation thereto, for the protection of the City's
technical and information infrastructure and the City officials,
employees and the public who use the system, and also pursuant to
Wis. Stat. § 19 .85(1 )(e), for competition and bargaining reasons with
regard to the prevention protection program and this subject matter
item, and the investing of public funds in relation thereto, and to
reenter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters
discussed therein as it deems appropriate. Seconded by Alderman
Hasan. On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion carried.

Upon re-entering open session at 9:37 p.m.,

Alderman Barber moved to authorize the purchase of $391,108 for all
TPX product and services as defined by the first solution within the
Cornerstone Communications proposal. The managed services
solution will include all hardware, warranties, licenses, and support
agreements for a period of five years. The City attorney and Director
of IT are authorized to make any necessary technical correction for
establishing the service contract, and to use the City's standard form
services agreement. Seconded by Alderwoman Eichmann. On a roll
call, all voted Aye. Motion carried.

Alderman Craig moved to adjourn the meeting of the Common
Council at 9:39 p.m. Seconded by Alderwoman Eichmann. All voted
Aye; motion carried.

CLOSED SESSION- G.14.
STRATEGY FOR CRIME
PREVENTION AND
IMPLEMENTATION OF
A PROGRAM AND
POLICY AND TOOLS



From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:
Subject:

R1ck Olva
Wednesday, October 11, 2023 7 29 AM
Kelly Hersh
John Nelson
RE Retirement

F

Kelly,
Thank you very much for your kind words. I regret not being able to work with you longer. You are the 4th Director of

Adm1nistrat1on I've worked with and the rt to show true empathy for city employees. I appreciate your understanding
the value ofour workforce. I intend to support you, the mayor and city not only my last few months here but also as a
resident of Franklin going forward I wish you the best.

Rick

Ruck Olrva
Chief of Police
Franklm Pohce Department
9455 W Loomis Road
Franklm, WI 53132
(414) 425-2522
pohce franklmwi gov

pEemFranklin
¥' f • + ,

This message originatesfrom the CityofFranklin It contains information thatmaybeconfidential or privileged and 1s intended onlyfor themd1v1dua/(s)/ named
above It 1s prohibitedfor anyone to disclose, copy, distribute, or use thecontents ofthis messagewithout permission, except as allowed by the Wisconsin Public
Record Law Ifthis message is sent to a quorumofa governmental body, my intent is thesame as though it were sent by regular mail andfurther e-ma,I distribution 1s
prohibited All personalmessages express views solelyofthesender, which are not attributed to themunicipality I represent and may not be copied or distributed
with this d1sc/01mer Ifyou have received this message in errorplease notifyme1mmed1ate/y



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Solutions to Noise Issues at the ROC Ballpark Commons
Update

MEETING
DATE

October 17, 2023

ITEM NUMBER

c I
The Mayor will provide an update as to the solutions to noise issues at the ROC Ballpark Commons.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

As the Common Council may determine appropriate.

MAYOR -JRN



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Enchant Christmas Event at the ROC Ballpark Commons
Presentation

MEETING
DATE

October 17, 2023

ITEM NUMBER

Representatives from ROC Ventures and the Enchant Christmas entity information for the Enchant Christmas Event
at the ROC Ballpark Commons will be presented and provide information regarding the event.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

As the Common Council may determine appropriate.

MAYOR -JRN



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

Bk-
REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Authorize the subscription to USC communication
services and equipment leasing from Ring

Central/Cornerstone for $185,000 capitalized for
three years to replace existing phone systems.

Account 41-0181-5812

MEETING DATE
10/17/2023

ITEM NUMBER

3a.

Background
The phone system (also known as PBX) for the City of Franklin is composed of an Avaya Call Manager
R18 server at City Hall and two Avaya G60 Gateways at the Police Department and Public Library.
The previous Avaya Definity PBX, installed at the beginning of 1990, was deemed end-of-life and
needed to be replaced in 2020. The Avaya system uses a combination of analog, proprietary digital,
and VoIP communications to manufacturer-specific handsets. Fire Stations 2 and 3 have a Toshiba
PBX that is past its warranty and support period. Avaya VoIP phones used within the DPW are
forwarded from City Hall. The old legacy AT&T system at the DPW was hit by lightning; therefore,
this was the first real deployment of IP-based phones.

The current mish-mash of technology allows direct four-digit dialing only between City Hall, Police,
Fire Station 1, Public Library, and the DPW. All wiring is 2-wire old "Bell style" wiring that requires
legacy knowledge on punching down, tracing, and maintaining. This is now considered an obsolete
technology skill. Few cable installers are qualified to work on the legacy 66 and 110 blocks. A recent
cable cut of the City Hall tie-line to Fire Station 1 demonstrated the extreme age of the
telecommunication (phone) cabling, as a vendor from Chicago had to be contracted to perform the
copper splicing.

Analysis & Strategic Planning
In 2022, a proposal was made to replace the existing Avaya R18 system with a newer and lesser Avaya
IP Office system. The plan was based entirely on reducing costs. ONLY A FEW YEARS OLD, the R18
system installed in 2020 had a support and maintenance cost grow to over $20,000 annually. The plan
was to replace the PBX with a not call-center grade system, which would only have an annual support
and maintenance cost of $9,000. Funding of $185,000 was approved to replace the R18 phone system
with a more cost-effective solution running entirely on TCP/IP of CAT 5/6 cabling. Using VoIP phones
at DPW proved that the solution was technologically viable.

During the 6/28/23 meeting, the Technology Commission affirmed, upon the request of the Director of
IT, that the strategic direction of replacing one on-premise PBX system for another was flawed and ill
conceived. The Technology Commission, under a unanimous vote, strongly encourages Franklin to
abandon the old on-premise system and look for cloud-based VoIP solutions, as the platform has
reached a maturity level that is now considered mainstream. Plans for replacing a 3-year-old Avaya
system with a different model fail to recognize a strategic direction and the value offering that cloud
based PBX services provide.



1) A core operational system (PBX) transitions to the cloud. Disaster recovery and avoidance are fully
addressed with the cloud migration.
2) The vendor is responsible for maintaining and upgrading the system. Security vulnerabilities from
unpatched software become a thing of the past.
3) Long-term contracted VoIP services lock-in telecommunication costs. Legacy telecommunication
and carrier costs are dramatically increasing as carriers cannot support these infrastructures as
engineers retire. Maintaining legacy telecommunication systems will continue to have support and
training issues for many years.
4) Cloud-based services offer far more than voice communications. The traditional telephone is dead.
Cloud-based platforms offer Unified Communication Services, which include video teleconferencing,
audio teleconferencing, traditional audio phone/PBX, voicemail, integrated faxing, text messaging and
SMS, auto-attendants and automated call routing, call center/phone metrics, call logging and tracing,
message archiving.
5) All phones move to IP and standard data cabling. Maintaining the old field walls of separate Bell
wire cabling is no longer necessary. This eliminates a cable plant and simplifies support.

UCS services can be provisioned below or at the current telecommunication costs while granting far
more services than traditional PBX with voicemail. The vendors will fully support the systems now
and in the future.

Nine proposals were received and evaluated from six solution providers for replacing the current on
premise phone system with VoIP phones communicating to a cloud-based PBX. The solutions were
evaluated by both IT and the department heads for both function and ease of use. As a part of this
study, the critical need for archiving and retrieving messages, texts, and voicemails for open records
requests became apparent. The solution selected needed to address the need to store UCS messages
and text for indefinite long-term archives, as many of these forms of communications could be
considered governmental records in the future. The business units desired to standardize the use of
Poly phones (a.k.a. Polycom) due to the functions, durability, and reputation for quality.

The final decision was to select Ring Central as the new VoIP cloud telecommunications provider.

Company Information:
RingCentral Inc (NYSE: RNG) provides enterprise cloud communications, collaboration, voice and
video meetings, and contact center software-as-a-service solutions. The company's cloud-based
communication and collaboration platform helps provide global user identity across devices, including
smartphones, tablets, PCs, and desk phones and offers a set of capabilities to combine voice, video
conferencing, business messaging, team collaboration, and online meetings. The company serves
healthcare, financial services, state and local government, education, technology, insurance,
hospitality, retail, real estate, manufacturing, construction, professional, and legal services. RCI is
headquartered in Belmont, California, with over $2.lB in annual sales.

For 2022, Gartner ranked Microsoft, Ring Central, Zoom, and Cisco as Q1 market leaders.



Project Timeline & Schedule:
The 2023 Avaya service and support contract was not renewed in August because a change in the
telecommunication platform was expected by the end of the year. The current system is no longer
running on a support and warranty agreement; hence, there is a strong need for a quick and transparent
migration to cloud services. The remote offices are anticipated to be the first to convert to cloud-based
phone services, as this limits risk and allows for the retirement of existing AT&T phone contracts. All
existing DID numbers will be maintained. The goal is to migrate the four remote offices first, then
upgrade all systems on the campus networks before 12/15/2023.

Fiscal Impact
In 2022, an allocation of $185,000 was made to account 41-0181-5812 for replacing the existing phone
system. The first three years of lease and subscription costs will be made as a capital expenditure,
including installation and conversion costs. After this period, operational outlay (OPEX) costs are
estimated to be $46,872.48.

A full audit of all desk phones was performed after receiving the RFPs to obtain a fully accurate number
of devices. The total device counts:

Quantity Seats
199 Standard
49 Limited
62 Vmcemail Only
248 Cost Recovery
248 E911

27 ATALease
1 RingClone Archrvng
1 Addrtional Local DID

Quantity Devices

Recurring
Seat Per Month Total Per Month

$ 8.00 $ 1,592.00

$ 6.00 $ 294.00

$ $
$ 3.50 $ 868.00

$ 1.00 $ 248.00

$ 1.65 $ 44.55

$ 49.00 $ 49.00

$ 4.99 $ 4.99

Total Per Month $ 3,100.54
Yearly Cost $ 37,206.48

Optional Handset Lease
Device Per Month Total Per Month

54
0
0
7
4
4
4

Poly Edge E500
Expansion Module Edge E
Rove 30 DECT Handset
Rove 30 + B2 DECT Base
Tr10 8800 Conference Phone (POE Powered}
Trio C Seres Expansion Mic
Trio C60 Conference Phone (POE}

$ 3.00 $
$ 4.20 $
$ $
$ $
$ 7.50 $
$ 10.95 $
$ $
$ 15.60 $
Total Per Month $

Yearly Cost $

420.00
226.80

52.50
43.80

62.40

805.50
9,666.00

140 Poly Edge E350



Cornerstone Consulting/DeploymentAssistance
Quantity Phone Price Total

209 Onsite Installation of Phones/Devices $ 2.5.00 $ 5,225.00
4 Port Assistance $ 16.5.00 $ 660.00
10 Admin Training $ 16.5.00 $ 1,6.50.00
30 End-User In-Person Group Training $ 16.5.00 $ 4,950.00
80 Provisioning/Design/Implementation $ 16.5.00 $ 13,200.00
270 Removal of Exustmng Phones and Equipment $ 2.5.00 $ 6,750.00
15 Hourly Rate (Misc./AT&T Disconnects} $ 16.5.00 $ 2,475.00

Total: $ 34,910.00

Current and Future Project Costs: (Allocated $185,000)
• Year 1 Subscription & Equipment Lease
• Year 1 Installation & Migration Services
• Year 1 Archiver 1TB Data Storage ($35 /mo.)
• Year 2 Subscription & Equipment Lease
• Year 2 Archiver 1TB Data Storage ($35 /mo.)
• Year 3 Subscription & Equipment Lease
• Year 3 Archiver 1TB Data Storage ($35 /mo.)

Total Capitalized Cost

Annual Operational Cost After Year 3

$46,872.48
$34,910.00

$420.00
$46,872.48

$420.00
$46,872.48

$420.00

$176,787.44

$47,292.48

*Note: $8,212.56 will be used within the project as a contingencyfund.

Alternative Analysis:

Option 1: Purchase Phones vs. Leasing (Ring Central):

Optional Handset Purchase
Quantity Devices Per Device Total

140 Poly Edge E3.50 $ 199.56 $ 27,938.40
54 Poly Edge E.500 $ 242.76 $ 13,109.04
10 Expansion Module Edge E $ 199.56 $ 1,995.60
5 Rove 30 DECT Handset $ 207.44 $ 1,037.20
2 Rove 30 +B2 DECT Base $ 400.10 $ 800.20
4 Tr10o 8800 Conference Phone (POE Powered} $ 608.70 $ 2,434.80
4 Trio C Series Expansion Mic $ 212.26 $ 849.04
4 Trio C60 Conference Phone (POE} $ 85.5.80 $ 3,423.20

209 Pre-Configuration for Phones (Optional} $ 10.00 $ 2,IJ90.00

Total Upfront $ 53,677.48



Option 2: SKC Proposal ofZoom UCS Services with Purchased Hardware:

Subscriptions & Licensing
• Zoom One Pro (Site)
• Zoom Phone User (160 users)
• Zoom Phone Common Area (68 users)
• Zoom Phone Pay as Go (1 user)
• Federal Tax & Recovery Fees

Total Annual Subscription Cost

Hardware:
• Phones & Adapters
• Patch Panels

SBC:
• 3-Year SBC Agreement

Support:
• SKC 3-Year Flexblock 8x5

Implementation:
• Installation Services

Total Project Cost

3-Year Capitalized Costs:
• Year 1 Subscription & Licenses
• Year 1 Hardware & Installation Cost
• Year 2 Subscription & Licenses
• Year 2 Subscription & Licenses

Total Capitalized Cost:

$119.92
$14,434.20
$2,170.56

$0.00
$1,289.33

$18,014.01

$57,658.03
$437.45

$797.67

$8,000.00

$50,620.24

$117,513.39

$18,014.01
$117,513.39

$18,014.01
$18,014.01

$171,555.42

Assumptions
A major project deliverable is integrating phone systems into existing overhead PA systems at the Fire
Department, Library, and Police Department using leased ATA adapters. Additionally, 6-8 dedicated
analog lines redirect local phone traffic to the PD Dispatch Vesta system. Coordination with Baycom
and Station Alerting may be necessary to integrate with these systems fully. The PD 911 systems are
fully independent and on a dedicated stub network; therefore, they are not impacted by the phone
system changes.



COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to authorize subscription contracts for UCS communication services (cloud PBX) along with
phone and equipment leases from Ring Central/Cornerstone for three years, not exceeding $185,000.
After three years, annual communication expenditures are estimated to be $47,292.48.

DOA - KH/ IT-JM



». '
Franklin,,

WISCONSIN

City of Franklin
Department of lnformat,on Technology

City of Franklin

Statement of Work & Project Scope

2023 Phone System Replacement Project

Created By James Matelski, Director of IT

October 13, 2023



City of Franklin
Department of fnformat,on Technology

Description of Project:

In an effort to reduce annual support and maintenance costs, the City of Franklin Is undertaking a project to
replace all Avaya phone systems and migrate proprietary d1g1tal technology over to VoIP on TCP/IP The current
Avaya Call Manager R18.x system will be retired along with approximately 217 desk phones. The current
Avaya Call Manager at City Hall will be replaced, along with two G650 Avaya Gateways at the Police
Department and Franklin Public Library The project will consider extending central phone services from Crty
Hall over to the four remote offices (Fire Staton 2, Fre Staton 3, DPW, and Sewer Water), which are running
on localjstand-alone Toshiba PBX systems. This will reqwre rerouting remote office DIDs over to the City Hall
system, where central admIrnstratIon and support can be performed Both on premise and cloud-based PBX
proposals will be considered.

Location of Work:

The CIty of Franklin "campus" network consists of four mamn building that are interconnected wth crty owned
0C1 fiber. TCP/IP routing exists between these offices using a hub and spoke architecture Aruba 5600 XL
core switches are used to interconnect to Aruba 2920 48 port switches to form a layer 3 network. There are
four remote offices that are connected back to City Hall using sIte-to-sIte VPNs over Palo Alto
firewalls. Currently Internet access Is bemg provided by Spectrum services on coax, however, the City Is
undertaking a project to implement a pnvate fiber WAN and connect to the State ofWIsconsIn W1scNet system
for Internet access Thus project is anticipated to be complete by the end of2023.

Campus Network - Interconnected with OC1 Fiber

• City Hall
o Avaya Call Manager and Audx System
o Incoming calls received from AT&T FIexReach - fiber

• NoSIP.
« Signaling converted last 6 feet to T1

o HP 5400 XL Core swrtch - data center
■ Three IDFs - HP 2920 Switch Stacks - 2 switches per stack

■ QoS Enabled
■ PoE + Enabled
■ VLAN Segmentation Enabled
• 1GB edge ports/w 10GB uplink ports

o InternetAccess
■ Dual Spectrum 1GB coax routers
■ Palo Alto 820 firewall - clustered

• Police Department
o Avaya G60 Gateway (read only mode)

Configuration and vocemail received from City Hall Call Manager & Audx
• Incoming calls received from AT&T FlexReach - fiber

• No SIP.
■ Signaling converted last 6 feet to T1

o HP 5400 XL Core switch - data center
■ One IDF - HP 2920 Switch Stack - 4 switches

• QoS Enabled
• PoE + Enabled

■ VLAN Segmentation Enabled
• 1GB edge ports/w 10GB uplink ports

■ Internet Access
■ Smgle Spectrum 1GB coax router
■ Palo AIto 820 f1rewall clustered

2[Page



sea8if#

Franklin
af

WISCONSIN

City of Franklin
Department of lnformat10n Technology

• Public Library
o Avaya G60 Gateway (read only mode)

• Configuration and vorcemail recerved from City Hall Call Manager & Audrx
■ Analog port for 911 external access - unique caller ID for bu1lding

o One IDF - HP 2920 Switch Stack - 2 switches
■ QoS Enabled
■ PoE + Enabled

■ VLAN Segmentation Enabled
• 1GB edge ports/w 10GB uplink ports

■ InternetAccess
■ Provided by Milwaukee County Library System on W1scNet

• Fre Station 1
o One IDF - HP 2920 Switch Stack - switches

■ QoS Enabled
■ PoE + Enabled

■ VLAN Segmentation Enabled
• 1GB edge ports/w 10GB uplink ports

■ Internet Access
■ Routed and provided by City Hall

Remote Offices - Interconnected to City Hall over sIte-to-sIte VPN:

• Fire Station 2
o Toshiba PBX

■ Centex trunk lines
• Analog lines

o One IDF - HP 2920 Switch Stack- 2 switches
• QoS Enabled
■ PoE + Enabled

■ VLAN Segmentation Enabled
• 1GB edge ports/w 10GB uplink ports

■ Internet Access
■ 200MB Spectrum coax Internet
■ Palo Alto 220 Firewall

• Fire Station 3
o Toshiba PBX- 2 switches

■ Centex trunk lines
• Analog lines

o One IDF - HP 2920 Switch Stack
■ QoS Enabled
■ PoE + Enabled

■ VLAN Segmentation Enabled
■ 1GB edge ports /w 10GB uplink ports

■ Internet Access
■ 200MB Spectrum coax Internet
■ Palo Alto 220 Firewall

• DPW
o No PBX

■ 10 Avaya 9611G phones deployed with swItching performed at City Hall
o One IDF - HP 2920 Switch Stack - 2 switches

■ QoS Enabled
■ PoE + Enabled

3\Page



Franklin
d

WISCONSIN

■ VLAN Segmentation Enabled
■ 1GB edge ports /w 10GB uplink ports

■ InternetAccess
■ 200MB Spectrum coax Internet
■ Palo Alto 220 Firewall

• Sewer & Water Utility
o Northern Bell PBX with AT&T phones.

■ Centrex trunk Imes
■ Analog Imes

o One IDF HP 2920 Switch Stack- 2 switches
■ QoS Enabled
■ PoE + Enabled

■ VLAN Segmentation Enabled
■ 1GB edge ports /w 10GB uplink ports

■ Internet Access
■ 400MB Spectrum coax Internet
■ Palo Alto 220 Firewall

City of Franklin
Department of informatton Technology

Note: Aruba 2920 switches are 802.3AT POE+ complamnt. The maximum wattage or each unrt is either 475
Watts (24-port) or 487 Watts (48-port)

4[Page



City of Franklin
Department of !nformat10n Technology

Current Telephony Environment:

Below Is a l1st1ng of all telephony and communications equipment currently in use.

City Campus

• City Hall
o Avaya Call Manager

• Audtx Vorcemail va Avaya Messenger
■ Vendor denvatIve of VMWare on dedicated server/appliance
■ Two 8-slot cabinets
• Line Cards:

■ 3 TN746B Analog card
■ 7 TN2181 Digital cards
• 2TN224B Digital card
■ 2 TN464 DS1 Signaling card
■ 2 TN2313 IP Server Interface
■ 1TN744 Call Class1f1er
■ 2 TN799 Control LAN Interface
■ 1 TN2302 Media Processor
■ 1 TN2602 Media Processor
■

o AT&T FlexReach
CIenna Router
Switch

o Fax Machine & Copiers
o Phones

• Police Department
o Avaya G650 Gateway

Line Cards
■ 1 MM710 DS1 card
■ 1 MM711 ANA card
• 3 MM717 DCP 24 Port Media Module
■ 3 MM716 Analog card

o AT&T FlexReach
• CIenna Router

Switch
o Fax Machine & Copiers
o Phones

• Public Library
o Avaya G650 Gateway

■ Trunk received from City Hall
■ 1 MM711 ANA card
■ 1 MM717 DCP 24 Port Media Module
■ 1 MM716 Analog card

o Fax Machines & Copiers
o Phones

• Fire Station 1 (extension of City Hall va tie lines)
o Fax Machines & Copiers
o Phones

SI Page



gt"°
Franklin

d

WISCONSIN

Remote Offices

• Fire Station 2
o Toshiba PBX
o Fax Machines & Copiers
o Phones

• Fire Station 3
o Toshiba PBX
o Fax Machines & Copiers
o Phones

• DPW
o Fax Machines & Copiers
o VoIP Phones (communicates over IP site to-site VPN tunnel)

• Sewer & Water
o Northern Bell PBX
o Fax Machines & Copiers
o AT&T Phones

Period of Performance

City of Fronk/in
Department of Information Technology

Due to the connect1v1ty between the Call Manager system and the Avaya Gateways, the conversion of the old
system to the new must be performed in tandem within the three campus offices. Integration of the four
remote offices that are using stand-alone phone systems can be performed atthe same time as the campus
network, or performed at a slightly later date. Phones at the DPW are dependent upon the City Hall phone
system, hence all phones in this office shall be migrated with the campus offices. It 1s ant1c1pated that at least
30-60 days will be necessary to analyze all PBX configurations, routing, auto attendants, and interfaces 1n
order to migrate these settings over to a new system All phone and telephony services must be fully in place
and operational by the end of October 31, 2023.

Completion of all proposals and a quotation of equipment, cabling, installation, and post-1mplementat1on
services 1s due by April 28, 2023 at 5:00 pm. Incomplete proposals or documents that contains significant
errors will be returned to the applicant prior to the subm1ss1on deadline. No proposal will be considered after
the appl1cat1on deadline. All proposals and materials are considered closed and conf1dent1al Information
contained within each proposal will not be shared or distributed with any other vendor or party

6[Page



es
,,,,. Franklin...

WISCONSIN

Project Deliverables:

City of Franklin
Department of Jnformatton Technology

Hardware Deliverables Solutions that use on-premise equipmentwill include a quotation of all necessary
equipment, phones, cabling, cards, adapters, and interfaces for a full 1mplementat1on ofthe platform.
Hardware delivery/shipments is intended to be multiple shipments with City Hall bemng the single recervmng
point The customer provided warehouse will be environmentally controlled and secured

Software Deliverables - Solution's that use on-premise equipment will include all software and licensing
necessary to fully implement the solution. All software and license costs must be fully described within the
quotations, and any annual licensing costs listed within services and support. Cloud based solutions that
require software or licensing for integration with other services or third-party solution must also have these
costs fully described within service and support.

Configuration of Solution for Current PBX Services - The proposed solution will include the 1dentIficat1on and
duplIcatIon of the current Avaya Telephony Services configuration and system parameters The solution must
allow for the definition and importation ofthe following services.

• Phone station ID (a.k.a. extension) assignments to an ind1v1dual or department. This will include
analog, dIg1tal, and VoIP station accounts.

• Vorcemal assignment to a station ID or dedicated vrtual mailbox.
o Importation of existing vocemail Is out of scope, as new vorcemail accounts wll be created

and existing messages will not be earned over to the new system.
• Department hunt groups, call routing, and call paths.
• System auto-attendants and associated menu options.

o Bulletin board attendants for non-interactive messages
o After Hours system attendants and associated menu options

• Dedicated DID inbound call routing
• Inbound trunk line configuration

o SIP 1s currently not being implemented
• EC500 replacement for call routing to employee cell phones
• Called ID
• 911 routing and associated caller ID
• Basic mus1c on hold

Logging and Call Tracing- The currentAvaya system does not allow for call logging and tracing, with little to no
aggregate statIstIcs being provided on call quality, routing, or abandoned calls. A solution that provides call
logging and statistical reports Is desired, but is not required as a project deliverable.

Documentation - The vendor will provide documentation to the solution's configuration, IP addressing, running
services, and any associated accounts and passwords used by the system. Any software or licenses actively
being used with the solution should be fully described within the documentation.

De-installation of Existing Equipment: - For on-premise systems, the vendor will de-install all equipment
necessary for the completion ofthe SOW and the tasks defined within De-installation 1s defined as·

• Disconnecting cables and power connections for the device
• Physically removing the individual devce from rts installed location, whether rt is min a shelf or rack.
• Equipmentwill be left on the customer premise in the vicinity of where rt was installed previous. The

customer will be responsible for the disposal of the old equipment, in the event a credit 1s not received
for shipment ofthe old equipment back to the onginal manufacturer

7]Page



9%\a#6°
Franklin
f

WISCONSIN

City of Franklin
Department of lnformat1on Technology

Overhead Paging - Current overhead paging systems at the Fire Departments, Police Department, DPW, and
Water utIl1ty are legacy and obsolete. It 1s recognized that a new third-party paging solution 1s needed that can
be standardized across all offices An integrated overhead paging solution should be included wIth the
proposal along with associated costs, licenses, and potential cabling/connect1v1ty.

Training - The vendor will provide in person or video training courses that can be used by City of Franklin
employees to learn the functions and features ofthe new phone system. It 1s expected that each employee will
be engaged mn 1-2 hours of phone system training. Five dedicated City of Franklin employees will be given
extended traming mn the implementation and maintenance of station accounts, vorcemal mailboxes, and bas1c
administration It is expected that 5-8 hours of basic administration tramnmng will be performed for the
dedicated on-srte system administrators

Post Implementation Deliverables:

Post 1mplementat1on service and warranties should be included as part of the proposal and f1nancIal quotes,
in add1tIon to any extended maintenance costs These may vary s1gnif1cantly based upon whether an on
premise or cloud-based system Is implemented Post implementation services must address:

1. Warranty Costs - Any equipmentthat 1s implemented must be maintained under vendor and extended
warranties for the entire usage life ofthe equipment Any equipmentwarranty that Is provided inIt1ally
by the manufacturer must be clearly 1dent1fied. Warranty and support costs by the hardware
manufacturer beyond the in1t1al purchase must be 1dent1fied as well

2. Extended Configuration & Maintenance Support The City of Franklin does not have a dedicated
telecommunication/phone engineer on staff, hence the City is reliant upon consulting services to
execute complex conf1gurat1on tasks beyond basic add/moves/changes. A support and maintenance
plan for ant1c1pated configuration and troubleshooting of problems should be maintained. The support
agreement should address

o SLA for problem reporting, resolution and escalation
o SLA for configuration changes and adm1nistrat1on
o SLA and t1meline (change window) for installation of recommended software updates
o SLA and tmmelne for the installation of recommended security updates

■ Bi-annual updates 1s strongly recommended
o Remote access method for emergency support or system down cond1t1ons
o System backup and configuration archiving methods

3. Education & Training - Classes, coursework, and administration guides should be provided wrthmn the
quoted costs Based upon the type of system and service, the materials and training for local IT
support may vary within the proposal.

Out of Scope Elements:

The replacement phone system atthe Police Department will receive inbound local calls and then transfer the
phone call to the Dispatch Vesta system. Today this goes out via eight dedicated analog ports. The new phone
systems will not directly integrate with the Dispatch 911 or Vesta systems, which are considered out of scope
for the proJect. Both Vesta and emergency 911 services at Pohce Dispatch are handled by dedicated vendors,
and these systems are isolated and contained on a stub network that is not connected to the main network mn
any way.

8]Page



3st.ii

Franklin...
WISCONSIN

Application of Standards:

City ofFranklin
Department of Jnformatton Technology

The vendor will adhere to all City of Franklin networking, telecommunication and security standards. For
systems or services installed at the City of Franklin Police Department, all equipment and services must be
fully in compliance the Department of Justice Criminal Justice Information Systems standards (CJIS) version
5.9.

9[Page



s -l

Franklin..,
WISCONSIN

Acceptance Criteria:

City of Franklin
Department of lnformatton Technology

The vendor wll provde a cut-over migration sheet that mncludes all incoming DID, hunt groups, and call paths
that need to be fully tested post-1mplementatIon The vendor will create a diagram of all station attendants
and the associated call tree options used to activate an attendant or bulletin board. All recorded station
attendants and associated vo1cemaII accounts will be tested and confirmed to be fully operational post
migratuon.

The vendor and the City of Franklin project team will verify the successful testing ofthe system based on the
stated crrtera agreed upon in this SOW. The vendor will notify the City of Franklin project team that the project
If officially complete by submitting to the customer a Project Sign-off Form, which should be completed and
returned within five business days after receipt. If the project Sign-Off Completion Form indicates that there
are any exceptions, the Crty of Franklin will provide mn wntmng specific details regarding what and how the
service did not substantially conform to this SOW The vendor will address any such non conformances in a
timely manner. The process for acceptance will be repeated until all non-conformance issues have been fully
resolve or jointly addressed.

Financing and Capital:

Funding of $185,000 mn caprtal is being provided to the project through ARPA grant funds. The project will
replace the primary call manager system at City Hall, and the G450 remote gateways atthe Franklin Library
and Franklin Police Department. A total of 217 desktop phones are currently in use under the following
models.

City Hall
Avaya 6416D+ 24
Avaya 6416D+M 3
Avaya 6424D+ 1
Avaya 6424D+M 5
Avaya 7408D+ 1
Avaya 8405D+ 3
Avaya LCD 1
Avaya Polycom 2490 3
Lucent 8405D+ 11
Lucent 8403 1
Lucent 8405B 1
Lucent 8405D 1
Lucent 8410D 3
Lucent 8434DX 10
PanasonIc 1
Total 69

Police Department
2500 15

6210 13
6211 1

lOJPage



it

Franklin
«f

WISCONSIN

6408D+ 20
6416D+ 15
84038 3
8405D+ 7
8410D 2
Total Count 76

Public Library
Avaya 2500 2
Avaya 6408D+ 15
Avaya 6424D+M 1
Lucent 8405D+ 5
Lucent 8410D+ 1
Total 24

Fire Station 1
Avaya 9611 VoIP 3
Lucent 8403 2
Lucent 8410D 4
Lucent 8434DX 4
Total 13

City of Franklin
Department of Information Technology

Fire Staton 2
AT&T Desk
AT&T Cordless
AT&TWall
Total

Fire Stat1on 3
AT&T Desk
AT&T Cordless
AT&T Wall
Total

2
2
1
5

3
2
2
7

DPW
Avaya 9611 VoIP 10
Total 10

Sewer & Water Utility
AT&T 5867138 1
AT&T 5867148 1
AT&T Cordless 9
AT&T ML17928 2
Total 13

11]Page



2st\es

Franklin
f

WISCONSIN

City ofFranklin
Department of Information Technology

Current Operational Costs
Avaya Warranty and Support contracts for 2022 totaled and operational expense of $29,773.68. It Is desired
that maintenance and warranty support will be 30% to 40% of existing annual expenditures.

Plant cabling may need to be mnstalled mn lobbies and public areas, where a current digital/analog phone exists
but there Is no corresponding CAT6/5e network cabling.

Currently Monthly Carrier Charges:
• City Hall

o AT&T FlexReach (46 channels @ 10 Mbps) - $906 18
o Engmeenng Analog/Fax -$63.80
o Clerks Analog/Fax $63.80

• Police Department
o AT&T FlexReach (23@ 10 Mbps) $642 70

• Public Library
o Inbound calls received by City Hall FlexReach router and transferred to G450 gateway over

OC1 Imes
o Dedicated Analog 911 Line (outbound) - $123.42

• Fire Station 1
o Inbound calls received by City Hall FlexReach router and transferred to G450 gateway over

OC1 Imes.
• Fre Staton 2

o Incoming Analog/Centrex - $74 17
• Fire Station 3

o Incomng Analog/Centrex $74.17
• Sewer & Water Utility

o Incoming Analog/Centrex - $148 34
o Cabinet Dialer (SCADA) - $76 22

Special Requirements:

A dedicated remote access computer can be provided that is accessible via the Palo Alto Global Protect VPN
client The computer can be used to remotely analyze existing confIguratIons and hardware, as well as setup
and configure the new replacement system as well. A dedicated Active Directory user account will be created
for the during of the project engagement, which Is then used for authentIcat1on of remote access. CJIS security
requirements for remote access must be followed for the duration ofthe project and continued support.

12 I P a g e



Statement ofWork prepared for:

The City of Franklin
2023 Phone System Replacement Project

--,
'

Franklin
4

WISCONSIN

Proposal date May 15, 2023

Presented by Cornerstone Communications

CORNERSTONE1
COMMUNICATIONS, INC

Cody Smith - President

cody@comerstonecomm net

262-910-9932

Karmen Juckem -Account Executive

karmen@comerstonecomm net

762-394-1800



Thank you for providing the details of your RFP. It sounds like the Ctty of Franklin Is
seeking a comprehensive solution to upgrade its phone systems and migrate to VoIP
technology. Cornerstone Communications would be pleased to submit a proposal to
assist you mn this effort.

Based on the information provided, we believe our company Is well-positioned to meet
your needs. We have extensive experience in implementing VoIP phone systems for
organizations of all sizes and have successfully migrated clients from proprietary digital
technology to IP-based solutions. We are confident that we can deliver a solution that
meets your requirements while also reducing your annual support and maintenance
costs.

Why Choose Cornerstone?

CornerStone Communications is the perfect partner for organizations looking to support
or transition their phone systems to a more robust platform. With our expertise, we are
able to maximize your investment and eliminate unnecessary errors. We can bid out
any data or voice connection to help you find the most competitive services, reducing
your costs while improving your network's capabilities. We specialize in a wide range of
technology solutions, including SDWAN/SASE, cyber-security, and high-availability
networks. We can source industry-leading equipment and solutions to meet your
specific needs. At Cornerstone Communications, we pride ourselves on providing
exceptional service and support to ensure your business is always connected and
protected.

The project that the City of Franklin is looking to take on will be incredibly complex with
many stakeholders throughout the organization involved. We intend to make sure each
department's voice is heard and provide a white glove approach to ensure a smooth
implementation. We'll partner with the IT department and act as a resource throughout
the deployment and provide the post-implementation support that the City will require.

At Cornerstone Communications, we prioritize delivering the best solutions for your
business. Whether you need phone system support, cost-effective voice and data
connections, or access to advanced technologies, we are committed to providing
personalized and reliable service. Partner with us to streamline your communication
infrastructure and reduce the burden on your internal resources.



Our proposed solution will include the following components.

1. VoIP phone system: We will provide a robust and scalable VoIP phone system to
replace the existing Avaya Call Manager R18.x system. The new system will support all
required features, including call routing, voicematl, call conferencing, and call recording.

2. Desk phones: We will provide new desk phones to replace the approximately 217
Avaya phones that are currently in use. These phones will be selected based on your
specific needs and requirements.

3. Remote offices· the remote locations and home offices will receive the complete
menu of services the platform offers including support services. It will create a seamless
transition, allowing workers to change locations or work from home as needed.

4. Hybrid or cloud-based PBX: We will provide proposals for both Hybrid and cloud
based PBX solutions to meet your specific requirements. Our team will work with you to
determine the best solution based on your budget, technical requirements, and other
considerations.

In addition to the above components, our solution will include installation, configuration,
training, and ongoing support services to ensure a seamless transition to the new phone
system.

Implementation:

We understand that the conversion of the old system to the new must be performed in
tandem within the three campus offices and that phones at the DPW are dependent
upon the City Hall phone system. We will work closely with your team to ensure a
smooth transition and minimize any disruption to your daily operations.

Regarding the integration of the four remote offices that are using stand-alone phone
systems, we agree that it can be performed at the same time as the campus network or
at a slightly later date, based on your preference.

We acknowledge that at least 30-60 days will be necessary to analyze all PBX
configurations, routing, auto attendants, and interfaces in order to migrate these settings
over to a new system. Our team will ensure that we allocate enough time for this
analysis and work with your team to identify any potential issues and mitigate them
proactively.

We understand that all phone and telephony services must be fully in place and
operational by the end of October 31, 2023. We will ensure that we meet this
requirement and deliver a fully functional system by the deadline.

We understand that incomplete proposals or documents that contain sgntficant errors
will be returned to the applicant prior to the submission deadline, and no proposal will



be considered after the application deadline. We will ensure that our proposal is
complete and accurate to meet these requirements.

Thank you for considering our proposal. We believe that our solution will provide a
reliable, cost-effective, and scalable VoIP phone system for the City of Franklin. Please
let us know if you have any questions or would like to discuss the proposal further.

Project Deliverables:

Hardware Deliverables - Solutions that use on-premise equipment will include a
quotation of all necessary equipment, phones, cabling, cards, adapters, and interfaces
for a full implementation of the platform Hardware delivery/shipments is intended to be
multiple shipments with City Hall being the single receiving point. The customer
provided warehouse will be environmentally controlled and secured.

• The approach of shippmg the hardware mn multiple shipments to a single receiving point,
such as City Hall, can be an effective way to manage log1sttcs and ensure that all
eqwpment is deltvered securely Add1tlona/ly, havmg an environmentally controlled and
secured warehouse to store the eqwpment can help to protect it from damage or theft
Cloud-based VoIP platforms typically require mmnmmal hardware and can be easily scaled
up or down as needed

• Ulttmately, the choice between a Hybnd solution and a cloud-based VoIP platform will
vary the quantity of eqwpment reqwred and sent the spectfied location

Software Deliverables - Solution's that use on-premise equipment will include all
software and licensing necessary to fully implement the solution. All software and
license costs must be fully described within the quotations, and any annual licensing
costs listed within services and support. Cloud based solutions that require software or
licensing for integration with other services or third-party solution must also have these
costs fully described within service and support

• With cloud-based phone solutions, there are typically little to no upfront hardware costs,
as the system is hosted mn the cloud by a third-party provider However, the software
and licensmg costs associated wth the solution, particularly mf there rs a need for
integration with otherservices or thrd-party solutions

• Any necessary software or ftcensmg for the Hybnd and Cloud-Based solution wt/I also
be fully descnbed wthin the services and support section of the quotation Thus will
ensure that there are no surpnses orhidden costs /ateron m the 1mplementat1on
process



Configuration of Solution for Current PBX Services - The proposed solution will
include the identification and duplication of the current Avaya Telephony Services
configuration and system parameters. The solution must allow for the definition and
importation of the following services:

• Phone station ID (a k.a extension) assignments to an individual or department.
This will include analog, digital, and VoIP station accounts.

o Every userwall be assigned a DID and an extension IVR's, hunt/call groups, and
locations can also be assigned a DID and/orand extension

• Voicemail assignment to a station ID or dedicated virtual mailbox.
o Importation of existing vorcemail Is out of scope, as new vocemail accounts will

be created and existing messages will not be earned over to the new system
a Every userwill have theirown voicemaul box that can be accessed onsrte

or remotely
• Group mat/boxes are also possible to be created

• Department hunt groups, call routing, and call paths
o Hunt groups are available with each solution proposed
o Call routing and advanced call routmg are mcluded with base packages Skills

based routmg would reqwre an upgrade, but ts not requtred or necessary based
on what has been shared

o Each system includes enough call paths for every user to be on the phone
simultaneously, as well as handle multiple calls per user s1multaneous/y

• System auto-attendants and associated menu options
o Bulletin board attendants for non-interactive messages

• Recorded and non-mteract,ve messages can be added to any IVR, on
hold, orshared vorcemal box

o After Hours system attendants and associated menu options
• Every IVR, user, and site can have normal and after-hours options for call

routing, vo,cemail hand/mg, and alert messages to external users
• Dedicated DID inbound call routing

o Every user, IVR, and handset can have a publtshed ornonpubltshed DID
• Inbound trunk line configuration

o SIP Is currently not being implemented
SIP will no longer be a requirement as rt rs bundled wth the phone
solution The proposal includes the removal of the existing SIP solution
(AT&T IP Flex) to allow for cost savmgs for the City

• EC500 replacement for call routing to employee cell phones
o Every employee will have the ability to answerwork calls to their DID and/or

extension via mobile app on their cell phone, so-rt phone on a work or home
device, or can opt for call forwardmng to a personal number

• Called ID
o Inbound caller ID will identify publtcly reported mformatton to the City's users
o Outbound caller ID can be chosen by the City employee I e,an employee can

opt for their work DID, department DID, or City DID foroutbound caller ID
• 911 routing and associated caller-ID

o Each solution meets the reqwrements of Kan's Law and Ray Baum's Act
• Basic music on hold

o Each phone system comes preprogrammed with music on hold The customer Is
also able to upload MP3/4 files to be played foron hold music



o Addthonally, the customercan record messaging and upload t for any on-hold
users

Logging and Call Tracing - The current Avaya system does not allow for call logging
and tracing, with little to no aggregate statistics being provided on call quality, routing, or
abandoned calls A solution that provides call logging and statistical reports is desired,
but is not required as a project deliverable.

• Each of the proposed solutions wall have a default call logging record built mnto the
system The details shared vary between systems but each will provide Caller ID
(inbound/outbound) Date/Time stamp, and duration of call at a minimum

De-installation of Existing Equipment: - For on-premise systems, the vendor will de
install all equipment necessary for the completion of the SOW and the tasks defined
within De-installation is defined as:

• Disconnecting cables and power connections for the device
• Physically removing the individual device from its installed location, whether it is

In a shelf or rack.
• Equipment will be left on the customer premise m the vicinity of where it was

installed previous. The customer will be responsible for the disposal of the old
equipment, in the event a credit is not received for shipment of the old equipment
back to the original manufacturer.

o Due to the ease of removmng the existmng equipment, we will leave this up to the
customer We can remove the existing PBX and handsets at an additional cost
which wall be identified mn the proposal (taking mnto account recycling fees and
hourly labor) Alternahvely, the City can handle the disposal m-house

Overhead Paging - Current overhead pagmg systems at the Fire Departments, Police
Department, DPW, and Water utility are legacy and obsolete. It 1s recognized that a
new third-party pagmg solution is needed that can be standardized across all offices.
An integrated overhead paging solution should be included with the proposal along with
associated costs, licenses, and potential cabling/connectivity

• Paging to handsets will be capable wthin the systems that have been recommended
Paging to an A TA that utilizes existing customer-owned equipment has also been
quoted

• If we find we are unable to re-use the existing equipment, we will need to quote
replacement hardware and mstalfahon



Training -- The vendor will provide in person or video training courses that can be used
by City of Franklin employees to learn the functions and features of the new phone
system. lt is expected that each employee will be engaged in 1-2 hours of phone
system training. Five dedicated City of Franklin employees will be given extended
training in the implementation and maintenance of station accounts, vo1cemail
mailboxes, and basic administration. It is expected that 5-8 hours of basic
administration training will be performed for the dedicated on-site system administrators.

• Users Onsrte or remote One-on-One or Group trammg sessions can be done at
an hourly rate, which wt/I be represented as an optional expense on the proposal
Alternatively, free On-lmne resources wall be available to all users 24171365

• Administrators On Site or Remote, One-on-One or Group training sessions will
be provided for those wuth admun nights Additional tranmng and support are
accessible onlne at no charge

Post Implementation Deliverables:

Post implementation service and warranties should be included as part of the proposal
and financial quotes, in addition to any extended maintenance costs. These may vary
significantly based upon whether an on-premise or cloud-based system is implemented.
Post implementation services must address:

1. Warranty Costs - Any equipment that is implemented must be maintained under
vendor and extended warranties for the entire usage life of the equipment. Any
equipment warranty that is provided initially by the manufacturer must be clearly
identified. Warranty and support costs by the hardware manufacturer beyond the
Initial purchase must be identified as well.

o Leased phones will be provided on two of the three proposals The
devices wll have full RMA and remote activation provided by the vendor
so long as the service ts under term

■ customer wt/I be required to plug mn the physical replacement
handset, or uhltze the opt10nal proposal for a Cornerstone
employee to mstall

o The Sangoma proposal comes with a ltfeftme warranty on handsets
quoted

o The ltcensmg and phone system are under full support so Jong as the
customer mamtams payments and the service ts under term



2 Extended Configuration & Maintenance Support - The City of Franklin does
not have a dedicated telecommunication/phone engineer on staff; hence the City
Is reliant upon consulting services to execute complex configuration tasks
beyond basic add/moves/changes. A support and maintenance plan for
anticipated configuration and troubleshooting of problems should be maintained.
The support agreement should address·

• SLA for problem reporting, resolution and escalation

o Every user will have the ability to open tickets on behalf ofyour
organization From low to high severity, each ticket wall be handled
by the phone provider High severity tickets (service down,
sigmficant voice degradaflon, etc) are handled as a top priority wuth
24x7 engmeers available Low severity tickets (password reset,
how-to's, mstallahon of softphone, etc) are a/so handled by remote
engineers on either an Bx5 or 24x7 hmeframe

o CornerStone engineers are also available at an hourly rate to
support the customer if they do not have a techmcal resource to
troubleshoot wuth the phone vendor of choice

• SLA for configuration changes and administration

o Much of the moves/add/changes can be performed w1thm the portal
allowmng quick and efficient resolution m a self-service manner For
more challengmg design quesftons, the City of Franklm can reach
out to Cornerstone for consultmg on an hourly bas,s (8-5 M-F)

• SLA and timeline (change window) for installation of recommended software
updates

o Depending on the phone provider selected, updates are released
on a bi-weekly or monthly basts and will automat,cally apply to the
system In the event that the City of Franklin does not desire
frequent updates, these updates can be delayed manually

• SLA and tmmeline for the installation of recommended security updates.

o Bi-annual updates 1s strongly recommended
o Depending on the phone provider selected, updates are released
on a bi-weekly or monthly basts and will automahcally apply to the
system In the event that the City of Franklin does not des,re
frequent updates, these updates can be delayed manually



• Remote access method for emergency support or system down conditions

o So long as the admm1strator has access to the mternet, they will be
always be able to access the system. The City of Franklm
Admimstrator will always have access to call, chat or email m the
event of a System Down

• System backup and configuration archiving methods

o Each of the phone systems recommended 1s contmuously backed
up across multiple data centers throughout the US

o Each system has a 5 9's SLA uptime, 1 e, guaranteed service
99 999% of the year

3. Education & Training - Classes, coursework, and administration guides should
be provided within the quoted costs. Based upon the type of system and service,
the materials and training for local IT support may vary within the proposal.

o Users Ons1te or remote One-on-One or Group trammg sess10ns can be
done at an hourly rate, which will be represented as an optional expense
on the proposal Alternatively, free On-lme resources will be available to
all users 24/7/365

o Administrators On Site or Remote, One-on-One or Group trammg
sessions will be provided for those with admm nights Additional training
and support are accessible on/me at no charge

Customer Responsibilities
• Provide Srte Addresses
• Provide Named Resources
• Access to these individuals at agreed upon times
• Access to network as applicable to the project
• Attendance and follow through on tasks requested
• Network Readiness
• Cabling for the areas underserved with WIFI access
• Identification and count of handsets of which get physical desk phones as

compared to softphones
• Assistance in pulling CSR's from losing earner
• List of Users with their:

o Full name
o Current Extension
o Current DID
o Email address
o Physical address



Out of Scope Activities

• Pre install Site Survey
• Troubleshooting/repair/replacement of any equipment being provided by the

customer
• Any new programming not specifically required to complete the hardware install
• Any work not specifically outlined above
• One-Attendant programming or installation
• Any house or station wiring/terminations
• Any changes to existing dial plan
• Acting as Agency on their behalf with TELCO provider, unless requested and

billed at an hourly rate of $165
• Removal/de-installation of any existing equipment

Standard Service Hours

Pricing is based on all non-service impacting work to be performed during regular
business and system turn up normal hours Monday-Friday. First Day of Business
Support (FDOB) will be the first day after the system is turned up and live. Unless
otherwise specified in the SOW work performed outside of Standard Service Hours will
be subject to additional charges of (1.5X per hr.) $247.50 per hour.

Data Collection

As part of this project, Cornerstone will provide to the customer a data collection form
(DCF). This DCF will be the main tool used to gather all necessary information the
Cornerstone engineer will use to program the new system. This DCF must be
completed and returned to the Cornerstone no less than two (2) weeks prior to
scheduled installation date. At the time the form is returned, the project design and
request will be finalized. Any additional changes or last-minute requests may result mn
additional billable hours, additional licensing, or delays in delivery of the project. Any
changes to the existing system during that penod will need to be tracked by the
customer.

Reused Equipment

Cornerstone will not be responsible for the integrity of any Customer-provided or reused
equipment. The Cornerstone resources on the project will provide basic troubleshooting
to determine the root cause of any hardware failures. If CornerStone resources deem
the cause of the failure is in direct response to the current project, Cornerstone will
provide best effort troubleshooting to resolve the issue or determine the best course of
action for resolution.

If the failure is not deemed a direct response to the project, the responsibility for
troubleshooting and/or replacement will be that of the customer or customer vendor.



Paging/Music on Hold/Prerecorded Messages

CornerStone will not be responsible for installing or troubleshooting an existing or new
paging or Music on Hold system(s). Cornerstone can provide the customer the interface
to the phone system for these devices. Additionally, unforeseen troubleshooting of the
existing paging systems can result in additional consulting time at the hourly rate of
$165 per hour.

Prerecorded messages can be completed by a Cornerstone employee on behalf of the
customer at the rate of $165 per hour. The expectation is that the customer would
provide written scripts for the planned on-hold messages. Any delays in providing the
additional documentation would result in hourly billing.

Existing Equipment and Circuits

The Customer will be responsible for ensuring that any non-Cornerstone or phone
vendor equipment reused in the new system is in proper working order.

Customer will order, install and test all network circuits and ensure all circuits are fully
extended and terminated to the network. Additionally, the customer will provide
Cornerstone with voice and data circuit information no less than three (3) weeks prior to
installation date.

De-installation of Existing Equipment

As part of this project, Cornerstone will de-install all equipment necessary for the
completion of this SOW and the tasks defined within.

De-installation is defined as:

• Disconnecting cables and power connections from the device
• Physically removing the individual device from its installed location, whether it's in

a shelf or rack.
• Equipment will be removed from the customer premise in the event that the

customer opts for our optional removal and disposal fee.
• Cornerstone will not be responsible for moving, re-racking, or changing existing

network infrastructure. Cornerstone Is also not responsible for customer's
UPS/backup power supplies and any issues that may arise from powering down,
disconnecting equipment, or adding new equipment.

• Customer Is responsible for providing a cart or device to move equipment offsite.
• De-Installation will be limited to individual voice devices only, not racks, mounts,

cabinets, cabling or wallboards.



Project Scheduling

To ensure a successful project, Cornerstone has an estimated 6-8 week lead time for
project initiation, which 1s subject to Cornerstone resource availability. Any scheduling
requests less than 6-8 weeks will require an expedite charge and be subject to
Cornerstone resource availability. For a multiple site implementation or any
1mplementat1on that requires a network assessment, the installation timelines will
increase accordingly.

The lead time begins once a signed SOW, PO, and phone vendor contract are received
from the Customer and receipt is confirmed by Cornerstone. It's important to note that
the project will not begin nor will a Project Manager be assigned until a signed SOW,
PO and phone vendor contract are received.

Once those items are received, a Project Manager will be assigned and Customer will
be contacted with proposed installation dates. Installation dates are finalized upon
receiving written approval from the Customer. Delays in installation approvals could
result in originally proposed installation dates no longer being available.

All projects, unless notated below and priced accordingly, will be completed in a single
phase. Additional costs will be incurred by the customer if a multi-phase turn up is
requested. The request for a multiphase project must be made to the Cornerstone
Project Manager during the project kick-off call. The responsibility of the making this
request is solely that of the Customer. Acceptance of this request will be confirmed by
the Cornerstone Project Manager through a Cornerstone Change Order form.

The scheduling of multiphase projects will be based on dates that are mutually
agreeable to both Cornerstone and the Customer.

Cancellation/Delays/Exclusions

• All on-site cancelations or postponements made within 20 business days of
onsrte installation commencement are subject to CornerStone monetary
recuperation of lost travel expenses and 50% of scheduled time up to a one
week max at $95/ hour for each technician scheduled to be onsite. A Change
Order form signed by the Customer must be returned to Cornerstone prior to
CornerStone rededicating resources.

• Cornerstone will charge add1t1onal labor hours due to Customer progress delays
that result in Cornerstone lost time due to:

o Above noted Customer respons1b1lities not being completed prior to
Cornerstone arrival on-site

o Room non-availability. CornerStone will charge for additional travel
expenses for return visits due to room non-availability caused by the
Customer, and will charge $95/hr. for any unproductive time spent waiting
for rooms to become available.



o Any outstanding issues caused by Customer delays not listed as an
exception on Cornerstone's Sign-Off Form. For those outstanding issues,
a technical support case can be opened and worked until closed by a
remote support technician over phone or video. If on-site technicians are
required, the Customer will be billed separately for incurred travel and
labor.

• Cornerstone is not liable to the Customer or any third party for any delays,
damages or equipment failure caused by any circumstances beyond our
reasonable control, including, but not limited to, manufacturer fabrication errors,
shipping delays and/or equipment malfunctions.

• Either party may terminate this SOW at any time without further obligation or
liability in the event that the other party is in default regarding any material
obligation of this SOW and such default is not cured within 10 days of receipt of
written notice from the non-defaulting party that provides details of such default;
and in the case of such termination, all outstanding Cornerstone invoices for
satisfactorily completed work and any satisfactorily completed work and
expenses not yet invoiced shall be due and payable.

• Cornerstone 1s not responsible for the Customer's relationship with the phone
vendor of record, as Cornerstone is a systems integrator and not the vendor or
manufacturer. For any customer grievances with the vendor, CornerStone can
act as an escalation point and assist the customer with resolution of issues.

Cornerstone Project Team

The CornerStone Project Team will include a Project Manager ("PM")/Account Executive
("AE''), a Phone/Installation Engineer, and can include a Network Engineer 1f deemed
necessary by the Cornerstone PM. The Cornerstone PM serves as a single point of
contact, responsible for ensuring successful Implementation. Working closely with the
designated Customer liaison, the PM directs the efforts of the entire project team with a
clear focus on all aspects of planning, development, deployment, testing, and
orientation.

While still being the designated single point of contact for the project, the CornerStone
PM will provide direct contact information for each resource assigned to the project.
However, any issues, change requests, or timeline change requests to the project must
be communicated directly to the Cornerstone PM in order to be considered a valid
request/issue.



Customer Project Team

Customer resources involved in the timely completion of the project include the
following roles:

Primary Contact -Acts as the primary interface and decision-maker with Cornerstone
and communicates or assists with communication of all details required for the Project
completion. This individual will attend all scheduled meetings pertaining to the ProJect
and has signatory authority to work wth CornerStone through all phases of all the three
offerings outlined above. The Primary Contact is responsible for keeping the Secondary
Contact informed of all details should the Primary Contact be unavailable.

Secondary Contact -Acts as the secondary interface to the Cornerstone Project Team in
addition to the Primary Contact, or when the Primary Contact is not available.

Technical Contact(s) -Act(s) as the Customer technical resource(s) to provide any
needed technical or network related information to enable Project completion. Technical
contact(s) should be readily accessible at all times while the Cornerstone Engineer is
onsite.

The specific individuals responsible for the project will need to be identified at the initial
project review meeting. Failure to identify these key Customer team contacts may cause
delays to the project.

Change Control

In the event either party wished to modify this SOW, the following procedures will apply.

• The party requesting the change will notify the other party in writing of the
change request.

• Cornerstone will prepare a change order document outlining the impact of the
change. The parties will evaluate and negotiate in good faith the changes to the
SOW, and additional fees, 1f any, required to implement the Change Order.

• The Change Order will be incorporated into this SOW, upon agreement by both
parties in writing.

• Cornerstone is under no obligation to proceed with the Change Order until such
time as the Change Order has been agreed upon in writing by both parties.



Help Desk and First Day of Business Support (FDOB)

A CornerStone customer service engineer will provide up to four (4) basic hours of Help
Desk support on the first day of business following an upgrade, unless otherwise noted
above. Help Desk support will be available on consecutive business days during
Standard Service Hours (Monday- Friday, 8:00 a.m. -5 00 p.m.). Customer can request
additional Help Desk support mat an additional charge of $165 per hour. Under this
Agreement, Cornerstone will provide zero (0) hours beyond the basic hours outlined
above. Customer will be required to provide one representative to support the Help
Desk operation.

Customer Acceptance/Completion

The Cornerstone Project Team will verify the successful testing of the system based on
the stated criteria agreed upon in this SOW. Cornerstone will notify Customer of project
completion by submitting to Customer a completion notice in written form. Customer will
reply mn writing to the form within 5 business days of receipt. If the Cornerstone
completion document indicates there are no exceptions, the project will be considered
accepted by Customer upon Cornerstone's receipt of the confirmation. If the response
indicates exceptions, Customer will provide in writing specific details regarding what and
how the service did not substantially conform to this SOW. Cornerstone will address
any such non-conformance in a timely manner. The process for acceptance will be
repeated until non-conformance has been resolved. If Customer does not return a
written response within 5 business days of receipt (or has not provided any written
exceptions as required above), the services will be deemed accepted by Customer on
the 6th day after Customer receipt of completion notice. The Cornerstone completion
notice will not be delayed for the purpose of successful test completion with any
secondary systems or non-Cornerstone-branded solutions.

5/11/23
President

I Cody Smith



System Comparison

Traditional
Functionality PBX Vonage Sanqoma RingCentral
Soft Phone No Yes Yes Yes
Mobile Application No Yes Yes Yes
Work From Home No Yes Yes Yes
Instant Messagina No Yes Yes Yes
Group Messaaina No Yes Yes Yes
SMS/MMS No Yes Yes Yes
eFax No Yes Yes Yes
Inbound Caller ID Control No Yes Yes Yes
Outbound Caller ID Control No Yes Yes Yes
Voicemail to Email No Yes No Yes
Voicemail Transcription No No No Yes
Video Calling No Yes Yes Yes
Video Conferencing No Yes Yes Yes
Audio Conferencing No Yes Yes Yes
Microsoft Teams Integration No Yes No No

Traditional
Support PBX Vonaae Sanaoma RingCentral
Replacement/RMA on Devices No Yes Yes Yes
Online Chat Support No 24x7 8x5 24x7
Email Support No 24x7 8x5 24x7
Call-in for Support Maybe 24x7 8x5 24x7

24x7 24x7
Admmn Training Not Online Online Online 24x7 Online

24x7 24x7
User Training Not Online Online Online 24x7 Online

Traditional
Reliability PBX Vonage Sanaoma RingCentral
Disaster Recoverv No Yes Yes Yes
Local Call Redundancy During Carrier
Outage Yes No* Yes No"
Local Call Redundancy During Equipment
Outage No Yes Yes* Yes
5 9's SLA No Yes Yes Yes
Users can access their work phone, vorcemail, IM, and everything else va mobile data on cell phones or
on work computers anywhere that there Is internet during a local outage



Traditional
Compliance PBX Vonage Sangoma Rin9Central
E911 Routing No Yes Yes Yes
Call Recording No Yes Yes Yes
Conference Recording No Yes Yes Yes*
Kari's Law No Yes Yes Yes
Ray Baum's Act No Yes Yes Yes
HIPAA No Yes Yes Yes
FINRA No Yes Yes Yes
Call recording Is a special feature that may require additional licensing/spend depending on use case,
retention policies, and amount of storage required

Traditional
Technical PBX Vonage Sangoma RingCentral
Active Directory Integration No Yes No Yes
CRM Integration No Yes* Yes* Yes*
Open APl's No Yes Yes Yes
Analytics Portal No Yes Yes Yes
Moves/Adds/Changes Challenging Easy Easy Easy
New Number Adds Challenging Easy Easy Easy
Quality of Service Analytics No Yes Yes Yes
Call Tracing/Records No Yes Yes Yes
CRM Integrations are available for free based on the phone vendor and CRM of choice Future CRM
decision would need to be verified for compatibility



Pricing Breakdowns of Each Solution Proposed

Proposed Vendors 3-YearCost Optional Consulting/Implementation Cost/Year After Initial 36 Months
Vonage $ 157,788 24 $ 26,435 00 $ 51,346 08
Sangoma $ 168,867 48 $ 19,785 00 $ 41,774 40
RingCentral $ 154,974 84 $ 22,735 00 $ 47,258 28

Existing Costs To Be Replaced Cost/Mo Cost/Yr
AT&T SIP/IP FLEX City Hall $ 906 64 $ 10,879 68
AT&T SIP/IP FLEX Police $ 642 77 $ 7,713 24
DPW ATT Measured Lines $ 127 60 $ 1,531 20

Library ATT POTS $ 122 90 $ 1,474 80
City Hall ATT POTS for Fax $ 11085 $ 1,330 20

Fire Station 3 Measured Lines $ 296 68 $ 3,560 16
Total: $ 1,549 41 $ 26,489 28

Total Cost ofOwnership
Vendors 3-Year Total Cost Ongoing Service (After Vear 3} Minus AT&T Billing
Vonage $ 104,755 40 $ 24,856 80
Sangoma $ 109,184 64 $ 15,285 12
RingCentral $ 98,242 00 $ 20,769 00

The above image shows the estimated costs per system with the initial payment, along
with ongoing expenses. All costs are estimates based on information provided.

Under the "Proposed Vendors" section, "3-Year Cost" s an all-inclusive number based
on licensing, devices, estimated fees, and phone vendor one-time costs.

"Optional Consulting/Implementation" includes the costs from Cornerstone for the
optional services:

• Installation and removal of equipment
• Tramnung of administrators
• Users/System design consultation
• Carrier consultation for porting phone numbers and disconnecting old services.

The "Cost/Year After Initial 36 Months" represents the cost of licensing and potential
leased phones per year, starting on month 37 of service. The initial service agreement is
for a 36-month term.

Under the "Exasting Costs to Be Replaced" section, we have identified current billing that
can/will be replaced by the proposed phone system. These billings would need to be
maintained with a traditional PBX but could be disconnected wIth the solutions we are
recommending. These are current expenses that are approved by the City of Franklin
therefore we would open up additional budget m the short term (next 36 months) and
actually reduce cost of ownership in the future (months 37+).

Services not represented in our math however currently billed under existing budget
-$30,000 per year support plan for your PBX and recurring costs associated with Zoom
-3,300 per year could be eliminated.



Under the "Total Cost of Ownership" section, we show a combination of the costs
proposed and the estimated savings based on current billing. The City will see
substantial budgetary benefits from our proposal, as the $180,000 in grant money will
be used while existing budget can be opened up for use elsewhere within the City.

please note that all quotes are based on information provided. Once the approvals have been
made, we can finalize the accuracy of user counts and total payments required. (ie; reduction in
seats= lower billing)

Detailed Breakdowns of Proposals

Vonage

Recurring
Quantity Seats Seat Per Month Total Per Month

230 Standard User $ 9.99 $ 2,297 70
20 Limited User $ 6.99 $ 139.80
250 Cost Recovery $ 1 75 $ 437.50
250 E911 $ 0 99 $ 247.50
230 Poly VVX 350 $ 3 99 $ 917 70
20 Grandstream HT802 $ 1.49 $ 29 80
10 Poly 6000 conf $ 16 99 $ 169 90
6 Yealmnk Cordless/dect ( $ 6 49 $ 38.94

Total Per Month $ 4,278.84
Annual Cost $ 51,346.08

Standard User - a knowledge worker that will receive a soft phone, mobile app, and full
phone functionality.

Limited User - a lower cost license used for paging, faxing, and common area phones

Cost Recovery + e911 - regulatory fees that the City is not exempt from

Poly VVX 350 - a leased handset for office workers

Grandstream HT802 - a leased ATA device for paging systems and fax machines

Poly 6000 - a leased conference phone

Yealink Cordless - a leased cordless phone

One-Time
Quantity Phone Prce Total

1 Vonage Onboardmg Fee $ 3,750 00 $ 3,750 00
Total: $ 3,750.00

Vonage Onboarding Fee - a fee that covers light project management and support
during the design, implementation, and porting process



Vonage (continued)

Cornerstone Consulting/Deployment Assistance
Quantity Phone Price Total Required?

266 Onsite Installation of Phones/Devices $ 25.00 $ 6,650.00 Optional
4 Po rt Ass1sta nee $ 165 00 $ 660 00 Optional
20 Design Assistance $ 165 00 $ 3,300.00 Optional
10 Admm Trammg $ 165 00 $ 1,650.00 Optional
30 End-User In-Person Group Trammg $165.00 $ 4,950.00 Optional

270 Removal of Ex1stmg Phones and Equipment $ 25 00 $ 6,750.00 Optional
15 Hourly Rate (Misc./AT&T DIsconnects) $ 165 00 $ 2,475.00 Optional

Total: $26,435.00

Ons1te Installation of Phones/Devices - a Cornerstone employee will be onsite to install
the leased equipment at each desk/work station, fax machine, or paging system

Port Assistance - a Cornerstone employee will work with the City of Franklin to pull the
appropriate documentation from AT&T for the voice port with the new phone system

Design Assistance - a Cornerstone employee will work with the City of Franklin IT team
to map out how the current phone system works and help design the new system

Admin Training - a Cornerstone employee will work with the City of Franklin IT team to
train administrators on how to use the new phone system.

End-User In-Person Group Training - a Cornerstone employee will run group training
sessions with City employees

Removal of ExIsting Phones and Equipment - a Cornerstone employee will remove
phones and phone system equipment from the premise once the new system is running
m production

Hourly Rate (Misc./AT&T Disconnects) - a Cornerstone employee will assist with the
disconnects ofAT&T services previously identified, as well as other miscellaneous
requirements



Sangoma

Recurring
Quantity Seats Seat Per Month Total Per Month

220 Standard User $ 9 99 $ 2,197 80
31 Courtesy Extension $ 5 99 $ 185 69
2 SB2500 StarSystem $ 39.99 $ 79.98
75 Starline Unlimited $ 27 99 $ 2,099 25
120 Non-published #s $ 0.75 $ 90.00
10 Published #'s $ 2.99 $ 29 90
12 e911 Zones* $ 2.99 $ 35 88

Cost Recovery* $ -
1 Discount $ 1,237 30 $ 1,237.30

Total Per Month $ 3,481.20
Yearly Cost $ 41,774.40

Standard User - a knowledge worker that will receive a soft phone, mobile app, and full
phone functionality

Courtesy Extension - a lower cost license used for paging, faxing, and common area
phones

SB2500 StarSystem - a local piece of equipment that allows for extension to extension
dialing in the case of an internet outage

Starline Unlimited - a call path with 2,500 domestic LD minutes pooled at the account
level

Non-published and published #'s - Extra DID's to be retained with the system for future
use

o Cost Recovery + E911 - regulatory fees that the City Is not exempt from.
o E911 zones to be determined with the customer if opting for Sangoma.
o Cost Recovery to be calculated once counts/design is finalized



Sangoma (continued}

One-Time
Quantity Phone Price Total

2 Starbox 2500 SDWAN $ 1,499 00 $ 2,998 00
55 P315 IP phones $ 57.01 $ 3,135 55
160 P330 IP phone $ 109 71 $ 17,553 60
6 Yealmnk DECT W79P $ 285.99 $ 1,715.94
10 Yealmnk CP 925 Conf $ 425.99 $ 4,259 90
20 Grandstream ATA $ 74.00 $ 1,480 00
1 S2S Service Installation $ 11,670.00 $ 11,670 00
1 S2S Service Configuration $ 3,647 34 $ 3,647.34
1 S25Trammg $ 1,866.90 $ 1,866.90
1 S2S Porting $ 130.00 $ 130.00
1 Provisioning $ 7,530 00 $ 7,530.00
1 Shipping $ 1,960.75 $ 1,960.75

Discount $ (14,403.70)
Total: $ 43,544.28

Starbox 2500 SDWAN-a local piece of equipment that allows for extension to
extension dialing in the case of an internet outage

P315 IP phones - lower tier phones for common areas or light phone users

P330 IP phone - mud-tier phones for knowledge workers

Yealink DECT WV79P - wireless phones

Yealink CP 925 Conf - conference phones

Grandstream ATA - an ATA used for paging, faxing, and analog conversion

S2S Service Installation - Sangoma-badged employees installing handsets onsite

S2S Service Configuration - Sangoma-badged employees assisting with the design of
the phone system

S2S Training - Sangoma-badged employees assisting with the training of
administrators

S2S Porting - Sangoma-badged employees assisting with the porting of phone
numbers

Provisioning - Sangoma-badged employees that provision the physical equipment



Sangoma (continued)

Cornerstone Consulting/Deployment Assistance
Quantity Phone Price Total Required?

0 Onsrte Installation of Phones/Devices $ 25.00 $ - Optional
4 Po rt Ass1sta nee $165.00 $ 660.00 Optional
20 Design Assistance $ 165 00 $ 3,300.00 Optional
10 Admm Trammg $165 00 $ 1,650 00 Optional
30 End-User In-Person Group Trammg $ 165 00 $ 4,950 00 Optional
270 Removal of Ex1stmg Phones and Equipment $ 25.00 $ 6,750.00 Optional
15 Hourly Rate (M1sc./AT&T Disconnects) $165 00 $ 2,475 00 Optional

Total: $19,785.00

Onsite Installation of Phones/Devices - a Cornerstone employee will be onsite to install
the leased equipment at each desk/work station, fax machine, or paging system

Port Assistance - a Cornerstone employee will work with the City of Franklin to pull the
appropriate documentation from AT&T for the voice port with the new phone system

Design Assistance- a Cornerstone employee will work with the City of Franklin IT team
to map out how the current phone system works and help design the new system

Admin Training- a Cornerstone employee will work with the City of Franklin IT team to
train administrators on how to use the new phone system.

End-User In-Person Group Training - a Cornerstone employee will run group training
sessions with City employees

Removal of Existing Phones and Eqwpment - a Cornerstone employee will remove
phones and phone system equipment from the premise once the new system is running
In production

Hourly Rate (Misc./AT&T Disconnects) - a Cornerstone employee will assist with the
disconnects ofAT&T services previously identified, as well as other miscellaneous
requirements



RingCentral

Recurring
Quantity Seats Seat Per Month Total Per Month

230 Standard $ 8 00 $ 1,840 00
20 Limited $ 6 00 $ 120 00
250 Cost Recovery $ 3.50 $ 875.00
250 E911 $ 1.00 $ 250 00
1 additional Local $ 4.99 $ 4.99

220 PolyVVX 250 $ 3 15 $ 693 00
20 Poly 0B1302 ATA $ 2 02 $ 4040
10 Poly 8500 conf $ 1148 $ 11480

Total Per Month $ 3,938.19
Yearly Cost $ 47,258.28

Standard User - a knowledge worker that will receive a soft phone, mobile app, and full
phone functionality.

Limited User - a lower cost license used for paging, faxing, and common area phones

Cost Recovery + e911 -- regulatory fees that the City is not exempt from

Additional Local -- a per-DID rate for maintaining additional numbers beyond what is
required. The cost per number would be reduced 1f a large number of additional DI D's
are maintained, which will be finalized with the IT team

Poly VVX 250 -a leased handset for office workers

Poly Obi302 ATA- a leased ATA device for paging systems and fax machines

Poly 8500 - a leased conference phone



RingCentral (continued)

CornerStone Consulting/Deployment Assistance
Quantity Phone Price Total Required?

250 Onsite Installation of Phones/Devices $ 25 00 $ 6,250 00 Optional
4 Port Assistance $ 165 00 $ 660 00 Optional
10 Admmn Training $ 165 00 $ 1,650 00 Optional
30 End-User In-Person Group Trammg $ 165 00 $ 4,950 00 Optional
80 Provisioning/Design/Implementation $ 165 00 $ 13,200 00 Required
270 Removal of Existing Phones and Equipment $ 25 00 $ 6,750 00 Optional
15 Hourly Rate (Misc /AT&T Disconnects) $ 165 00 $ 2,475.00 Optional

Total: $ 35,935.00

Onsite Installation of Phones/Devices - a Cornerstone employee will be onsite to install
the leased equipment at each desk/work station, fax machine, or paging system

Port Assistance - a Cornerstone employee will work with the City of Franklin to pull the
appropriate documentation from AT&T for the voice port with the new phone system

Design Assistance - a Cornerstone employee will work with the City of Franklin IT team
to map out how the current phone system works and help design the new system

Admin Training - a Cornerstone employee will work with the City of Franklin IT team to
train administrators on how to use the new phone system.

End-User In-Person Group Training - a Cornerstone employee will run group training
sessions with City employees

Removal of Existing Phones and Equipment - a Cornerstone employee will remove
phones and phone system equipment from the premise once the new system is running
in production

Hourly Rate (Misc./AT&T Disconnects) - a Cornerstone employee will assist with the
disconnects ofAT&T services previously identified, as well as other miscellaneous
requirements



:CENTRAL OFFICE
SYSTEMS

Technology Solutions for Business

2023 PHONE SYSTEM REPLACEMENT PROJECT
PROPOSAL FOR

-7_- --~

Franklin..
WISCONSIN

April 28, 2023

PRESENTED TO:

James Matelski

PRESENTED BY:

Bob Stachowiak



2023 PHONE SYSTEM REPLACEMENT PROJECT PROPOSAL FOR CITY OF FRANKLIN

April 28, 2023

James Matelski
City of Franklin
9229 West Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

Dear James,

Thank you for the opportunity to present Central Office Systems Corp and Net2Phone (see
Appendix A for an overview of Net2Phone) to meet the requirements for your "2023 Police
Phone System Replacement Project". Smee we provide, install and support multiple phone
systems, this response will be one of two different options that we are providing to the City of
Franklin

We are excited that you are cons1denng Central Office Systems and Net2Phone. All
munic1pal1t1es deserve access to the best technology to grow, compete and thnve Our
solutions are easy to set up, use and manage. We look forward to working with the City of
Franklin to provide and support the solution that works best for your sItuatIon

If you have any questions about this response, please call me at 262-436-9223
I would be delighted to hear from you

Once agam, thank you for thus opportunity

Sincerely,

~:J. Stacfwwiali
Bob Stachowiak
Security Specialist

Copyright© 2023 Central Office Systems Inc
p:.CentralOffice

Page 2 of 16 Confidential & Proprietary All Rights Reserved



2023 PHONE SYSTEM REPLACEMENT PROJECT PROPOSAL FOR CITY OF FRANKLIN

In order to best cover all of the requirements in the RFP, we will follow the layout of the
original Statement of Work mn providing our responses

Description of Project:

In an effort to reduce annual support and maintenance costs, the City of Franklin Is undertaking a
project to replace all Avaya phone systems and mgrate proprietary digital technology over to VolP on
TCP/IP. The current Avaya Call Manager R18.xsystem will be retired alongw1th approximately 217
desk phones. The current Avaya Call Manager at City Hall will be replaced, along with two G650 Avaya
Gateways at the Police Department and Franklin Public Library. The projectwill consider extending
central phone services from City Hall over to the four remote offices (Fire Station 2, Fire Station 3,
DPW, and Sewer Water), which are running on local/stand-alone Toshiba PBX systems. This will
require rerouting remote office DIDs over to the City Hall system, where central adminIstrat1on and
support can be performed Both on premise and cloud based PBX proposals will be considered.

Central Office Systems Corp (COSC) understands the requirements and will outline our suggested
phone replacement option in the following paragraphs

Location ofWork:

The City of Franklin "campus" network consists of four mamn building that are interconnected with orty
owned OC1 fiber TCP/IP routing exists between these offices using a hub and spoke architecture.
Aruba 5600 XL core switches are used to interconnect to Aruba 2920 48 port switches to form a layer
3 network. There are four remote offices that are connected back to City Hall usIng srte-to-srte VPNs
over Palo Alto firewalls. Currently Internet access Is being provided by Spectrum services on coax,
however, the City Is undertaking a project to implement a private fiber WAN and connect to the State
ofWisconsmn WIscNet system for Internet access Thus project Is anticipated to be complete by the end
of 2023.

COSC understands the location ofwork requirements

Campus Network Interconnected with OC1 Fiber

• City Hall
o Avaya Call Manager and Audrx System
o Incoming calls received from AT&T FlexReach - fiber

■ NoSIP.
Signaling converted last 6 feet to T1

o HP 5400 XL Core switch data center
■ Three IDFs HP 2920 Switch Stacks - 2 switches per stack

■ QoS Enabled
■ PoE + Enabled
■ VLAN Segmentation Enabled
■ 1GB edge ports /w 10GB uplink ports

o InternetAccess
■ Dual Spectrum 1GB coax routers
■ Palo Alto 820 firewall clustered

• Police Department
o Avaya G60 Gateway (read only mode)

• Configuration and vorcemaul received from City Hall Call Manager & Audrx
■ Incoming calls received from AT&T FlexReach - fiber

■ NoSIP
• Signaling converted last 6 feet to T1

o HP 5400 XL Core swrtch - data center
■ One IDF - HP 2920 Switch Stack - 4 switches

■ QoS Enabled

Copyright© 2023 Central Office Systems Inc
dee.centraromce

Page 3 of 16 Confidential & Proprietary All Rights Reserved



2023 PHONE SYSTEM REPLACEMENT PROJECT PROPOSAL FOR CITY OF FRANKLIN

■ PoE + Enabled
■ VLAN Segmentation Enabled
■ 1GB edge ports/w 10GB uplink ports

■ Internet Access
■ Single Spectrum 1GB coax router
■ Palo Alto 820 firewall - clustered

• Public Library
o Avaya G60 Gateway (read only mode)

Configuration and vorcemail recerved from Crty Hall Call Manager & Audrx
■ Analog port for 911 external access - unique caller ID for buildmg

o One IDF - HP 2920 Switch Stack - 2 switches
■ QoS Enabled
■ PoE + Enabled

■ VLAN Segmentation Enabled
■ 1GB edge ports/w 10GB uplink ports

■ InternetAccess
■ Provided by Milwaukee County Library System on WiscNet

• Fire Staton 1
o One IDF - HP 2920 Switch Stack - 2 switches

■ QoS Enabled
■ PoE + Enabled

■ VLAN Segmentation Enabled
■ 1GB edge ports/w 10GB uplink ports

■ InternetAccess
■ Routed and provided by City Hall

Remote Off ices Interconnected to City Hall over srte-to-srte VPN:

• Fire Station 2
o Toshiba PBX

■ Centex trunk Imes
■ Analog Imes

o One IDF - HP 2920 Switch Stack - 2 swItches
■ QoS Enabled
■ PoE + Enabled

■ VLAN Segmentation Enabled
■ 1GB edge ports /w 10GB uplink ports

■ Internet Access
■ 200MB Spectrum coax Internet
■ Palo Alto 220 Firewall

• Fire Station 3
o Toshiba PBX - 2 switches

■ Centex trunk Imes
■ Analog Imes

o One IDF - HP 2920 Switch Stack
■ QoS Enabled
■ PoE + Enabled

■ VLAN Segmentation Enabled
■ 1GB edge ports /w 10GB uplink ports

■ Internet Access
■ 200MB Spectrum coax Internet
■ Palo Alto 220 Firewall

• DPW
o No PBX

• 10Avaya 9611G phones deployed wrth switching performed at City Hall
o One IDF - HP 2920 Switch Stack - 2 switches

Copyright© 2023 Central Office Systems Inc
den=-centrarorice

Page 4 of 16 Confidenllal & Proprietary All Rights Reserved



2023 PHONE SYSTEM REPLACEMENT PROJECT PROPOSAL FOR CITY OF FRANKLIN

■ QoS Enabled
■ PoE + Enabled

■ VLAN Segmentation Enabled
■ 1GB edge ports /w 10GB uplink ports

■ Internet Access
■ 200MB Spectrum coax Internet
■ Palo Alto 220 Firewall

• Sewer & Water Utility
o Northern Bell PBX with AT&T phones

■ Centrex trunk Imes
■ Analog Imes

o One IDF - HP 2920 Switch Stack - 2 switches
■ QoS Enabled
■ PoE + Enabled

■ VLAN Segmentation Enabled
■ 1GB edge ports /w 10GB uplink ports

■ Internet Access
■ 400MB Spectrum coax Internet
■ Palo Alto 220 Firewall

Note: Aruba 2920 switches are 802.3AT POE+ complaint. The maximum wattage or each unit 1s either
475 Watts (24-port) or 487 Watts (48-port)

COSC understands the requirements for the campus locations and for the remote locations

Current Telephony Environment:

Below Is a listing of all telephony and communications equipment currently mn use.

City Campus

• Crty Hall
o Avaya Call Manager

• AudVorcemail va Avaya Messenger
■ Vendor derivative ofVMWare on dedicated server/appliance
■ Two 8-slot cabinets
• Lune Cards

■ 3 TN746B Analog card
• 7TN2181 Digital cards
• 2TN224B Digital card
■ 2 TN464 DS1 Signalmg card
■ 2 TN2313 IP Server Interface
■ 1TN744 Call Classifier
■ 2 TN799 Control LAN Interface
■ 1 TN2302 Media Processor
■ 1 TN2602 Media Processor
■

o AT&T FlexReach
CIenna Router

• Switch
o Fax Machine & Copiers
o Phones

Copyright © 2023 Central Office Systems Inc
p:.Centra/Office

Page 5 of 16 Confidential & Proprietary All Rights Reserved



2023 PHONE SYSTEM REPLACEMENT PROJECT PROPOSAL FOR CITY OF FRANKLIN

• Police Department
o Avaya G650 Gateway

Line Cards:
• 1 MM710 DS1 card
• 1 MM711 ANA card
• 3 MM717 DCP 24 Port Media Module
• 3 MM716 Analog card

o AT&T FlexReach
• C1enna Router
• SwItch

o Fax Machine & Copiers
o Phones

• Public Library
o Avaya G650 Gateway

• Trunk received from City Hall
• 1 MM711 ANA card
• 1 MM717 DCP 24 Port Media Module
• 1 MM716 Analog card

o Fax Machines & Copiers
o Phones

• Fire Station 1 (extension ofCrty Hall va tie lines)
o Fax Machines & Copiers
o Phones

Remote Offices

• Fire Statton 2
o Toshiba PBX
o Fax Machines & Copiers
o Phones

• Fire Station 3
o Toshiba PBX
o Fax Machines & Copiers
o Phones

• DPW
o Fax Machines & Copiers
o VoIP Phones (communicates over IP s1te-to-s1te VPN tunnel)

• Sewer & Water
o Northern Bell PBX
o Fax Machines & Copiers
o AT&T Phones

COSC understands the current telephony environment

Period of Performance

Due to the connect1v1ty between the Call Manager system and the Avaya Gateways, the conversion of
the old system to the new must be performed in tandem within the three campus offices. Integration
of the four remote offices that are using stand-alone phone systems can be performed at the same
time as the campus network or performed at a slightly later date. Phones atthe DPW are dependent
upon the City Hall phone system, hence all phones in this office shall be migrated with the campus
offices lt is anticipated that at least 30-60 days will be necessary to analyze all PBX configurations,
routing, auto attendants, and interfaces to migrate these settings over to a new system. All phone and
telephony services must be fully in place and operational by the end of October 31, 2023

Copynght @ 2023 Central Office Systems Inc
E::._:.Centra/Office

Page 6 of 16 Confidential & Proprietary All Rights Reserved



2023 PHONE SYSTEM REPLACEMENT PROJECT PROPOSAL FOR CITY OF FRANKLIN

Completion of all proposals and a quotation of equipment, cabling, installation, and post
1mplementat1on services 1s due by April 28, 2023 at 5 00 pm. Incomplete proposals or documents
that contamns significant errors will be returned to the applicant prior to the submission deadline. No
proposal will be considered after the application deadline. All proposals and materials are considered
closed and confidential. Information contained within each proposal will not be shared or distributed
with any other vendor or party.

COSC understands the Period of Performance requirements

Project Deliverables:

Hardware Deliverables Solutions that use on-premise equipmentwill include a quotation of all
necessary equipment, phones, cabling, cards, adapters, and interfaces for a full 1mplementat1on of the
platform Hardware delivery/shipments 1s intended to be multiple shipments with City Hall being the
single receiving point The customer provided warehouse will be environmentally controlled and
secured

COSC understands the Hardware Deliverables requirements

Software Deliverables - Solution's that use on-premise equipment will include all software and
licensing necessary to fully implement the solution All software and license costs must be fully
described within the quotations, and any annual licensing costs listed within services and support.
Cloud based solutions that require software or licensmng for integration wrth other services or third
party solution must also have these costs fully described within service and support.

COSC understands the Software Deliverables requirements Net2Phone Is an OTT (Over the
top) service provider Net2Phone provides voice service over the top ofyour existing Internet
infrastructure. The only necessary on-site equipment 1s desk phones, which are included in
this proposal.

Configuration ofSolution for Current PBX Services - The proposed solution will include the
1dent1f1cat1on and duplication of the currentAvaya Telephony Services conf1gurat1on and system
parameters The solution must allow for the definition and 1mportat1on of the following services:

• Phone station lD (a.k a extension) assignments to an individual or department. This will
include analog, d1g1tal, and VoIP station accounts

• Vorcemarl assignmentto a station ID or dedicated virtual mailbox
o Importation of existing vorcemanl Is out ofscope, as new vorcemal accounts wll be

created and existing messages will not be earned over to the new system
• Department hunt groups, call routing, and call paths.
• System auto-attendants and associated menu options

o Bulletin board attendants for non-interactive messages
o After Hours system attendants and associated menu options

• Dedicated DID inbound call routing
• Inbound trunk line configuration

o SIP Is currently not being implemented
• EC500 replacement for call routing to employee cell phones
• Called ID
• 911 routing and associated caller ID
• Basic music on hold

These requirements are acknowledged and included in our proposal

Copyright© 2023 Central Office Systems Inc
£::.CentralOffice

Page 7 of 16 Confidential & Proprietary All Rights Reserved



2023 PHONE SYSTEM REPLACEMENT PROJECT PROPOSAL FOR CITY OF FRANKLIN

Logging and Call Tracing The currentAvaya system does not allow for call logging and tracing, with
little to no aggregate stat1st1cs being provided on call quality, routing, or abandoned calls. A solution
that provides call logging and statistical reports Is desired but is not required as a project deliverable

COSC understands the desired requirement above

Documentation - The vendor will provide documentation to the solution's conf1gurat1on, IP addressing,
running services, and any associated accounts and passwords used by the system Any software or
licenses actively being used with the solution should be fully described within the documentation.

COSC understands the requirement to provide documentation for the above items

De-installation of Existing Equipment: - For on-premise systems, the vendor will de-install all
equipment necessary for the completion of the SOW and the tasks defined within. De-installation 1s
defined as:

• Disconnecting cables and power connections for the device
• Physically removing the mndvdual devce from its installed location, whether rt is in a shelf or

rack
• Equipmentwill be left on the customer premise in the vcmnrty ofwhere rt was installed

previous. The customer will be responsible for the disposal ofthe old equipment, m the event
a credit 1s not received for shipment ofthe old equipment back to the onginal manufacturer.

COS understands the requirement and will provide de-installation of the existing equipment

Overhead Paging - Current overhead paging systems at the Fire Departments, Police Department,
DPW, and Water utility are legacy and obsolete It 1s recognized that a new third-party paging solution
Is needed that can be standardized across all offices. An integrated overhead paging solution should
be included with the proposal along with associated costs, licenses, and potential
cabling/connectivity.

COSC understands the requirement for overhead paging and can accommodate a connection
to an analog based Overhead Paging system through the use of a SIP Paging Adapter

Training - The vendor will provide in person or video training courses that can be used by City of
Franklin employees to learn the functions and features of the new phone system. lt is expected that
each employee will be engaged in 1-2 hours of phone system training. Five dedicated City of Franklin
employees wall be given extended tramning mn the implementation and maintenance of station
accounts, vocemail mailboxes, and basic administration. lt is expected that 5-8 hours of bas1c
admin1strat1on training will be performed for the dedicated on-site system administrators.

COSC understands the requirement for training

Post Implementation Deliverables:

Post 1mplementat1on service and warranties should be included as part ofthe proposal and financial
quotes, m add1t1on to any extended maintenance costs These may vary s1gnif1cantly based upon
whether an on-premise or cloud-based system Is implemented. Post implementation services must
address

1. Warranty Costs Any equipmentthat 1s implemented must be maintained under vendor and
extended warranties for the entire usage life ofthe eqwpment. Any equipment warranty that
1s provided 1nit1ally by the manufacturer must be clearly dentufied Warranty and support
costs by the hardware manufacturer beyond the in1t1al purchase must be 1dent1fied as well.

Copyright © 2023 Central Office Systems Inc
fen=-centralorice

Page 8 of 16 Confidential & Proprietary All Rights Reserved



2023 PHONE SYSTEM REPLACEMENT PROJECT PROPOSAL FOR CITY OF FRANKLIN

COSC understands the post 1mplementat1on deliverables requirement Leased hardware has its own
warranty structure baked into the cost All equipment will be warrantied for the length of the
agreement with COSC and Net2Phone, including any annual extensions of the agreement

2. Extended Configuration & Maintenance Support The Crty of Franklin does not have a
dedicated telecommumcat1on/phone engineer on staff, hence the City 1s reliant upon
consulting services to execute complex configuration tasks beyond basic
add/moves/changes. A support and maintenance plan for ant1c1pated conf1gurat1on and
troubleshooting of problems should be maintained. The support agreementshould address:

o SLA for problem reporting, resolution and escalation
o SLA for configuration changes and administration
o SLA and t1meline (change window) for installation of recommended software updates
o SLA and t1meline for the installation of recommended security updates

Bi annual updates is strongly recommended
o Remote access method for emergency support or system down cond1t1ons
o System backup and configuration archiving methods

COSC understands the extended configuration and maintenance support requirements

Education & Training Classes, coursework, and adm1mstrat1on guides should be provided within the
quoted costs. Based upon the type ofsystem and service, the materials and training for local IT
support may varywithin the proposal

COSC understands the post 1mplementat1on deliverables requirement

Out of Scope Elements:

The replacement phone system at the Police Department will receive inbound local calls and then
transfer the phone call to the Dispatch Vesta system. Today this goes out via eight dedicated analog
ports. The new phone systemswill not directly integrate with the Dispatch 911 or Vesta systems,
which are considered out of scope for the project. Both Vesta and emergency 911 services at Police
Dispatch are handled by dedicated vendors, and these systems are isolated and contained on a stub
network that 1s not connected to the main network in any way.

COSC understands that the above items are out of scope

Application of Standards:

The vendor will adhere to all Caty of Franklin networkmng, telecommunication and securty standards
For systems or services installed at the City of Franklin Police Department, all equipment and services
must be fully in compliance the Department of Justice Criminal Justice Information Systems standards
(CJIS) version 5 9

COSC understands the above requirements

Acceptance Criteria:

The vendor will provide a cut-over migration sheetthat includes all incoming DID, hunt groups, and
call paths that need to be fully tested post-1mplementat1on. The vendor will create a diagram of all
station attendants and the associated call tree options used to activate an attendant or bulletin board.
All recorded station attendants and associated v01cema1I accounts will be tested and confirmed to be
fully operational post mgration.
The vendor and the City of Franklin project team will verify the successful testing ofthe system based
on the stated critera agreed upon mn thus SOW The vendor will notify the Caty of Franklin project team

Copyright© 2023 Central Office Systems Inc
den=-centraroce

Page 9 of 16 Confidential & Proprietary All Rights Reserved



2023 PHONE SYSTEM REPLACEMENT PROJECT PROPOSAL FOR CITY OF FRANKLIN

that the project 1f officially complete by submitting to the customer a Project Sign-off Form, which
should be completed and returned withmn five business days after receipt. If the project Sign-Off
Completion Form indicates thatthere are any exceptions, the City of Franklin will provide mn writing
specific details regarding what and how the service did notsubstantially conform to thus SOW The
vendor wll address any such non-conformances mn a timely manner. The process for acceptance will
be repeated until all non-conformance Issues have been fully resolve or jointly addressed.

case understands the acceptance crrtera

Financing and Capital:

Funding of $185,000 mn caprtal is being provided to the project through ARPA grant funds. The project
will replace the primary call manager system at City Hall, and the G450 remote gateways at the
Franklin Library and Franklin Pohce Department. Atotal of 217 desktop phones are currently in use
under the following models

City Hall
Avaya 6416D+ 24

Avaya 6416D+M 3

Avaya 6424D+ 1

Avaya 6424D+M 5

Avaya 7408D+ 1

Avaya 8405D+ 3

Avaya LCD 1

Avaya Polycom 2490 3

Lucent 8405D+ 11

Lucent 8403 1

Lucent 8405B 1

Lucent 8405D 1

Lucent 8410D 3

Lucent 8434DX 10

Panasonc 1

Total 69
Police Department

2500 15

6210 13

6211 1

6408D+ 20

6416D+ 15

8403B 3

8405D+ 7

8410D 2

Total Count 76

Copyright © 2023 Central Office Systems Inc
de==.centrarorice

Page 10 of 16 Confidential & Propnetary AII Rights Reserved.



2023 PHONE SYSTEM REPLACEMENT PROJECT PROPOSAL FOR CITY OF FRANKLIN

Public Library
Avaya 2500 2

Avaya 6408D+ 15

Avaya 6424D+M 1

Lucent 8405D+ 5

Lucent 8410D+ 1

Total 24

Fire Station 1

Avaya 9611 VoIP 3

Lucent 8403 2

Lucent 8410D 4

Lucent 8434DX 4

Total 13

Fire Station 2
AT&T Desk 2

AT&T Cordless 2

AT&T Wall 1

Total 5

Fire Station 3
AT&T Desk 3

AT&T Cordless 2

AT&T Wall 2

Total 7

DPW
Avaya 9611 VoIP 10

Total 10
Sewer& Water Utility

AT&T SB67138 1

AT&T SB67148 1

AT&T Cordless 9

AT&T ML17928 2

Total 13

COSC understands the above requirements and our proposal includes comparable or better
equipment

Current Operational Costs
Avaya Warranty and Support contracts for 2022 totaled and operational expense of $29,773 68 It Is
desired that maintenance and warranty support will be 30% to 40% of existing annual expenditures.

Plant cabling may need to be installed mn lobbies and public areas, where a current digital/analog
phone exists but there is no corresponding CAT6/5e network cabling.

Copyright @ 2023 Central Office Systems Inc
fer=-centrarorice

Page 11 of 16 Confidential & Propnetary AII Rights Reserved.



2023 PHONE SYSTEM REPLACEMENT PROJECT PROPOSAL FOR CITY OF FRANKLIN

Currently Monthly Carrier Charges:
• City Hall

o AT&T FlexReach (46 channels@ 10 Mbps) - $906.18
o Engineering Analog/Fax -$63.80
o Clerks Analog/Fax $63 80

• Police Department
o AT&T FlexReach (23@ 10 Mbps) - $642.70

• Public Library
o Inbound calls received by City Hall FlexReach router and transferred to G450 gateway

over OC1 Imes
o Dedicated Analog 911 Lme (outbound) $123.42

• Fire Station 1
o Inbound calls received by City Hall FlexReach router and transferred to G450 gateway

over OC1 Imes
• Fire Station 2

o Incoming Analog/Centrex- $74 17
• Fire Staton 3

o Incoming Analog/Centrex- $74.17
• Sewer & Water Utility

o Incoming Analog/Centrex - $148.34
o Cabinet Dialer (SCADA) - $76.22

C0SC understands the monthly recurring charges and the mnrtual non recurring charges
See Appendix B for the breakdown of Recurring and Non-Recurring Fees

Special Requirements:

A dedicated remote access computer can be provided that Is accessible via the Palo Alto Global
Protect VPN client. The computer can be used to remotely analyze existing configurations and
hardware, as well as setup and configure the new replacementsystem aswell. A dedicated Active
Directory user accountwill be created for the during of the project engagement, which Is then used for
authent1cat1on of remote access. CJIS security requirements for remote access must be followed for
the duration ofthe project and continued support.

C0SC and Net2Phone understand the above requirements

Copyright© 2023 Central Office Systems Inc
p:.Centra/Office

Page 12 of 16 Confidential & Proprietary All Rights Reserved.



Submitted by:

2023 PHONE SYSTEM REPLACEMENT PROJECT PROPOSAL FOR CITY OF FRANKLIN

Accepted by:

Robert J. Stachowiak
Central Office Systems Authorized Signature

04/28/2023
Date Client Authorized Signature

Pnnt Name

Date

Title

Copyright2023 Central Office Systems Inc
fr=-centraoice

Page 13 of 16 Confidential & Proprietary AII Rights Reserved.



2023 PHONE SYSTEM REPLACEMENT PROJECT PROPOSAL FOR CITY OF FRANKLIN

APPENDIX A- Net2Phone Overview

net?phone Business
Communications
YourAll-Inclusive Cloud Business Phone System

Our Mrsston at net2phone ts to drive business
success through smarter conversations

We kr-ow that voice is tre lifel ne of your business
co'11r1uriicatiors today, but your Dus ness needs r,ore ti-Jan
Lust a da tone Thats wny at r-et2phore, we've integrated a
full suite of tools to enable you to communicate ir a variety of
metnods batb r and out of tbe ofice or wherever your
Dusiness takes you

net2pbone provides rnovatve and affordable cloud based
telepnory services trough our flagsb p UCaaS, Hosted PBX,
CCaaS and S Trur ng solut ons by comb r rg advanced
features, integrations ard omnicbanne capa lities with our
rdustry' eading t-osted voice plattorm

We're committed to sL.poorting you clay ir and day out, r ght
from the start Our prodt..ct exoerts, on-boarding specialists,
and customer success teams wil follow you every stepofthe
way ensurng that you reap all the Denefits our serv" ce has to
offer We also provide free tra nung and ongoing techr ca
Support whenever and wherever you need it

A Global Leader in Business
Commumcat1ons

Who We Are

ret2phore offers l'lnovative and
affordable cloud based telepnony
serv ces worldw de

W1tr an embedded Vo·ce over IP
expererce at tne core 30- years of
or-gong nnovation, and an ever
expardirg global oreser,ce
ret2phone enables its partners to
create and de ver value to customers
in tbe US and worldwde

WhatWeDo

• Hosted, SIP, Unified Communications,
& Contact Center Solutions

• Voice, Video. Chat, SMS/MMS

• Web and Mobile Applications

• Nationwide and International
Capabilities

• Simple & Friendly User
Interface & Portals

Hosted PBX Contact Center SIPTrunking

■ net phone

Copyright © 2023 Central Office Systems Inc
E::_:.Centra/Office

Page 14 of 16 Confidential & Proprietary All Rights Reserved.



2023 PHONE SYSTEM REPLACEMENT PROJECT PROPOSAL FOR CITY OF FRANKLIN

APPENDIX B - Net2Phone PRICING

RECURRING CHARGES

Unit Extended
# SKU Description Qty Price Price

Yealmnk SIP-T33G IP Phone
(PoE) with Power Supply

1 D-SIP-T33G AC-R Rental 217 $4 00 $868.00
net2phone Office Dedicated
Fax Line (supports physical

2 MR-LINE-FAX-PHY fax) 2 $14.99 $29.98
Call Path Channel: adds
capacity for one (1)
simultaneous call on the SIP

3 MR-CP-UNL trunk 45 $19.99 $899.55
Call Path Seat allows one
(1) endpoint to
communicate to the SIP

4 MR-CPSEAT-UNL trunk 217 $6.00 $1,302 00
Expansion Module for TA4xU

5 EXP43 version phones 45 $4.75 $213.75
Polycom SoundStation IP
6000 Conference Phone +
Power Supply - Display - Sze
(pxels): 248 x 68 (W x H)
White LED backlght with
custom intensrty control.
Room Coverage - 12 foot.
Speaker Phone - Frequency
220-14,000 Hz. Volume
AdJustable to 86 dB at 1/2

6 IP6000-01 meter peak volume 3 $35 25 $105 75
HandyTone 802 (HT802)
Analog Telephone Adaptor

7 HT802 (HT802) 2 $3 50 $7 00
*Total Monthly Recurring Charges $3,426.03

*Total Monthly
Non-Recurring

Charges $23,952.44

Copyright @ 2023 Central Office Systems Inc
fer=-centrarorce

Page 15 of 16 Confidential & Propnetary AII Rights Reserved.



2023 PHONE SYSTEM REPLACEMENT PROJECT PROPOSAL FOR CITY OF FRANKLIN

APPENDIX B - Net2Phone PRICING (Continued)

Totals shown do not mclude :ill apphcable fees or taxes
A1l 1mt1al orders for less than five Hosted PBX seats or SIP Tmnks are not authonzed for dtscountmg If You m1tially order
less than five Hosted PBX seats or SIP Trunks and subsequently add seats or SIP Trunks so that the total number of
seats/SIP Trunks ts greater than five, the rates set forth m 1mt1al order will not be ehgible for re-pncmg.
*The hst of per rmnute usage charges (bulled m one rmnute mcrements) and SMS charges (billed per message) can be found
at https nwaccount_net2phoneoffice_comirates
Thus quote is subject to the terms and conditions found at https. 'www.net?phone.com terms-of-service

Thus quote 1s also subject to a 36 month commitment.

To accept this quote please. chck the button below or enter the complete url below inyour browser
https. 'partner net?phoneoffice.com apprestgnd604-3d0a?langCode=en

Copyright© 2023 Central Office Systems Inc
Lj'-::.CentralOffice

Page 16 of 16 Confidential & Proprietary All Rights Reserved.



Statement of Work
City of Franklin

CISCO WEBEX CLOUD CALLING

SOW Prepared By:

Tom Ugoretz
Collaboration Engineering Manager
Heartland Business Systems
Phone (715) 598-3375
tugoretz@hbs net

Greg Borchard
Solutions Consultant
Heartland Business Systems
Phone (262) 391-4734
gborchard@hbs net

www.hbs.net I Linkedin.HBS.net I @HBSTech 800-236-7914 I Heartland Business Systems, LLC



m
This Statement of Work("SOW") reflects the services and
material to be provided by Heartland Business Systems,
LLC, (hereinafter referred to as "HBS") for City of Franklin
(hereinafter referred to as "COF" or "Customer")

The objective of the Project is to migrate the Customer
from on-premises Avaya telephony and Toshiba PBX
solutions to the Cisco Webex Cloud Calling platform
This cloud-based solution will reduce annual
maintenance and support concerns by eliminating
equipment upgrades, patches, backup and disaster
recovery workloads and cost for the COF Cisco has
been a leader in phone systems for decades and 1s a
Leader 1n Gartner's Magic Quadrant for the 8 year in a
row in 2022 Cisco has the most robust feature list for
COF to choose from and engineers for support are
plentiful.

InformaCast from Singlewre wll integrate wrth CIsco
Webex Calling and be the mass not1ficat1on system for
emergency and daily communications hike paging and
alerts lnformaCast 1s also the leader m their market
space

HBS Is a Gold Partner with Cisco and is providing our
ColabGuard Support Plan for monthly support and
maintenance. HBS 1s already providing ColabGuard
support for COF surveillance equipment and we have
over a dozen engineers available to provide support and
many live locally.

Project Scope
HBS will provide the following services (hereinafter
referred to as the "Scope")

In Scope
• Discovery

o Complete the network discovery and
site readiness assessment

o Complete an inventory of users,
extensions, and features to verify
information from SOW Request

CONFIDENTIAL

STATEMENT OF WORK
City of Franklin - Cisco Webex Cloud Calling

o Document call flows and user
workflows

o Deliver a detailed deployment design
and schedule based on discoveries

o Run Site Readiness Script at all locations
for QA validation

o Review and document phone numbers
for porting to Webex Calling

• Webex Calling Implementation
o Verify hardware inventory.

• (136) New Cisco 8811 IP Phones
• (25) New Cisco 8841 IP Phones
• (10) New Cisco 8851 IP Phones
• (10) New Cisco Key Expansion

Modules
■ (4) New Cisco 7832 IP

Conference Phones
■ (5) Cisco 8832 IP Conference

Phones
■ (5) Cisco Wired Microphones

for Cisco 8832 IP Conference
Phones

• (2) New Cisco 6823 IP DECT
Bundles with Cradle and Base

• (7)New Cisco 6923 IP DECT
Handsets with Cradle

■ (3) New Aud10Codes MP124
Analog Gateways

■ (2) New Aud10Codes MP112
Analog Gateways

o Webex Calling Implementation
Provision Webex Calling Adm1n
Hub Srte

■ Complete Active Directory and
Calendaring

■ Configure Site Features
• Configure up to (10)

Locations
o Phone

Numbers and
E911 locations

o Site policies
■ Import End Users

2



STATEMENT OF WORK
City of Franklin - CIsco Webex Cloud Calling

Complete the inbound and
outbound test plan

■

■

■

■

■

■

Department Location
• Configure (1) Valcom Zone

Controller at the DPW Location
• At the (3) Fre Stations COF IS

utilizing Station Alerter
(Phoenx G2) and we have been
instructed that we could make
a SIP connection to integrate
paging (No additional hardware
needed)
Verify Services and Connectivity
Configure d1stnbut1on groups
and messages
Configure Severe Weather
Alerts

Gateway at the Police
Department Location
Install and configure (1) Pagng
Gateway at the DPW Location
Configure (1) Valcom Zone
Controller at the Library
Locaton

• Configure (1) Valcom Zone
Controller at the Police

■

■

■

■

• Install (1) On-Premises
Appliance at the City Hall
Locaton

• Prov1sIon and Integrate
Cloud Appliance

Install and configure (1) Paging
Gateway at the Library Location
Install and configure (1) Paging

Configure REST API for RedSky
notification relay
Configure Webex Calling
Integration and mndvdual
phone multicast listening
addresses

o System Cutover
■ Migrate/Port phone numbers to

the Webex Calling Platform

• Configure licensing for
Calling

• Configure User Features
Configure voicemarl to email

• Configure up to (10) Automated
Attendants

■ Configure up to (10) Call
Queues and Hunt Groups

• Validate firewall rules for
traversal

• Validate that SIP Inspection has
been disabled
Physically Install and register
phones mn the customer defined
locations

o Analog Hardware Prov1s1onmg
• Configure (2) new Aud1ocodes

MP112 Analog Gateways
• Configure cloud

connected license
• Patch and Configure

Analog Devices/ Fax
■ Configure (3) new Aud1ocodes

MP124 Analog Gateways
• Configure cloud

connected license
• Patch and Configure

Analog Devices/ Fax
• Patch overhead paging

interfaces
lnformaCast Fusion Implementation for Mass
Notification

o System Discovery and Venficat1on
• Gather deployment specifics

from the existing paging system
■ Virtual Machme Placement and

Addressmg
• Fusion Integration Method and

Authentication
• Notification Groups and Devices
• Fusion Users and Device

Notification Details
o Application Installation Configuration

•

CONFIDENTIAL 3



• Validate E911 locations and
messaging

o System Decommissioning
• Decomm1ssIon and remove

Avaya phone system hardware
and desk phones and place in a
customer defined location

• Training and Documentation
o Provide end-user quick reference guides

for meetings and calling.
o Provide (2) 1-hour end-user training

sessions (virtual or classroom)
o Provide (1) 2-hour system

administration tramnmng session (lf more
time Is needed we can provide under
flexblock for support)

o Document all system components and
call flows including:

• Configuration
• IP Addresses
• Services
• Security
• Licenses

o Documentation of all Singlewire
appl1cat1ons, groups, and integrations

Phone Services
The following items were called out in the SOW Request
as required services All of them are covered in the
Cisco Cloud Webex Calling Solution. A complete hst of
features can be found in the Webex Calling Feature
Matrix document included

• Phone station ID (a k.a. extension) assignments
to an ind1v1dual or department. This will include
analog, d 1g1tal, and VoIP station accounts

CONFIDENTIAL

STATEMENT OF WORK
City of Franklin - Cisco Webex Cloud Calling

• Voucemaul assignment to a station lD or
dedicated vrtual mailbox

o Importation of existing vorcemail is out
of scope, as new vo1cemail accounts will
be created, and existing messages will
not be earned over to the new system.

• Department hunt groups, call routing, and call
paths.

• System auto-attendants and associated menu
options.

o Bulletin board attendants for non
interactive messages

o After Hours system attendants and
associated menu options

• Dedicated DID inbound call routing
• Inbound trunk line configuration

o SIP Is currently not being implemented.
• ECS00 replacement for call routing to employee

cell phones
• Called ID
• 911 routing and associated caller-ID
• Basic music on hold
• Logging and Call Tracing
• Equipment and services conform to DOJ CJIS

version 5 9

Warranty
Phones carry a 90-day warranty. A Smartnet agreement
can be purchased to extend this but Is not normally
done,

Other hardware provided Is covered with a one-year
Smartnet agreement that you can renew annually.

4



m
Why HBS

STATEMENT OF WORK
City of Franklin - CIsco Webex Cloud Calling

Heartland Business Systems Overview
Heartland has enJoyed s1gnif1cant growth for more than 30 years and currently employs over five hundred employees
across Wisconsmn (Office is Little Chute, Pewaukee, Madison, and Wausau), Illinois, Iowa, Minnesota, Michigan, Nebraska,
Arkansas, Missouri, and Arizona.) It is Heartland's commitmentto its our m1ss1on, "to implement hardware and software
technologies that will improve the prof1tab1hty of every customer we serve," that 1s the cornerstone to its success

From the very beginning, the m1ss1on of Heartland has been to implement hardware and software technologies that will
improve the success of the customers we serve. Technology is the key to success for every organization You need instant
access to information to make the best business decisions. At Heartland, our capabilities and expertise make us uniquely
qualified to put you in touch with the very latest in technology. It takes experience to design the rght program to meet
your needs- not Just for today, but for the future. It takes leadership to put that plan in place At Heartland, we pledge to
provde you with unsurpassed customer service to help increase your productivity, effcency, and profitability

Industry Awards and Achievements

CRNVARBOO
SolutionProvider

Why Customers Choose Heartland
Systems Integration - Heartland has been doing systems integration, of all types and sizes, for 25+ years which continues
to be the backbone of Heartland services

Expertise - Heartland's staff carry the top cert1f1cat1ons in the industry and we prde ourselves on being the best at what
we do Heartland continues to combine the best and brightest talent mn the industry along with cutting edge technology.

CONFIDENTIAL 2



m STATEMENT OF WORK
City of Franklin - Cisco Webex Cloud Calling

Depth & Breadth of Solutions and Services - Heartland's ability to combine leading technology solutions and engineering
consult1ng/serv1ces are unmatched in the industry Heartland can be your one go-to partner for accomplishing your
organization goals on the pathway to success

Lifecycle of Service Approach - Heartland's partnership compliments your IT Team with everything needed to complete
short- and long-term goals. We provide services that support our customers across all stages of their IT Journey

We Deliver - Quite simply we deliver the solutions we recommend on time and on budget.

Services Available
Heartland Business Systems Is a full-service start-to-finish partner. We have led our customers to cutting-edge technology
to support the needs of all skill levels. Heartland will be able to meet the needs of the current scope of this SOW Request
but also take you into the future (beyond hardware)

HBS would not be considered a partner 1f we were to implement a solution and walk away. We are interested in creating
a partnership that will be there to support you on days 2, 3, 4 and beyond to ensure you are successful and that your
investment 1s fully realized We are here for the long haul and committed to giving the best experience in what we do. Our
skullsets range from managed services to information security to the private, public and hybrid cloud

Our team of highly skilled engineers provides quality service while you control IT costs and maintain your budget The
depth of our Engineering bench 1s second to none. Our team of 200+ engineers each bring their own industry experiences
and knowledge to the task at hand Our range of sk1llsets vary from a "Jack of all trades" to the highest cert1f1cat1on level
In their respected field

Key Personnel Technical Experience & Certifications
Our Director of Collaboration is John Stafford, and he has over 25 years of experience in collaboration systems design and
installation There are 8 members on the Cisco Calling team with over 100 years of experience. All the necessary
certifications and solid experience are min place to provide environments like yours with an outstanding design and
successful project installation.

Following are more details about some of our team and their experience. A complete listing can be found on the included
PPT Tom Ugoretz 1s the Engmeenng Services Manager that 1s providing the quote and Joe Murray would be a great
engineer on your project since he is certified in both Avaya and Cisco!

CONFIDENTIAL 3



0 STATEMENT OF WORK
City of Franklin - Cisco Webex Cloud Calling

€a
Collaboration Team

Team Member
Since 2013

de
Microsoft Teams.. , ... , ..
CISCO

@ singlewire

Abcoc.ent UC

HBS net

John Stafford
Director of Collaboration

Industry Expertise
• Education
• Government
• Manufactunng
• Fnancaal
• Healthcare
• Construction

Education
• MBA
• BS - Information Technology

Management
• Assooate - CIT Network Speoabst

Certifications
• CCNP - Collaboration

Overview
jstafford@hbs net

03

John has been enabling integration of the
collaboraton teams mncludng phys1cal securty,
audo/vsual, notrfcaton, and collaboration.
By drlVlng the integrat10n of systems our
customers are achieVJng simpler and more
consistent usage of commumcatons and
technology. In his past experience John has
deployed tens of thousands of phones,
v01cemall accounts and hundreds of call
centers and auto attendants.

€
Collaboration Team

Team Member
Since 2015.. , ... , ..

CISCO

0 singlewire

a..••
Microsoft Teams

AbescemtLiC

HBS net

TomUgoretz
Engineering Services Manager

Industry Expertise
• Education
• Government
• Manufacturing
• Fnancaal
• Healthcare
• Construct10n

Overview
Education
• BS - Informaton Technology

Management
• AS- CIT Network Speoabst

Certifications
• CCIE Collaboration #51603
• CCNP - Enterpnse
• CCDP - Design

tugoretz@hbs net

03

Tom 1s passionate about leading hs team and
keeping them focused on delivering the best
Collaborat10n solutions in the industry. He
works extensively to ensure the products we
deploy are integrated with adJacent customer
solutions and deliver the best customer
experience. Tom has 20+ years of collaboration
expenence with over 15 focused design and
implementat10n of v01ce and Video
commumcaton solutons.

CONFIDENTIAL 4



m STATEMENT OF WORK
City of Franklin - Cisco Webex Cloud Calling

€a9
Collaboration Team

Team Member
Since 2014

.. , ... , ..
CISCO

0 singlewire

AbmtentUC

HBS net

Industry Expertise
• Educat10n
• Government
• Healthcare
• Commercaal

Education
• Hamilton Technical College

Bachelor of Sence (BS),
Electroncs Engineerng
Technology

Overview

0

jmurray@hbs net

Joe Murray
Senior Collaboration Engineer

Joe spends hs time supporting and advising
customers in the Commercial, Educat10n,
Healthcare, and Government mdustnes. He 1s
a 20+ year veteran of I.T., havng spent most of
that at a top-rated healthcare system mn the
lowa Quad-Cates regon where he developed
and lead the convers10n of 40+ sites, 6
hospitals, and 5,000+ phones from various
Nortel and AVAYA systems to Cisco Urnf1ed
Communications Manager. He has been
working Wlth Cisco UC products for 12+ years,
Including Voce Mail, IM and Presence, Call
Centers I Scripting, SIP, V01ce Routers /
Gateways, e911, and WebEx.

Out of Scope
• Physical removal of existing phone system blocks, patch panels, and nser cables
• Network multicast configuration, testing, or remediation
• Installation of Soft Clients on end-user devices
• Installation & Troubleshooting 3rd party software
• Upgrade of any applications not listed above.
• Integration of Dispatch 911 or Vesta Systems
• Any work or material not specifically identified mn thus document Is not included in thus Agreement.

Additional Requirements and Conditions
• Customer will provide times for outage windows during which the UC applications can be unavailable as the

cutover takes place
• Customer will provide adequate network access and credentials required for the assessment of all components

listed mn the scope
• Customer will create an HBS email account within their organization for testing of vo1cemail and automated

attendant functions.
• Customer will provide a completed SInglewre Scenano worksheet (1) week prior to the start of the onstte

deployment

CONFIDENTIAL 5



m STATEMENT OF WORK
City of Franklin - Cisco Webex Cloud Calling

•

•

•

•

Customer will create an HBS email account within their organization for testing of Singlewre Fusion cloud
Integration
Customer acknowledges that the feature-set of the Webex Calling platform Is not 1dent1cal to the CUCM
platform and differences in admin1strat1on and end-user experience will be expected
Customer will provide a Letter of Authorization (LOA) for Cisco Support Contracts
Customer to provide remote access prior to and throughout the project
Customer will provide enough space for installing the new equipment
HBS and Customer will both ensure that adequate resources, for which each respective party 1s responsible, are
available when needed throughout the duration of this engagement The timely completion of this engagement
will depend on the ava1lab11ity of the necessary Customer personnel.
The timely completion of this engagement will also depend on the ava1lab11ity and delivery of the product(s)
associated with this SOW from other vendors.

• Any potential dependencies discovered prior to or during 1mplementat1on will be communicated to Customer and
HBS to determine impact to the timing, scope and pricing for the project, and the partes shall utilize the Change

•
•

•

Order process, as necessary.

Customer Responsibilities
Site and System(s) Readiness
The items listed below shall be the respons1b11ity of the customer

• Provide a workspace with Internet access for HBS engineers
• Verify that a minimum of CATSe network cabling Is run to each phone location
• Provide user and extension and location lists for phone deployment
• Provide existing telco documents, resources, and list of business-owned inbound telephone numbers
• Participate mn system and workflow discovery
• Provide an HBS email address within the Customer organization
• Provide a completed Singlewre Scenario worksheet (1) week prior to the start of the onsrte deployment
• Provide room for staging
• Disposal of shipment packaging
• Disposal of replaced equipment
• Clean all network closets prior to shipment arrival
• Commun1cat1on of outages
• Assistance with testing and validation
• Provide power stnps and access to receptacles for staging
• Transportation of Equipment to the buildings
• Provide lifts and or ladders where applicable

Workrng Condrtrons and Access
The items listed below shall apply to the extent applicable:

• Customer will provide a Single Pomnt of Contact with decision making ability to interface with HBS This person Is
responsible for signing off on Scope of Work and Change Order documents throughout the project.

• Customer will provide Subject Matter Experts (SMEs) when required by project personnel and/or project actIvIt1es
If delays in the project t1meline are a result of delayed access to SME personnel or any other Customer delays,
Customer may be subject to add1t1onal charges.

CONFIDENTIAL 6



m STATEMENT OF WORK
City of Franklin - Cisco Webex Cloud Calling

•

•

•

•

Customer will provide HBS with access, mcludmg all password and logins, to required existing network or system
assets listed in the scope.
Customer will provide HBS with proper access and workspace areas at Customer locations that includes internet,
physical and remote access tom scope infrastructure or systems
Customer will allow the HBS engineer to connect their computer to Customer network m order to perform their
duties. HBS will allow Customer to exam me said notebook for current anti-virus software, 1f needed.
Customer will allow HBS unescorted access to computer rooms, equipment closets and the general facility. If
unescorted access Is not available, Customer shall assign access levels appropriately and coordinate escorts.
Customer will provide adequate access and credentials required for the assessment of all components or systems
listed in the scope.

• Customer will provide remote access prior to, and throughout, the proJect 1f required.
• Customer will have working Internet access available where the work will be performed
• Customer 1s responsible for resolving problems outside the SOW that are beyond the control of HBS. These shall

include but not be limited to software/firmware bugs, vendor engineering support cases, hardware failures,
telecommunication circuits, server issues, desktop issues, the acts, or omissions of any third party, or any other
occurrence not caused by HBS. HBS can assist with these out-of-scope issues through the Change Order process

•

or on a time and materials bas1s.

Testing, Notification and Change Control
• Customer will provide advanced not1ficat1on of any network outages or changes during the 1mplementat1on

period.
• Customer will assist with the creation of and perform user acceptance testing and post-mgraton end-pomnt

validations.
• H BS and Customer will provide 48-hour not1ficat1on of any schedule changes.
• Customer wll assist wuth the design, testing and validation of the project Deliverables .
• Customer and HBS agree that work shall progress when Customer staff 1s not available to part1c1pate.

Deliverables
The following are the deliverables HBS will provide to Customer (hereinafter referred to as "Deliverables") for thus project

Any change to the Deliverables listed below will require a Change Order.

# Deliverables

1 Network discovery and site readiness assessment

2 Inventory of users, extensions, and features

3 Documented call flows and user workflows

4 Deployment design and schedule

5 End-user quick reference guides for meetings and calling

6 Documentation of configurations, Call Attendants and Call Tree Options plus all Smglew1re appl1cat1ons, groups, and
Integrations

7 Cut-over m1grat1on sheet (DID, hunt groups and call paths)

8 Fully implement and test the system as described above I
9 Project Sign Off form when complete i:

CONFIDENTIAL 7



m STATEMENT OF WORK
City of Franklin - CIsco Webex Cloud Calling

Fixed Fee Pricing
This SOW Is fixed fee. Any addrtonal work required under a Change Order will also be billed to City of Franklin

Service and equipment 1dent1f1ed in this SOW do not include any taxes that may be applicable. Any such taxes shall be
spec1fed on an invoice as a separate line rtem.

City of Franklin agrees to compensate HBS for providing the Deliverables as stated in the attached Quote

Project Completion
Project will be complete when all Deliverables have been provided to Customer.

Customer will have five (5) business days to review the Deliverables for the project. If HBS does not receive a written
notice of rejection describing the basis for rejection within thus period, the Deliverables will be considered accepted

After the completion of the project, support may be obtained by contacting the HBS Account Manager. Support will be
billed at an agreed upon rate for services rendered.

Change Management
Add1t1onal products and services beyond the In-Scope deliverables listed above are considered out of scope and require a
Change Order executed by the parties before any such work can be performed. Any additions, deletions, or modifications
to the Agreement, regardless of change to project value, require a Change Order

Terms
Binding Agreement This SOW describes the professional services and/or products, and results to be provided by HBS
Upon execution, this SOW shall be contractually binding on the parties The HBS Standard Terms and Cond1t1ons are also
made part of this Agreement.

Order of Precedence Any ambiguity or inconsistency between or among the statements of this SOW and the Standard
Terms and Conditions shall be resolved by gving priority and precedence m the following order:

• Statement of Work
• Standard Terms and Cond1t1ons

Work Hours. All professional services work will be completed during the normal business hours of 800 am - 5.00 pm
Monday - Friday Central Time Any work occurring after 5:00 pm or before 8:00 am or on weekends 1s subject to a bill rate
of 1.5 times the normal rate, unless the parties agree otherwise in writing

General. No other promises have been made related to ths SOW except for those stated inth1s SOW This SOW supersedes
all other agreements or promises related to this project and SOW. HBS shall not be responsible for any delay caused by
the Customer or its vendors or contractors, equipment or shipping delays, or any other occurrence not caused by HBS.

Confidentiality. Each party may have access to confidential information concerning the methodologies, pricing, and
business practices of the other Neither party shall make any use of such information of the other party except in
connection wrth the exercise of its rights and responsibilities under thus SOW

CONFIDENTIAL 8



WebEx Cloud Calling

Prepared For
Franklin, City of
James Matelski
9229 W Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

P: (414) 427-7645
E: JMatelski@franklinwgov

Prepared By
Milwaukee Wisconsin Area Office
Greg Borchard
N28W23050 Roundy Drve Suite 200
Pewaukee WI 53072

P. 262-650-6500 ext 1222
E: gborchard@hbs net

Quote #303472 v3

Date Issued
10.03.2023

Expires
10.31.2023

Cisco IP Phones & Accessories Price Qty Ext. Price

CP-88 l l-3PCC- Cisco 8811 IP Phone - Corded -Wall Mountable, Desktop- Charcoal - 5 x Tota l $191 84 136 $26,090 24
K9= Line - VoIP - User Connect License, Unified Communications Manager - 2 x

Network (RJ-45) - PoE Ports

CP-884 l-3PCC- Cisco 8841 IP Phone - Corded -Wall Mountable, Desktop - Charcoal Gray - 5 x $207 53 25 $5,188 25
K9= Total Line - VoIP - Unified Communications Manager, Unified Communications

Manager Express, User Connect License - 2x Network (RJ-45) - PoE Ports

CP-8851-3PCC- Cisco 8851 IP Phone - Corded/Cordless - Corded - Bluetooth - Desktop, Wall $247 65 10 $2,476 50
K9= Mountable - Charcoal - 5 x Total Line - VoIP - User Connect License, Unified

Communications Manager - 2x Network (RJ-45) - PoE Ports

CP-8800-A-KEM Cisco 8800 SERIES KEM FORAUDIO IP PHONESWITH MPP FIRMWARE $205 79 10 $2,057 90
-3PC=

CP-7832-3PCC- Cisco 7832 IP Conference Station - Corded - Smoke - 1x Tota l Line - $400 94 4 $1,603 76
K9= VolPNetwork (RJ-45) - PoE Ports

CP-8832-3PCC- Cisco 8832 IP Conference Station - Corded - Charcoal Black, Charcoal Gray - $692 92 5 $3,464 60
K9 VoIP - 1x Network (RJ-45) - PoE Ports

CP-8832-MIC- Cisco Wired Microphone for 8832 Conference Phone $279 25 5 $1,396 25
WIRED=

CP-6823-3PC- Cisco IP DECT Phone Kit - Black $215 42 2 $430 84
BUN-NA

CP-6823-3PC- CISCO IP DECT 6823 HANDSET CRADLE MPP NA PSU $116 24 7 $813 68
NA-K9=

Subtotal $43,522.02

3 Year Flex Plan -Annual Billing Price Qty Ext. Price

A-FLEX-NUCL
P

Cisco - Collaboration Flex Plan Webex Calling Professional - License - 1
Named User - Annual Billing
Year1 of 3 pnce $17 356 50

Year2 of 3 price $17 356 50

Year3 of 3 prce $17 356 50

$99 75 174 $17,356 50

A-FLEX-NUCL- Cisco - Webex Calling Enhanced Licenses - Annual Billing
E Year 1 of 3 price $5,087 25

Year2 of 3 pnce $5,087 25

Year3 of 3 pnce $5 087 25

$59 85 85 $5,087 25

Quote #303472 v3 Page: 1 of 3



3 Year Flex Plan -Annual Billing Price Qty Ext. Price

A-AUD-OCPI Cisco - OCPL from the US - Unlimited for United States - Annual Billing $43.80 259 $11,344.20
NU Year 1 of 3 price: $8,628.60

Year2 of3 price: $8,628.60

Year 3 of 3 price: $8,628.60

Requested Start Date: 1-November-2023

Requested For 36.00 Months

From: 1-November-2023 to 31-October-2026

Automatically Renews For 36 Months on: 1-November-2026

Annual Billing

Subtotal $33,787.95

lnformaCast Price Qty Ext. Price

SS-CPF-2 InformaCast - Software Provisioning $750.00 I $750.00

SSF-3YR-USR InformaCast - Fusion UserBase up to 250 Users --- Term 3 Year(s) $41.65 250 $10,412.50
TIER2

IPTA-IFS InformaCast - Fusion Server Appliance $989.00 I $989.00

IPTA-PG-APL2 InformaCast - Paging Gateway Hardware Appliance $759.00 3 $2,277.00

Subtotal $14,428.50

Services - Fixed Fee Price Qty Ext. Price

HBS-FF-LABOR Engineering/Consulting Labor $54,120.00 I $54,120.00
Includes Project Management and Travel

HBS-TRAVEL- Travel Expenses $2,400.00 I $2,400.00
EXPENSE

Subtotal $56,520.00

Non-Returnable/Non-Refundable Language
Cisco/Meraki Note:

Effective January 30, 2022, Cisco Meraki will be aligning to the Cisco Order Cancellation Policy. All new Cisco and Meraki orders submitted for hardware, and any

attached software, will be non-cancellable and cannot be modified starting 45 days prior to the current estimated ship date. Meraki license-only orders are not

impacted by this policy change. Non-cancellable orders are not eligible for RMA credit and are not eligible for an RMA exception.

". . '
Quote Summary Amount
Cisco IP Phones & Accessories

3 Year Flex Plan - Annual Billing

lnformaCast

Services - Fixed Fee

Total:

$43,522.02

$33,787.95

$14,428.50

$56,520.00

$148,258.47

This quote may not include applicable sales tax , shipping, handling and/or delivery charges. Final applicable sales tax, shipping, handling and/or delivery charges are calculated and applied at invoice. The above
prices are for hardware/software only, and do not include delivery, setup or installation by Heartland (HBS") unless otherwise noted. Installation by HBS is available at our regular hourly rates, or pursuant to a prepaid
HBSFlex Agreement This configuration is presented for convenience only. HBS is not responsible for typographical or other errors/omissions regarding prices or other information. Prices and configurations are
subject to change without notice. HBS may modify or cancel this quote if the pricing is impacted by a tariff. A 15% restocking fee will be charged on any returned part. Customer is responsible for all costs associated
with return of product and a $25.00 processing fee. No returns are accepted by HBS without prior written approval. This quote expressly limits acceptance to the terms of this quote, and HBS disclaims any additional
terms. By providing your "E-Signature," you acknowledge that your electronic signature is the legal equivalent of your manual signature, and you warrant that you have express authority to execute this agreement and
legally bind your organization to this proposal and all attached documents. Any purchase that the customer makes from HBS is governed by HBS' Standard Terms and Conditions ("ST&Cs") located at

Quote #303472 v3 Page: 2 of 3



http.//www hbs neUstandard-terms-and-condit1ons which are incorporated herem by reference. The ST&Cs are subjectto change When a neworder rs placed the ST&Cs on the above-stated website at that time
shall apply If customer has signed HBS ST&Cs version 2018 v2 0 or later or the parties have executed a current master services agreement, the signed agreement shall supersede the versron on the website. Any
order(s) that exceeds the credit limit assigned by HBS shall require upfront payment from customer in an amount determined by HBS HBS shall make this determination at the time of the order unless customer has
previously submitted the required onboard1ng paperwork. In such event HBS shall make this determination at the time of quoting QT2021 v1 O

Acceptance
Milwaukee Wisconsin Area Office

Greg Borchard
Signature / Name

10/03/2023
Date

Franklin, City of

Signature / Name

Date

Initials

Quote #303472 v3 Page: 3 of 3



'-' newera
TECHNOLOGY

City of Franklin CloudBlu - Avaya UCaaS

Quote #54453 V1
May 15, 2023

PREPARED FOR

City of Franklin

PREPARED BY

Paul Carpenter

New Era Technology
neweratech com



Unified Communications as a Service
(UCaaS)

With New Era Technology's Unified Communications as a Service, migrate to
the cloud at your own pace while taking advantage of a full suite of
appl1cat1ons that integrate seamlessly with the rest of your business

As technology evolves and systems change It can seem nearly 1mposs1ble to keep
up Managing system updates and changes has become a cumbersome task as
staff focus on other strategic organizational priorities such as customer experience
and security

Swttch to the Cloud

• Strearl ne youra nes

Offset these challenges by getting the communication and collaborat1on capab1ltt1es
your business needs with New Era's Unified Communications as a Service New
Era's UC certified team can handle the adm1rnstrat1ve tasks associated with
ma1ntam1ng a robust UC system Your organization will experience the benefits of
complete mob1hty, meetings, team collaboration,
and customer contact capab1hties on the devices your people use every day, from desktops to smartphones to tablets

• Can n£tint3dl n4 g

Operational vs Capital Expense

• No large upfront costs

• Ability to pay month by month

• Predictable pncIng makes forecasting easier to
migrate to the cloud

Flexibility: Shrink and grow based on seasonality or

organizational reqwrements.

• Don't waste money on licenses that aren't being used

• Scale system as needed

Hybnd Resiliency and Reliability Max1m1ze uptime

with flexible fail-over options

• Cloud to Cloud

• Premise to Cloud

• Cloud to Premise

Investment Protection. Reuse analog, d1g1tal or
third-party devices such as handsets or paging
systems.

• Or leverage pure IP 1f that works best for you

• Gain a resilient and reliable system In a completely
operational expense model

Automated System Management. Focus on your

strategic business drvng projects.

• Hands-on installs, supports and manages the system

Handles upgrade entitlements.

No support black holes.

One monthly cost.

• Proactive system management and monitoring

2 New Era Technology I Quote #054453 v1 May 15, 2023

The information contamned mn thus document ts confidential privileged and only for the 1nformat1on of the intended recipient and may not be used published or
redistributed without the prior wntten consent



Centralized Management. One intuItIve interface.

• The administrator views all users on a single site or
across 1 50 locations

• Monitor potential issues that could affect system
performance, 1nclud1ng over ut1hzed trunk hnes voice
ports and bandwidth ut1hzat1on

Security: Protect your business with built-in, always-on

securrty.

• Seamless upgrades help maintain your system with the
latest security patches to help prevent hacking

Built-in Applications.

• Web Collaboration document shanng white boarding
full partIcIpant controls and a common user interface

• Audio Conference Bridge

• Team Messaging and Presence

• Mob1hty Chent

• Geo-Tracking

• Soft Phones

• Recording

Enhanced client and devices support:

• Feature nch and consistent user experience across
desktop (Windows and Mac) and mobile (Andrrnd and
1OS) devices

• Optional integrated HD camera wide band audio,
hands free speaker, cordless (Bluetooth) or wired
handset and analog or Bluetooth connected headsets

Integration Capabilities·

• Google
• Office 365
• Skype for Business
• SalesForce com
• Strong DevConnect community
• Simple integration wth thrd party platforms

Integrated Contact Center Experience. Seamless

customer engagement experience.

• Start wth simple recording reporting and call
routing for your agents

• Grow engagement experience with customers

• Vorce

• Chat

• Emal

• SMS

• Fax

• Outbound Campaigns

Add-on Features

Immediate Real-time Notification of Emergency 911

Calls or Misuse

• Recerve notifications to your desktop computer
extension email, SMS team rooms or mobile
app

• Exact location of the phone from which the call
was made may be configured for every station
and delivered to email

• Actvty rs logged and documented for future
verification and analysus

Secure Cloud-based Management of Your

Communication Ecosystem

Remote host a variety of dagnostic management reports
for your organization Data Is transmitted to a centralized
host and processed on a secured server for 1mmechate
access anywhere anytime

• Full control of data collection processing and
real-time access to reports

• 24/7 emergency pager support for cnt1cal issues

3 New Era Technology I Quote #054453 v1 May 15 2023

The information contained mn thus document is confidential proleged and only for the information of the mntended recipient and may not be used published or
redistributed without the pror written consent



Telephony User Basic Telephony Lute User Essential UC User Power

Broad Endpoint Selection (IP Digital,
Analog, IP 3rd party DECT/Wireless)

Digital Endpoint

Analog Endpoint

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

Basic Telephony Features (make
receive hold transfer, votcemail
park/page)

Secure Remote Worker

Call Recording

Ad-hoc Meet-Me conferencing

Soft client Standalone Equinox

Advanced Telephony Features (UMS,
video calling, Instant Messaging and
Presence, Shared Control Smmulta
neous mode)

Mobile Endpoints (Including VoIP)

Scheduled audio conferencing

Web Collaboration

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

Web Application Integration (SFDC
Google 0365 web-page)

Dehvenng New Era Technology SIP service mcludmg [100,000] minutes/monthly See below for details

✓

Contract Term: Three (3) Years

Contract Start Date: TBD
Contract End Date:

4 New Era Technology I Quote #054453 v1 May 15 2023

The information contained mn thus document rs confidential privileged and only for the information of the mntended recipient and may not be used published or
redistributed without the prior written consent



Inclusions:

Exclusions:

Assumptions/Notes:

Includes [100,000] minutes/monthly

Includes [217] Direct Inward Dials (DIDs)

Includes [1] Toll Free Numbers

Includes [20] e911 Registration

includes (163 }Avaya IP Phone J139

includes (54) Avaya IP Phone J179

includes (7) Avaya J100 Expansion Modules

(8) Locations

City Hall = 69

Police Dept = 76

Public Library = 24

Fire Station 1 =13

F ,re Station 2 =5

Fire Station 3 =7

DPW=10

Sewer and Water Utility =13

Total =217 Phones

Prov1s1ons are included for Gateway and Analog 911 outbound
services at each location 1f necessary

Add1t1onal taxes and fees such as the Federal Universal
Service Recovery Fee, E911 Service Fee, Compliance and
Admin1strat1ve Cost Recovery Fee, 911 Fee, and State and
Local Taxes, may apply

Excludes international service, inbound toll free calls, directory
service calls, pay-per-call services, and SMS text messaging
Normal rates will apply

SIP services may be delivered over a customer-provided
Internet service or private cIrcurt Proposal assumes services
are in place and that Customer will maintain suitable service for
the duration of the contract Pricing for these services can be
provided upon request

5 New Era Technology I Quote #054453 v1 May 15 2023

The information contained mn thus document is confidential privileged and only for the information of the intended recrprent and may not be used published or
redistributed wthout the pror written consent



Caveat

• Paging System can be quoted ,once speakers and horn are determined at each location
POE Switches will need to mn place at time of cut-overs and capable of LLDP functionality to work with Data and Vorce
VLANS

• Faxing Is not included mn thus proposal ,but can be quoted at a later time
• Cabling Is not included mn thus proposal

NEWERACBLUl NEWERAC NewEra Cloud Blu Monthly Offer 1 $2,694.10 $2,694.10
BLUl

New Era Cloud Blu Monthly Offer including (100,000) Minutes /Month ,(30) UC Users ,(180) Basic Users 7 Receptionists,(217)
DID 's, (20) E911 Number and Firewall's for Secure srte to site Cloud connection

Monthly Subtotal

Contamns Optional Items

347179 347179 Avaya IP Phone J139-3 Year DFPP 163 $4 04 $658 52

347181 347181 Avaya IP Phone J179 - Top Seller-3 54 $7 66 $413 64

Year DFPP

351744 351744 Avaya J100 Expansion Module 7 $5 30 $3710

(J179 8 J189)-3 Year DFPP

$1,109.26

700513916 Avaya IP Phone J139 163 $124 08 $20,225 04

700513569 J179 IP PHONE 54 $263 20 $1421280

700514337 Avaya J100 Expansion 7 $184 12 $128884

700504032 Gateways 8 Cards-IP Office Media Card Vorce (VCM) Coding 2 $207 55 $415 10
Module 64 V2

700504556 Gateways 8 Cards-IP Office IPSOO V2 Combo Card ATM V2 8 $427 06 $341648

6 New Era Technology I Quote #054453 v1 May 15, 2023

The information contained mn thus document us confidential prl eged and only for the mnformatuon of the intended recipient and may not be used published or
redistributed without the prior wntten consent



700479710 Gateways & Cards-IP OFFICE IP500 V2 SYSTEM SD CARD MU 8 $29 89 $239 12
LAW

700504031 Gateways 8 Cards IP Office Media Card Vorce (VCM) Coding 6 $11393 $683 58
Module 32 V2

700429202 Recommended Hardware-Rack Tray/Brackets cable guide & 8 $35 53 $284 24
fangs to mnstall IPO 500 BASE UNITS mnto

700514867 Servers-IPO IP5O0 V2 CNTRL UNIT 8 $385 21 $3,081 68

PATCHCABLE 7' 7' CAT6 PATCHCABLE 230 $647 $1,488 10

$45,334.98

ProServl Professional Services -UC Programming, Installation 1 $72,800.00 $72,800.00
and Project Management

$72,800.00

Terms and Condrtions

Coverage for New Era Technology Cloud Solution. The New Era Technology Cloud Solution Proposal ("Proposal") and any Attachments thereto,
together with these General Terms and Conditions, shall constitute the entire Agreement between New Era Technology ("New Era") and Customer for
the Products and Services more specifically descnbed m the Proposal (hereinafter 'the Agreement') Any amendment to or modification of the Proposal
and these General Terms and Conditions must be in wntmng and executed by an authorized representative of each party The Agreement shall become
effective when signed by the Customer and accepted by New Era

2 Definitions: "Services" means provisioning of Voce Services, Internet Access (mcludmg Shared Bandwidth and Dedicated Lines) IP Addressing Email
VPNs Firewalls Hosting Server Collocation Hardware Sales and all related Support Services as may be provided by New Era from time to time
Software" means any Computer Programs or Code, Software Applications and any other software provided by New Era to Customer pursuant to the
Agreement

3 Orders. New Eras acceptance of this Agreement Is subject to credit approval and remittance of an advance payment. If Customer is unable or unwilling
to accept product delivery on the mutually agreed upon delivery date or w1thm thirty (30) days thereafter product prices and/or service charges may
change An additional deposit may be required to hold" equipment until Customer rs ready to install

4 Access: Customer agrees, at its sole expense to provide the proper environment and electrical and commurncatIons connections for the Products in
accordance wth manufacturer specifications Customer or Customer's landlord agrees to provde New Era with access to the building communications
room(s) and roof areas as necessary to install maintain repar and remove equipment and to delver the Servces If Customer Is unable to provide
access as provided herein New Era shall at its option (a) declare the full amount for the entire term due and payable 1mmed1ately or (b) elect to
terminate thus Agreement

5 Required Equipment. Customer understands and agrees that the Services require certain equipment Customer-provided such as a SIP Aware Access
Device Personal Computer Ethernet Card and an appropriate Operating System ("Customer Equipment"), as well as certain equipment provided by
New Era such as Software an Edge Access Device, an IP Phone or Media Converter ( New Era Equipment") Customer represents that It owns
Customer Equipment or otherwise has the rght to use such equipment in connection wth the Serces

6 Ownership of Equipment. All New Era Equipment and Software shall at all times remain the property of New Era or its des1gnee, unless purchased from
New Era at the time of 1nstallat1on or leased with a buy-out at the end of the term Customer may not sell transfer, lease encumber or assign all or part
of the New Era Equipment or Software, nor shall Customer relocate the New Era Equipment outside the Premises Customer shall pay to New Era the

7 New Era Technology I Quote #054453 v1 May 15 2023

The information contained mn thus document ts confidential privileged and only for the mnformaton of the intended recipient and may not be used published or
redistributed without the prior written consent



full manufacturer's suggested retail pnce for the replacement of any lost stolen unreturned damaged sold transferred, leased encumbered or
assigned New Era Equipment or part thereof together wth any incidental costs incurred by New Era relating to the replacement of the New Era
Equipment. Customer hereby authorizes New Era to charge Customer's Visa MasterCard or other credit card on file with New Era for any such
charges New Era may at its option, Install newor reconditioned equipment

7 Non-recommended Configuration · New Era has informed Customer of the recommended minimum computer hardware requirements if any (Minimum
Requirements) for properly and efficiently operating the Service If Customer utilizes hardware that does not meet the Minimum Requirements (1 e, a
Non- recommended Configuration) Customer agrees that It shall not be entitled to support relating to any issues other than the quality of the signal
delivered to Customer's IP Phone or Media Converter NEW ERA DOES NOT REPRESENT OR WARRANT THAT A NON-RECOMMENDED
CONFIGURATION WILL ENABLE CUSTOMER TO SUCCESSFULLY ACCESS, OPERATE OR USE THE SERVICE OR THAT ANY SUCH
INSTALLATION WILL NOT CAUSE DAMAGE TO CUSTOMER'S EQUIPMENT PERIPHERALS SOFTWARE OR DATA NEW ERA DOES NOT
ASSUME ANY LIABILITY WHATSOEVER FORANY DAMAGE OR FAILURE TO INSTALL ACCESS OR USE THE SERVICE

8 Software If Software Is provided by New Era, New Era grants to Customer a limited, non-exclusive license to use the Software in object code form
only solely for the purpose of connecting Customer's computer(s) or if applicable Customer's SIP Aware Device to the Service This license will permit
such use by Customer and any person authorized by Customer to use the Service provided that Customer shall be responsible for all uses of the
Service as provided In this Agreement This license will commence upon New Era's acceptance of Customer's

subscription for the Service and wll terminate mmmediately upon the expiration or termination of thus Agreement for any reason Customerwill destroy
all Software and any related written material, togetherwith any copies promptly upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement for any reason
Customer may make a single copy of the Software solely for back-up purposes Any other copying, or any translation, reverse engineering or reverse
compiling disassembly ormod1ficat1on of or preparation of any derivative works based on the Software are prohibited

9 End User Licenses: Customer agrees to comply with the terms and cond1t1ons of all End User License Agreements and any software or plug-ins to
such software distributed mn connection wth the Service AII End User Licenses shall immediately terminate on the date that the Service expires or ts
otherwise terminated

10 Installation: New Era will provide and install the New Era equipment within Customer's premises Customer understands that as part of the
1nstallat1on process system files on Customer's computer(s) may be modified CUSTOMER UNDERSTANDS THAT SUCH MODIFICATIONS MAY
DISRUPT THE NORMAL OPERATIONS OF CUSTOMER'S COMPUTER For these and other reasons New Era recommends and Customer
agrees, that Customer will back-up all files in accordance with Section 12 below prior to installation of the Service NEW ERA SHALL HAVE NO
LIABILITY WHATSOEVER FORANY DAMAGE RESULTING FROM THEABOVE OR OTHER FILE MODIFICATIONS

11 Back-up Requirements: Customer understands that the installation, use, inspection alteration, maintenance, repair or removal of the New Era
Equipment and Software may result in service outage or potential damage to Customer's Equipment Customer understands that it is required to
back-up all existing computer files by copying them to another storage medium and accepts the nsks of not making such a backup

12 Customer's Hardware and Software: Customer acknowledges that the opening of Customer's computer may void warranties provided by the
computer manufacturer or other parties relating to the computer's hardware or software If for any reason the installation and provIsIornng of the
Services requires New Era to open a Customer- provided computer, and Customer consents to the opening of the computer, Customer agrees that
New Era shall have no liability whatsoever should any such warranties be voided as a result of doing so EXCEPT FOR THE GROSS NEGLIGENCE
OR WILLFUL MISCONDUCT OF NEW ERA NEW ERA SHALL HAVE NO LIABILITY WHATSOEVER FOR ANY DAMAGE TO OR LOSS OR
DESTRUCTION OF CUSTOMER'S EQUIPMENT, PERIPHERALS, SOFTWARE FILES OR DATA

13 Installation Charge and Security Deposit The charge for Installation shall be as stated in the Proposal and shall be due and payable prior to
installation Charges for Advanced Installation are detailed in the Proposal If applicable, an equipment deposit for New Era Equipment to be used on
the Customer Premises shall be as stated in the Proposal and shall be due prior to installation and shall be refunded to Customer upon termination of
service, provided that the New Era Equipment rs returned mn good working condition

14 Terms of Payment: Customer agrees to the tenn specified in the Proposal. Monthly Recurring Charges (MRC") shall be payable monthly, in
advance of the upcoming month, plus all applicable taxes, tariffs, governmental assessments, surcharges and fees for the term of service in
accordance with the Proposal. If commencement of Services occurs on any day other than the first calendar day of the month, then the MRCwill
be pro-rated by the number of calendar days remaining in the month. Subsequent tenns of this agreement will auto renew for the original term
unless Customer has provided, and New Era has received , written notice at least sixty (60) days prior to expiration. All Service is based on full
monthly charges which means that if service is terminated, Customer is responsible for each monthly tenn in its entirety to the end of the then
current term, and Customer is subject to a termination fee. Anypayments thatare overdue by 15days orlonger maybe subject to termination of
service. A re-activation feewill also apply. Late payment charges will be computed at the rate of one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month of
the overdue amount or the maximum lawful amount, whichever is less Customer will be liable for all costs to collect any past due amounts,
including collection agency and/or attorney fees. Customer agrees to pay all applicable local, state and federal taxes, however designated,
unless Customer provides New Era with a valid Certificate of Exemption. Customer is liable for any and all calls placed on the New Era system
above the included monthly minutes as well as any International Calls, E911 calls, 411 Directory Calls and any 800 calls.

15 Additional Charges· The Service may allow Customer to access the Internet, on-line services and other information Customer acknowledges that
Customer may incur charges while using the Service mn addrton to those billed by New Era For example Customer may incur charges as a result of
accessing certamn on-line services or purchasing or subscribing to certamn other offenngs Customer agrees that all such charges including all
applicable taxes are the sole respons1b1hty of Customer

16 Agreement to Pay· Monthly payments and any other amounts due to New Era may be charged to Customer's Visa MasterCard American Express or

8 New Era Technology I Quote #054453 v1 May 15, 2023

The information contamned mn thus document rs confidential prvleged and only for the information of the mntended recipient and may not be used published or
redistributed without the pnor written consent



other credit card on file with New Era and/or electronically debited to Customer's bank account, at Customer's option Customer agrees to pay all
monthly Service Fees, Usage Fees the Installation Charge and 1f applicable the Equipment Deposit Customer hereby authorizes New Era to charge
Customer's Visa, MasterCard or other credit card and/or to electronically debit Customer's bank account for all such fees charges taxes and payment
transaction processing costs

17 Late Payments/Failure to Pay If any payment due to New Era 1s not received within ten (10) days of due date an admin1strat1ve charge of twenty-five
dollars ($25 00) may be assessed and the Service may be discontinued If the Service 1s discontinued Customer will be required to pay a reconnect fee
of one hundred dollars ($100 00) in add1t1on to all past due amounts before the Servce Is reconnected The administrative charge 1s intended to be a
reasonable advance estimate of New Eras costs resulting from Customer's late payments and non- payments and Is set in advance due to the difficulty
inherent 1n determining the costs associated with any particular late payment or non-payment. New Era does not ant1c1pate that Customer will fail to
make payments on a timely basis New Era does not extend credit to its Customers and the admin1strat1ve charge 1s not interest a credit service charge
nor a finance charge In the event New Era at its sole d1scret1on, elects to use the services of a third-party collection agency the costs of such third
party collection agent shall be paid by the Customer

18 Cancellation/Termination Fees If Customer cancels the whole or any port ion of the order after an Agreement 1s signed and prior to delivery and/or
installation Customer will be subject to a fee equal to 25% of the purchase pnce plus any applicable shipping charges Orders cannot be returned once
they have been delivered and installed Special orders are non-refundable Cancellation of the term agreement are subject to termination fees equal to
the total sum for the remainder of the months left on the Agreement New Era reserves the nght to void the Customer Warranty

19 Prohibited Uses: Customer shall not use the Service or the New Era Equipment, directly or indirectly in any way
a for any unlawful purposes use of the Service for transmission or storage of any information data or material 1n v1olat1on of any United States

federa l, state or local regulation or law rs prohibited such limitation shall include, without limitation posting or disseminating content which 1s
obscene, unlawful, threatening, defamatory, abusive, harassing or infringes upon the intellectual property rights of any third party

b to post transmit or disseminate objectionable information, Including without lmmrtaton any transmissions constituting or encouraging conduct that
would constitute a criminal offense give rise to cl liability, or otherwise vol ate any local, state, federal or international law or regulation

c to access any other person's computer software or data without the knowledge and consent of such person,
d to upload post, publish transmit reproduce, create derivative works of or distribute in any way information, software or other material obtained

through the Service which 1s protected by copyright or other propnetary rights without obtaining perm1ss1on from the owner(s)
e to copy distribute or sublicense any software provided by New Era, except that Customer may make one copy of each software program for back

up purposes only
to service alter, modify or tamper with the New Era Equipment or Service or permit any other person to do the same unless such person 1s
authorized by New Era to do so

g to restrict inhibit or otherwise interfere with the ability of any other person to use or enJoy the Service including, without limitation, posting or
transm1tt1ng any 1nformat1on or software which contains a virus or other harmful feature or generating levels of traffic sufficient to impede others'
ability to send or retrieve information,

h to knowingly disrupt the Service
i to resell the Service or otherwise charge others to use the Service the Service 1s for personal use only and Customer agrees not to use the Service

for operation as an Internet service provider or for any other New Era enterprise in compet1t1on with the Service,
J to connect the SIP Aware Access Device or Media Converter to any computer outside of Customer's Premises,
k to allow or provide access to adult content material to anyone under the age of 18 years

20 Usage & Abuse Each SIP/User license includes 1500 minutes that are pooled Any overage will be billed at$ 025 per minute Minutes are not to be
used for a dialer/Call Center unless approved by New Era If minutes are abused New Era reserves the right to terrninate agreement

21 Multiple Users: Customer acknowledges that Customer 1s executing this Agreement on behalf of all persons who use the Services and/or New Era
Equipment through Customer's computer(s) phone systems PBXs and other telecommunications equipment Customer shall have sole respons1b11ity
for ensuring that all such other users understand and comply with the terms and conditions of this Agreement Customer further acknowledges and
agrees that Customer 1s solely responsible and liable for any and all breaches of the terms and cond1t1ons of this Agreement whether such breach Is
the result of use of the Service and/or the New Era Equipment by Customer or any other user of Customer's computer(s), phone systems, PBXs and
other telecommunications equipment. No third-party owner or manager of Customer's budding or land is a party to this Agreement Thus, no such
owner or manager shall be responsible for, nor shall be liable for the quality of the Service or NEW ERA Equipment New Era reserves the right to
immediately terminate this Agreement and the Service, in its sole discretion, if Customer engages in any of the act1v1t1es listed in Section 19 above or
1f Customer uses the Service or New Era Equipment contrary to any other New Era policy Customer agrees to indemnify, defend and hold New Era
harmless against all claims and expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees) resulting from Customer's use of the Services including without
Imitation the activities listed m Section 19 above or from any other violation of New Era policies by Customer Thus provision shall survive the
Termination of the Agreement

22 Local Exchange Company/Common Carrier : Where agreed upon, New Era will act on Customer's behalf in coord inating, which includes adding
or term inating circuits or porting numbers, with Customer's carrier/ provider New Era will not be held liable for any of the following issues,
among others, resulting from Customer's carrier/ provider: (a) delays in delivery; (b) non-functi oning Internet/circuits/tru nks; (c) improperly
provisioned Internet/circuits/trunks; or (d) any orders that have not been insta lled correctly Additional technician labor charges may be incurred
if further involvement is required of New Era, whether responding on site or remotely. BUSINESS GRADE INTERNET IS REQUIRED WITH
MULTIPLE STATIC IP ADDRESSES.

23 First Year Warranty The Warranty Period will commence mn accordance with manufacturer warranty commencement dates and refers to new'
equipment only All wiring installed by New Era will be covered for a period of one year from installation unless otherwise specified New Era it's
authorized agents or the manufacturers representative shall respond to system failures, either on site or remotely w1thm twenty-four (24) hours of
notification Monday through Friday (excluding Holidays) for minor service requests and within four (4) hours of not1ficat1on, twenty-four (24) hours a

9 New Era Technology I Quote #054453 v1 May 15, 2023

The information contained mn thus document is confidential prrvleged and only for the information of the intended recipient and may not be used published or
redistributed without the prior written consent



day seven (7) days a week for emergency service calls
a Minor" service requests are defined as failure due to normal use

b "Emergency" service requests also known as mayor or critical service requests are defined as a system failure resulting in the customer's
inability to receive all incoming calls or make all outgoing calls or make all station to station calls or Voice Mail failure All other outages will be
considered "Minor

c Respond" means to begm to take action to resolve to problem including but not limited to oral d1scuss1on of the problem with the customer

24 Warranty Exclusions: Warranties will not extend to exposure of the equipment to Customer environmental conditions 1nclud1ng temperature
extremes or exposure to weather or other cond1t1ons for which the equipment was not designed as specified by the manufacturer Customer's
environmental conditions must be maintained mn accordance with the manufacturer's equipment room specifications Warranties wll not extend to old
wiring and surge protectors nor do warranties provide reimbursement for damage due to Customer's moving of equipment

25 Toll Fraud· New Era does not warrant that products or Services will prevent toll fraud lt is the sole responsibility of Customer to take all necessary
precautions

26 Warranty Term ination · Thus warranty wll be subject to termination if (1) anyone other than New Era, its author1zed agents, or the manufacturer
performs service maintenance or additions to the system covered by this Agreement without prior written approval from New Era or (2) Customer
fails to make payments mn accordance with the terms of this Agreement

27 Exclusive Remedy: Customer's exclusve remedy for breach of the foregoing warranties and provisions wthin thus contract, and New Era's sole
liability 1n the event of such breach, shall be the repair or replacement of equipment, at New Era's option and in accordance with the terms and
conditions of New Era s warranty service policies and procedures

28 Limitation of Liability: UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY PROVIDED IN THIS AGREEMENT OR OTHERWISE PROHIBITED BY LAW, NEITHER
NEW ERA ITS OFFICERS DIRECTORS, EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS NOR ANY OWNER OR MANAGER OF THE BUILDING OR LAND IN WHICH
CUSTOMER'S PREMISES IS LOCATED SHALL HAVE ANY LIABILITY TO CUSTOMER OR TO ANY THIRD PARTY FOR

ANY SPECIAL, DIRECT, INDIRECT INCIDENTAL CONSEQUENTIAL, EXEMPLARY OR PUNITIVE LOSSES OR DAMAGES, OF ANY KIND
INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, LOST PROFITS, LOST EARNINGS, LOSS OF OPPORTUNITIES OR LOSS OF RECORDS OR DATA
RESULTING DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY OUT OF OR OTHERWISE ARISING IN CONNECTION WITH, THE USE OF THE SERVICE BY
CUSTOMER OR ANY OTHER USE OF THE NEW ERA EQUIPMENT OR SOFTWARE INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY DAMAGE
RESULTING FROM OR ARISING OUT OF CUSTOMER'S RELIANCE ON OR USE OF THE SERVICE OR NEW ERA EQUIPMENT OR SOFTWARE,
OR THE MISTAKES, OMISSIONS, INTERRUPTIONS, DELETION OF FILES ERRORS DEFECTS DELAYS IN OPERATION, TRANSMISSION OR
ANY FAILURE OF PERFORMANCE OF THE SERVICE OR NEW ERA EQUIPMENT OR SOFTWARE REGARDLESS OF WHETHER ARISING FROM
BREACH OF CONTRACT, TORT STRICT LIABILITY OR OTHERWISE EVEN IF ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH LOSS OR DAMAGE
OR IF SUCH LOSS OR DAMAGE COULD HAVE BEEN REASONABLY FORESEEN IN NO EVENT SHALL NEW ERA BE LIABLE FOR DAMAGES
ARISING OUT OF OR IN ANY WAY RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT IN EXCESS OF THE GREATER OF THE AMOUNT OF FEES PAID UNDER
THIS AGREEMENT OR THE LIMITS OF ANY APPLICABLE INSURANCE COVERAGE CARRIED BY SUCH PARTY

2 ANY LOSSES, CLAIMS, DAMAGES EXPENSES LIABILITIES OR COSTS (INCLUDING LEGAL FEES) RESULTING DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY
OUT OF, OR OTHERWISE ARISING IN CONNECTION WITH ANY ALLEGATION CLAIM SUIT OR OTHER PROCEEDING BASED UPON A
CONTENTION THAT THE USE OF THE NEW ERA EQUIPMENT OR SOFTWARE OR SERVICE OR A THIRD PARTY INFRINGES UPON THE
COPYRIGHT PATENT TRADEMARK TRADE SECRET CONFIDENTIALITY PRIVACY OR OTHER INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS OR
CONTRACTUAL RIGHTS OF ANY THIRD PARTY

29. Indemnification:
New Era and Customer shall indemnify defend save and hold harmless the other and its employees owners officers, directors, attorneys, contractors
and agents from and against and pay or reimburse the other on a current basis for, any and all costs liab11it1es, losses, liens or encumbrances for labor
or materials expenses (1ncludmg but not limited to reasonable attorneys fees fees of experts, and court costs) claims, and causes of action
(collectively referred to as "Losses') arising out of or in any way connected with or related to any personal injury to or death of any persons or damage
to or loss of property, to the extent that such Losses occurred as a result of the negligence default, or misconduct on the part of the other, its employees
subcontractors agents or representatives dunng the performance of this Agreement

30 Force Majeure. If New Eras performance shall be adjusted or suspended by Customer or to the extent failure to perform ts beyond New Era s contro l
for reasons including without lim1tat1on, strike work stoppages riots fire water flood lightning earthquake government action acts of God or public
enemy, delays of suppliers subcontractors power company local exchange company or other earner such delay or suspension of performance shall
not constitute a default hereunder or gve use to claims for damages against New Era and its performance until the delay or suspension of performance
has ended

31 Recruitment of Employees Customer agrees that New Era s employees are valuable assets and resources Customer agrees that it shall not directly or
indirectly solicit hire or contact any New Era employees for the purpose of employing them

32 Notices: All notices permitted or required under this Agreement shall be m wntmg and shall be delivered as follows with notice deemed given as
indicated (1) by personal delivery when delivered personally (u) by commercially established courier service upon delivery or 1f the courier attempted
delivery on a normal New Era day and delivery was not accepted upon attempted delivery (111) by facsimile transmission when confirmed by facsimile

10 New Era Technology I Quote #054453 v1 May 15, 2023

The Information contamned mn thus document is confidential privileged and only for the mnformaton of the intended recipient and may not be used published or
redistributed without the prior written consent



transmIssIon or (iv) by certified or registered mail return receipt requested ten (10) calendar days after deposit in the
mail Such notices shall be sent to the addresses set in the Proposal or such other address as a party hereto shall notify the other party of m writing

33 911 and E911: The Service does not provide for 911 or E911 access to emergency services in all locations 911 Is not automatic Customer
understands that it must take separate affirmative action to register the address where It uses the Service in order to activate the 911 dialing feature
This should be done for each phone number Furthermore, it may not be possible for the local emergency authorities to locate the address and
respond accordingly Customer has reviewed and signed the document entitled "Acknowledgements Regarding New Era VOiP Services and 911
Type Services and understands and acknowledges the 911 lim1tat1ons of the New Era VOiP Service and has informed its end-users of the 911
limutations of the New Era 911 Service and wll obtamn and retain end-users acknowledgments of recerving and understanding thus information

34 Waiver. Amendment. Modification : No term or provIsIon hereof will be considered waived by either party and no breach excused by either party
unless such waiver or consent 1s in writing signed by the party against whom such waiver or consent Is asserted The waiver by either party of or
consent of either party to, a breach of any prov1s1on of this Agreement by the other party shall not operate or be construed as a waiver of, consent to
or excuse of any other or subsequent breach by the other party This Agreement may be amended or modified only by mutual agreement of
authorized representatives of the parties in wntung

35 Enforceability of Provisions: To the extent any provIsIon or portion of this Agreement Is determined to be invalid illegal or unenforceable, such
provision or portion shall be severed or deleted from this Agreement or limited so as to give effect to the intention of the parties insofar as possible
The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision or portion hereof shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision or this
Agreement as a whole

36 Assignment: New Era may assign its rights and obligations under this Agreement to any party without the consent of Customer Customer may not
assign or otherwise transfer its rights or obligations under this Agreement

37 Contro lling Law & Venue: The validity, performance and interpretation of this Agreement will be governed and construed mn accordance with the
laws of the United States and the Commonwealth of Massachusetts County of Suffolk without regard to its conflicts of law prov1sIons The parties
will voluntarily appear before and hereby consent and submit to the exclusive Jurisdiction of the state and federal courts located in Suffolk County
MA If any dispute lit1gat1on, or other action arises between the parties with respect to the matters covered by this Agreement, the prevailing party In
such proceeding shall be entitled to receive its reasonable attorneys' fees, expert witness fees and out of pocket costs incurred in connection with
such proceeding in add1t1on to any other relief rt may be awarded

38 Entire Agreement: This Agreement, including the Proposal and attachments hereto constitutes the entire agreement between the parties regarding
its subject matter This Agreement supersedes all prior proposals agreements or other communications between the parties oral or written
regarding such subject matter No other representation, warranty term or condition other than as expressly set forth mn this Agreement shall be
binding on New Era

License(s)

MA License 7190-C

INTRODUCTION

Pursuant to the Federal Communications Comm1ss1on's VoIP E911 Order (WC Docket Nos 04-36 and 05-196, FCC 05-116,
released June 3, 2005), TT 48-49, and Section 9 5(e) of the FCC's rules, all interconnected VoIP providers are required to
advise every subscriber, both new and existing, prominently and mn plamn language, the circumstances under wh1ch E911 Serice
may not be available through the interconnected VoIP service or may be in some way hm1ted by comparison to trad1t1onal E911
service "

Because NEW ERA 1s providing NEW ERA VoIP Services to you, we are obligated to make certain disclosures to you regarding
911 services, and to obtain and retain your acknowledgment of having received and understood these disclosures We request
that, no later than five (5) days following the authonzat1on of the Proposal and Agreement, you sign and return to us this
acknowledgment that you understand the limits of the 911 capabilities of NEW ERA' VoIP services, and to acknowledge that you
will inform you end-users of these limitations

11 New Era Technology I Quote #054453 v1 May 15, 2023

The mformatron contained mn thus document is confidential privileged and only for the mnformaton of the mntended recipient and may not be used published or
redistributed without the prior written consent



"911-type services" means functionality that allows end-users to contact emergency services, including, without l1m1tatIon, police,
and fire and hospital medical services 911- type services may include Enhanced 911-type service

("E911 "}, which has the ability to selectively route an emergency call to the primary 911 provider so that tt reaches the correct
emergency service located closest to the subscriber location and to transmit the 1dent1ficat1on of the subscriber location and
telephone number (subject to the obligations to provide and maintain the subscriber location information) Enhanced 911-type
service Is not immediately available mn all areas and is subject to the capabilities of the local I PSAP

NEW ERA VOiP SERVICE

NEW ERA VoIP service currently supports 911-type services utilizing the 911 infrastructure to complete calls to an emergency
service dispatcher, in those rate centers where such service 1s available, and you have chosen to activate It You acknowledge
and understand that 911-type d1ahng 1s NOT automatic, that you must take affirmative steps to effectuate such 911-type services
for each of your end-users and that such 911-type services are different in a number of important ways from trad1t1onal 911
service as set forth below

You acknowledge and understand that subject to the hm1tat1ons set forth below, every end -user must provide an end- user
location for each telephone number (mn the form of a vahd street address) and you are responsible for correctly and timely
maintaining and updating such location information mn the manner prescribed by NEW ERA

You acknowledge and understand that 911-type services will not be available to a particular end-user In the event of the
assignment of a telephone number to a location outside of the geographic rate center associated with such telephone number, or
the relocation of the calhng device to which a telephone number has been assigned to a location away from the registered end
user location associated with such telephone number, or you fail to maintamn and/or update end -user location information as
required to enable that 1nformat1on to be registered in the local telephone company's Automatic Location Information database
NEW ERA E-911 serice Is not available on Softphones, Local Inbound numbers, or Virtual numbers

You acknowledge and understand that 911-type services will not be available to a particular end-user m the event of an outage,
degradation or other disruption of electrc power at the end-user location

You acknowledge and understand that 911-type services will not be available to a particular end-user in the event of an outage,
degradation or other d1sruptIon of the end-user broadband Internet connection

You acknowledge and understand that 911-type services will not be available to a particular end-user In the event of a
suspension of your account as a result of nonpayment or other breaches by you

NEW ERA VoIP Service does not support 911-type services in rate centers where these services are not available or 1f It Is
available and you have not chosen to activate 1t You acknowledge and understand that a call placed to 911 using Zero -1 Voice
Services in these areas or 1f you have chosen not to activate 1t will attempt to complete, but 1t will not utilize the 911 infrastructure
to selectively route calls to the primary 911 provider, the 911 call may or may not complete and if it does complete, It may
complete to a 911 dispatcher or to a general or administrative line, and such administrator may or may not to be specifically
designated to receive the incoming 911 call and there may be a greater possibility that the general or administration line may
produce a busy signal or will take longer to answer or not be answered at all, the 911 call may be completed to a 911 dispatcher
(or to a general or adm1rnstrat1ve hne) in a different geographic location than the caller's location, the caller's location information
will not be displayed, and the callback number may or may not be displayed The caller needs to communicate their location and
phone number to the ind1v1dual answering the call

You acknowledge and understand all of the hm1tat1ons and obhgat1ons set forth above for NEW ERA VoIP Service shall apply In
the event such 911 calls are attempted mn rate centers where 911-type service 1s not offered

NEXT STEPS

12 New Era Technology I Quote #054453 v1 May 15, 2023

The information contained in thus document is confidential privileged and only for the mformation of the mntended recipient and may not be used published or
redistributed without the pror written consent



You should notify any end-user of the NEW ERA VoIP Services who may place calls of these 911 lim1tat1ons

New Era appreciates in advance your support and compliance and we look forward to continuing to provide you with superior
VoIP services Please be advised, in the event that NEW ERA does not receive timely acknowledgment, NEW ERA may be
required by the FCC to terminate or suspend the applicable VoIP services If you have any questions, please contact us at 877
696-7720

In signing this proposal I hereby acknowledge that

1 My company understands the 911 lim1tat1ons of NEW ERA VoIP service
2 My company wll inform its end-users of the 911 limitations of the NEW ERA 911 Serice, and will obtain and retamn their
acknowledgments of receiving and understanding thus information
3 I have authority to make this acknowledgment on behalf of my company
4 I agree to all terms set forth in above Agreement, including the Acknowledgements Regarding New Era VOiP
Services and 911-Type Services

13 New Era Technology I Quote #054453 v1 May 15, 2023

The 1ntorrnat1on contained in this document 1s confidential privileged and only for the information of the intended recipient and may not be used published or
redistributed without the prtor written consent



New Era Technology
Paul Carpenter
GMT-6/Central Time US Canad
210 McClellan St
Wausau, Wisconsin 54403

4149082218
Paul Carpenter@NewEraTech com

One-Time Bill of Materials #1

One Time Professional Services

I MRC B,11 of Matemls ,,

MRC Phones as a Serice Optional

City of Franklin
9229 W Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132
Jim Matelski
(414) 427-7645
ymatelska@franklinw1 gov

Quote #: 054453
Version 1
Delivery Date 05/15/2023
Exp1rat1on Date 06/13/2023

Total

Monthly Total

Optional Subtotal

$45,334 98

$72,800 00

$118,134.98

,,,,,. ,o I
$2,694.10

$1109 26

$1,109.26

I I I
Recurring Terms

36 Months I 36 I Monthly I $2 694 10

One Time Payment

One Time Fees I 1 I One Time I $118 134 98

14 New Era Technology I Quote #054453 v1 May 15 2023

The information contained mn thus document rs confidential prvleged and only for the information of the intended recrprent and may not be used published or
redistributed without the prior written consent



Recurring Terms: 36 Months

Selected Recurring Payment $2,694 10

Total of Recurring Payments $96,987.60

One Time Payment: One Time Fees

Total of Payments

Signature Signature

Name Name

Title
Title

Date
Date

Purchase
Order #

I $118,134.98

15 New Era Technology I Quote #054453 v1 May 15 2023

The information contained in this document 1s confidential pm1leged and only for the information of the intended recipient and may not be used published or
redistributed without the prior wntten consent



Proposal Prepared For:

City of Franklin

James Matelski

VI"> SPL
AVI-SPL LLC

www av1spl com

Confidential

Prepared B .y. Timothy Olson

t1m olson@ avIspl com

414-369
Proposal N . 6448o. 384942

Date: 09/15/2023



Investment Summary - Proposal#

Terms and Conditions

384942
AVIE> SPL

This Proposal together wth AVI-SPL's General Terms and Condit10ns and the applcable Addendum(a) located
https://avspl.com/terms-of-use/ and incorporated herein by this reference (collectively the "Agreement") constitutes the
entire agreement between AVI-SPL LLC ("Seller", "AVI-SPL", "we", "us", "our") and the buyer/customer identified in the
Proposal ("Buyer", "Customer", "Cbent", "you", "your") wth respect to ts subject matter and supersedes all pnor and
contemporaneous agreements, representations and understandings of the Parties, wntten or oral. By signing below, 1ssung a
valid purchase order for the Services and/or Products spec1fed heren or receiving the Products and/or Services specified
heremn, whchever occurs first, Buyer acknowledges it has read and agrees to the terms of this Agreement. This Agreement
shall not be bmdmg upon Seller until accepted by Buyer as set forth in this Agreement and the earlier of Seller's
confirmation m wnting of Buyer's order and Seller's performance under the applicable Proposal. Any terms and conditions
contained in Buyer's purchase order or any other Buyer-provded documents related to this transaction shall have no effect
and are hereby reJected. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, if a
master services agreement signed by both Parties is in effect covering the sale of the Services and/or Products that are the
subject of this Proposal, the terms and conditions of said agreement shall prevail to the extent they conflict or are
Inconsistent wth thus Agreement.

Billing Terms
Payment terms are Net 30 Days from the date of invoice unless otherwise specified in the Proposal.
Any support and maintenance services and remote managed services non-recurring charges outlined wthn th1s
Proposal will be invoiced in full upon the earlier of customer's issuance of a purchase order and customer's
signature below. Any on-site managed services and remote managed services monthly recurring charges outlined in
this Proposal will be invoiced monthly. All fees and payments outlined in this Proposal are in US Dollars and all
billing and payment shall be made in US Dollars.

Link to AVI-SPL Terms and Conditions: https://av1spl.com/terms-of-use/

Purchase orders should be addressed to AVI-SPL LLC

D Coverage in the amount of $117,512.40

any and all applicable taxes and shipping will be included upon invoicing

Buyer Acceptance

Buyer Legal Entity
Buyer Authorized Signature

Buyer Authorized Signatory Name
Buyer Authorized Signatory Title:

Date

Confidential ***PLEASE SIGN HERE ALONG WITH PAGES S & 14+



AVI" SPL'
6301 Benjamin Road Suite 101 Prepared By Tim Olson
Tampa FL 33634 Date Prepared 9/lS/2023
Tel 866-708-5034 Proposal #: 384942
www avIspl com Proposal Vaild Until 11/13/2023

City Hall
Poly Edge E500 9229W Loomis Road Franklin WI 53132 25 POL220087855025 $ 212 31 $ 5,307 75
Poly Edge E350 9229 W Loomis Road Franklin WI 53132 40 POL220087010025 $ 174.53 $ 6,981 20

3 Poly Edge E Expansion Module 9229 W Loomis Road, Franklin WI 53132 9 POL220087020025 $ 175.47 $ 1,579 23
4 Poly Trio 8800 9229 W Loomis Road, Franklin, WI 53132 4 POL220066070001 $ 524.91 $ 2,099 64
5 Poly Trio C60 9229W Loomis Road, Franklin WI 53132 3 POL220086240025 $ 737 98 $ 2,213 94
6 Poly Trio C6O Expansion Mic 9229W Loomis Road, Franklin WI 53132 3 POL220086430001 $ 192 56 $ 577 68
7 AudioCodes MP124 Analog Gateway with 16 FXS Ports 9229 W Loomis Road, Franklin WI53132 1 M12416SACSIP $ 1,242 31 $ 1,242 31
8 Annual Support for MP124 3 Years 9229W Loomis Road, Franklin, WI 53132 3 AUCACTS24X7MP11XS4Y $ 250 00 $ 750 00
9 Annual Hardware Replacement for MP124 3 Years 9229W Loomis Road Franklin WI53132 3 AUCAHRMP11XS4YR $ 64.00 $ 192 00

Police Department
10 Poly Edge E350 9229 W Loomis Road Franklin WI53132 68 POL220087010025 $ 174.53 $ 11,868.04
11 Poly Trio C60 9229 W Loomis Road, Franklin WI53132 2 POL220086240025 $ 737 98 $ 1,475 96
12 Poly Trio C6O Expansion Mic 9229W Loomis Road, Franklin, WI 53132 2 POL220086430001 $ 192 S6 $ 385 12
13 AIgo 8373 Paging Adapter 3 Zones 9229W Looms Road, Franklin WI53132 1 ALG8373 $ 44000 $ 440.00
14 AudioCodes MP124 Analog Gateway with 16 FXS Ports 9229W Loomis Road, Franklin WI53132 1 M12416SACSIP $ 1,242 31 $ 1,242 31
15 Annual Support for MP124 3 Years 9229W Loomis Road Franklin WI53132 3 AUCACTS24X7MP11XS4Y $ 250.00 $ 750 00
16 Annual Hardware Replacement for MP124 3 Years 9229W Loomis Road, Franklin, W1 53132 3 AUCAHRMP11XS4YR $ 64.00 $ 192 00

AudoCodes MP124 Analog Gateway with 24 FXS Ports for Faxing and Existing AUCMP12424SACSIP
17 Analog 9229 W Loomis Road Franklin WI53132 1 $ 92 60 $ 92.60
18 Annual Support for MP124 3 Years 9229W Loomis Road, Franklin WI 53132 3 AUCACTS24X7MP11XS4Y $ 300.00 $ 900 00
19 Annual Hardware Replacement for MP124 3 Years 9229W Loomis Road, Franklin WI 53132 3 AUCAHRMP11XS4YR $ 76.80 $ 230 40

Fire Station 1
20 Poly Edge E500 9229w Loomis Road, Franklin, WI 53132 6 POL220087855025 $ 21231 $ 1,273 86
21 Poly Edge E Expansion Module 9229W Loomis Road, Franklin WI 53132 1 POL220087020025 $ 174.53 $ 174.53
22 Poly Edge E350 9229 W Loomis Road, Franklin WI 53132 9 POL220087010025 $ 174.53 $ 1,570 77
23 SIP Connection to Zoom for Phoenix G2 Paging System (Owner Furnished) 9229 W Loomis Road Franklin, WI 53132 1 OFE $ $

Fire Station 2
24 Poly Edge E500 9229W Loomis Road, Franklin WI53132 1 POL220087855025 $ 212 31 $ 212 31
25 Poly Edge E350 9229W Loomis Road, Franklin WI53132 4 POL220087010025 $ 174.53 $ 69812
26 SIP Connection to Zoom for Phoenx G2 Paging System (Owner Furnished) 9229 W Looms Road, Franklin WI53132 1 OFE $ $

Fire Station 3
27 Poly Edge E500 9229W Looms Road Franklin, WI 53132 1 POL220087855025 $ 212 31 $ 212 31
28 Poly Edge E350 9229W Loomis Road, Franklin WI53132 5 POL220087010025 $ 174.53 $ 872 65
29 SIP Connection to Zoom for Phoenx G2 Paging System (Owner Furnished) 9229W Loomis Road, Franklin WI53132 OFE $ $

DPW
30 Poly Edge E350 9229 W Loomis Road, Franklin WI53132 10 POL220087010025 174.53 $ 1,745 30



31 Aud1oCodes MP112 Analog Gateway with 2 FXS Ports for Faxing 9229W Looms Road, Franklin WI53132 1 AUCMP1122SSIPCER $ 200 75 $ 200.75
32 Annual Support for MP112 3 Years 9229W Loomis Road, Franklin WI53132 3 AUCACTS24X7MP11XS1Y $ 33.00 $ 99.00
33 Annual Hardware Replacement for MP112 3 Years 9229W Looms Road, Franklin WI53132 3 AUCAHRMPllXSlYR $ 9 00 $ 27.00

library
34 Poly Edge E500 9229W Looms Road, Frankhmn WI 53132 3 POL220087855025 $ 212 31 $ 636.93
35 Poly Edge E350 9229W Loomis Road, Franklin WI53132 21 POL220087010025 $ 174 53 $ 3,665 13
36 Algo 8301 Paging Adapter 9229W Loomis Road, Franklin WI53132 1 ALG8301 $ 436 91 $ 436.91
37 AudioCodes MP112 Analog Gateway with 2 FXS Ports for Faxing 9229W Loomis Road, Franklin WI53132 1 AUCMP1122SSIPCER $ 200 75 $ 200.75
38 Annual Support for MP112 3 Years 9229W Loomis Road, Franklin WI53132 3 AUCACTS24X7MP11XS1Y $ 33.00 $ 99.00
39 Annual Hardware Replacement for MP112 3 Years 9229W Loomis Road, Franklin WI53132 3 AUCAHRMPllXSlYR $ 9 00 $ 27.00

Sewer & Water
40 Poly Edge E500 9229W Looms Road, Franklin WI53132 2 POL220087855025 $ 212 31 $ 424.62
41 Poly Rove 30 9229W Looms Road, Franklin WI53132 7 POL220086930001 $ 182 34 $ 1,276 38
42 Poly Rove 30_B2 Base 9229 W Looms Road, Franklin, WI 53132 2 POL220086850001 $ 351 72 $ 703.44
43 AudioCodes MP112 Analog Gateway with 2 FXS Ports for Faxing 9229 W Loomis Road, Franklin WI53132 1 AUCMP1122SSIPCER $ 200.75 $ 200.75
44 Annual Support for MP112 3 Years 9229 W Looms Road, Franklin WI53132 3 AUCACTS24X7MP11XS1Y $ 33.00 $ 99 00
45 Annual Hardware Replacement for MP112 3 Years 9229W Loomis Road, Franklin wI53132 3 AUCAHRMPllXSlYR $ 9 00 $ 27 00

Poly Phone Support
46 Poly+ Trio C60 3 Year 9229W Loomis Road, Franklin WI 53132 5 POL487P86240312 $ 88.41 $ 442 05
47 Poly+ Trio 8800 3 Year 9229W Loomis Road, Franklin WI 53132 4 POL487P66070SIP312 $ 102 42 $ 409 68
48 Poly+ Rove 30_B2 Kt 3 Year 9229 W Loomis Road, Franklin WI 53132 2 POL487P86850312 $ 37 73 $ 75.46
49 Poly+ Rove 30 3 Year 9229 W Loomis Road Franklin W153132 7 POLA87P86930312 $ 37 73 $ 26411
50 Poly+ Poly Edge E Expansion Module 3 Year 9229 W Loomis Road, Franklin WI 53132 10 POL487P87020312 $ 37 72 $ 377 20
51 Poly+ Poly Edge ESOO 3 Year 9229W Loomis Road, Franklin WI 53132 38 POLA87P87855312 $ 37 73 $ 1,433 74
52 Poly+ Poly Edge E350 3 Year 9229W Loomis Road, Franklin, WI 53132 157 POLA87P87010312 $ 37 73 $ 5 923 61

SBC
53 Mediant VE loc-capacity (up to 250 sessions) Session Border Controller 9229W Loomis Road, Franklin WI 53132 MSWLOW $ $
54 Annual Support for Virtual SBC 3 Years 9229 W Looms Road, Franklin, WI 53132 3 AUCACTS24X7MSWS5YR $ 149 00 $ 447 00
55 SBC Sessions License 9229W Loomis Road, Franklm WI53132 5 AUCWSBC10S1025 $ 529 20 $ 2,646.00
56 Annual Support for SBC Session Licenses 3 Years 9229W Loomis Road, Franklin WI 53132 lS AUCACTS24X7SBCS80 $ 96.00 $ 1,440.00
57 SBC Registered Users 9229W Loomis Road Franklin, WI 53132 1 AUCSWSBC10R10250 $ 18 90 $ 18.90
58 Annual Support for SBC Registered Users 3 Years 9229W Looms Road, Franklin WI53132 3 AUCACTS24X7SBCS61Y $ 3 57 $ 10.71

OPTIONS
24 Port FXS Patch Panel AUCMP124PATCHPANEL $ 437 45
AVI-SPL BREAK/FIX REMOTE HELPDESK SUPPORT3YR BXS ACCESS $ 8 000 00

59 AVE-SPL Professional Services 9229 W Loomis Road, Franklin WI53132 1 PROFSERVICES $ 50,620 25 $ 50 620 25

Contract Grand Total
$ 117,512.40

This Entre Document and all informaton (including drawgs, specifications and designs) presented by AVI-SPL LLCare the property ofAVI SPL LLC or its affiliate Propnetary information provided to potential
customers, clients or agents isfor the sole purpose ofdemonstrating solutionsdelivery capabilities and shall be held in confidence These Materialsmay not be copied, distributed or disclosed in any way

without the sole written permission of an authonzed representative ofAVE-SPL
Copyaght AVE-SPL LLC. AII Rights Reserved

Confidential



Addendum to General Terms and Conditions - Equipment Ordering

Due to global supply chain constraints, Seller 1s experiencing longer than normal lead times on equipment As a result, Seller cannot guarantee
lead times on equipment and will not be liable for any delays m equipment delivery to the extent caused by such constraints However, as the
supply chain continues to improve, we will not be ordering equipment for Jobs that start more than 120 days from when the contracted srte Is
ready unless lead times are greater than 90 days

In order for Seller to appropriately plan and coordinate its resources, Buyer must commit to a site readiness for installation date, (sub1ect to
timely delivery of equipment) on or about TBD upon Contract

AVI-SPLLLC Initials

Should Buyer elect to purchase equipment 1mmed1ately upon placement of order or greater than 120 days prior to the above readiness date,
to mitigate delays, Buyer agrees to recerve the equipment at their designated location and Seller wall immediately bill Buyer upon placement
of such order Buyer shall pay for such equipment within the payment terms (e g net 30) specified herein, regardless of any other agreed upon
billing terms or billing terms specified herein Warranty on such equipment shall commence upon delivery of the equipment to Buyer's
designated location, notwithstanding any other agreed upon warranty terms or warranty terms specified herein

By 1nit1aling next to this sentence, Buyer elects to purchase equipment 1mmed1ately upon placement of order mn accordance with the terms of

this Addendum I ""''""";,i, I
Buyer Acceptance

TO

Signed Name

Printed Name, Title

Company Name

Date

Th us Entir e Document and all information (including drawings, specrfications and designs) presented by AVI SPL LLC rs the property of AVI SPL or its aff iliate Proprietary information
provided to potential customers, clients or agents 1s for the sole purpose of demonstrating solutions delivery capab1l1t1es and shall be held in confidence These Materials may not
be coped distributed or disclosed in any way without the sole wri tt en permission of an authorzed representative of AVI SPL @ Copyrght AVI SPL LLC All Rights Reserved



Collaboration Voice Statement of Work

AVI<"> SPL
September 15, 2023

This Statement of Work ("SOW") for Collaboration Voice 1s entered into the date signed by Customer ("SOW Effective Date") by and
between AVI SPL LLC ("AVI-SPL") and City of Franklin ("Customer") and 1s governed by the AVI-SPL General Terms and Cond1t1ons, as
modified on mutual agreement of the Parties

In the event of a conflict between this SOW and the General Terms and Cond1t1ons and Addendum to General Terms and Conditions,
Managed Services, this SOW shall govern with respect to the subject matter of the conflict This SOW shall not be modified unless in writing
and signed by both Parties

1. Scope ofWork

Based on the data discovery sessions with AVI-SPLand Customer, the following design has been 1dent1fied to meet key business needs which
this project will address The tasks necessaryto implement the agreed upon design are outlined below Any needs other than those expl1c1tly
mentioned below will be considered "Out of Scope" AVI SPL welcomes the opportunity to address add1t1onal needs, however, changes to
the scope could requ1 re rev1s1ons ofthe solution design and consequently impact cost and/or delivery t1melines of the project

The following 1s included in the Collaboration Voice Scope ofWork

1.1. Project Management
1.2. Project Scheduling
1.3. Project Summary

1.1 Project Management

AVI SPL will provide overall Project Management for the duration of thus project The PM will act as the single point of contact wrth all
project information and communication The AVI-SPL PM will be responsible for

• Planning, executing, and closure of the project
• Manag1ng the AVI-SPL resource team
• Maintaining project deliverables as outlined in the Statement ofWork
• Issuance of project change orders
• Standard AVI SPL Project Management In depth planning, meetings, or excessive document request may require a change in

scope for PM responsibilities

lt Is expected that the clent will provide a smngle point of contact that is the client side project champion Thus single point of contact Is
responsible for all commun1cat1on to the client resources, ensuring that cl1ent-s1de deliverables are completed by dates outlined in the
project, and bemng an escalation point for the project

This Entire Document and all information (includ ing drawings, spec1ficat1ons, and designs) presented by AVI SPLLLC is the property of AVI SPL LLC or its affiliate Proprietary
1nformat1on provided to potential customers clients, or agents is for the sole purpose of demonstrating solutions delivery capab1ht1es and shall be held ,n confidence These
Materials may not be copied, distributed , or drsclosed n any way without the sole wri tt en perm1ss1on of an authorized representative of AVI SPL Copyright AVI SPL LLC
All Rights Reserved



AVI¢> SPL'
1.2 Project Scheduling
To ensure a successful project, the AVI-SPL Project Manager will not confirm an 1mplementat1on date until the following client deliverable
cond1t1ons have been met

• AVI SPL receives the complete IP address worksheet back from the client
• If a virtual deployment, the customer's virtual environment 1s ready and meets Microsoft minimum spec1ficat1ons and Is

ready for deployment

All scheduling requests are based on mutually agreeable dates for both AVI SPL and Customer

AVI-SPL has an estimated 6-8 week lead time for project mutation, which rs subject to AVI-SPL resource availability Any scheduling
requests less than 6-8-weeks will require an expedite charge and be subject to AVI SPL resource ava1lab1hty For a multiple site
Implementation or any implementation that requires a network assessment, the installation t1mehnes will increase accordingly

The lead time begins once a signed SOW and PO are received from Customer and receipt 1s confirmed by AVI-SPL It's important to note
that the project wll not begin, nor will a Project Manager be assigned until a signed SOW and PO are recerved

Once those items are received, a ProJect Manager will be assigned, and the Customer will be contacted with proposed installation dates
Installation dates are finalized upon receiving written approval from the Customer Delays m installation approvals could result m
originally proposed 1nstallat1on dates no longer bemg available

All projects, unless notated below and priced accordingly, will be completed ma single phase Add1t1onal costs will be mcu rred by the
customer 1f a multi phase turn up 1s requested The request for a multi-phase project must be made to the AVI-SPL Project Manager
during the project kick off call The responsibility for making thus request is solely that of the Customer Acceptance of this request will be
confirmed by the AVI SPL Project Manager through an AVI-SPL Change Order form

The scheduling of multiphase projects will be based on dates that are mutually agreeable to both AVI SPL and Customer

1.3 Project Summary

AVI SPL has been engaged by the City of Franklin to migrate from their legacy Avaya PBX to Zoom Phone The m1gratIon will include
integration of existing paging systems, fax machines and the Vesta system ut1hzed by the Police Department Services provided by AVI-SPL
include a dedicated project manager and AVI-SPL resources to plan, design and implement the proposed vmce solution As part of the
migration, AVI-SPL will utilize its Avaya expertise to harvest existing call flows and data from the Avaya system and replicate the solution In
Zoom Phone

Project Status Calls:

For thus project, AVI-SPL will provide the following project meetings wrth the Customer, AVI SPL Project Manager, and AVI SPL Engineer
during normal business hours

• One {l) project kick offcall not to exceed one half hour
• Provide up to {10) project status calls not to exceed one half hour
• One (1) project closure call not to exceed one half hour

If project status meetings for this project exceed the number planned above, a change order may be required to add hours for add1t1onal
project status calls to complete the project

Thus Entir e Document and all information (including drawings, specifications, and designs) presented by AVI SPLLLC Is the property of AVI SPL LLC or its aff iliate Proprietary
1nformat1on provided to potential customers clients, or agents 1s for the sole purpose of demonstrating solutmns delivery capabilities and shall be held mn confidence These
Materials may not be coped, distributed , or disclosed mn any way without the sole wri tt en permission of an authorized representative of AVI SPL @ Copyright A/ I SPLLLC.
All Rights Reserved



Licensing:
(Visible upon activation m portal)

• (162) Zoom Phone US & Canada User
• (68) Common Area Licenses
• (14)Fax Numbers
• (1)Company Mam Number

Portal Setup & Provisioning:

AVI<¢> SPL®

• Configure up to (5) User Groups
• Configure up to (3) Templates
• Configure up to (5) IVR Menus
• Configure up to (5) Call Queues
• Integration of up to (3) existing paging systems
• Integration of up to (3) existing Phoenx G2 Alert Systemva SIP
• Conf1gurat1on of up to (213) desk phones, common area, and conference phones
• Configuration of up to (5) Custom Routing Rules
• Configuration of up to (8) Company Emergency Locations

o Includes address location and IP information
• Conf1gurat1on of Automatic Call Recording for up to (1) user, IVR, or Call Queue

Configuration of up to (6) ATA devices
• Configuration of up to (3) Custom Roles
• Assist wrth porting of numbers from existing carrier
• Enable and configure Multi Site to include up to the number of Emergency Locations hsted
• Enable Dial by Name Directory
• Integration of (1) existing Vesta System to Zoom Phone
• Configuration of AudioCodes SBC for extension d1ahng between existing Avaya and Zoom Phone
• Integration of up to three (3) existing Phoenx G2 Alerting systems to register to AudioCodes SBC
• AVE-SPL Engineers will harvest all existing extension, voice mail boxes, auto attendants, call routing, night servce, etc, and

recreate this In the Zoom Portal The City of Franklin need only dentrfy any desired changes that are needed

Physical Equipment:

• Aud10Codes MP124 16 port FXS Analog Gateway for Vesta System integration at Police Department
• Total number of ATA devices for fax machines and analog devices Is five (5)
• Total number of AIgo paging adapters Is two (2)
• Total number of desk phones Is two hundred five (204) consisting of

o One hundred fifty seven (157) Poly Edge E350
o Thirty Eight (38) Poly Edge E500
o Ten (10) Poly Edge E Expansion Module
o Nine (9) Poly Rove 30

• The total number of Conference Room Phones 1s nine (9) consisting of
o Four (4) Poly Tro 8800
o Five (5) Poly Tno C60

• Two (2) Poly Tno Expansion Mies

Thus Entire Document and all information (including drawings, specuficatons, and designs) presented by AVI SPL LLC is the property of AVI SPL LLC or its aff iliate Proprietary
,nformat,on provided to potential customers, cl ients, or agents 1s for the sole purpose of demonstrating solutions delivery capab1ht1es and shall be held in confidence These
Materials may not be copied, distributed, or disclosed ,n any way without the sole wri tt en perm1ssmn of an authorized representative of AVI SPL © Copyright AVI SPL LLC
All Rights Reserved



Unassisted Access:
AVI¢> SPL'

Current 1mplementat1on pricing and SOW assumes that all AVI SPL resources will have VPN or equivalent unassisted access for the
duration of the project If VPN or equivalent unassisted access for the duration of the project 1s not provided, then a flat rate
$2000 change order will be added to the project

AVI-SPL Responsibilities

As part of this project, AVI-SPL will be responsible for prov1dmg

• AVI SPL engineer will assist with discovery of existmng extensions, voice mail boxes, call flows, nght service, etc wrthin current
Avaya system and replicate mn Zoom Phone This dramatically streamlines the 1mplementat1on efforts for Franklin staff

• Single phase project based on mutually agreeable dates and times between AVI SPL and Customer
Project Management

• System cutover at a time that Customer dictates as being least service impacting (Business Hours Monday through Friday,
number ports are completed between 8 10AM PST}

• Remote Cloud Engineer Programming
o Portal Setup & Provisioning as defined mn "Portal Setup and Provisioning" section 1 3
o Remote AVI-SPL Cloud Team - Project Manager (PM} and Engineer
o Provide recommendations for effic1enc1es & update portal accordingly
o Provide eDocs and helpful Imks for Admm User training assistance
o Provide Remote AVI SPL Cloud Team support day of number port

• (5) Cutover Events from legacy PBX to Zoom Phone
• (20) Hours of remote First Day of Business Support
• (4) Hours of end user and admm trammg

Customer Responsibilities

Customer will provide

• Site address(es) and Customer naming convention of location (1f applicable)
• Named resources with contact mformatmn This person shall be the single pomt for communication and day to day

management of the proJect This person should have the authority to act upon all aspects of the project, should be available
during business hours, will provide communication within the Customer's organization, and should designate a back up
contact when necessary

• Contact shall attend and participate m any scheduled planning calls
• Contact shall handle any mteractmns or order placement with theirTELCO providers
• Completion of all requested documents requested by Cloud Provider Services and/or AVI-SPL
• AVI-SPL Remote Access to customer portal as Super Admm, established as Ext 300

o Unique email for AVI-SPL
• Review environment, assets, and mtegratmn points
• Review and approval of licensing requirements and adds, as needed
• Review and return applicable project documents Business Requirements Document (BRD), Letter of Authority (LOA), phone

bill and/or Customer Service Record (CSR), etc
• Provide adequate IP Addresses to support usmg Zoom
• Computers/devices meet mm1mum requirements for software downloads and passes Network Readiness

This Entir e Document and all information (including drawings, specuficatons, and designs) presented by AVI SPL LLC Is the property of AVI SPLLLC or its affiliate Proprietary
information provided to potential customers, clients, or agents 1s for the sole purpose of demonstrating solutions delivery capab 11it 1es and sha ll be held in confidence These
Materials may not be copied , distributed , or disclosed mn any way without the sole wntten permission of an authorized representative of AVI SPL @ Copyright AVI SPL LLC
All Rights Reserved



AVI<"> SPL
• Toning & Tagging for analog cross connects
• Phone Placement, majority of phones m place pnor to port date
• Pre Test 1 2 phones pnor to the number port with the Portal test number
• Provide Network Support the day of the number port
• Testing Plan
• Sign off at Completion
• Number Port
• Cross Connects
• Network Assessment
• PoE or Analog Telephone Adapter (ATA)
• IP Addresses to support usmng Zoom
• Testing

AVI-SPL Data Collection Form

As part of this project, AVI SPL will provide the customer with a data collection form (DCF} This DCF will be the main tool used to gather
all necessary information the AVI-SPL Software Spec1ahst will use to program the new system This DCF must be completed and returned
to the AVI SPL no less than three (3) weeks pnor to the scheduled installation date

At the time the form Is returned, the project will move into a "Programming Freeze" penod that will not allow changes until the new
system Is installed Any changes to the existing system dunng that penod will need to be tracked by the customer The customer Is then
responsible for programming changes made dunng the Programming Freeze penod mto the new system once installed

Any programming request during the Programming Freeze will be considered billable and will only be completed rf rt can be done and not
affect the project t1mehne If the request delays the project schedule, the AVI-SPL PM will discuss this with the customer and develop a
plan agreeable to both parties

2. Project Pricing Assumptions

Pricing for this project has made certain assumptions based on the provided design These assumptions were not accounted for mn the
pricing or writing of this Proposal If these items are necessary to add to the project, 1t will be handled through the Change Control process
outlined below and priced accordingly Those assumptions are

• All services, documentation, and meetings will be provided in the English language, unless otherwise specified in this SOW
• All work will be done remotely
• After hours are not included
• No customizations are mcluded
• VPN or equivalent unassisted access to customer network as needed for entirety of the project
• The ab1l1ty to perform the work described in this Statement ofWork 1s based on the project terms, cond1t1ons, and

assumptions listed below If any of these assumptions at any time prove to be incorrect, there may be a resulting adjustment
of the work, schedule, fees, terms and/or cond1t1ons set forth in this Statement ofWork

• Work to be performed on mutually agreeable timetable
• Union labor is not included mn thrs quote lf union labor is required, a change order wll be issued

This Entire Document and all information {includ ing drawings, specifications, and desgns) presented by AV SPLLLC is the property of AVI SPL LLC or its aff iliate Proprietary
information provided to potential customers, clients, or agents ,s for the sole purpose of demonstrating solutions delivery capab11it 1es and shall be held mn confidence These
Materals may not be copied distributed, or disclosed mn any way without the sole wntten permission of an authorized representative of AVI SPL @ Copyright AI SP LLC
All Rights Reserved



AVI"> SPL
3 Standard Service Hours

Pricing Is based on all non-service impacting work to be performed during regular business and system turn up after hours Monday
Thursday First Day of Business Support (FDOB) will be the first day after the system Is turned up and live Unless otherwise specified m
the SOW, work performed outside of Standard Service Hours will be subject to add1t1onal charges

4. AVI-SPL Project Team

The AVI-SPL Pro1ect Team will include a Project Manager ("PM"), an Avaya Engineer, and a Zoom Phone Engineer

The AVI-SPL PM serves as a single pomt of contact, responsible for ensuring successful Implementation Working closely with the
designated Customer liaison, the PM directs the efforts of the entire project teamwith a clear focus on all aspects of plannmg,
development, deployment, testing, and orientation

While still being the designated smngle point of contact for the project, the AVI SPL PMwll provide direct contact information for each
resource assigned to the project However, any issues, change requests, or t1meline change requests to the project must be
communicated directly to the AVI-SPL PM m order to be considered a valid request/issue

5. Customer Resources and Responsibilities

a. Customer Resources
Customer agrees to make available the following resources available

Resource Duration & Scope
Primary Contact Acts as the primary interface and dec1s1on-maker with AVI-SPL and communicates or

assists wth communication of all details required for the project completion This
individual will attend all scheduled meetings pertaining to the project and has
signatory authority to work wth AVI-SPL through all phases of all the three offerings
outlined above The PrimaryContact 1s responsible for keeping the Secondary Contact
informed of all details should the Primary Contact be unavailable

Secondary Contact Acts as the secondary interface to the AVI SPL Project Team in add1t1on to the Primary
Contact, or when the Primary Contact Is not available

Technical Contact(s) Act(s) as the Customer technical resource(s) to provide any needed technical or
network related information to enable project completion Technical contact(s)
should be readily accessible at all times while the AVI-SPL Sales Engineer is onsrte

The specific individuals responsible for the project will need to be identified at the mnrtal project review meeting Failure to identify these
key Customer team contacts may cause delays to the project

This Entire Document and all mnformation (including drawings, specrfcations, and designs) presented by AVI SPLLLC is the property of AVI SPL LLC or ,ts affiliate Proprietary
mformat,on provided to potentia l customers, chents, or agents ,s for the sole purpose of demonstrating solutions delivery capab1ht1es and shall be held mn confidence These
Materials may not be copied distributed, or disclosed in any way wathout the sole wri tt en permssion of an authorzed representative of AVI SPL @ Copyright A/ I SPL LLC
All Rights Reserved



AVI<¢> SPL®
b. Customer Responsibilities
The following activities are the responsblty of the customer for successful mmplementaton and service delivery of the described
Collaboration Voice services

• Troubleshooting of the client's data network It 1s the respons1b11ity of the chent to provide a data network that 1s fully configured
and able to support the apphcat1ons being deployed on this project AVI-SPL will not provide resources in configuration or
troubleshooting of the client data network Any project delays or cancellations due to chent data network issues 1s considered billable
at the T&M rate with all work performed during normal business hours

• Coordination of and/or troubleshooting of the customer's chosen Telephony provider lt rs the Customer's responsibility for all
coordination and communcaton wth thetr chosen Telephony provider AVI SPLwill not provide resources for the purpose of
scheduling or troubleshooting of the client's chosen Telephony provider Any project delays or cancellatmns due to client data
network issues will be considered billable at the T&M rate with all work performed dunng normal business hours

• Additional Work Any add1tmnal programming request or apphcat1on upgrade not specifically outlined above 1s excluded from this
Scope ofWork

• Gateway Firmware: Unless spec1f1cally 1dent1fied above, AVI SPL will not be responsible for any firmware updates for any existing
gateways If firmware updates for any existing gateways are requested, then AVI SPL will require a change order for billable services

6. Pricing

6.1 Project Pricing Summary-Any applicable tax and shipping charges are not included in pricing below:

Item Pricing Billing Policies

Hardware/ Software $66,892 15

Professional Services $50,620 80

Total $117,512 40

6.2 Time and Materials ("T&M") Pricing

Service Rate Billing Policies

Time & Matenals $300 Hourly Rate/Actual Time Billed excludes Travel and Expense
billedbased on actual cost incurred, as appltcable

This Entir e Document and all information (including drawings, specuficatons, and designs) presented by AVI SPL LLC rs the property of AVI SPL LLC or its affiliate Proprietary
1nformat1on provided to potentia l customers clients, or agents is for the sole purpose of demonstrating solutions delivery capab 11it1es and shall be held in confidence These
Materials may not be copied, distributed, or disclosed mn any way without the sole wntten permission of an authonzed representative of AVI SPL ) Copyright AI SPL LLC
All Rights Reserved



AVI<"> SPL
7. Project Acceptance/ Completion.
The AVI SPL Project Team will verify the successful testing of the system based on the stated crtera agreed upon in this SOW AVI SPL will
notify the Customer of project completion by submitting to the Customer an AVI-SPL Sign-Off Form The Customer will sign and return the
form within 10 business days of receipt

If the AVI SPL Sign-Off Form indicates there are no exceptions, the project will be considered accepted by the Customer upon AVI SPL's
receipt of the AVI-SPL Sign Off Form

If the Sign-Off Form indicates exceptions, the Customer will provide in writing specific details regarding what and how the service did not
substantially conform to this SOW AVI-SPL will address any such non conformance in a timely manner The process for acceptance will be
repeated until non-conformance has been resolved

If the Customer does not return a signed AVI-SPL Sign Off Form within 10 business days of receipt (or has not provided any written
exceptions to sign-off), the SOWwill be deemed accepted by the Customer on the 11" business day after the Customer's receipt of AVI
SPL Sign-off Form The AVI-SPL Sign Off Form will not be delayed for the purpose of successful test completion with any secondary systems
or non-AVI SPL branded solutions

8. Change Order Procedure
If changes in the work should occur, AVI-SPLwill present the Customer with a change order detailing the new scope of work, a price for that
work, and an adjustment to the project schedule or in life service scope amendment Any mod1ficat1ons made to this SOW by the change
order shall become effective upon the Customer's acceptance of the change order

9. Payment Terms and Billing Cycle
Payment terms will be consistent with AVI-SPL standard Addendum to General Terms and Cond1t1ons, Managed Services or Master Service
Agreement 1f one exists AVI SPL standard Payment terms are NET 30

Labor, maintenance, and any monetary adjustments related to changes to the SOW previously approved by AVI SPL and the Customer, as
well as all applicable tax and freight charges, will be sent upon substantial completion ofthe project or if the project install date is extended
by the customer for projects less than $25,000 or on a monthly basis in arrears for services performed for projects of$25,000 or over

If the use of a 3" party professional services company 1s required to complete this SOW, AVI-SPLwill invmce the Customer all upfront dollar
amounts required by such third party to mutate the project AVI-SPL's payment terms are net 30 from the receipt of an invoice

Subscription services are billed as 100% prepay of the Annual Contract Value (ACV) Usage based services are billed monthly in arrears
based on actual usage and minimum billing policies

10. SOW Terms & Acceptance
Thus SOW outlines the requirements and critera for successfully implementing and operating Collaboration Partner services Thus SOW may
be executed in one or more counterparts, each ofwh1ch shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the
same instrument This SOW shall not be binding upon AVI-SPL until accepted by the Customer as set forth in this section and the earlier of
AVI-SPL's execution of this SOW and confirmation in writing of the Customer's order The Customer's issuance of a valid order referencing
this SOW, signature of this SOW, or payment for services that are the subject of this SOW, whichever occurs first, shall constitute the
Customer's acceptance of this SOW

The Customer agrees that the Services provided under this SOW 1s (A) provided "AS IS" and with all faults, and that the entire risk as to
satisfactory quality, performance, accuracy, and effort 1s with the Customer, and (B) that AVI SPL LLC and its suppliers, affiliates, and agents
make no and d1scla1m all warranties of every nature, including all implied warranties of merchantab1hty or of fitness for any purpose or of
system integration, or created by trade usage or course of dealing, all duties of reasonable workmanlike effort or lack of negligence, and
any mmphed or smmlar obhgations regarding transmission, avatlabihrty, accuracy, functonality or lack of vruses or harmful code Also, there
Th,s Entire Document and all information (including drawings, specificatons, and designs) presented by AVI SPL LLC Is the property of AVI SPL LLC or ,ts affiliate Proprietary
mformat,on provided to potentia l customers, cl ients, or agents rs for the sole purpose of demonstrating solutions delivery capab 1ilt 1es and shall be held mn confidence These
Materials may not be copied , distributed, or disclosed in any way without the sole wntten permission of an authonzed representative of AVI SPL Copyrght A/I SPLLLC.
All Rights Reserved



AVI<"> SPL
Is no warranty of title or against interference with the Customer's enjoyment of the Service or related services or against infringement or
the like AVI SPL will not be obligated to provide service, repair, or replace the Service unless AVI-SPL has agreed to do so in wntmg rn
advance To the fullest extent allowed by applicable law, AVI SPL's total hab1hty under this SOW shall be hm1ted to a sum equivalent to the
price paid by the Customer under this SOW The Customer's use of third party products (including, without hm1tat1on, pre-packaged service
solutions produced, manufactured, or provided by a third party) are subject to the terms and cond1t1ons contained rn the then-current third
party End User License Agreement

11. Exclusions
111 Add1t1onal costs for union labor are not included, unless specifically 1dent1fied m this SOW
11 2 All on site cancelat1ons or postponements made within 20 business days of onsIte installation commencement are subject

to AVI-SPL monetary recuperation of lost travel expenses and 50% of scheduled time up to a one week max at $180/ hour
for each technician scheduled to be onsrte A Change Order form signed by the Customer must be returned to AVI SPL prior
to AVI SPL rededicating resources

11 3 AVI SPL will charge additional labor hours due to Customer progress delays that result rn AVI SPL lost time due to
• Above noted Customer respons1b1ht1es not being completed prior to AVI-SPL arrival on site
• Room non availability AVI-SPLwill charge for addrtonal travel expenses for return vsrts due to room non-avalablrty
caused by Customer and will charge $180/hr for any unproductive time spent waiting for rooms to become available
• Any outstanding issues caused by Customer delays not hsted as an exception on AVI-SPL's Sign Off Form For those
outstanding issues, a technical support case can be opened and worked until closed by a remote support technician over
phone or video If on-site technicians are required, the Customer will be billed separately for incurred travel and labor

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this SOW as of the SOW Effective Date.

Signed Printed Date

This Entir e Document and all information (includ ing drawings, specificatons, and designs) presented by AVI SPLLLC is the property of AVI SPL LLC or ,ts affiliate Proprietary
1nformat1on provided to potential customers, clients, or agents ,s for the sole purpose of demonstrating solutions delivery capab11lt1es and shall be held 1n confidence These
Materials may not be copied , distributed, or disclosed in any way without the sole wri tt en perm,ssmn of an authorized representative of AVI SPL © Copyright AVI SPL LLC
All Rights Reserved



Ck2zurvs

ZULTYS CLOUD SERVICES PROPOSAL
Presented to:

James Matelski
City of Franklin
Office: 414-427-7645
Email: jmatelski@franklinwi.gov

Presented by: Nick Pal
Contact Phone: 262-345-2343
Contact Email: Nick@wis-imaging.com

Date: 5/11/2023

Quote Valid through: 8/9/2023

DOC# DOC4941280599
Quote ID# RFQ# 8723568879

Doc Created 2023-05-22 12 28 33
Page 1 of 9



·2zu-rvs
Zultys Cloud Services at a Glance

Zultys delivers an easy-to-use, secure, and reliable platform designed to streamline all forms of communications and increase
productivity for any size business With Zultys, users can control all forms of communications mn a smgle user interface ThIs
architecture allows users to seamlessly handle all types of customer communications m one easy-to-use platform

Zultys Advantages Hi±..... - -. . . .
6#ict7w

Zultys Cloud Support Button - Every phone has a button that enables users to call Zultys support with a less than
16 second average hold time.
One-Touch Record - Press a record button on a physical phone, inside ZAC (Zultys Advanced Communicator), or
wIth MX Mobile on your mPhone or Android device. The recording starts from the beginning of a call with the simple
press or click of a record button during an active call.

Call Attach Data - Take notes during and after a business call with customized Call Attached Data (CAD) fields.
CAD fields are included with a call when transferred to other users on the system Acknowledging why someone Is
calling helps improve the customer experience. Run reports on any CAD fields using MX reports.

Flexibility of Deployment - Zultys Advanced Communicator is both client and browser-based, utilizing Web RTC
technology, allowing your customer to have a choice.
Screen Share and Video - Easily share your screen or start video with the chck of a button. Allow your
organization to collaborate with other mndrvduals or a group inside your office or invite outside parties. Allow your
team to collaborate seamlessly without a subscription or a need to download a separate piece of software.

Most Reliable World-Class Support
Single secure virtual instance per customer

SLA 99 999 reliability
Geo-redundant data centers
Blended bandwidth for better uptime than most competitors
that use only one underlying earner
Mobility application for cell phones for all users to protect

against local last mile outages at the customer's site

100% US-based support

Implementation specialist assigned to each account
Zultys Support Desk button on every phone
Webmnar training or video training

Robust Scalability
Support S to 10,000+ users
Add or delete users from a portal to support your business seasonally
Feature set that continues to grow with current technology demands

You're Protected Business Critical Integrations
Single secure virtual instance with dedicated login and passwords
Separation of all data from other customers
HIPAA Compliant
Kan's Law Compliant
Ray Baum's Act Compliant
Physically secured data centers
Encrypted telephone calls
Optional MPLS through customer's earner

Contact sales@zultys com to ask about your specific CRM/ERP/EMS
Zultys allows mtegrat1on with most software
Below are a few popular mtegrat1ons
Outlook
Microsoft Dynamics
Teams
SalesForce
NetSurte
Sugar
Sage
Zoho

DOC# DOC4941280599
Quote ID# RFQ# 8723568879

Doc Created 2023-05-22 12 28 33
Page 2 of 9



Cr2zuTYs
STANDARD USER PREMIUM USER CONTACT CENTER USER

• •
• • •
• •
• • •
• • •
• • •
• • •
• • •
• • •
• • •
• • •
• • •
• • •
• • •
• • •
• • •
• • •
• • •
• • •
• • •
• • •
$ • •
$ $ •
$ $ •
$ $ •
$ $ $

$ $
• •
• •
• •
• •
• •
• •
• •
• •
• •
•
• •

Zult s Advanced Com 'cator
Bindin- here
Native Soft hone
Call Attached Data
FAX
' creensharin
Invite Ext Chats
Filesharin
Webchat
outlookIntegration
Video

intGroup
ACDGroup
£Customizable Call Distribution
Paging Group
AutoAttendant
Internal 911 Call Notifications
voice Mail
Voice Mail Escalations
Voice Mail to Email
Voice Mail Tra tion
CallForwardi
Personal Call Handlin Rules
CallQueue
Music on Hold
Queue Announcements- 64 sources
Zult s MX Mobile for iPhone Android
Basic Reporting - Scheduled
Conferencin - 3 Part
lnstantMessaging
Invite Outside Contacts to IM
Presencewith Custom Note Field

FEATURES

DOC# DOC4941280599
Quote ID# RFQ# 8723568879

Doc Created 2023-05-22 12 28 33
Page 3 of 9



CT2zu-rs
FEATURES

Zultys MX Mobile for iPhone and Android
4 CA€ro.

Zultys mobility solutions for Unified Commurncatlons allow employees to stay in contact
no matter where they are. MX Mobile 1s a real-time presence and communications client
for Android and Phone that delivers a complete Unified Communications experience to
mobile workers by integrating them into the corporate Voice and Unified Communications
system Zultys mobility solutions provide critical tools like voice mail access and
management, presence, internal extension d1ahng, corporate directory access, and least
cost routing to cut international call costs. MX Mobile supports call group functionality,
allowing users to make and receive calls for the call group extension from their
smartphones. Users can also share files with coworkers over the application.

Included in the Standard User, Premium User and Contact Center User Packages.

ZAC Unified Communication Client with Softphone

J

g

Sales Forecast

o @ @ GO 
by it. l / e. e

bl ·+ Ig +rsea teat trnanra

fe iar sin hasoroe Mer%are tree Hee e 4ctr #g tmetr wtt i t f. 2ae

0 7 /2 1/2 1

07112/21

O!if0 •\11.l

0 8 /0 4 /21

0 ll /0 <1 12 1

0 8 /0 4 /2 1

@, JnhnSmhh

CO

.::,

*

Zultys' UC client for desktop Zultys
Advanced Communicator (ZAG)
integrates and manages all of your
communications functions The client
lets you see the presence status of
others in your company. You can
send emails, control all your phone
calls via desktop phones or a
softphone, send and receive faxes,
send secure Instant Messages and
voIce messages, share your screen,
check Vo1cema1I, and much more - all
with a single mouse click. ZAG

comes prepackaged with the softphone feature. Turn the computer into a phone and unclutter employee's desks.

Included in the Premium User and Contact Center User Packages.

Zultys Outlook Communicator

With Zultys Outlook Communicator, your Zultys IP phone system can be closely integrated with Microsoft Outlook.
Users have full call control and can phone contacts directly from Outlook. This product conveniently synchronizes
the User's Presence with their Outlook calendar, allowing 1t to be changed directly from Outlook.

Included in the Premium User and Contact Center User Packages.

DOC# DOC4941280599
Quote ID# RFQ# 8723568879

Doc Created 2023-05-22 12 28 33
Page 4 of 9



Zultys Salesforce Communicator

Companies that have Zultys Cloud Services and use Salesforce.com as their customer
relat1onsh1p management (CRM) system can integrate the two systems using Zultys
Salesforce Communicator. After a call center agent installs the software, they can make,
transfer and disconnect calls from within a Salesforce window and obtain a caller's
contact 1nformat1on in a Salesforce screen display. Additionally, Salesforce automatically
logs the call record In its database.

Can be purchased as an addrtonal feature for any user package type.

J zutvs me ::ub
Charles Dean

( .
• 60255589 29

01 30 ~

» Recent Calls

ZACUrTsJohnso D X

llJI fo Tes!a}ohnson

• f- SchcduleConforence

Marketing Meeting

* Once

8, 1/2019
Q.

& 1.00 PM

30min
QD

lnteractwe

:. • tndcal!onhostlea•,;e

i:i

!I 0 -0
'
@

5nhcne ,.

MXoutbound

MXconference
MXconference eliminates the need for costly pay-as-you-go subscription-based
conference services. MXconference 1s fully integrated with the ZAC desktop Unified
Communications client and uses a simple management window to schedule, manage
and launch audio conferences through baste point-and-click commandswhether they
are "on-demand" or planned weeks in advance

Included in the Premium User and Contact Center User Packages Add1t1onal
conference part1c1pator licenses available as an add1t1onal feature.

Outbound Dialer Re-mind

6»

◄9'---·-•
MXoutbound, a fully integrated outbound Rec<nds

dialer solution, offers a flexible and easy-
to-manage automated process for
reaching out to an organization's
customer base MXoutbound Is
appropriate for virtually any application
that requires automatic outbound
dialing. The call message may be as
simple as a
single recorded sentence or an elaborate customer survey with a series of questions based on previous responses.

Can be purchased as an add1t1onal feature for any user package
type.

DOC# DOC4941280599
Quote ID# RFQ# 8723568879

Doc Created 2023-05-22 12 28 33
Page 5 of 9



<@ >zurvsL .#

Zultys Flex Communicator

+a+ ma
purr,

Zrgtoetr" at
adurrrau t in

Zultys Flex Communicator simplifies integration with web-based and
trad1t1onal CRM and line-of-business applications. Zultys Flex
Communicator generates screen pops for caller information on receipt of
an incoming call. It can be compatible with web-based CRM applications
and programs installed on the user's computer.

Can be purchased as an additional feature for any user package type

Integrated Contact Center Solution
The Zultys Integrated Contact Center
(ICC) intelligently processes incoming
calls to a group of Supervisors & Agents
based on administrator-defined rules &
real-time cond1t1ons. When there are
more callers than available agents, ICC -- -- - -·- -- •
will either re-route callers or queue
callers with customized in-queue messages and music that may be unique for each ICC group Agents can be
located anywhere in the world, allowing for true flex1b1hty and round-the-clock coverage, without the need to relocate
key talent. Contact Center solution comes prepackaged with the SuperV1ew feature, a real-time call monitoring &
stat1st1cs for multiple ICC groups in a single window.

Included mn the Contact Center User Packages

f 4?

.e '1 Y,F

1 4a 1»»

I I

t I

lililliililiil,

I I I •l

I I

MXreport

MXreport gives users the ability to generate
custom reports on-call act1v1ty. MXreport allows
users to generate their own report template and
create graphs via a drag and drop report builder.
Report scheduler automatically delivers reports
via email or to a designated folder every day,
week, month, and so on.

t- a,nr et 43uae 2are¢ gkrwe
t, fr, l l + r ts t, r $ t } An ta

Contact Center Edrton of MXreport is included in the Contact Center User Packages. CDR Edition of MXreport can
be purchased as an additional feature for any user package type

DOC# DOC4941280599
Quote ID# RFQ 8723568879

Doc Created 2023-05-22 12 28 33
Page 6 of 9



CT2zu-rs
END POINTS

ZIP 49GE

The ZIP 49GE Smart Media Phone combines product1v1ty-enhancmg visual
communications wth the Android operating system's flexibility, accessed via
a 7-mnch touch screen, to deliver an outstanding user experience for busmes~
professionals. Functions and contacts may be accessed quickly via 27
programmable soft keys.

. a,m E1!I
$3nae

tar
1:1101/1!1

ZIP 45G

ZIP 47GE
The ZIP 47GE combines a h1-resolut1on color display and
dual G1gab1t Ethernet ports in a feature-rich IP phone ideal
for busy executives and heavy phone users Functions and
contacts may be accessed quickly via 27 programmable
soft keys

The ZIP 45G incorporates a 3 7" backlit graphical display and dual G1gab1t Ethen
in a feature-rich IP phone suitable for the most demanding of users. Functions ar
contacts may be accessed quickly via 21 programmable soft keys.

· aET2·t1 D!I D!I D!I ."
/ZIO,f1!1 ..

- · OIDID!I .,

DOC# DOC4941280599
Quote ID# RFQ# 8723568879

Doc Created 2023-05-22 12 28 33
Page 7 of 9



72zu-rs

z21i

The Z211 is an easy-to-use, cost-effective business IP phone with a
graphical backlit display, dedicated Imne keys, and Power over Ethernet
(PoE) support

Z22G
The Z 22G is an easy-to-use, cost-effective, business IP phone with a color
display, dedicated line keys, and dual Gigabrt Ethernet ports with Power
over Ethernet (PoE)

Z23GE
The Z 23GE combines a color display and dual Gigabit Ethernet ports mn a
feature-rich IP phone ideal for busy phone users Functions and contacts
may be accessed quickly via 14 programmable soft keys.

ZIP450M
The ZIP 450M's 4.3" 272x480 pixel color screen can add up to 60 add1tIonal
programmable keys to ZIP 45G, ZIP 47GE and ZIP 49GE phones Up to 3
expansion modules can be daisy-chamned per each phone.

DOC# DOC4941280599
Quote ID# RFQ# 8723568879

Doc Created 2023-05-22 12 28 33
Page 8 of 9



•zuTvsii a@r

All Pricing Is subject to final confirmation at the time of order

Se

e «s s sa%$2 .ss »serviceLocation +
9229 W Loomis Road Franklin, WI 53132

#opted PBX •Provider
Zultys

Term
36

" a,gr•
l'v'lt:>n\11,ly f$).
$4,426 26

g/ ,,,,, f!, 4:t

Install($)
$4,251 25

Total Monthly ($)
$4,426 26

Total Install ('
$4,251 25

"A$#.Nti'#%Ni%%8082%As,Siii##8iGitii " 8lei"#gr"m" #ageSq,gr$$8xeRSA%9%8%009Me#Mg#9N$8Si483$%88$4%8£1gee9or-svs#"#7 #"92assists$ils@as/Rak$II9531.32.%28%#74#%33%4.8%a.,S93%.9" So»#$&es,9%$53%%/9##$%4M./%$%#$%3$.3
Voice Services QTY Unit Price Monthly
Existing DIDs to Port (DID Promotional Free) 34 $0 00 $0 00
Standard User 1-User, 1-Mobile Access 20 $14 99 $299 80
Premium Users 1-User, 1-ZAC/MXIE, 1-Outlook Communicator with Exchan! 150 $17 99 $2,698 50
Lobby Users 9 $9 99 $89 91

Zultys Provided Equipment QTY Unit Price Monthly
Zultys ZIP 45G 150 $7 95 $1,192 50
Zultys Z 23GE 20 $5 95 $119 00
Zultys z 2t 9 $2 95 $26 55

Installation Services QTY Unit Price One-Time
Ex1st1ng DIDs to Port (DID Promotional Free) 34 $0 00 $0 00
Set-up Fee 179 $23 75 $4,251 25

Site Total I Monthly $4 426 26 One-Time $4,251 25

$4 251 2slOrder Totals I Monthly! $4 426 26] One-Time

If you'd wish to proceed or find out more information on this Proposal please contact your agent at Cory@wIs
mmaging com

DOC# DOC4941280599
Quote ID# RFQ# 8723568879

Doc Created 2023-05-22 12 28 33
Page 9 of 9



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

k
'Reports and

Recommendations

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Presentation of Franklin Health Department Opioid
Misuse and Overdose Prevention Toolkit

MEETING DATE

10/17/2023

ITEM NUMBER

Background: As fentanyl and other dangerous prescription and illicit opioids continue to be
prevalent across the nation, Wisconsin is continually fighting against the growing opioid
epidemic. Milwaukee County has experienced a doubling of overdose deaths from 2010 to
2020 and the City of Franklin has also seen an increase in fatal and nonfatal overdoses. In an
effort to address the opioid epidemic within the City of Franklin, the Franklin Health
Department in partnership with Volition Franklin has created an Opioid Misuse and Overdose
Prevention Toolkit to increase community awareness, provide the community with prevention
and harm reduction resources, and offer local recommendations to help prevent opioid-related
overdose deaths within the City of Franklin. This toolkit was brought before the Board of
Health at the September 11, 2023 board meeting, and the Board recommended a presentation
of the Opioid Misuse and Overdose Prevention Toolkit to the Common Council.

* Members from the Health Department and/ or Health Department will may present at the
Common Council Meeting

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

No action requested.

Health Department: LG



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

Reports and
Recommendations

REQUEST FOR MEETING DATE
COUNCIL ACTION 10/17/2023

Motion to approve the Director of Health and Human ITEM NUMBER
Services to accept the State ofWisconsin Department of
Health Services Local Public Health Department Public b 5 .
Health Infrastructure Grant.

Background: The COVID-19 pandemic emphasized the critical importance of a robust public
health system. The pandemic also accentuated long-standing weakness and created new
challenges to the U.S. public health infrastructure. Moreover, COVID-19 affected nearly ever
aspect of healthcare and public health, laying bare disparities and gaps in some conditions and
worsening others. This grant is intended to support public health's capacity to regain footing in
these areas and accelerate efforts to better meet ongoing and future public health needs in the
community we serve.

The goals of the Public Health Infrastructure Grant are:
1. Support infrastructure improvements in the public health workforce
2. Support capacity of local public health department to implement foundational capabilities
3. Support improvements in local public health department data infrastructure

Recommendation: The Director of Health and Human Services recommends approval to
accept the State of Wisconsin Department of Health Services Local Public Health Department
Public Health Infrastructure Grant to support infrastructure improvements in the public
health workforce, capacity of implement foundational capabilities, and data infrastructure to
support sustained efforts that position Franklin Health Department to better meet ongoing
and future public health needs of our community.

Fiscal Note: The total grant award of $121,402, with a project period through 2027, will
support the Franklin Health Department infrastructure improvements in workforce, capacity to
implement foundational capabilities, and in data infrastructure to support the ongoing and
future public health needs of the Franklin community. There will be no impact to the City of
Franklin budget.

The contract has been sent to the City of Franklin legal counsel for review in October 2023.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

The Director of Health and Human Services requests a motion to approve the acceptance of
the State of Wisconsin Department of Health Services Local Public Health Department Public
Health Infrastructure Grant

Health Department: LG



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

Reports and
Recommendations

REQUEST FOR MEETING DATE
COUNCIL ACTION 08/15/2023

Motion to allow the Director ofHealth and Human ITEM NUMBER
Services to accept the 2023 Division of Public Health
Communicable Disease Control and Prevention Grant to .[.
continue funding health department grants.

Background: The Wisconsin Department of Health Services Division of Public Health awards
grants in a variety of programs to local health departments. The Franklin Health Department
(FHD) has again been awarded grant funding for the continuation of the following grant that
run from July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024:

• Communicable Disease Control and Prevention: $4,080

This grant provides additional funding to assist in communicable disease control, outside of
the grants awarded specifically to fund COVID-19 related work. Specifically, this is the only
grant source currently available to FHD to assist in the work of our Registered Sanitarians. It is
used to help pay for equipment, supplies, and training needed to perform our health
inspection work at the highest quality standards and prevent communicable disease initiation
and/or spread from those entities inspected under the Department of Agriculture, Trade and
Consumer Protection (DATCP) State Agent Program.

The contract has been sent to the City Attorney for review.

Recommendation: The Director of Health and Human Services recommends approval to accept
the Division of Public Health Communicable Disease Grant for 2023-2024 awarded to the
Franklin Health Department.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

The Director of Health and Human Services requests a motion to allow the acceptance of the 2023-2024
Division of Public Health Communicable Disease Grant for the Franklin Health Department.

Health Department: LG



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

BACKGROUND

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 2022-2521, an
Ordinance Adopting the 2023 Annual Budget for the

Police Department Grant Fund to Provide
Carryforward Resources and Appropriations from
2022 to 2023 for a Police Department MILO Use of

Force Training Simulator in the Amount of
$79,735.00

MEETING DATE
October 17, 2023

ITEM NUMBER

In 2022, the Police Department applied for the State ofWisconsin Law Enforcement Agency Grant
which was approved for resources totaling $80,581.00. On July 5, 2022, the Common Council
approved the Police Department to purchase a MILO Use of Force Training Simulator in the amount
of $79,735. Allowable expenditures reported between March 15, 2022 and June 30, 2023 were
reimbursed. Eligible expenditures of the simulator were reimbursed based on the reporting period
guidelines. The purchase of the MILO Use of Force Training Simulator was invoiced on 1 /5/23. The
City received reimbursement of the simulator in full at the cost of $79,735.00 on 6/6/23.

FISCAL NOTE
The proposed budget amendment will carryforward the 2022 resources and expenditures to 2023 to
support this appropriation. Purchase Order #74897 was created 10/12/22 and applied to the
purchase of the MILO Use of Force Training Simulator on 1/10/23. On 6/6/23, the City of Franklin was
reimbursed for this purchase with the approval of the Law Enforcement Agency Grant.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED
Motion to adopt Ordinance No. 2023-, an Ordinance to amend Ordinance 2022-2521, an Ordinance
Adopting the 2023 Annual Budget for the Police Grant Fund to Provide Carryforward Resources and
Appropriations from 2022 to 2023 for a Police Department MILO Use of Force Training Simulator mn the Amount
of $79,735 00

Roll Call Vote Required.

Finance-DB



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY

ORDINANCE NO. 2023----

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2022-2521, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING
THE 2023 ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE POLICE DEPARTMENT GRANT FUND TO

PROVIDE CARRYFORWARD RESOURCES AND APPROPRIATIONS FROM 2022 TO
2023 FOR A POLICE DEPARTMENT MILO USE OF FORCE TRAINING SIMULATOR IN

THE AMOUNT OF $79,735.00

WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Franklin adopted the 2023 Annual
Budgets for the City of Franklin on November 17, 2022; and

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin Police Department applied for the ARPA Law
Enforcement Agency Grant; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council on July 5, 2022 approved the purchase a MILO Use of
Force Simulator in the amount of $79,735.00; and

WHEREAS, the purchase of the simulator and reimbursement of resources took place in
2023; and

WHEREAS, the Police Department is requesting the Common Council approve the
carryforward of resources and appropriations to support this purchase in 2023; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Franklin does hereby ordain as
follows:

Section 1 That a 2023 Budget for the Police Department Grant Fund be amended as follows:

Resources
21-0000-4143.7064 Police - Grant

Appropriations
21-0000-5819.7064 Capital Outlay

Increase

Increase

$79,735.00

$79,735.00

Section 2

Section 3

Section 4

Pursuant to Wis. Stat.§ 65.90(5)(ar), the City Clerk is hereby directed to post a
notice of this budget amendment within fifteen days of adoption of this Ordinance
on the City's web site.

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any term or
provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of competent
jurisdiction, the remaining terms and provisions shall remain in full force and
effect.

All ordinances and parts of ordinances in contravention to this ordinance are
hereby repealed.



Section 5 This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage and
publication.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
this day of 2023.

APPROVED:

John R Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT-



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

~

REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 2022-2521,
an Ordinance Adopting the 2023 Annual Budget

for the General Fund to Provide Additional
$5,025 Appropriations for Unanticipated Labor

Legal Services

MEETING DATE
October 17, 2023

ITEM NUMBER

BACKGROUND

On November 15, 2022, Common Council approved the 2023 Annual Budget for the General Fund.
That budget did not include any appropriations for unanticipated labor legal fees. The 2024 Mayor's
Recommended Budget does account for unanticipated legal fees in the future. The 2024 Annual
Budget has not been adopted.

RECOMMENDATION

The Director of Finance is requesting a $5,025 appropriation for unanticipated labor legal fees to be funded
from fund balance Sufficient fund balance exists to support this change

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to adopt Ordinance No. 2023-, an Ordinance to amend Ordinance 2022-2521, an Ordinance
Adopting the 2023 Annual Budget for the General Fund to Provide Additional $5,025 Appropriations for
Unanticipated Labor Legal Services.

Roll Call Vote Required.

Finance-DB



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY

ORDINANCE NO. 2023----

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2022-2521, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING
THE 2023 ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE GENERAL FUND TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL

$5,025 APPROPRIATIONS FOR UNANTICIPATED LABOR LEGAL FEES

WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Franklin adopted the 2023 Annual
Budgets for the City of Franklin on November 15, 2022;

WHEREAS, past practice has allocated a designated appropriation for special attorney
services; and

WHEREAS, the current special attorney service appropriation in the 2023 Annual Budget
does not hold significant funds for labor legal services; and

WHEREAS, the Director ofFinance deems it significant and in the best interest of the City
of Franklin to appropriate funds for labor legal services; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Franklin does hereby ordain as
follows:

Section 1 That the 2023 Budget for the General Fund be amended as follows:

General Fund
Legal Special Attorney Service Increase $5,025.00

Section 2

Section 3

Section 4

Pursuant to §65.90(5)(ar), Wis. Stats., the City Clerk is directed to post a notice of
this budget amendment within fifteen days of adoption of this Ordinance on the
City's website.

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any term or
provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of competent
jurisdiction, the remaining terms and provisions shall remain in full force and
effect.

All ordinances and parts of ordinances in contravention to this ordinance are
hereby repealed.

This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage and
publication.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
this day of 2023.

APPROVED:

John R Nelson, Mayor

Section 5



ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT-- --



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

I
Reports &

Recommendations

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

A Resolution for Acceptance of a Storm Water Facilities Maintenance
Agreement and Easements for Storm Drainage, Storm Water

Management Access, and Temporary Turnaround at
11595 and 11600 West Forest Home Avenue

(TKNs 796-9987-001 and 751-9001-000)

MTG. DATE
October 17,

2023
ITEM NO.
Ald. Dist. 6

BACKGROUND
Pursuant to the approval of the Tess Creek Estates subdivision (Developer - Forest Home
Investors, LLC), easements are required to construct, maintain, and operate storm drainage and a
temporary turnaround cul-de-sac. It is necessary to install these easements on property located at
11595 and 11600 West Forest Home Avenue (CTH OO), tax key numbers 796-9987-001 and 751-
9001-000.

Additionally, the City of Franklin, Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District (MMSD), and
Wisconsin Department ofNatural resources (WDNR) require storm water management facilities
for any developments which meet thresholds as defined in their individual ordinances and rules.
These facilities as designed may be for quantity and/or quality control. In the City of Franklin
these are typically wet ponds, biofiltration basins, and/or permeable pavers, although other best
management practices (BMPs) are also available. As a MMSD customer and designated by the
WDNR as a Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System, the City's Ordinance is written to not only
include City quantity requirements, but also MMSD quantity requirements, and WDNR quantity
and quality requirements. The facilities within private developments are involved in those credits.
Therefore, ongoing maintenance ofprivate facilities is imperative.

It is the responsibility of the development owner, or a subdivision homeowners association to
maintain the storm water facilities in perpetuity per a prescribed maintenance agreement. The
access easement allows for the City the right of entry in and across the easement area to access the
storm water management facilities, and, if needed to inspect, maintain, or repair the facilities.

ANALYSIS
It is recommended that the Common Council authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign said
agreement and easements, and have them recorded with the Register of Deeds for Milwaukee
County.

FISCAL NOTE
None

RECOMMENDATION
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 2023 - ----:' a resolution for acceptance of a storm water
facilities maintenance agreement and easements for storm drainage, storm water management
access, and temporary turnaround at 11595 and 11600 West Forest Home Avenue (TKNs 796-
9987-001 and 751-90010-000).

Engineering Department: TAB



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2023 ----

A RESOLUTION FOR ACCEPTANCE OF A STORM WATER FACILITIES
MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT AND EASEMENTS FOR STORM DRAINAGE,

STORM WATER MANAGEMENT ACCESS, AND TEMPORARY TURNAROUND AT
11595 AND 11600 WEST FOREST HOME AVENUE

(TKNS 796-9987-001 AND 751-9001-000)

WHEREAS, pursuant to the approval of the Tess Creek Estates subdivision
(Developer - Forest Home Investors, LLC), easements are required to construct, maintain and
operate storm drainage and a temporary turnaround cul-de-sac on properties located at 11595
and 11600 West Forest Home Avenue, TKN 796-9987-001 and 751-9001-000; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary to install said easements on said properties; and

WHEREAS, storm water facilities are required to meet quantity and quality standards;
and

WHEREAS, a maintenance agreement is developed and executed to ensure effective
maintenance and operation ofprivate storm water facilities in perpetuity; and

WHEREAS, an access easement is necessary to allow the City right of entry in and
across the easement area to access the storm water management facilities.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the
City of Franklin that it would be in the best interest of the City to accept said agreement and
easements, and, therefore the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to
execute the agreement and easements, accepting them on behalf of the City.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk is directed to record said
agreement and easements with the Register ofDeeds for Milwaukee County.

Introduced at a regular meeting ofthe Common Council of the City of Franklin the
day of2023, by Alderman

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Franklin on the
day of,2023.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:



Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



STORM WATER FACILITIES
MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT

TESS CREEK ESTATES
11600 West Forest Home Avenue

Tax Keys 796-9987-001 & 751-9001-000

This AGREEMENT, made and entered into thisday of20_
by and between Forest Home Investors, LLC, hereinafter called the "Owner, and the City of
Franklin, hereinafter called the "City".

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Owner is the owner of the following described lands situated in the City
of Franklin, County of Milwaukee, State of Wisconsin, to-wit:

PARCEL I OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 6508 AND LOT I OF CERTIFIED SURVEY
MAP NO 9289, LOCATED IN THE SOUTHEAST¼ AND THE NORTHEAST¼ OF
SECTION 7, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, IN THE CITY OF FRANKLIN,
MILWAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN.
SAID LANDS CONTAINING 440,001 SQ. FT (10.101 ACRES) MORE OR LESS.
(MEASURED TO THE MEANDER LINE)

Hereinafter called the "Property".

WHEREAS, the Owner is developing the Property; and

WHEREAS, the Site Subdivision known as Tess Creek Estates, hereinafter called the "Plan",
which is expressly made a part hereof, as approved or to be approved by the city, provides for
on-site Storm Water Facilities within the confines of the Property as shown on the plan attached
hereto as Exhibit "B" and more particularly described on Exhibit "C"; and

WHEREAS, the City and the Owner, its successors and assigns ("successors and assigns"
meaning to include any homeowners' association and all owners of the property or any portion
thereof), including any homeowners association, agree that the health, safety, and welfare of the
residents of the City of Franklin, require that on-site Storm Water Facilities as defined in Section
15-8.0600 Unified Development Ordinance of the City of Franklin be constructed and
maintained on the Property; and

WHEREAS, the City requires that on-site storm water management practices as shown
on the Plan be constructed and adequately maintained by the Owner, its successors and assigns.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises, the mutual covenants
contained herein, and the following terms and conditions, the parties hereto agree as follows:

l. The on-site storm water facilities shall be constructed by the Owner in accordance with
the plans and specifications which are identified as part of the storm water management
plan dated October 18, 2022 and erosion control plan dated March 31, 2023 approved by
the City Engineer and submitted as part of the as-built drawings approved by the City
Engineer. Fountains and/or aerators shall not be installed in any ponds without prior
written approval from the City Engineer.

2. The Owner, its successors and assigns, shall comply with the ordinances and regulations
which require that the Storm Water Facilities shall be regularly inspected and maintained

Q-1



as often as conditions may require, but in any event, at least once each year. The
Standard Operation and Maintenance Report attached to this agreement as Exhibit "A"
and by this reference made a part hereof shall be used for the purpose of the regular
inspections of the Storm Water Facilities. The Owners, its successors and assigns, shall
keep the Operation and Maintenance Reports from past inspections, as well as a log of
maintenance activity indicating the date and type of maintenance completed of the Storm
Water Facilities. The purpose of the inspections is to assure safe and proper functioning
of the facilities. The inspections shall cover all storm water facilities, including but not
limited to open swales (ditches), storm sewers, manholes, inlets, berms, outlet structures,
pond areas and access roads. Deficiencies shall be noted in the Operation and
Maintenance Report. The Reports and maintenance log shall be made available to the
City for review.

3. The Owner, its successors and assigns, hereby grant permission to the City, its authorized
agents and employees, to enter upon the Property and to inspect the Storm Water
Facilities, whenever the City deems necessary. The purpose of inspection is to provide
periodic review by City staff, to investigate reported deficiencies and/or to respond to
citizen complaints. The City shall provide the Owner, its successors and assigns, copies
of the inspection findings and a directive to commence with the repairs if necessary.
Corrective actions shall be taken within a reasonable time frame as established by the
City Engineer.

4. The Owner, its successors and assigns, shall adequately maintain the Storm Water
Facilities, including but not limited to all pipes and channels built to convey storm water
to the facility, as well as all structures, improvements, and vegetation provided to control
the quantity and quality of the storm water. Adequate maintenance is herein defined as
keeping the Storm Water Facilities in good working condition so that these storm water
facilities are performing their design functions and are in accordance with the Stormwater
Basin Maintenance Standards as detailed in Section 15.8.0600 of the City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance, and Section 13.12 (2) of the Milwaukee Metropolitan
Sewerage District (MMSD) rules, and by this reference made a part hereof.

5. If the Owner, its successors and assigns fails to maintain the Storm Water Facilities in
good working condition acceptable to the City and does not perform the required
corrective actions in a time as established by the City Engineer in written notice, the City
may:

a) Issue a citation to the Owner, its successors and assigns. Such failure constitutes a
violation of Section 15.8.0600 of the Unified Development Ordinance of the City of
Franklin. The penalty for such violation of Section 15.8.0600 shall be not less than
$100 nor more than $2500 for each offense, together with the costs of prosecution.
Each day that the violation exists shall constitute a separate offense, and

b) Perform the corrective actions identified in the inspection report and assess the
Owner, its successors and assigns, for the cost of such work. The cost of such work
shall be specially charged against the Property pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes
Section 66.0627. If the facilities are located on an outlot owned collectively by a
homeowners association, the City may specially charge each member of the
homeowners association according to the ownership interest in the facilities located
on the property. This provision shall not be construed to allow the City to erect any
structure of permanent nature on the land of the Owner outside of the easement for
the Storm Water Facilities. It is expressly understood and agreed that the City is
under no obligation to routinely maintain or repair said storm water management
practices and in no event shall this Agreement be construed to impose any such
obligation on the City.

Q-2



6. In the event the City, pursuant to this Agreement and applicable easements performs
work of an emergency nature, or expends any funds in performance of said work for
labor, use of equipment, supplies, materials, and the like, the Owner, its successors and
assigns, shall reimburse the City upon demand, within thirty (30) days of receipt thereof
for all actual costs incurred by the City hereunder.

7. This Agreement imposes no liability of any kind whatsoever on the City and the Owner
agrees to indemnify and hold the City harmless from any liability in the event the Storm
Water Facilities fail to operate properly.

8. This Agreement shall be attached as an exhibit to any document which creates a
homeowners association that is responsible for maintenance of the Storm Water Facilities
and shall be recorded at the Milwaukee County Register of Deeds, and shall constitute a
covenant running with the land, and shall be binding on the Owner, its administrators,
executors, assigns, heirs and any other successors in interest, including any homeowners
association and all owners of the property or any portion thereof. The owner shall
provide the City with a copy of any document which creates a homeowners association
that is responsible for the Storm Water Facilities.

9. The owner, its successors and assigns, is prohibited from building structures, installing
play equipment, installing plants, changing grades or performing any function that
inhibits care and maintenance of any Storm Water Facilities.

10. The owner, its successor and assigns shall maintain, at all times, an individual(s) who
will serve as a contact person(s).

Q-3



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and Owner have set forth ther hands and seals, effective the
date first above wntten.

SEALED IN PRESENCE OF
Forest Home Investors, LLC, Owner

By.------------
Name: Ken Servi, Managmg Member

STATE OF WISCONSIN)ss
COUNTY)

Personally came before me thisday of,20, the above named Ken
Servi, Managing Member of Forest Home Investors, LLC, to me known to be the person who
executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same in the capacity indicated.

Notary Public, County, WI
( )
My commission exp1res:

CITY OF FRANKLIN

By:
Name. John R. Nelson
Title. Mayor

COUNTERSIGNED
By·
Name: Karen L. Kastenson
Title: City Clerk

STATE OF WISCONSIN)ss.
MILWAUKEE COUNTY)

Personally came before me thus day of,20, the above
named John R. Nelson, Mayor and Karen L Kastenson, City Clerk, of the above named mumcipal
corporation, City of Franklin, to me known to be such Mayor and City Clerk of said mumcipal
corporation, and acknowledged that they had executed the foregoing mstrument as such officers as the
Deed of said municipal corporation by its authority and pursuant to the Resolution File No.
adopted by 1ts Common Council on this day of20

Notary Public, Milwaukee County, WI
( )
My commission expires:

This instrument was drafted by the City Engineer for the City ofFranklm.
Form approved:

Jesse A Wesolowski, City Attorney

Q-4

_____________(Seal)

____________(Seal)



EXHIBIT "A"

OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE INSPECTION REPORT
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PONDS

City of Franklin

Section No --------

Fax No. _

Address _

Fax No. E-mail _

Address _

E-mail _

[/qr, (f [)eye%[D)ITC[lE

Responsible Party Name _

Telephone No. _

Inspector Name _

Telephone No _

Basin Location General Address-------------
Normal Pool D Yes D No

Items mspected Checked Mamtenance Remarks
(Pond components) (Yes/No/NA) Needed

(Yes/No/NA)
I Embankment and Emergency spillway

I Vegetation and ground cover adequate
2 Embankment eros1on
3. Ammal burrows
4 Unauthonzed plantmgs
5 Crackmg, bulgmg, or shdmg of dam

l Upstream face
2 Downstream face
3 At or beyond toe

Upstream
Downstream

4. Emergency spillway
6 Pond, toe & chimney drains functioning
7 Seeps/leaks on downstream face
8 Slope protectmn or nprap failures
9 Emergency spillway clear of debns

10. Other (spec1fy)
2 Riser and prmnc1pal spillway

Type Remforced concrete
--

Corrugated metal pipe --
PVC/HDPE --
Masonry

1 Low flow onfice obstructed
2 Pnmary outlet structure

I Debns removal necessary
2 Corros1on control

3 Trash rack mamtenance
I Debns removal necessary
2. Corros1on control

3 Pond bottom
Sediment or debris buildup mn low flow
Pilot channel or bottom (estimate depth)

Q-5



EXHIBIT "B"

EXHIBITB
DEPICTION OF THE FACILITIES

SYSTEM DESCRIPTION SITE STORM WATER MANAGEMENT INCLUDES THE IMPLEMENTATION OF A STORM WATER POND
LOCATED AT THE NORTHWEST ENDI OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY SITE DRAINAGE WILL BE DIRECTED VIA STORM SEWERS
AND OVERLAND FLOW TO THE POND WHICH WILL PRO\/IDE WATER QUALITY AND QUANTITY CONTROL THE OUTFLOW IS
CONTROLLED BY A 48"X48" OUTLEfr STRUCTURE WITH A 24" OUTLET PIPE THAT DISCHARGES TO THE NORTH

SPILLWAY
76 z3,

➔•, T
Ill

STNG WETL AN D LMITS

) >
➔ ➔

POND OUTlET ENDSECTION
'II/ LEVEL SPREN>ER

@A; .

Gsnsiv Gs.s
STORM WATER

ACCESS EASEMENT

I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
INORTHYIEST 1/4

OF THE SOUTHEAST
1/4 OF SEC. 7-5-2 1

= Sllll"J.z'.15"Eu"-r-mm+-

ACCESS TO BASIN FROM
WEST FOREST HOME AVE.

l!:JCJ
engineering
clvll design and consultlng
pg2O5 AW cartgt/art
Sult.. 214
MIveau lee v1 s3.222.
PH (414)443-1312
www.11Cf-e11glneer1ng.QOll'n

GRAPHIC SCALE
30 60 120-.--.--t----c~t---------11

1 inch= 60 ft
CJE NO 1951RII

NOVEMBER 18, 2022

Q-6



EXHIBIT "C"

EXHIBITC
DESCRIPTION OF EASEMENT AREA

STORM WATER EASEMENT LEGAL QESCB IPDQN·
PARCEL 1 Of CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 6508 AND LOT 1 OF CERTIFlffi SURVEY MAP NO. 9289, LOCATED N THE
SOUTHEAST 1/4 AND THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 7, lOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, IN THE CITY OF
FRANKLIN, MILWAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN, BOUNDED AND DESCRIBffi AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST1/4 OF SECTION 7--5-21, THENCE S 883715" E, 78.90 FEET:
THENCE 46 21 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF A CURVE WHOSE CENlER LIES TO THE NORTHWEST, WHOSE RADIUS IS 2864.79,
AND WHOSE CHORD BEARS N 1430'35" E, 46.21 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; lHENCE CONTINUING 154.02 FEET
ALONG THE ARC OF A CURVE M!OSE CENlER LIES TO lHE NORlHWEST, WHOSE RADIUS IS 2864.79, AND WHOSE CHORD
BEARS N 12"30'27" E, 154.01 FEET: THENCE N 7452'37" E, 124.35 FEET; lHENCE s 5631'21" E, 103.91 FEET; lHENCE
S 01"22'45" W, 131.22 FEET; lHENCE N 88"37'15" W, 236.98 FEET TO lHE POINT OF BEGINNING.

NORTHWEST 1/4
Of THE SOUTHEAST
1/4 OF SEC. 7-5-21

ag,gro
78.

CJ
engineering
civil design and oonsulling
2O5 A torte94st
ts9u hta214
1eaulee Wv 53222
pH 414¥ 44a--1312
www.cj-englnaer1ng.com

STORM WAlER
ACCESS EASEMENT

GRAPHIC SCALE

1 inch= 60 fl

120

r

CJE NO 1931RII
NOVEMBER 18, 2022

L \ENGDOCS\Design Standards (7-2017)\Design Standards July 2017\Design Standards finalized for July 2017\2019 Design Standards
Appendix Q Storm Water Fac1h1Ies Maintenance Agreement# 15 doc

Q-7



STORM DRAINAGE EASEMENT

TESS CREEK ESTATES
11600 West Forest Home Avenue

Tax Keys 796-9987-001 & 751-9001-000

THIS EASEMENT is made by and between the CITY OF FRANKLIN, a municipal
corporation of the State of Wisconsin, hereinafter referred to as "City," and Forest Home
Investors, LLC, a Limited Liability Corporation, as owner (including successors and assign' s of
the City as may become applicable including the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and
assigns of above owner(s) as may be or may become applicable), hereinafter called "Grantor," (if
more than one grantor is listed above, said language herein referring thereto shall be interpreted in
the plural and refer jointly and severally to such grantors).

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, Grantor is the owner and holder of record Title to certain reel particularly
described on Exhibit "A" which is attached hereto and incorporated herein (the Property); and

WHEREAS, the City desires to acquire a perpetual, non-exclusive easement with the
right of entry in and across a portion of the property as the same is more particularly hereinafter
described, with the right to build and construct and/or operate, maintain, repair, enlarge,
reconstruct, relocate and inspect as may be or may become applicable the following facilities and
appurtenances thereto, hereinafter collectively called the "Facilities," in, upon and across said
portion of the Property: a storm drainage system consisting of an open swale (ditch) and/or storm
sewer and associated manholes and catch basins, all as shown on the plan attached hereto as
Exhibit "B."; and

WHEREAS, the initial construction and installation of the Facilities shall be made by
Grantor at Grantor's expense and the Facilities shall be the property of the City and be deemed
dedicated to the City upon the City's inspection and approval of the Facilities as installed,
subject to the terms and conditions set forth below:

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the grant of the easement hereinafter described,
the initial installation and maintenance of the Facilities by the Grantor, and the City, and the
payment of One Dollar ($1.00) and other valuable considerations to the Grantor, the receipt
whereof is hereby acknowledged, said Grantor, being the owner and person interested in the land
hereinafter described, does hereby grant unto the City a perpetual, non-exclusive easement on
that part of the Northeast Quarter and the Southeast Quarter of Section Seven (7), Township Five
(5) North, Range Twenty-one (21) East, in the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin,
more particularly described on Exhibit C attached hereto (the "Easement Area").

1. That said Facilities not including any open swale/ditch shall be maintained and kept in
good order and condition by the City, at the sole cost and expense of the City.
Responsibility for maintaining the ground cover and landscaping, including any open
swale/ditch, within the Easement area shall be that of the Grantor (including heirs,
executors, administrators, successors, and assigns).

2. That in and during whatever construction, reconstruction, enlargement or repair work is
or becomes necessary in constructing and/or maintaining of said Facilities, so much of
the surface or subsurface of the Easement Area on the property as may be disturbed will,
at the expense of the City, be replaced in substantially the same condition as it was prior
to

M-1



such disturbance; except that the City will in no case be responsible for replacing or
paying for replacing any aesthetic plantings, fences, or improvements other than ordinary
lawns or standard walks, roadways, driveways and parking lot surfacing which were
required to be removed or were otherwise damaged in the course of doing the above
work. However, the City shall indemnify and save harmless the Grantor from and against
any loss, damage, claim, cost, injury or liability resulting from negligence or willful acts
or omissions on the part of the City, its agents or employees in connection with said work
involved in constructing and/or maintaining of said Facilities; provided that if the above
loss, claim, cost, damage, injury or liability results from the joint negligence of parties
hereto, then the liability therefore shall be borne by them in proportion to their respective
degree of negligence; provided further, however, that these provisions are subject to the
legal defenses available under law which the City or Grantor are entitled to raise,
excepting the defense of so-called "sovereign immunity."

3. That no structure, fence, plantings, or other improvements may be placed within the
limits of the Easement Area by the Grantor
except that improvement such as walks, pavements for driveways and parking lot
surfacing, and landscaping may be constructed or placed within the Easement Area as
approved by the City Engineer.

4. In connection with the construction by the Grantor of any structure or building abutting
said Easement Area, the Grantor will assume all liability for any damage to the Facilities
in the above described Easement Area. The Grantor will also save and keep the City
clear and harmless from any claims for personal injuries or property damage caused by
any negligence or willful acts or omissions of the Grantor or persons acting on behalf of
the Grantor, arising out of the construction by the Grantor of any structure or building
abutting the said Easement Area, and shall reimburse the City for the full amount of such
loss or damage.

5. No charges will be made against the property for the cost of maintenance or operation of
said Facilities in the property. Whenever the Grantor makes application for a service
connection associated with the services provided by virtue of the Facility, the regular and
customary service connection charge in effect at the time of the application shall be
charged and paid. The Grantor shall be responsible for the routine maintenance of land on
which the easement is located.

6. The City of Franklin shall in no case be responsible for maintaining at its expense any
portion of said storm drainage services outside of the Easement Area and outside the
limits of any adjoining easements.

7. The Facilities shall be accessible for maintenance by the City at all times. The Grantor
shall submit plans for approval to the City Engineer for any underground installation
within the Easement Area, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld,
conditioned or delayed.

8. That the Grantor shall submit plans for all surface alterations of plus or minus 0.05 foot
or greater within the limits of said Easement Area. Said alterations shall be made only
with the approval of the City Engineer of the City of Franklin, which approval shall not
be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.

M-2



9. The City and Grantor shall each use, and take reasonable measures to cause their
employees, officers, customers, agents, contractors and assigns to use, the Easement Area
in a reasonable manner and so as not to obstruct or otherwise use the Easement Area in a
manner that would unreasonably interfere with the use thereof by the other party hereto
or its employees, officers, customers, agents, contractors and assigns.

l 0. The City and Grantor each hereby waives all rights of subrogation that either has or may
hereafter have against the other for any damage to the Easement Area or any other real or
personal property or to persons covered by such party's insurance, but only to the extent
of the waiving party's insurance coverage; provided, however, that the foregoing waivers
shall not invalidate any policy of insurance now or hereafter issued, it being hereby
agreed that such a waiver shall not apply in any case which would result in the
invalidation of any such policy of insurance and that each party shall notify the other if
such party's insurance would be so invalidated.

11. Either party hereto may enforce this easement by appropriate action, and should it prevail
in such litigation, that party shall be entitled to recover, as part of its costs, reasonable
attorneys' fees.

12. This easement may not be modified or amended, except by a writing executed and
delivered by the City and Grantor or their respective successors and assigns.

13. No waiver of, acquiescence in, or consent to any breach of any term, covenant, or
condition hereof shall be construed as, or constitute, a waiver of, acquiescence in, or
consent to any other, further, or succeeding breach of the same or any other term,
covenant, or condition.

14. If any term or provision of this easement shall, to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable
under applicable law, then the remaining terms and provisions of this easement shall not
be affected thereby, and each such remaining term and provision shall be valid and
enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law.

15. This easement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the internal laws of the
State of Wisconsin.

16. It is understood that at some point in the future all or a portion of the Easement Area may
become portions of public streets, in which event, in the City's proceedings for the
acquisition of the portion of the property needed for such streets by purchase, dedication
or by condemnation, said lands shall be considered the same as though this easement had
not been executed or any rights granted thereby exercised.

1 7. That the Grantor shall submit as-built drawings of the installed facilities for approval to
the City Engineer, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or
delayed.

M-3



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has hereunto set its hand and seals this

ON THIS DATE OF:20

Forest Home Investors, LLC

By: _
Ken Servi, Managing Member

STATE OF _
ss

COUNTY OF _

Before me personally appeared on the day of20, the above
named

of______________,________ -------------
Ken Servi Managing Member Forest Home Investors, LLC

to me known to be the person(s) who executed the foregoing Easement and acknowledged the
same as the voluntary act and deed of said corporation.

NOTARY PUBLIC------------
My commission expires _

CITY OF FRANKLIN

By=-----,,,-,------:-:,----,---------
John R. Nelson, Mayor

By: _
Karen L Kastenson, City Clerk

STATE OF _
ss

COUNTY OF _

On this day of 2O_, before me personally appeared John R.
Nelson and Karen L. Kastenson who being by me duly sworn, did say that they are respectively
the Mayor and City Clerk of the City of Franklin, and that the seal affixed to said instrument is
the corporate seal of said municipal corporation, and acknowledged that they executed the
foregoing assignment as such officers as the deed of said municipal corporation by its authority
and pursuant to Resolution File No. adopted by its Common Council on _
,2)

Notary Public
My commission expires _

M-4



MORTGAGE HOLDER CONSENT

The undersigned, __, a Wisconsin banking corporation
("Mortgagee"), as Mortgagee under that certain Mortgage encumbering the Property and
recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, on _
______, 20 _, in Volume of Records, page_, as Document No. _
hereby consents to the execution of the foregoing easement and its addition as an encumbrance
against title to the Property.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Mortgagee has caused these presents to be signed by its duly
authorized officers, and its corporate seal to be hereunto affixed, as of the day and year first
above written.

a Wisconsin Banking Corporation

By: _

Name:--------------

Title:---------------

STATE OF WISCONSIN)
ss

COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE)

On this, theday of 20, before me, the undersigned,
personally appearedthOi
s d Wisconsin banking corporation, and acknowledged that (s)he executed the foregoing
instrument on behalf of said corporation, by its authority and for the purposes therein contained.

Name: _

Notary Public _

State of-----------------

_untV Of

My commission expires: _

This instrument was drafted by the City of Franklin.

Approved as to contents

Manager of Franklin Municipal Water Utility
Date:---------

Approved as to form only

Date: _
City Attorney

M-5



Exhibit A

PARCEL 1 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 6508 AND LOT 1 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY
MAP NO 9289, LOCATED IN THE SOUTHEAST¼ AND THE NORTHEAST¼ OF
SECTION 7, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, IN THE CITY OF FRANKLIN,
MILWAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN.
SAID LANDS CONTAINING 440,001 SQ. FT (10.101 ACRES) MORE OR LESS.
(MEASURED TO THE MEANDER LINE)

M-6



EXHIBITB
DEPICTION OF THE FACILITIES

SYSTEM DESCRIPTIONS E STORM WATER MANAGEMEN NCLUDES THE MPLEMENTATION OF A STORM WATER POND
LOCAED AT THE NORriWEST END OF -HE SUBJECT PROPERTY SITE DRAINAGE WILL 8£ D RECTEO VIA SWALES.
STORM SEWERS AND OVERLAND L OW TO THE POND WHlCH Will PROVIDE WA ER Q0A TY AND Q\JAN1ITY CONTROL

;_J
engineering

±Er i 'i r
CJE NO, 193Ru

NOVEMBER 18, 20221inch=60 ft

GRAPHIC SCALE



EXHIBITC
DESCRIPTION OF EASEMENT AREA

STORM URAINACt. EASEMENT LEGAL DE.SCRIPT ON
PARCEL 1 OF CERTIF IED SURVEY MAP NO. 6508 AND LOT OF GERT FED SURVEY MAP NO 9289 OCAED N THE SOU HEAST /4 ANO HE NOR H[AST /4 OF SE ION 7 TOWNS!-l P 5 NORTH
RANGE 2 EAS N THE CITY OF RANKLIN MILWAUKEE COUNTY WISCONSIN 90UNDE0 ANO DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS.

COMMENCING AT HE AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF PARCEL OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP :-.JO 6508 HENCE S 88 37 5 E. 220 S9 FET TO THE PQJNT OF BEGINN NG; HENCE N 227'55 W
55.88 FEET THENCE N 7T32 05 E 20.00 FEET HENCE S 227'55 E. 79 35 FEET THENCE S 89"24 45 W 20 44 FEET THENCE N 2·2rss W 9 26 FEET O THc_ POINT OF BEGINNING

ALONG WTH

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF PARCEL OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO 650B AND HE POINT OF BEGINN NG; THENCE N 88 37 9 w 549 55 FEET THENCE N 01'22 45 E. 80 96
r T S 8837 7 E 20.00 FEE THENCE SO "2245 W 14096 FEET THENCE S 8837 9 E. 90.00 FE T THENCE NO "2245 E 40.96 FEE THENCE S 88'37' 5 E 20.00 EET THENCE S
0 '2245 W 496 E THENCE S 8'37'07 E 31833 FEET THENCE SO "2209 E 4000 !'"::ET TO THE POINT OF BECINN\NC

S88375E
20 00

S883717E
20 00

N77 32 05 E ------------

Nl 25~~S~~ Wj(S122755 E OT CSM
?OB 79 35 9289

--S88_7 15 '
no 59.-~~2 ;7~5~- - - - ,_ -:9~:

4

;W- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
g 26 20 44 PARCEL

CSM 6508

w
01
00
NO
NO

5
t

1/l iP.0.8

CJE NO 19JIRII
NOVEMBER 18, 2022

S883707 E
318 33

N883719 W
549 55

r

w

?gt
Nv
5z

ii
1 inch 60 ft

GRAPHIC SCALE

S883719 t-
19000

'z
no o
sta,

g
5
VJ



STORM WATER MANAGEMENT
ACCESS EASEMENT

TESS CREEK ESTATES
11600 West Forest Home Avenue

Tax Keys 796-9987-001 & 751-9001-000

THIS EASEMENT is made by and between TESS CREEK ESTATES HOMEOWNERS
ASSOCIATION, an umncorporated association and the CITY OF FRANKLIN, a mumcipal corporation
of the State of Wisconsm, hereinafter referred to as "City," collectively referred to as "Grantees," and
Forest Home Investors, LLC, a Limited Liability Corporation, as owner (including successors and
assign's of the City as may become applcable including the heirs, executors, administrators, successors
and ass1gns of above owner(s) as may be or may become applicable), hereinafter called "Grantor," (if
more than one grantor is listed above, said language herein referring thereto shall be mterpreted in the
plural and refer Jointly and severally to such grantors)

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, Grantor is the owner and holder of record Title to certam real property described on
Exhibit "A" which is attached hereto and incorporated herem (the Property); and

WHEREAS, the City des1res to acquire a non-exclusive easement with the right of entry in and
across a portion of the property as the same is more particularly hereinafter described, with the right to
build and construct and/or operate, maintam, repair, enlarge, reconstruct, relocate and inspect as may be
or may become applicable the following facilities and appurtenances thereto, hereinafter collectively
called the "Facilities," m, upon and across said portion ofthe Property a storm water management basin
as shown on the plan attached hereto as Exhibit "B."; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the grant of the easement hereinafter described, the
initial installation and maintenance ofthe Facilities by the Grantor, and the Grantees, and the payment of
One Dollar ($1.00) and other valuable considerations to the Grantor, the receipt whereof is hereby
acknowledged, said Grantor, bemg the owner and person interested in the land hereinafter described, does
hereby grant unto the City a perpetual, non-exclusive easement on that part of the Northeast Quarter and
the Southeast Quarter of Section Seven (T7), Township Frve (5) North, Range Twenty-one (21) East, in the
City ofFranklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, more particularly described on Exhibit C attached hereto
(the "Easement Area")

1. That said Facilities shall be maintained and kept mn good order and condition by the Association,
at the sole cost and expense of the Association. The City, at its sole discretion, may assume the
nghts of the Association to maintam the Facilities.

2. That in and during whatever construction, reconstruction, enlargement or repair work is or
becomes necessary in constructing and/or maintainmg of said Facilities, so much of the surface or
subsurface of the Easement Area on the Property as may be disturbed will, at the expense of the
Association, be replaced in substantially the same condition as 1t was prior to such disturbance
The City, at its sole discretion, may assume the rights of the Association to construct, reconstruct,
enlarge, repair, or do whatever is necessary m constructmg and/or mamtaining such Facilities.
However, the Grantees shall indemnify and save harmless the Grantor from and against any loss,
damage, claim, cost, injury or liability resultmg from negligence or willful acts or omissions on
the part of the Grantees, its agents or employees mn connection with sand work involved 1n
constructmg and/or maintaming of said Facilities, provided that if the above loss, claim, cost,
damage, injury or liability results from the joint negligence of parties hereto, then the liability
therefore shall be borne by them mn proportion to

N-1



their respectrve degree of negligence; provided further, however, that these prov1sons are subject
to the legal defenses available under law which the Grantees or Grantor are entitled to raise,
excepting the defense of so-called "sovereign immumty "

3. That no structure may be placed within the hmits of the Easement Area by the Grantor, except
that improvement such as walks, pavements for driveways, parkmg lot surfacmg and landscape
planting may be constructed or placed within the Easement Area.

4. In connection with the construct1on by the Grantor of any structure or building abutting said
Easement Area, the Grantor will assume all liability for any damage to the Facihties in the above
described Easement Area. The Grantor will also save and keep the Grantees clear and harmless
from any claims for personal injuries or property damage caused by any negligence or willful acts
or omissions of the Grantor or persons acting on behalf of the Grantor, ansing out of the
construction by the Grantor of any structure or building abutting the said Easement Area, and
shall reimburse the Grantees for the full amount of such loss or damage.

5. The Grantor shall be responsible for the routine maintenance of land on which the easement is
located.

6. The Facilities shall be accessible for maintenance by the Association at all times. The Grantor
shall submit plans for approval to the City Engmeer for any underground installation within the
Easement Area, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.

7. That the Grantor shall submit plans for all surface alterations of plus or minus 1 foot or greater
within the limits of said Easement Area. Said alterations shall be made only with the approval of
the City Engineer of the City of Franklm, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld,
conditioned or delayed.

8. The Grantees and Grantor shall each use, and take reasonable measures to cause their employees,
officers, customers, agents, contractors and assigns to use, the Easement Area in a reasonable
manner and so as not to obstruct or otherwise use the Easement Area in a manner that would
unreasonably mterfere with the use thereof by the other party hereto or its employees, officers,
customers, agents, contractors and assigns.

9. The Grantees and Grantor each hereby waives all rights of subrogation that either has or may
hereafter have against the other for any damage to the Easement Area or any other real or
personal property or to persons covered by such party's msurance, but only to the extent of the
waiving party's insurance coverage, provided, however, that the foregomg waivers shall not
invalidate any policy of insurance now or hereafter issued, it bemg hereby agreed that such a
waiver shall not apply in any case which would result m the invalidation of any such policy of
insurance and that each party shall notify the other if such party's msurance would be so
invahdated.

10. Either party hereto may enforce this easement by appropriate action, and should 1t prevail in such
litigat10n, that party shall be entitled to recover, as part of its costs, reasonable attorneys' fees.

11 This easement may not be modified or amended, except by a writmg executed and delivered by
the Grantees and Grantor or their respective successors and ass1gns.

12 No waiver of, acqmescence in, or consent to any breach of any term, covenant, or condition
hereof shall be construed as, or constitute, a waiver of, acquiescence mn, or consent to any other,
further, or succeedmg breach of the same or any other term, covenant, or condition

N-2



13. If any term or provis1on of this easement shall, to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable under
applicable law, then the remainmng terms and provisions of this easement shall not be affected
thereby, and each such remaining term and provision shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest
extent permitted by applicable law.

14. This easement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the internal laws of the State of
Wisconsin.

15 Upon completion of use of the Easement Area for the specific use as a storm water management
access by the City, the easement shall be terminated by recording a release in recordable form
with directons for delivery of same to Grantor at his last address given pursuant hereto,
whereupon all rights, duties and liabilities created shall termmate.

N-3



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has hereunto set its hand and seals this

ON THIS DATE OF., 20

Forest Home Investors, LLC

By. (Seal)

Name & Title: Ken Servi, Managing Member

STATE OF _
ss

COUNTY OF ---------

Before me personally appeared on the day of, A.D 20

Ken Servi, Managing Member ofForest Home Investors, LLC
to me known to be the person(s) who executed the foregoing EASEMENT and acknowledged the same as
the voluntary act and deed ofsaid corporation

Notary Public
(
My commission expires

CITY OF FRANKLIN

By: _
John R. Nelson, Mayor

By: _
Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

STATE OF WISCONSIN)
ss

COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE)

On this day ofAD. 20 before me personally
appeared John R. Nelson and Karen L. Kastenson who being by me duly sworn, did say that they are
respectively the Mayor and City Clerk ofthe City of Franklin, and that the seal affixed to said instrument
1s the corporate seal of said municipal corporation, and acknowledged that they executed the foregomg
assignment as such officers as the deed of said municipal corporation by its authority, and pursuant to
resolution file No. adopted by its Common Council on__________ 20

Notary Public, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin
( )
My commission eXpIreS

N-4

)



MORTGAGE HOLDER CONSENT

The underS1gnd, d Wisconsm bankmg corporation
("Mortgagee"), as Mortgagee under that certam Mortgage encumbering the Property and recorded in the
Office of the Register ofDeeds for MIiwaukee County, Wisconsin, on _, 20
,d} Document No, hereby consents to the execution of the foregoing easement and
its addition as an encumbrance against title to the Property.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Mortgagee has caused these presents to be signed by its duly
authorized officers, and its corporate seal to be hereunto affixed, as of the day and year first above
written.

a Wisconsin Banking Corporation

By: _

Name

Title. -------------

STATE OF WISCONSIN)
ss

COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE)

On this, the day of20 before me, the undersigned,
personally appeared the Of
, a Wisconsin banking corporation, and acknowledged that (s)he executed the foregoing instrument on
behalfof said corporation, by its authonty and for the purposes therein contamed.

Name: _

Notary Public _

ta(e of

County of _

My commission expires:

This mstrument was drafted by the City ofFranklin

Approved as to contents
City Engineer
Date: -------------

Approved as to form only
City Attorney
Date·-------------

N-5



Exhibit A

PARCEL I OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO 6508 AND LOT l OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP
NO 9289, LOCATED IN THE SOUTHEAST¼ AND THE NORTHEAST¼ OF SECTION 7,
TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, IN THE CITY OF FRANKLIN, MILWAUKEE COUNTY,
WISCONSIN.
SAID LANDS CONTAINING 440,001 SQ FT (10.101 ACRES) MORE OR LESS
(MEASURED TO THE MEANDER LINE)

N-6



Exhibit B

EXHIBITB
DEPICTION OF THE FACILITIES

SYSTEM DESCRIPTION SlllE STORM WAllER MANAGEMENT INCLUDES THE IMPLEMENTATION OF A STORM WAllER POND
LOCATIED AT THE NORTHWEST END I OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY SlllE DRAINAGE WILL BE DIRECllED VIA STORM SEWERS
AND OVERLAND FLOW TO THE POJIII} Wl-i lCH WILL PROVIDE WAllER QUALITY AND QUANTITY CONTROL. THE OUTFLOW IS
CON1ROLLED BY A 48")(4B" oull.EIT STRUCTURE WITH A 24" OUTLET PIPE n-tAT DISCHARGES TO THE NORTH

STING YiEllAN D LIMITS

➔
3 >

3
SPILLWAY
76 23

>

~¥

64-----
NBB"37'15"W 236.

STORM WATER
ACCESS EASEMENT

I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

STORM WAlER
ACCE5S EASEMENT

ACCESS TO BASIN FROM
WEST FOREST HOME AVF..

NORTHWEST 1/4
OF THE SOUTHEAST
1/4 OF SEC. 7--5-21

Ea]S887'1,»
78.90

CJ
engineering
civil design and consulllng
2.8W carter9at
Sulta2-t4
M llvva.1..1 ke e , VV1 5322 2
PH (4'14) 443-'13'12
www.q-englneer1ng.corn

GRAPHIC SCALE

/,
1 inch= 60 ft

120

CJE NO 1931RII
NOVEMBER 18, 2022

N-7



Exhibit C

EXHIBITC
DESCRIPTION OF EASEMENT AREA

STORM WATER EASEMENT IEGAL. DESCRIPION
PARCEL 1 OF CERllFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 6508 AND LOT 1 OF CERllFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 9289, LDCAlED IN lHE
SOUTHEAST 1/4 AND lHE NORlHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 7, TOWNSHIP 5 NORlH, RANGE 21 EAST, IN THE CITY OF
FRANKLIN, MILWAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN, BOUNDED AND DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT lHE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF lHE SOUlHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 7--5--21; THENCE S S37'15" E, 78.90 FEET;
THENCE 46.21 FEET ALONG lHE ARC OF A CURVE WHOSE CENlER LIES TO THE NORTHWEST. WHOSE RADIUS IS 2864.79,
AND WHOSE CHORD BEARS N 1430'35" E, 46.21 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUING 154.02 FEET
ALONG THE ARC OF A CUR\/E WHOSE CENlER LIES TO THE NORlHWEST, WHOSE RADIUS IS 2864.79, AND WHOSE CHORD
BEARS N 12'30'27" E, IS4.O1 FEET; THENCE N 7452'37 E, 124.35 FEET; lHENCE s 563'21" E, 103.91 FEET; THENCE
S 01"22'45" W, 131 22 FEET; THENCE N 8837'15 w, 236.98 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING

CJE NO (93IRII
NOVEMBER I8 , 2022

1

STORM WAlER
ACCESS EASEMENT

1 inch= 60 ft

GRAPHIC SCALE
IO 0

NORTHWEST 1/4
OF THE SOUTHEAST
1/4 OF SEC. 7--5-21

[" n5r@)

P.O.B.

J
engineering
civil design end consulting
1920Eli \N Canl.ar" Stnaal:
SultlA214
KqIteaulee, Wv1 5sa2.2a.
rH 442443-1312
wwe oJ-erglreserir.or

L \ENGDOCS\Design Standards (7-2017)\Design Standards Ju ly 2017\Design Standards finalized for July 2017\2019 Design Standards
Appendix N Easement for storm water management access #12 doc

N-8



TEMPORARY TURN AROUND EASEMENT
Tess Creek Estates

11600 West Forest Home Avenue
Tax Keys 796-9987-001 & 751-9001-000

THIS EASEMENT is made by and between the CITY OF FRANKLIN, a municipal corporation
of the State of Wisconsm, hereinafter referred to as "City", and Forest Home Investors, LLC as Owners
(including successors and assigns of above Owners as may be or may become applicable), hereinafter
called "Grantor", (ifmore that one Grantor is hsted above, srud language herem referrmg thereto shall be
interpreted m the plural and refer jomtly and severally to such as Grantors)

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, Grantor 1s the owner and holder of record Title to certain real property particularly
described on Exhibit "A" which is attached hereto and incorporated herein (the property); and

WHEREAS, the City desires to acqmre a non-exclusive easement with the right of entry in and
across a portion of the property as the same is more particularly hereinafter described, with the nght to
build and construct and/or operate, maintain, repair, enlarge, reconstruct, relocate and inspect as may be
or may become applicable, the following facilities and appurtenances thereto, hereinafter collectively
called the "Facilities", in, upon and across said portion of the Property a temporary turn around
easement, all as shown on the plan attached hereto as ExhibitA?

NOW THEREFORE, m consideration of the grant of the easement heremafter descnbed, the
mstallation and maintenance of the Facilities by the Grantor, and the City, and the payment ofOne Dollar
($1.00) and other valuable consideration to the Grantor, the receipt whereof 1s hereby acknowledged, said
Grantor, being the owner and person interested in the land hereinafter described, does hereby grant unto
the City a perpetual, non-exclusive temporary turn around easement, more particularly described on
Exhibit "A" attached hereto (the "Easement area").

1. That said Facilities shall be maintained and kept in good order and condition by the City,
at the sole cost and expense ofthe City.

2. That in and during whatever construction, reconstruction, enlargement or repair work 1s
or becomes necessary in constructmg and/or maintaining of said Facilities, so much of the surface or
subsurface of the Easement Area on the Property as may be disturbed will, at the expense of the City, be
replaced in substantially the same condition as it was prior to such disturbance. However, the City shall
mdemnify and save harmless the Grantor from and against any loss, damage, claim, cost, inJury, or
hability resulting from negligence or willful acts or omissions on the part of the City, its agents or
employees in connection with said work involved in constructing and/or maintaining of said Facilities;
provided that if the above loss, claim, cost, damage, injury or liability results from the jomnt neghgence of
parties hereto, then the liabihty therefore shall be borne by them in proportion to theu respective degree
of negligence: provided further, however, that these provision are subject to the legal defenses available
under law which the City or Grantor are entitled to raise, excepting the defense of so-called "sovereign
immunity".

3. That no structure may be placed within the limits of the Easement Area by the Grantor
except that improvements such as walks, pavements for driveways and parkmg lot surfacmg and
landscaping may be constructed or placed wthin the Easement Area.

4 That, in connect1on with the construction by the Grantor of any structure or buildmng
abutting said Easement Area, the Grantor will assume all liability for any damage to the Facilities in the
above descnbed Easement Area. The Grantor will also save and keep the City clear and harmless from
any claim for personal mjuries or property damage caused by any neghgence or willful acts or omissions

P-I



of the Grantor or persons actmg on behalfof the Grantor, arismg out of the construction by the Grantor of
any structure or building abuttmg the said Easement Area, and shall reimburse the City for the full
amount of such loss or damage

5. That no charges will be made against the property for the cost of mamtenance or
operation of said Facilities m the property. Whenever the Grantor makes application for a service
connection associated with the services provided by virtue of the Facility, the regular and customary
service connection charge in effect at the time of the application shall be charged and paid.

6. The Facilities shall be accessible for maintenance by the City at all times The Grantor
shall submit plans for approval to the City Engineer for any underground installat10n within the Easement
Area, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed.

7. That the Grantor shall submit plans for all surface alterations ofplus or minus 1 foot or
greater within the limits of said Easement Area. Said alterat10ns shall be made only with the approval of
the City Engineer of the City ofFranklin, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld,
conditioned, or delayed.

8. The City and Grantor shall each use, and take reasonable measures to cause their
employees, officers, customers, agents, contractors, and assigns to use, the Easement Area m a reasonable
manner and so as not to obstruct or otherwise use the Easement Area in a manner that would
unreasonably mterfere with the use thereof by the other party hereto or it's employees, officers,
customers, agents, contractors and assigns.

9. The City and Grantor each hereby waive all nghts of subrogations that either has or may
hereafter have agamst the other for any damage to the Easement Area or any other real or personal
property or to persons covered by such party's insurance, but only to the extent of the waiving party's
insurance coverage; provided, however, that the foregoing waivers shall not mvalidate any policy of
insurance now or hereafter issued, it being hereby agreed that such a waiver shall not apply in any case
which would result in the invalidation ofany such policy or insurance and that each party shall notify the
other 1f such party's msurance would be so invalidated.

10. Either party hereto may enforce this easement by appropriate action, and should 1t prevail
in such litigation, that party shall be entitled to recover, as part of its costs, reasonable attorney's fees

11 This easement may not be modified or amended, except by a writing executed and
delivered by the City and Grantor or their respective successors and assigns.

12 No warver of, acquiescence in, or consent to any breach of any term, covenant, or
condition hereby shall be construed as, or constitute, a waiver of acquiescence in, or consent to any other,
further, or succeeding breach of the same or any other term, covenant, or condition.

13 If any term or provision ofthis easement shall, to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable
under applicable law, then the remaining terms and proviswns of this easement shall not be affected
thereby, and each such remaming term and provision shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent
permitted by applicable law

14. This easement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the Internal laws of the
State ofWisconsin

15. Upon completion of the use of the Easement Area for the specific use as a temporary
turnaround, the City shall cause the prompt restoratwn to a smooth surface contour and neat condition,
restoring the Easement Area into a condition similar to the remaining parcel as descrbed mn Exhibit "A"

16. Upon completion of use of the Easement Area for the specific use as a temporary turn-
around and the restoratwn of the Easement Area by the City, the easement shall be termmated by

P- 2



recording a release m recordable form with duections for delivery of same to Grantor at his last address
given pursuant hereto, whereupon all rights, duties, and liabilities created shall terminate.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has hereunto set its hands and seals

ON THIS DATE OF:, 20

By: Forest Home Investors, LLC

By·-------------
Ken Servi, Managmg Member

STATE OF WISCONSIN)
ss

COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE)

Before me personally appeared on the day ofA.D 20
named _, of _

Ken Servi Managing Member Forest Home Investors, LLC
to me known to be the person(s) who executed the foregoing Easement and acknowledged the same as the
voluntary act and deed of said corporation.

Notary Public
My commission expires _

CITY OF FRANKLIN

By-----------------
John R. Nelson, Mayor

By: _
Karen L Kastenson, City Clerk

STATE OF WISCONSIN )
ss

COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE)

On this day of20, before me personally appeared John R. Nelson
and Karen L. Kastenson who being by me duly sworn, did say that they are respectively the Mayor and
City Clerk of the City of Franklin, and that the seal affixed to said instrument is the corporate seal of said
mumcipal corporation, and acknowledged that they executed the foregomng assignment as such officers as
the deed of said municipal corporation by 1ts authority, and pursuant to Resolution File No
adopted by its Common Council on, 2O

Notary Pubhc, Milwaukee County, W1sconsm

My comm1ssion expires

P- 3

the above



MORTGAGE HOLDER CONSENT

The undersigned, a Wsconsmn bankmng corporation
("Mortgagee"), as Mortgagee under that certam Mortgage encumbenng the Property and recorded in the
Office of the Register ofDeeds for Milwaukee County, /jgcons1n, On as
Document No. hereby consents to the execution of the foregoing easement and its addition as
an encumbrance against title to the Property.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Mortgagee has caused these presents to be signed by its duly
authonzed officers, and its corporate seal to be hereunto affixed, as of the day and year first above
written

a Wisconsin Banking Corporation
By: _

Name _

Title _

STATE OF WISCONSIN)
ss

COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE)

On this, the_ day of, 20. before me, the undersigned, personally
appeared

-------~of _
(Name printed) (Title) (Development)

a Wisconsin banking corporation, and acknowledged that (s)he executed the foregoing instrument on
behalf of said corporat10n, by its authority and for the purposes therein contained.

Name. _
Notary Public

State of------------------

County of _

My commission exp1res.

This instrument was drafted by the City ofFranklm

Approved as to contents
City Engmeer

Date: _

Approved as to form only

[)ate

P- 4

Crty Attorney



Exhibit A

(Description ofthe Property)

PARCEL 1 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO 6508 AND LOT 1 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP
NO 9289, LOCATED IN THE SOUTHEAST¼ AND THE NORTHEAST ¼ OF SECTION 7,
TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, IN THE CITY OF FRANKLIN, MILWAUKEE COUNTY,
WISCONSIN.
SAID LANDS CONTAINING 440,001 SQ. FT (10.101 ACRES) MORE OR LESS.
(MEASURED TO THE MEANDER LINE)

P- 5



111.2 I
(771.53)

D.O I I
-nn-.

Exhibit B

CITY OF FRANKLIN
EXHIBIT "B"

DEPICTION OF THE FACILITIES •Nr
''''''',,

.
(

l....
3
TEMPORARY
TURN A ROUND
EASEMENT

I
L'

LJ
engineering
civil design and consulting
920 v crrtsrttrrest
Suite 214
Milwaatuk9, MW1 53222
reH (414)443-1312
www.q]--englneartng.com

GRAPHIC SCALE
He.i-,

1 inch= 60 ft

P- 6

T
CJE NO l931Rl3

FEBRUARY 10, 2023



Exhibit C

CITY OF FRANKLIN
EXHIBIT "C"

DESCRIPTION OF EASEMENTAREA

BEING APART OF PARCEL 1 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 6508AND LOT 1 OF CERTIFIED
SURVEY MAP NO. 9289LOCATEDIN THENORTHWEST1/4OF THESOUTHEAST1/4AND

SOUTIIWEST 1/4 OF THENORTIIBAST 1/4 OF SECTION 7, TOWNSHIPS NORTH, RANGB21 EAST, IN
TIIB CITY OF FRANKLIN, MILWAUKHB COUN1Y, WISCONSIN

•Nr
EASEMENT DESCRIPTION·
COMMENCING AT THENORTHEASTCORNEROF PARCEL 1 CSM 6508, THENCE S 755425W, 38 57FEETTO THE POINT
OF BEGlNNlNG, THENCE 114.02FEBTALONG THEARCOF A CURVE WHOSE CBNTBRLIESTO THENORTHWEST,
WHOSE RADIUS JS46.00 AND WHOSE CHORDBEARSS 65%0431" W, 86.99FEET; THENCE N 65%0431" E, 86.99 FEET TO
THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

LOT 1 CSM
9289

PARCEL 1
CSM 6508

LOT 8 LOT 9

S75"54'25"W
38.57'

S6504'31"w
C=86.99'
L=114.02'
R=46.00

LOT 17

.J
engineering
civil design and consulting
9M208W errteerstreet
9uit 24
Mllwaukee. VYI 53222
re+ (414) 443-1312
wwe.denglreorirg.«conn

GRAPHIC SCALE

hi-f,
1 inch= 60 ft

T
CJE NO. 195 1Rl5

FEBRUARY ID, 2023

L \ENGDOCS\Design Standards (7-2017)\Design Standards July 2017\Design Standards finahzed for July 2017\2019 Design Standards
Appendix P Easement for Temporary Turnaround # 14 doc

P- 7



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Recommendation for 2024 Employee Benefit-Related
Coverages, Carriers, and Premium Shares, Including

Health Insurance, Wellness, Health and Wellness
Supplementary Programs, Dental Insurance, and

Related Contracts.

MEETING
DATE

10/17/2023

ITEM NUMBER

G.I0

Below 1s mformation relative to each element of the City's Health Insurance, Wellness, Health and
Wellness Supplementary Programs, Dental Insurance Plan, and related contracts for 2024, and a
recommendation on the same. Attached, as Exhibit A, is a draft of the 2024 Budget along with a
comparison to the 2023 Adopted Budget.

The items m bold text are recommended changes for 2024.

Smee the City performed an RFP process for the benefits consultmg partner and previously
contracted for that work for 2023, it 1s not part of this recommendation for 2024.

The Personnel Committee is considering this item at their October 16, 2023, meeting, and any
recommendation made by the Committee will be presented to the Common Council at the Meeting.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends that the Common Council approve the followmg proposed plan elements for
2024:

1. Continuation of UMR as the Thrd-Party Administrator (TPA) for the City's two (2) health
msurance plans, PPO and HDHP, as well as the administrator to manage the Health
Reimbursement Arrangement (HRA) Program and COBRA Program, as an extension to the
existing three-year agreement which goes through 2024. The City's experience with this provider
has been favorable.

2. Changes to overall premiums and employee premium shares for 2024 health insurance are deta1led
mn Exhibit B. Due to higher-than-anticipated claims costs over the past year, premiums and
employee premiums will need to be mcreased for the first time in over 5 years.

3. Contmue the primary care model for the health msurance premium mcentive. This entails that
employees/spouses submit proof that they have undergone an annual, age and gender-specific
phys1cal and corresponding bloodwork to receive the preferred/wellness rate for the health
insurance plan for the following year. For 2024, with only 3 weeks until the deadlme, only 60% of
our employees have met this requurement. The annual phys1cal 1s recommended to be completed
through Nice Healthcare smce there is no cost to the employee or spouse.

4. Contmue with the Health Savmgs Account (HSA) contributions in 2024, at annual amounts of $750
for a single plan and $1,500 for a family plan. These contributions will continue to be distributed
monthly.

5. 'The current HSA agreement with Associated Bank wall not change. A three-year renewal was
accepted last year as 1t extended the waiver of monthly service fees for accounts with balances less
than $1,000, and there were no monthly service fees for accounts with balances of $1,000 or more.
A renewal agreement/amendment was processed as part of last year's budget and benefit
acceptance. The City's experience with ths provder has been favorable.



6. Continue with the Health Reimbursement Arrangement (HRA) for 2024, up to $1,250 for a single
plan and up to $2,500 for a famly plan, whch provides coverage for employees enrolled 1n the High
Deductible Health Plan (HDHP), to help offset deductible and out-of-pocket costs. The HRA
becomes available once the employee reaches the access point of $1,600 for a single plan
and $3,200 for a family plan. Due to an IRS regulatory adjustment for qualified high
deductible health plans, these access points had to increase slightly from $1,500/$3,000.
This requirement also changes the individual deductible on a family plan from $3,000 to
$3,200. The out-of-pocket maximum is not being changed.

7. Remove the below language from the Health Plan Summary Plan Description. This contmuation is
no longer necessary now that pre-musting conditions are no longer excluded from insurance plans.

I, at the time coverage terminates, a Covered Person is Totally Disabled, benefits will be
paid for charges Incurred before the eanier of:

The date the Covered Person is no longer Totally Disabled; or
12 months from the date coverage would have ended

Benefits wll be pad only for the Illness for which the Covered Person is Totally Disabled and
only to the extent that benefits would have been paid if the coverage had not been
tem11nated COBRA coverage, if elected, will run concurrently wth this extension of benefits
period, subject to all COBRA regulations and premum payments as described mn this
document.

8. Contmue with the Nice Healthcare Program; a one-year renewal with a yearly price increase of $60
per employee is recommended. The City's experience with this provider has been favorable.

9. Go365, the wellness program offered by Humana, won't be offered in 2024. This is not the
City's decision; the provider is discontinuing the program in 2024.

10. Continue with Serve You Rx as the Pharmacy Benefit Manager. Serve You provided us with
enhanced pricing effective 10/1/23. 'The City's experience with this provider has been favorable.

11. Continue with Symetra as the provider/administrator of the stop loss protect10n. The
recommended renewal offer for this coverage with Symetra is at the $90,000 specific
deductible with an increase of 10.9%. This represents an increase over approximately
$67,000 but is approximately $57,000 below the current $80,000 specific deductible
renewal, which would be an increase of 10.9%, as illustrated in Exhibit C. The City's
experience with thus provder has been favorable.

12. Contmue with Prudential as the provider for both the City's hfe insurance and long-term disability
plans under a three-year agreement that goes through 2024. The Cty's experience wth this
provider has been favorable.

13. Contmue with Delta Dental as the Third-Party Admimstrator for the City's dental plan under a
three-year agreement through 2024. The City's experience with this provider has been favorable.
Add an optional HMO plan, CarePlus, to the dental offering, providing a choice to the
employee. This dual-choice option will include orthodontic coverage, which many
employees have requested, but at a cheaper premium, as coverage must be obtained at a
limited network of providers.

14. Continue with VSP as the City's voluntary vision plan provider. VSP has extended its initial rate
guarantee through 2025. 'The City's experience with this provider has been favorable.

15. Continue with the flexible spendmg program through Employee Benefits Corporation, includmg
dependent care, standard health care, and limited health care. Rates will remain the same for
2024. The Caty's experience with this provider has been favorable.

16. Contmue with the USI Benefit Resource Center, at no additional cost, for employees to provide
another point of contact for 1tems such as (l) customer service representatives to ass1st with
fmdmg providers; (2) obtaming detailed benefits mformation; (3) assisting with the open
enrollment process; (4) being able to answer just about any quest1on posed regarding the City's
msurance benefits; (5) a repository for the City's Plan Documents; and (6) vdeos and tutorials that
are available on demand for employees.



All 1tems included mn this recommendation are cons1stent wth the Mayor's Recommended 2024
Budget. These recommendations are s1mlar to pr1or budgets, striving to contain overall plan costs,
engage employees, and provide sufficient benefits to attract and retain quality employees.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to approve the 2024 employee benefit-related coverages, earners, and premium shares, as
outlined herem, mcludmg health msurance, wellness, health and wellness supplementary
programs, and dental msurance; authorize the Director of Admmistrat10n to execute the
appropriate related contracts and authorize Human Resources to mcorporate the approved changed
mto the Employee Handbook.

DOA-KH I HR- DZ



z lO LO 6 <OMLOM ...... <D lO r- «t O 35 m m NNlO m lO <D m a, ......
0O t lO LON..-C> m m m r----o lO lO OOmlO N m a, M M ""'"C>- c.o_ -.:::t_ t::.. mMV C"'> m 00<000 "!. ......_ r--:. 00 lO .._,. m N N 004 > faoS 00 _:- LO I.O ao oi± ,,-; o>E- oom M"<T:::!:, NC>-.:::tV 5 ""'"""'"- 0 - lO ...... a,(.) r---N .._,._N ......_ 00<( N-

E- Ni:n"'f'--.. ""'" mm lO M M .._,. M 0 00 00 CONN N lO <O My oo O m or--- 5 0 LO mo lO 00 00 mmio ""'" <O <O '<TC>-
- N 00 lO M_OO_ lO r- Lu) 0 C, ""'" -.:I;_ r--- lO N <D N_ "!. ......4 >

E o5-cl o Cai c.ci o5 <.Oofci c.ci i N CON..-- i oi
'<T ::::.. ""'" M 5 lO lO .._,. lO m lO lO ......C( (.) r---- o 09 0<( coo

I--m-::c oo - I- 000 0 000 0 0>< y <t' LLI 0 0 00 0 0
0 0 00 0 0 000 0 OC>O 0 08=g 0 0 NC> M lO 000 0 .._,.C>O ""'" a,Ill .,,- ,,-; o5co ..,- i ci l.0 00 ,.; io I.O ,,-;25 0000 ""'" 5 0> o3 M N <D 00 '<T5 e O "'!_N m_ 0,.;

oo a>- C> 0 C, C>C>C>C> 0 0 0 000 C, lO<O"I M 00 00 M M '<T3E- C> M M OC>C>C> C, 0 0 000 C, LOr--. M <D N N MC> 0::, 00 NC>C>('f') lO 00 00 000 0 t t m m o -- N (.) 2: co 0 0»Goo ...: c.ci c.ci So c.ci N-cir- c.ci 5z wt- '<T ¥ 00 c «- t "' om oo ...... 00 ""'" M..., (.) Or- m <ON 0:::::i Q<( ,.;
~o a:::

0...
-2>LL LL
Lu. LIoo ""'"I- I- 0 C, C>lO C, lO OC> C, OC>O C, lO- N(l)W 0 0 Nm 0 - ]r- M C>C>O C, '<Tu)DO 0 C, C, ...... 0 00 rO OC>O 0 a,-~ N :::> 0 00 00 C>- ...... ,,-; "" U)C, ,,-; coo 00 ,.;O:::> t ± « 0 ""'" N ...... ...... ""'" ± ...... N M0:::, Wen • a, lOM m No:::cn a::: "" oi <f

oz I-
0...

LL • wLL 0I- ...Jo:::wOena. in t OH- C> 0 OlO 0 lO 00 0 OC>O 0 lOw r- NzW C> 0 I 0> C, - j r- r OC>O 0 ""'"0::: 0w (.9 0 0 or--- C, 00  - OC>O 0 a,
I- "C '"":::eo 00 coo i r- ,,-; oi uo ,,-; l,t) M- c:i 00 coC: :::e :::> z ± O ""'" N ............ ""'" ± ...... N Mw ::s r---- m lOM m NC) LL o co o "" .._,.-(.)0 w:::, a:::
IXl a:::

0
>-
:::l?

Ul -' .> I->- 0 E- w0 w w (.) a:::-' w 0 w <f cha.. en >-:::e :r: w en w
>- '-Y

w 0 (.9 wo::: w (.9(.9 >--' z- > (.9 a:::!:::: <i! ~ 0::: I- a.. <C :r: z Fg 0::: <((/) en en <( -:::;; + ::s <( :r:+ uu ?2 :r: O uu ?a :r: (.)z oz enocn z (.) wf:3ch a_ CD a.. (.) w
wen w Wwwen z w u O w >-W w w-' wo= (.9 :::e 0::: w <C :r: ::s ...J (.9 w -' 1? -' I- (.9 :r: -' a::: uu wH- .au 0::: •:::;;I- ...JI- m 0::: (.9 CD CD u 0::: I- u w E- 0:::go <( (.9 :::> <( a.-' a.. <( 0::: E- men E- , <_, > w o:::z E-:r: :r: - ffl , -' i= :r: <C en (.) i= ~ > z a::: -wz w <( 0 05! :::> :::> oT« -w  ....'.i 1-o wuOz (.) <( :r: z 0 :::, :r: u uy uI w 1-o u W' a:::z<(CD 0EE>z z z a.. 0 :::, :r: :r: <( w Ou 0 wc.9:r::r: u 0 a.. <( <( w 0::: tl:J- (.9 :::e & '- w 0 0::: I- a.. z <C :::> -' I- w -'z Zt-iii z -'-' a.. 0::: o E- uu'_yum 0 0 :r: 0 z <( <i! 0::: 6 ;:: wz a::: • 0::: ;::0 Oza:::

~
<( <( (/) >- :::> -o::: ci 1 :r: w I- :r: ....10 Luu UI E- 1F- z go u! o 0 en !::: (!) <( 2 C-'

~
IwC!> :::> <( 0::: z oz o er uI z 0(!) u :r: ' w0... :r::r:0<( z c, 0::: r± <( en I- (!) w -w a::: I- Cf w i=iY u1_o a-a+= I- :r: :cw :i: :::, <i! a.. <i! z =% 1-W 0a::: en z -' -' z C> g, g, ::s -' C> :r: WO::: z<C en £(.) en w w :::> ~ z55a..o:: <( <( uH- -' -' uu wen <( -oou - a.. <( 2zzOz j:!: u4 co $ 0: E- j:!: 8 <( :::>w w H- w -o:::o::~~ u 1-O 0::: ::C 0::: 0::: X u ::c 0::: 0::: Co ,w a:::zz== ci ci -6 z I-0 z ;l, C!> C!> en a.. . u CD ...J (!) (!) 0::: • (!) CD z ,O CD ...J a::: z . (.) CD w enw w 0 <( w 0 ...J w 0 w 0 >' i

(!) 0 :::e £ (.) 0 :::e £ u < 0 $ (.) <( 0 £ (.) w nz>z c c I- a::: z-0 C> m "' m lO z C> m 5 z lO IXl <O 0 o==u' u C> w 5 0 5 w 5 0 5 w N 0 w N 0 N w -c0 C> 0 0 00::: C) C> == lO 0 lO == lO 0 lO 0 lO 0 lO 0 lO 0 lO I- H-- a0 .. a. a. a. . a. a. . a. a. a. a. <( ::$,a::: Lil «- coo«- a, ■ ..- V <O ,._ a, M a, -.._,. ...... a, 3 a, -.., .._,. a, M a, o 3 a, co8 a, :::e 0::: r-1-o--ro -0 0C>OC>C> -0 ..... C> -0 NOC>C> -0 -0 Oc,c,c, -0 ..... C> -0 -0 -0 E-w
<(

C r---r---r--- h T- ,._ r- r- r- ........... T- ,._ ,.._ r- ........... ~ Nr---r---r--- t Nr--- h Nr--- h Nr--- en a. "'2'CD o {sq .e o .e o .e o "i "i .e o .e o "i "i .e 0 "i .e C "'j .e 0 "i .e w 0 .....:::e oooo .!!l. ll')QC>C> C> .!!l. f2 «- rn ll'>NNN rn in <D rn inooc,
.!!l.

if} «-
.!!l. in lO .!!l. in <O rn -' 0::: o:::> i= o.,888 .... ..-...--,--..- -- ...... ..- ,..... 'T"'"" -- .... NNN - "' -'"" -'"" -z g D..C>C>C>C> "5 D.. C> 3 0..C>C>O ]i o.o ]i 0.. C>C>O g o.o "5 o.o g o.o ~ j:!: a. D..n o?? Cl) LO LO LO LO Cl) u;> CD u;> u;> u;> 0 Cl) u;> 0 CD U., u;> u;> Cl) u;> Cl) u;> Cl) u;> a. Cl)-' uu a22g I- 0 ID J, J., J, I- o ? I- o 222 I- c:e I- ClOlOlO I- c:e I- o ? I- a2 I- 0 <( 0(.9 r- r- r- r- .................. I-



,:::;j:: C) C) <0<00>0><0 eo M Nr---N ;::: lO C> LOO> r- Wr- ,-... N N r-I M <D
C) e m..-r-mr- LO r C>

~
C><D 8R%8¥ 5 00 00 ,-... <D <D 0) ::;j:5 lO"C"""" 'q"'NCO LO MM M 'Sl-00 'SI' 'SI' p er v- C)

i= ,-.: ,-.: ......:- CV)- LO-«i LO >«- ,-.: G«- o> LO ._. <XJ ..- I"'- O> ._. ,-.: ffoo i <f
'<t 'SI' goo -c.o co <"'>r-OC>LOO>M C> Lt$  000 0) ,-- O> ._. ...- M-- ,-..._<(

~ j:: C) C) M M ..-O>O><OLO <DC>lll ;;:; 00 0) ,-... LO LO O <D LO LC)v C> 'SI' 'SI' .,., 00 ,-... C) M
C) C> 0) 0) <O<X>e>«>m "St-«>«> ll) ll) co NNCX>VC>-.;;tOO N ll) ll) mr---r--- ll) C>C>- M M 'V <X> CO LO ...- r--- 00 CO 'SI' o y « o ll) 'SI' 'SI' '<t M '<t M 004 >

i= ,..__- ,..__- ici oouuSo -co i N i >>coo-co in >oN. <'i <'i
'<t 'SI' e±+± «> 'SI' 'VlOC>OlVN- M z ll)0 «> ,r--"!_N "}

<( ci

o l}- C) C> C> C> C>C>C>C>O C>C>C> C> C>C>C>C>C> C> C> C) C) 000 C)N <( W C) C> C> C> C>OC>OC> C>C>C> C> C>C>C>C>O C> C> C> C> 000 C)zg ,-... ,-... C>C>C>C>C> r 'SI'_ LOC>OC>C> C> ll) C>_ C>_ OLOC> ll)

S2 ::i ,-.: ,-.: i N 83g53 -co w +cooiG in m 5coo ,-.:
'<t 'SI' C> lO'VO>C>r- N 00 z ll)

~CD
Or- ~ '"":. ..- ..-_..--('f') C>

N

C>
C>
C>
<")

lo

>.:::::,
<.J
Ew rn

>12
j::: i3
O..s
<( ]i
...JC
<( Q)

• 9z<Cw 0::8
,0

c2m
0
0

15.
Q)
"O

ONO N
C> <.O O <.O
C>VC> "'d"
oo5 G
pw 0

g
C>m
N
«>
<'>

C>
C>
C>
in
N

C> C>
C> C>
C> C>
LO m'
N N

<D
<'>

C>C>C>C>O
C>CJC>C>C>
C>CJC>C>C>
N.io co
t-MO>C>C>
rl ruo

N

C)C::,C)C::,C)
C)C:,C)C:,C)
OC>C>C> C>N-.i>ior- Mm oo
r jr «- Lu)

i

LO r- I"- o oooao
lOO>to<Or-LON
NN<.0..--r--..-'V
-- O">Nr-:Mc:>ci
Ml.OMO>O>VO>- o o

C) C> C>
C> C> C>
O r-

- GC> co
0)

888
v-«- o

C> 00
0)

g
C>
c5
'SI'

C>
C>
C>
C>
'SI'

C> C>
C> C>
C> C>
5 u
O 'SI',-...

C> C>
C> C>
C> C>
0 in
C> 'SI',-...

~
ll)

a
15.
Q)

"O

C> C>
C> C>,-... ,-...
cu i

enww
LL
:,:::W
zU
<( z

u1 a
s

<(
zu:::

15.
Q)
"O0::w

CD~
::iz
-'
<.9

z
0
i=
(L

i'i::
0enw
0

'SI' I- I
N en W
> uJD
'3 oa ::iwen

0::
1-
(L
w
0

z
'.:j
::s:::o3zs
LL LL
u. LIoo>-'20 ::,
0::: V)
oz
LL •
I- LL
0::: u1
O n
0.. IOw .....
0:::
I- "Cw C:
(!) ~
0::,
m



z 5 ,._ CO LO CO ,:;:; $ ;::::- r
5 ""' ""' N O> MM5 <O fl LO <X) O> <O<O

j::: LO ,-.: ,-.: o LO co N.
""' :::!:. ¢ 03u O> ¢g r-<( c-J MM

z (V)(O J <ON <X) LO <X) grt 0O <"> Mr-- C> (0 ,._ gr
5 N <O ,._ v N <DO>
j::: .._,c .._,c f N- ci r--,-..:-

O> co O> ,._u O> ]<( c-J S coo

M---' I- C> 0N <( W C> C> mm8=g N M
o5 ,,; £$!::2:::, ,._ Mg a v :::!:.,,; MN

C>
C>
C>
00
f

C>
C>
C>
00
""'

C>
C>
C>
ci
""'~

C>
C>
C>
00
¥

C>g
ci
t

en
1-zw=t-enw>z
z
0
tenwa::w
I-z

wuz
::Su
<(Z
CD ::5
0<(_,

%
LL Z W
0:::,Z
Z LL W
zooz z C>--C>
(!)OC>uu 2 o
CDWl-zw

5
lo::
<(
CLw
0

=~<0<">,._ O>
S

MC>r---~
i ?

LO,._
0z
:::,
LL

(/)z
0

5
0::
CL
0
0::
CL
CL
<(/)
w
:::,
z
!w
0::
LL
0
1-wz

"'3<X)
00
N
!£.

(/)z
0
j:::
<(r
CL
0
0::
CL
CL
<(
---'
~
0
I-

C>
5
c-J

C>C>«-
C>
N

z
0
j:::
CL
0::u
(/)w
0

""'0 1-N z WuuDN::::;;0

=o co
uw
0::
0::
0

~

""'I- IN (I) W89g
0 :::,
W CD
0::

ti::w
0

z
:::i
::.:::03zs
LL LL
u. LIou-~U:=,
0:: V)oz
LL LL
I- ...J
0:: wocna.. II)w .....
:: "C
w§
C) LL
0
=>al



Ill l <O y ]
CJ 0 'V ll) 0

C0 ·;: ll) t ('I) ('I)... <O ll) ll) ('I)a, ('I) ,- ll) lF- E
C0 0- E y ('I) Cl() ll):::c: ... I'-- <O ('I) y
X ::I ,- ,- [ y

0 c:i c:i c:i c:iLL.I .c...
5

ll) 'V ('I) l I'-- Cl() ('I) 0
('I) ('I) 0 0 l ,- 0) Cl(),- ,- l y ,- ,- ,- .....
c:i c:i c:i 0 0 0 c:i c:i

Ill -; Cl() <O N 'V -; <O ll) ll) ('I) <e <e e e.c N t 0) 0) o ": V Cl() 0 0 0 0... ::I LO ::I .,; 0) ('I) Cl() ('I)
c C I'-- I'-- 0 rc I Cl() t 0 ..... o I'--
0 r ,- 0 ll) ('I) C I'-- 0) 'V 'V 'V LO ('I) t<C t Cl() <O 0) <C ('I) ..... <O ('I)E o o o I ('I) y ('I)

<O <O 0::: 0) 0 0).... a:: ..... ,- y l.... w w
.c ..... 0) Cl() 0 .c N <O ll) 'V e e e <... ..... "! ll) 0 ... I'-- ll) ('I) N- 0 0 0 0c (I() C ....: 0) ('I) Cl() ('I)
0 I'-- I'-- Cl() 0 <O 0 Cl() 0 ..... 0) I'--
::!!: <O <O Cl() I'-- ::!!: 0) <O l I'-- 'V ll) ('I) f('I) ll) ('I) ll) <O I'-- I'-- I'--- - y ('I) N 3
a:: ..... ..... a:: ..... .....
w w
.c <O l 0 0 .c 'V Cl() <O 0 e < e °... N 0 0 0 ... ..... e 0) ..... 0 0 0
C c:i C c:i i ..... 0 ..... .....
0 l <O <O 0 ..... Cl() ) 0 3 )

::!!: 3 0) Cl() <O ::!!: I'-- ..... 'V Cl()
<O <O o <Ot M ..... N ..... 'V .....- - ..... ..... ..... .....

w ww w
M E 'V Cl() cl t "ii' E 0 3 ..... 9 a, >° e e eN I'-- Cl() I'-- ll) N l <O I'-- <O Ill 0 0 0
0 8 f 0 a, l'G t <O N 0
N t 0) 0 N

... l I'-- ll) ll) a, 0 ll) t oa. y ..... 0) 0) a. l t N 3 ... M N N .....>, I'-- I'-- Cl() I'-- >, ..... 0) M 0 CJ y M N o):c ..... ..... :c l i ..... -=... ...c C
0 0
::!!: ::!!:

a. a. 0 0 a. a. 0 0 a. a. 0 0:I: :I: a. a. :I: :I: a. a. :I: :I: a. a.C C a. a. C C a. a. C C a. a.
:I: :I: :I: :I: :I: :I:z .!!! 2 a, 2 .!!!2> .!!! ·e C) 2z> .!!! E C, 2> .!!! E C)

E C) C E C) C ·e C) C
C l'G

Ill C J!! Ill C J!! ·;;;J!! - J!! J!! ·;;;Ill Ill



18 3
i $ e±3 ,,;-

1£'" ill ~
1.

"' g
? is :.<
$2 i:!"'"' ,-. N
%. :f.

1--1----<•a
Ez
1

;;;-
MO 0.r o o..,.9.111
ii!::.

-

E
a

u
!::cc
:c
Xw



APPROVAL

REPORTS&
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Reschedule Common Council and License Committee
Meetings Due to the New Year and City offices being
closed for the holiday, and for Certain Elections that

Fall on Council Meeting Nights.

MEETING DATE
10-17-23

ITEM NUMBER

G.II.

The Common Council shall reschedule the January 2, 2024 Common Council and License
Committee meetings to January 3, 2024 due to the meeting falling on a day the City offices are
closed for the holiday.

The Common Council shall reschedule the February 20, 2024 Common Council and License
Committee meetings to February 21, 2024 due to the meeting falling on an Election day.

The Common Council shall reschedule the April 2, 2023 Common Council and License
Committee meetings to April 3, 2023 due to the meeting falling on an Election day.

The Common Council shall reschedule the November 5, 2024 Common Council and License
Committee meetings to November 6, 2024 due to the meeting falling on an Election day.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to reschedule the Common Council and License Committee meetings of January 2, 2024
to January 3, 2024 due to the meeting falling on a date the City offices are closed for a holiday,
and to reschedule the Common Council and License Committee meetings of February 20, 2024
to February 21, 2024 and to reschedule the Common Council and License Committee meetings
of April 2, 2024 to April 3, 2024 and to reschedule the Common Council and License Committee
meetings ofNovember 5, 2024 to November 6, 2024 due to all three of those meetings falling on
an Election day.

CLERKDEPT/KLK



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

An Ordinance to Amend §133-14 A.(4)(d)[2] of the
Municipal Code to Increase the Time of Submission of

an Application for a Permit to Display or Discharge
Fireworks from Not Less Than Seven Days Prior to the

Date of Such Display to Not Less Than Thirty Days Prior
to the Date of Such Display to Allow More Time for

Review and Consideration of the Application

MEETING
DATE

October 17, 2023

ITEM NUMBER

The Fire Department, as the issuing authority for commercial fireworks display permits in Franklin, is seeking
approval of a change in Chapter 133 Fire Prevention, Protection and Control, of the Municipal Code, extending
the deadline to apply for a permit for a fireworks display from seven days prior to the event, to a minimum of
30 days prior to the event.

The purpose of this change is to ensure that there is time to agendize each event for review by the Licensing
Committee as part of the Extraordinary Event review process, as has become standard practice, for the purposes
of transparency, and to provide the opportunity for greater input and oversight of fireworks display events by
elected officials.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt An Ordinance to Amend §133-14 A.(4)(d)[2] of the Municipal Code to Increase the Time of
Submission of an Application for a Permit to Display or Discharge Fireworks from Not Less Than Seven Days
Prior to the Date of Such Display to Not Less Than Thirty Days Prior to the Date of Such Display to Allow
More Time for Review and Consideration of the Application.

Fire/ AJR



MILWAUKEE COUNTYCITY OF FRANKLIN

ORDINANCE NO. 2023

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND §133-14 A.(4)(d)[2] OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE TO
INCREASE THE TIME OF SUBMISSION OF AN APPLICATION FOR A PERMIT TO
DISPLAY OR DISCHARGE FIREWORKS FROM NOT LESS THAN SEVEN DAYS
PRIOR TO THE DATE OF SUCH DISPLAY TO NOT LESS THAN THIRTY DAYS

PRIOR TO THE DATE OF SUCH DISPLAY TO ALLOW MORE TIME FOR REVIEW
AND CONSIDERATION OF THE APPLICATION

STATE OF WISCONSIN

WHEREAS, the Fire Department having recommended a change to the amount of
days prior to the date of a fireworks display or discharge in which an application needs to be
submitted, from seven days prior to the event to thirty days prior to the event, to allow more
time for a detailed review of the application and its submission to the License Committee and
more time for its review and consideration; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having considered the recommendation and
having determined same to be reasonable and in the public interest.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and Common Council of the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin, do ordain as follows:

SECTION 1: $133-14 A.(4)Yd)2] of the Municipal Code of the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin, as it pertains to the time within which an application for a
fireworks display or discharge event shall be submitted prior to the date
of the event, is hereby amended to read as follows [note: deletions
appear in strike-through text; addtons appear in double-underlined
text; unchanged text is not highlighted]: [2] Applications shall be
submitted not less than seven thirty days prior to the date of such
display.

SECTION 2: The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any
term or provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of
competent jurisdiction, the remaining terms and provisions shall remain
in full force and effect.

SECTION 3:

SECTION 4:

All ordinances and parts of ordinances mn contravention to this
ordinance are hereby repealed.

This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its
passage and publication.



ORDINANCE NO. 2023
Page 2

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of2023, by Alderman

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of> 2023.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL
#!

REPORTS &
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2022-
2521, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE 2023
ANNUAL BUDGETS FOR THE CAPITAL

IMPROVEMENT AND STREET IMPROVEMENT
FUNDS TO TRANSFERAND REPURPOSE
UNUSED APPROPRIATIONS IN STREET

IMPROVEMENT OUTLAY, RECREATION/BIKE
TRAIL OUTLAY AND PARKING LOT PAVEMENT
RESURFACE OUTLAY TO THE PARKS CAPITAL

IMPROVEMENT FUND FOR PICKLEBALL
COURT REPAIR APPROPRIATIONS

MEETING DATE
October 17, 2023

ITEM NUMBER

BACKGROUND
On November 15, 2022, the Common Council adopted the 2023 Annual Budget. Ordinance No.
2022-2521 Section 10 indicates, "The Capital Improvement Fund expenditure appropriation,
excluding the Contingency allocation, shall be administered as if adopted on a "per project" basis,
and unless otherwise requiring a statutorily-executed budget modification."

There were 3 projects within the Capital Improvement Fund and the Street Improvement Fund that
have unspent appropriations.

1. 46-0331-5836: The Parking Lot Replacement at the Franklin Public Library has been
completed with unspent appropriations of over $100,000.

2. 46-0551-5833: The Cascade Trail Project is a project that has been placed on hold due to
factors beyond the control of the City.

3. 47-0331-5823: The Local Street Improvement Program has unspent appropriations of over
$60,000.

The Engineering Department has requested that the above three (3) projects be transferred as a
budget modification to fund the Pickleball Courts project elsewhere on the agenda. On August 1,
2023, Common Council authorized staff to advertise for bids on the rehabilitation of playing courts at
Lions Legend Park 1. Bids were received and concluded the City to contract with DK Contractors, Inc
in the amount of $431,375.00.

FISCAL NOTE
The proposed budget amendment reclassifies these expenditures as Park expenditures and transfers
existing appropriations from Street Improvement, Park Recreation and Highway to Parks. The fund
change will reclassify funds from the Street Improvement Fund to the Capital Improvement Fund.

This budget amendment is needed facilitate the transfer of funds to support the additional
appropriations for the pickleball courts project. The overall fiscal impact only transfers existing
appropriations from one purpose to a different purpose.



RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends adoption of the proposed ordinance describing the following:

Capital Improvement Fund (Fund 46)
46-0331-5836 Parking Lot Pavement Resurface
46-0551-5833 Park Recreation
Street Improvement Fund (Fund 47)
47-0331-5823 Local Street Improvement Program

Capital Improvement Fund (Fund 46)
46-0551-5832 Park Improvements

$60,000
$39,140

$60,000

$159,140

Decrease
Decrease

Decrease

Increase

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to adopt Ordinance No. 2023- an Ordinance to amend Ordinance 2022-2521, an Ordinance
Adopting the 2023 Annual Budget for the Capital Improvement and Street Improvement Funds to Transfer and
Repurpose Unused Appropriations in Street Improvement Outlay, Recreation/Bike Trail Outlay and Parking Lot
Pavement Resurface Outlay to the Parks Capital Improvement Fund for Pickleball Court Repair Appropriations.

Roll Call Vote Required.

Finance-DB



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY

ORDINANCE NO. 2023

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2022-2521, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING
THE 2023 ANNUAL BUDGETS FOR THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT AND STREET

IMPROVEMENT FUNDS TO TRANSFER AND REPURPOSE UNUSED
APPROPRIATIONS IN STREET IMPROVEMENT OUTLAY, RECREATION/BIKE TRAIL

OUTLAY AND PARKING LOT PAVEMENT RESURFACE OUTLAY TO THE PARKS
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND FOR PICKLEBALL COURT REPAIR

APPROPRIATIONS

WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Franklin adopted the 2023 Annual
Budgets for the City of Franklin on November 15, 2022;

WHEREAS, the 2023 Annual Budget provided resources and appropriations for the
Capital Improvement and Street Improvement Funds; and

WHEREAS, the parking lot replacement project at the Franklin Public Library has been
completed with unspent appropriations; and

WHEREAS, the Cascade Trail project has been placed on hold due to factors beyond the
control of the City; and

WHEREAS, the Local Street Improvement Program has unspent appropriations; and

WHEREAS, the Engineering Department deems the repurposing of these project
appropriations important to enhance the recreation within the City of Franklin; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Franklin does hereby ordain as
follows:

Section 1 That the 2023 Budget for the Capital Improvement Fund and Street Improvement
Fund be amended as follows:

Capital Improvement Fund
Highway Parking Lot Pavement Resurface
Park Recreation/Bike Trail
Street Improvement Fund
Highway Street Improvement

Capital Improvement Fund
Park Park Improvements

Decrease
Decrease

Decrease

Increase

$60,000
$39,140

$60,000

$159,140

Section 2 Pursuant to §65.90(5)(ar), Wis. Stats., the City Clerk is directed to post a notice of
this budget amendment within fifteen days of adoption of this Ordinance on the
City's website.



Section 3

Section 4

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any term or
provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of competent
jurisdiction, the remaining terms and provisions shall remain in full force and
effect.

All ordinances and parts of ordinances in contravention to this ordinance are
hereby repealed.

This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage and
publication.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
this day of 2023.

APPROVED:

John R Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT-- --

Section 5



APPROVAL

#-
Reports &

Recommendations

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

A Resolution to Award
The 2023 Lions Legend Park Pickleball Courts Contract to

DK Contractors, Inc., in the Amount of $431,375.00

MTG. DATE
October 17, 2023

ITEM NO.
Ald. Dist. 2
6.14.

BACKGROUND
On August 1, 2023, Common Council authorized Staff to advertise for bids the rehabilitation of
playing courts at Lions Legend Park 1.

The work at the Lions Legend Park 1 playing courts would include pulverizing and repaving the
playing surface, full color coating, new fencing, new net posts, and drainage improvements as
needed.

The contract was bid with alternatives for both 2023 and 2024 construction, giving the City the
ability to select either 2023 or 2024 construction and the mandatory alternative bid items as
desired.

• Optional Base Bid No. 1-2023 construction
• Mandatory Alternate No. l- concrete sidewalk around perimeter
• Mandatory Alternate No. 2 - additional underdrain system
• Optional Alternate No. 3- 2024 construction

ANALYSIS
Three bids were received and opened publicly on August 31, 2023. The bid results are included
with this packet.

Optional Base Mandatory Mandatory Optional
Bid No. 1 Alternate Alternate Alternate No. 3

Bidder (2023) No.1 No. 2 (2024)
DK Contractors, Inc. $395,974.00 $19,219.00 $10,582.00 $401,556.00
Payne & Dolan, Inc. NIA $18,146.06 $9,852.70 $421,417.60

Poblocki Paving Corp. $473,544.00 $26,587.00 $17,160.00 $473,544.00

Bid prices came in higher than expected, due to various reasons, primarily material shortages and
subsequent price increases. Prices for asphalt, fencing, and the color coat finishing system were
markedly higher than estimated. Note, the initial budget estimate did not consider the mandatory
alternatives 1 and 2.

Staff recommends that DK Contractors, Inc. is a qualified public works contractor and should be
awarded the contract for Optional Alternate No. 3 (2024 construction) and Mandatory Alternates
No. 1 and 2.

OPTIONS
1. Award the contract to DK Contractors, Inc. for alternate no. 1, alternate no. 2, and alternate no.
3 for $431,357.00
2. Other direction from the Common Council.



FISCAL NOTE
The 2023 Capital Improvement fund includes $285,000 for Tennis Court Repairs in the Park
Improvements Category (46-0551-5832). A budget amendment has been prepared and is
elsewhere on this meeting agenda.

$285,000.00 Funds available, 41-0551-5832
$159,140.00 Via budget amendment
$431,375.00 DK Contractors, Inc. contract
$12.765.00 Available as contingency

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 2023 - , a resolution to award the 2023 Lions Legend
Park Pickleball Courts contract to DK Contractors, Inc., in the amount of $431,357.00.

Engineering: TAB



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2023----

A RESOLUTION TO AWARD
THE 2023 LIONS LEGEND PARK PICKLEBALL COURTS CONTRACT TO

DK CONTRACTORS, INC., IN THE AMOUNT OF $431,375.00

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin advertised and solicited bids for the 2023 Lions
Legend Park Pickleball Courts contract; and

WHEREAS, three bids were received on August 31, 2023, and DK Contractors, Inc.
was the lowest responsive and responsible bidder; and

WHEREAS, DK Contractors, Inc. is a responsible and qualified public works
contractor; and

WHEREAS, the original 2023 City Budget included $285,000 in the Park
Improvements Category (46-0551-5832) and an additional $159,140 was provided via budget
amendment; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City as recommended by the City's Staff to
award the contract for the 2023 Lions Legend Park Pickleball Courts contract, in the amount
of $431,375.00 to DK Contractors, Inc.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the
City of Franklin, Wisconsin, to award the 2023 Lions Legend Park Pickleball Courts contract
to DK Contractors, Inc.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized and
directed to execute a contract with DK Contractors, Inc. on behalf of the City.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of,2023 by Alderman

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of,2023.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

QJ < ... ... "' U'I ci ,-.: ,.._ ori i ri ..... ... oci 00 U'I ,-.: i oi -i "' ui ci ,-.: ,.._ "' "' ... "' i ociu ... a, ... N ..,. "' ... r %8 00 U'I r "' 00 ... "' ,.._ ... r4 ..,. ..... ... rg U'I ... 00 U'I rg "'·c: <I'> "' ... ... ..,. ..,. ..,. r ,.._ ... n ..,. ..,. ..,. n%- r ... ... ..,. ..,. ..,. ..,. "' r ,.._ ... nc.. ...- <J'> -<J> "' "' ...- .... rJ ,.._- ..,...,. e u ...- .... rJ±- 00 ..,...,. U'I rg U'I 00 ..,...,. U'I rg U'I
C: <I> ..,. ..,...,. ..,. ..,. ..,...,.
::::,

8 8 88o ui od r...:
Ill ... n Luu
Ill ... ... M... o «?

£ N ... M

3 5 3

0 \D 0 "'\D \D M M,-.: ..,; ci i... "' ... ...
... Ill N ...
? o 3 o
NM M ...

% 3 5, 3

88 88
ii • ...ig
o o N'... 0 a, ...

... Ill ... Ill..,...,. ..,...,.

z G 4
0 a Ag5
::::, ?e
"' 3%I-
U'Iz g 2?0u w&... ,=oN
0 • 2,
N 0 N ...=z 0 cici iii z zz  0 0
0 -' iii iiiiii c( ti !::.w 2 0.. c( c(

"' 0 I- -' + 0.. 0..
c( ... 0 0z ci + +0 ... ... z

0 00.. 0
0 iii z z

± w Co
2 iii iii

0 "' ?AI-
Ii: "'"'0 I- I-
i 0.. 0..

0 0I- -' -'g c( c(
I- I-oo
I- I-

0 8 8 80.; ..,; i Lui... en Ill ...en ... Ill r,.
e ui' ui' G
0 en ... ON
tl % 5 ......
I!!

..,,. ..,,...,,.
1:
0u
""0

0 0 0 0
9 9 99

.; 8 8 00

.!:
..,,...,,.

c:·
.!!?
0
0
oil
QJ
C:
>.,
0..

C 0 0 0 00 0 0 0 0£ i ... i ...
% M 0 en

0 ..._ ":. "!.egg 8 0 ...
en '"'83 839%bO

C·;;.,
0..

zu
0:;;
0
0..

z$%
0 8o
E- v v z
u ,.,. ·o::::, z -c

~ %I-
"'z 0 -'

"' c(0 0
&Eu ;;;

ye, z oN ...

~ 0 2. +
--- z N ......

0 ci ci
0 iii z zz 0 0
0 !::. iii iiiiii c( !:; !::.w .,:
? 0.. c( c(

"' 0 I- .,:
-' + 0.. 0..
c( ... 0 0z ci + +0 ... ...
i;: z ci0 0
0 iii z z
-' w 0 0< 2 iii iiig "' w w

I- 2 ~
0.. "' "'0  H--' 0.. 0..< 0 0

-' ±0 c(I- I-
0 gI-oo en

2
0
€::::,otz
0u
<
~
rv9

0z
wzzow
!::.
c(

±z
0
i;:
0

0z
wzzow
!::.
c(

i'i:
£
0z
:i:

2
3
0o.w
0z
2
N

0z
%z
"'5
i'i:e
0z
c(
:i:

g
2
0;;;

E
"'uz
§.

2
0
5::::,
"'tz
8
M

&...
0z
0
iii

%., "'±
C: z
o 0
EE8 o

e"cos no+oog;73

±
QJ
C:
:::;

QJ
'O
0u
E
2l

0 0 "' "' 0 0 0 0 0 U'I 0 0 en "' 0 0 0 0 0 0 00
ci 0 0 0 ,.._ ... 0 0 U'I ... 0 0 en ... q 0 0 0 0 0 "'0 i \0 (] i U'I ci "' oci 0 U'I ui oci "' U'I ci U'I ui 0 ,-.:i C:
..,,, en U'I ... U'I "' "' U'I en "' "' 0 en ,.._ ... "' U'I ... ry 0 ...

.!: 0 ... en ... "'!. "'!. "' "' U'I "' "' 0 rg ... ... ... "' en ..._ ... "':.
e ·;;; .... o a,; en en "' ~ "' n r-,..... N o ...- o .....- o 0 ...- ...

C: ..,. .... ... ..,...,,, ... ,.._ "' r .... ... "' ... ..,. q U'I ry U'I N., QJ ..,...,,, ..,. ..,. ..,...,. ..,. ..,. ..,. ..,. ..,. ..,. ..,.3G i;;!
0 w
oil 0 00 "' U'I 0 0 U'I 0 U'I ..... ,.._ U'I 0 0 0 0 0., U'I ... ... rq 0 ... rg 0 ... 00 "' ... 0 0 0 0 0
C: e ty U'I i ci 0 i ri ry ..... oci ... i ui ci U'I ui 0> ... ... n r U'I ... ... <I> N ... n "' "' U'I ... rg 0., ·c: ..,...,. ..,. ..,. "' ... ... ..,. ..,. ..,. ..,. ... "' en ... ...
0.. c.. q"" 11). 1/'). ,.. o o o ...-w ,.._ ..,. ..... U'I N U'I'i:: ..,. ..,. ..,. ..,...,.

::::,

g 88888888888888888888888888888888888
oo uo o oo i ion t i or Qi o nu o o or o r i iS gr8333833%383€3.478333883%385%

g z #ls 3 al3lli $lgll5 ¢l¢ " i £ i±ilcl3 3l3\3li± 8l\l3 < ±li
@in1u v41n 1n v41n1 5$, 41n41n vv41n 1 vv1@1n v1v1v

C: w
·;;.,
0..



APPROVAL

Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

A Resolution for Acceptance of a Storm Water Facilities Maintenance
Agreement and Easements for Storm Water Management Access and

Water Main at 3303 W. Oakwood Road
(TKN 951-9994-002)

MTG.DATE
October 17,

2023
ITEM NO.
Ald. Dist. 4

G.15.

BACKGROUND
Pursuant to the approval of the HSA Development (Developer - HSA Commercial), easements are
required to construct, maintain, and operate water main facilities. It is necessary to install these
easements on property located at 3303 W. Oakwood Road, tax key number 951-9994-002.

Additionally, the City of Franklin, Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District (MMSD), and
Wisconsin Department of Natural resources (WDNR) require storm water management facilities
for any developments which meet thresholds as defined in their individual ordinances and rules.
These facilities as designed may be for quantity and/or quality control. In the City of Franklin
these are typically wet ponds, biofiltration basins, and/or permeable pavers, although other best
management practices (BMPs) are also available. As a MMSD customer and designated by the
WDNR as a Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System, the City's Ordinance is written to not only
include City quantity requirements, but also MMSD quantity requirements, and WDNR quantity
and quality requirements. The facilities within private developments are involved in those credits.
Therefore, ongoing maintenance of private facilities is imperative.

It is the responsibility of the development owner, or a subdivision homeowners association to
maintain the storm water facilities in perpetuity per a prescribed maintenance agreement. The
access easement allows for the City the right of entry in and across the easement area to access the
storm water management facilities, and, if needed to inspect, maintain, or repair the facilities.

ANALYSIS
It is recommended that the Common Council authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign said
agreement and easements, and have them recorded with the Register of Deeds for Milwaukee
County.

FISCAL NOTE
None

RECOMMENDATION
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 2023- a resolution for acceptance of a storm water
facilities maintenance agreement and easements storm water management access, and water main
at 3303 W. Oakwood Road (TKN 951-9994-002).

Engineering Department: TAB



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2023 ----

A RESOLUTION FOR ACCEPTANCE OF A STORM WATER FACILITIES
MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT AND EASEMENTS FOR STORM WATER

MANAGEMENT ACCESS AND WATER MAIN AT 3303 WEST OAKWOOD ROAD
(TKN 951-9994-002)

WHEREAS, Pursuant to the approval of the HSA Development (Developer - HSA
Commercial), easements are required to construct, maintain and operate water main facilities
on properties located at 3303 West Oakwood Road; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary to install said easements on said properties; and

WHEREAS, storm water facilities are required to meet quantity and quality standards;
and

WHEREAS, a maintenance agreement is developed and executed to ensure effective
maintenance and operation ofprivate storm water facilities in perpetuity; and

WHEREAS, an access easement is necessary to allow the City right of entry in and
across the easement area to access the storm water management facilities.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the
City of Franklin that it would be in the best interest of the City to accept said agreement and
easements, and, therefore the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to
execute the agreement and easements, accepting them on behalf of the City.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk is directed to record said
agreement and easements with the Register ofDeeds for Milwaukee County.

Introduced at a regular meeting ofthe Common Council of the City of Franklin the
day of2023, by Alderman

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Franklin on the
day of2023.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk



AYES NOESABSENT



STORM WATER FACILITIES
MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT

WEST OAKWOOD RD DEVELOPMENT -- HSA
3303 W OAKWOOD RD

TKN 9519994002

This AGREEMENT, made and entered into this day of,20,
by and between JES Franklin Oakwood, LLC and SFT Franklin Oakwood, LLC, Wisconsin limited
liability corporations, hereinafter called the "Owner", and the City of Franklin, hereinafter called
the "City".

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Owner is the owner of the following described lands situated in the City
of Franklin, County of Milwaukee, State of Wisconsin, to-wit:

Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 9362, as recorded in the Register of Deeds office for
Milwaukee County as Document No. 11183864, being a part of the Northeast and Northwest
¼ of the Northeast ¼ of Section 36, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin,
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Hereinafter called the "Property".

WHEREAS, the Owner is developing the Property; and

WHEREAS, the Site Plan known as West Oakwood Rd Development- HSA hereinafter called
the "Plan", which is expressly made a part hereof, as approved or to be approved by the city,
provides for on-site Storm Water Facilities within the confines of the Property as shown on the
plan attached hereto as Exhibit "B" and more particularly described on Exhibit "C"; and

WHEREAS, the City and the Owner, its successors and assigns ("successors and assigns"
meaning to include any homeowners' association and all owners of the property or any portion
thereof), including any homeowners association, agree that the health, safety, and welfare of the
residents of the City of Franklin, require that on-site Storm Water Facilities as defined in Section
15-8.0600 Unified Development Ordinance of the City of Franklin be constructed and
maintained on the Property; and

WHEREAS, the City requires that on-site storm water management practices as shown
on the Plan be constructed and adequately maintained by the Owner, its successors and assigns.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises, the mutual covenants
contained herein, and the following terms and conditions, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. The on-site storm water facilities shall be constructed by the Owner in accordance with
the plans and specifications which are identified as part of the storm water management
plan dated 8/2/2022 and erosion control plan dated 8/3/2022 approved by the City
Engineer and submitted as part of the as-built drawings approved by the City Engineer

Q-1



Fountains and/or aerators shall not be installed m any ponds without pnor written
approval from the City Engineer.

2. The Owner, its successors and assigns, shall comply with the ordinances and regulations
which require that the Storm Water Facilities shall be regularly inspected and maintained
as often as conditions may require, but in any event, at least once each year. The
Standard Operation and Maintenance Report attached to this agreement as Exhibit "A"
and by this reference made a part hereof shall be used for the purpose of the regular
inspections of the Storm Water Facilities. The Owners, its successors and assigns, shall
keep the Operation and Maintenance Reports from past inspections, as well as a log of
maintenance activity indicating the date and type of maintenance completed of the Storm
Water Facilities. The purpose of the inspections is to assure safe and proper functioning
of the facilities. The inspections shall cover all storm water facilities, including but not
limited to open swales (ditches), storm sewers, manholes, inlets, berms, outlet structures,
pond areas and access roads. Deficiencies shall be noted in the Operation and
Maintenance Report. The Reports and maintenance log shall be made available to the
City for review.

3. The Owner, its successors and assigns, hereby grant permission to the City, its authorized
agents and employees, to enter upon the Property and to inspect the Storm Water
Facilities, whenever the City deems necessary. The purpose of inspection is to provide
periodic review by City staff, to investigate reported deficiencies and/or to respond to
citizen complaints. The City shall provide the Owner, its successors and assigns, copies
of the inspection findings and a directive to commence with the repairs if necessary.
Corrective actions shall be taken within a reasonable time frame as established by the
City Engineer.

4. The Owner, its successors and assigns, shall adequately maintain the Storm Water
Facilities, including but not limited to all pipes and channels built to convey storm water
to the facility, as well as all structures, improvements, and vegetation provided to control
the quantity and quality of the storm water. Adequate maintenance is herein defined as
keeping the Storm Water Facilities in good working condition so that these storm water
facilities are performing their design functions and are in accordance with the Stormwater
Basin Maintenance Standards as detailed in Section 15.8.0600 of the City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance, and Section 13.12 (2) of the Milwaukee Metropolitan
Sewerage District (MMSD) rules, and by this reference made a part hereof.

5. If the Owner, its successors and assigns fails to maintain the Storm Water Facilities in
good working condition acceptable to the City and does not perform the required
corrective actions in a time as established by the City Engineer in written notice, the City
may:

a) Issue a citation to the Owner, its successors and assigns. Such failure constitutes a
violation of Section 15.8.0600 of the Unified Development Ordinance of the City of
Franklin. The penalty for such violation of Section 15.8.0600 shall be not less than
$100 nor more than $2500 for each offense, together with the costs of prosecution.
Each day that the violation exists shall constitute a separate offense, and

b) Perform the corrective actions identified in the inspection report and assess the
Owner, its successors and assigns, for the cost of such work. The cost of such work
shall be specially charged against the Property pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes
Section 66.0627. If the facilities are located on an outlot owned collectively by a
homeowners association, the City may specially charge each member of the
homeowners association according to the ownership interest in the facilities located
on the property. This provision shall not be construed to allow the City to erect any

Q-2



structure of permanent nature on the land of the Owner outside of the easement for
the Storm Water Facilities. It is expressly understood and agreed that the City is
under no obligation to routinely maintain or repair said storm water management
practices and in no event shall this Agreement be construed to impose any such
obligation on the City.

6. In the event the City, pursuant to this Agreement and applicable easements performs
work of an emergency nature, or expends any funds in performance of said work for
labor, use of equipment, supplies, materials, and the like, the Owner, its successors and
assigns, shall reimburse the City upon demand, within thirty (30) days of receipt thereof
for all actual costs incurred by the City hereunder.

7. This Agreement imposes no liability of any kind whatsoever on the City and the Owner
agrees to indemnify and hold the City harmless from any liability in the event the Storm
Water Facilities fail to operate properly.

8. This Agreement shall be attached as an exhibit to any document which creates a
homeowners association that is responsible for maintenance of the Storm Water Facilities
and shall be recorded at the Milwaukee County Register of Deeds, and shall constitute a
covenant running with the land, and shall be binding on the Owner, its administrators,
executors, assigns, heirs and any other successors in interest, including any homeowners
association and all owners of the property or any portion thereof. The owner shall
provide the City with a copy of any document which creates a homeowners association
that is responsible for the Storm Water Facilities.

9. The owner, its successors and assigns, is prohibited from building structures, installing
play equipment, installing plants, changing grades or performing any function that
inhibits care and maintenance of any Storm Water Facilities.

10. The owner, its successor and assigns shall maintain, at all times, an individual(s) who
will serve as a contact person(s).

Q-3



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and Owner have set forth their hands and seals, effective the
date first above written.

SEALED IN PRESENCE OF:
JES FRANKLIN OAKWOOD, LLC AND SFT FRANKLIN
OAKWOOD C, Owner

STAT 3,lllnols s.
Cook COUNTY)

Personally came before me this _J rk day of October, 2023, the above named Eric Ogden,
the Manager of JES Franklin Oakwood, LLC and SFT Franklin Oakwood, LLC, to me known to be
the person who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same in the capacity

« °+aornows. d-2M 7.
ALINA DZ.J C

NOTARY PUBLuO, STATE OF ILLINOIS Notary Public, ook ounty, _Illinois
COOK COUNTY ( )

MY c0MMssioN xPnEs oovsr2oz7 7729/27My commission expires:_e/:tl;

CITY OF FRANKLIN

By:
Name: John R. Nelson
Title: Mayor

COUNTERSIGNED:
By:
Name: Karen L. Kastenson
Title: City Clerk

STATE OF WISCONSIN)ss.
MILWAUKEE COUNTY)

Personally came before me thisday of_ ,20_ the above
named John R. Nelson, Mayor and Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk, of the above named municipal
corporation, City of Franklin, to me known to be such Mayor and City Clerk of said municipal
corporation, and acknowledged that they had executed the foregoing instrument as such officers as the
Deed of said municipal corporation by its authority and pursuant to the Resolution File No.
adopted by its Common Council on thisday of20_.

Notary Public, Milwaukee County, WI
( )
My commission expires: _

This instrument was drafted by the City Engineer for the City of Franklin.
Form approved: _

Jesse A.Wesolowski, City Attorney

Q-4

-{ea])

____________ (Seal)



EXHIBIT "A"

OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE INSPECTION REPORT
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PONDS

City of Franklin

Section No _

Address _

E-mail _

Address _

E-mail _Fax ]o,

Fax No. _

Name ofDevelopment _

Responsible Party Name _

Telephone No. _

Inspector Name _

Telephone No. _

Basin Location General Address _

Normal Pool O Yes O No

Items inspected Checked Maintenance Remarks
(Pond components) (Yes/No/NA) Needed

(Yes/No/NA)
1. Embankment and Emergency spillway

1. Vegetation and ground cover adequate
2. Embankment erosion
3. Animal burrows
4. Unauthorized plantings
5. Cracking, bulging, or sliding of dam

1. Upstream face
2. Downstream face
3 At or beyond toe

Upstream
Downstream

4. Emergency spillway
6. Pond, toe & chimney drains functioning
7 Seeps/leaks on downstream face
8 Slope protection or riprap failures
9 Emergency spillway clear of debris

10 Other (spec1fy)
2. Riser and prmcipal spillway

Type: Reinforced concrete --
Corrugated metal pipe --
PVC/HDPE --
Masonry

1. Low flow orifice obstructed
2. Pnmary outlet structure

1. Debris removal necessary
2. Corrosion control

3. Trash rack maintenance
1. Debris removal necessary
2. Corrosion control

3 Pond bottom
Sediment or debrs buildup in low flow
Plot channel or bottom (estimate depth)

Q-5



EXHIBIT "B"

DEPICTION OF THE FACILITIES

JOO'1"•1.WO

GRAPHICAL SCALE (FEET)

I

LOT 1
0 s.ii.iii.9362-----------u

~...
N•

--- 0u
sroRWATER MANAGEMEN>T

i'--.. ACCESS EASEMENT
1U50SO.f:l
1 &426 IICRES

S8W39'01"WI 160.s3'

N\'/COf\tlfR OAKWOOD ROADa.'- WEST
r.oo N8~:~~~"E -· __ ~-- - -··· ~· - - - - - - ~ - - -·~ - -~•~ - ~ f

I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

-·------···---. - ··---11·. -~--·· ---·-·····- I

1 tI w
I 0. /.,.I- C7l

(J) U)

I 10

>- '<t

I or
~

0

I >.u N- &I I
:r: z

I I-::::,
I 0

rJ)

I
I

• EXHIBIT B:u.\WJi . . . - . ---····•--··--·-----·------·-
"" !c<l PINNACLE ENGINEERINGGROUP

20725WATER:TOWNROAD I SUITE l001BROOKFIELD,Wl53186

04/29/2022
PLAN I OESICiN I DELIVER

WWW.PINNACLE•ENCR.COM PEG JOB#2556.00

Q-6



EXHIBIT "B" continued »
NORTH

LJ

GRAPHICAL SCALE (FEET)

I

0 1" = 150' 300'

69.08'

N00°11'55"W 4.54'

LOT2------
C.S.M. NO. 9362

N89°48'05"E 12.3 I

,'3<o

NORTH LINE OF THE NE 1/4 SEC_36. T!Fe1f---
WESTOAKWOODROAD

I

I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

LOT 1----
C.S.M. NO. 9362

STORM SEWER
EASEMENT

2,981 SQ FT.
0 0684 ACRES

S88°34'33"W
S64°01'35"W

N16°51'30"W

OUTLOT 1------
C.S.M. NO. 9362



WWW.PINNACLE-ENGR.COM

.ii. STORM WATER ACCESS MANAGEMENT EASEMENT
PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP
20725WATERTOWN ROAD I SUITE 100 I BROOKFIELD,WI 53186

SHEET 1 OF 2 10/12/2023
PLAN I DESIGN I DELIVER

PEG JOB#2556.00



EXHIBIT "C"

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF AREA

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

Being a part of Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 9362, as recorded In the
Register of Deeds office for MIiwaukee County as Document No. 11183864,
being a part of the Northeast 1/4 and Northwest 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of
Sectlon 36, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin, Milwaukee
County, Wisconsin, described as follows:

Beginning at the northwest corner of said Lot 1; thence North 88°34'35" East
along the north line of said Lot 1, 152.60 feet; thence South 01 °21 '37" East,
457.10 feet; thence South 88°39'01" West, 160.53 feet to the west line of said
Lot 1; thence North 00°21'57" West along said west llne, 456.97 feet to the Point
of Beginning.

.ad. EXHIBIT C
a PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP

2O725WT7ETOWNROAD] SUITEIOIOOKFIELD,53186 WWW.PINNACLE-ENCR.COM

Q-7

04/29/2022
PLAN I DESIGN I DELIVER

PEG J00#2556.00



EXHIBIT "C" continued
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

That part of Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 9362, as recorded in the Register of Deeds
office for Milwaukee County as Document No. 11183864, being a part of the Northeast 1/4 and
Northwest 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 36, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City of
Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, described as follows:

Commencing at the southeast corner of said Lot 1; thence North 00°11'55" West along the
east line of said Lot 1, 4.54 feet to the point of beginning; thence North 16°51 '30" West, 53.24
feet; thence South 64°01 '35" West, 134.45 feet to the south line of said Lot 1; thence South
88°34'33" West along said south line, 36.10 feet; thence North 64°01'35" East, 177.80 feet;
thence North 89°48'05" East, 12.32 to the aforesaid east line of said Lot 1; thence South
00° 11 '55" East along said east line 69.08 feet to the point of beginning .

20725WATERTOWN ROAD [ SUITE IOO [ BROOKFIELD,WI 53186 WW.PINNACLE-ENGR.COM

SHEET 2 OF 2 10/12/2023
PLAN I DESIGN I DELIVER

PEG JO#2556.00

.mi. STORM WATER ACCESS MANAGEMENT EASEMENT
PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP



STORM WATER MANAGEMENT
ACCESS EASEMENT

WEST OAKWOOD RD DEVELOPMENT - HSA
3303 W OAKWOOD RD

TKN 9519994002

THIS EASEMENT is made by and between the CITY OF FRANKLIN, a municipal corporation
of the State of Wisconsin, hereinafter referred to as "Crty," collectively efeared to as "Grantees," and
JES Franklin Oakwood, LLC and SFT Franklin Oakwood, LLC, Wisconsin limited liability
corporations, as owner (including successors and ass1gn's of the City as may become applicable
mcludmg the heirs, executors, admimstrators, successors and assigns of above owner(s) as may be or may
become applicable), hereinafter called "Grantor," (ifmore than one grantor is listed above, said language
herein referring thereto shall be interpreted in the plural and referJOmtly and severally to such grantors).

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, Grantor 1s the owner and holder of record Title to certain real property described on
Exhibit "A" which 1s attached hereto and incorporated heremn (the Property); and

WHEREAS, the City des11"es to acqmre a non-exclusive easement with the right of entry m and
across a portion of the property as the same ts more particularly hereinafter described, with the right to
build and construct and/or operate, maintam, repair, enlarge, reconstruct, relocate and inspect as may be
or may become applicable the following facilities and appurtenances thereto, hereinafter collectively
called the "Facilities," mn, upon and across said portion of the Property: a storm water management basin
as shown on the plan attached hereto as Exhtbrt "B "; and

NOW, THEREFORE, m consideration of the grant of the easement hereinafter described, the
mnit1al Installation and maintenance of the Facilities by the Grantor, and the Grantees, and the payment of
One Dollar ($1.00) and other valuable considerations to the Grantor, the receipt whereof is hereby
acknowledged, said Grantor, bemg the owner and person interested mn the land hereinafter described, does
hereby grant unto the City a perpetual, non-exclusive easement on that part of the northeast quarter of
Section Thrty-Six (36), Township Five (5) N01th, Range Twenty-one(21) East, in the City of Franklin,
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, more particularly described on Exhibit C attached hereto (the "Easement
Area")

I . That said Facilities shall be maintained and kept in good order and condition by the Association,
at the sole cost and expense of the Association. The City, at its sole discretion, may assume the
1 ights of the Association to maintam the Facilities.

2 That mn and during whatever construction, reconstruction, enlargement or repaiI work is or
becomes necessary in constructing and/or maintaining of said Facilities, so much of the surface or
subsurface of the Easement Area on the Property as may be disturbed will, at the expense of the
Association, be replaced in substantially the same condition as it was prior to such disturbance.
The City, at its sole discretion, may assume the rights ofthe Association to construct, reconstruct,
enlarge, repair, or do whatever is necessary mn constructing and/or maintaining such Facilities.
However, the Grantees shall indemnify and save harmless the Grantor from and agamst any loss,
damage, claim, cost, injury or liability resulting from negligence or willful acts or 01111ss1ons on
the part of the Grantees, its agents or employees in connection with said work mvolved 111

constructing and/or maintammg of said Facilities, provided that 1f the above loss, claim, cost,
damage, mjury or liability 1esults from the joint negligence of parties hereto, then the liability
therefore shall be borne by them m proportion to

N-I



their respective degree ofnegligence; provided further, however, that these provisions are subject
to the legal defenses available under law which the Grantees or Grantor are entitled to raise,
excepting the defense of so-called "sovereign immunity."

3. That no structure may be placed within the limits of the Easement Area by the Grantor, except
that improvement such as walks, pavements for driveways, parking lot surfacing and landscape
planting may be constructed or placed within the Easement Area.

4. In connection with the construction by the Grantor of any structure or building abutting said
Easement Area, the Grantor will assume all liability for any damage to the Facilities in the above
described Easement Area. The Grantor will also save and keep the Grantees clear and harmless
from any claims for personal injuries or property damage caused by any negligence or willful acts
or omissions of the Grantor or persons acting on behalf of the Grantor, arising out of the
construction by the Gantor of any structure or building abutting the said Easement Area, and
shall reimburse the Grantees for the full amount ofsuch loss or damage.

5. The Grantor shall be responsible for the routine maintenance of land on which the easement is
located.

6. The Facilities shall be accessible for maintenance by the Association at all times. The Grantor
shall submit plans for approval to the City Engineer for any underground installation within the
Easement Area, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.

7. That the Grantor shall submit plans for all surface alterations of plus or minus 1 foot or greater
within the limits of said Easement Area. Said alterations shall be made only with the approval of
the City Engineer of the City of Franklin, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld,
conditioned or delayed.

8. The Grantees and Grantor shall each use, and take reasonable measures to cause their employees,
officers, customers, agents, contractors and assigns to use, the Easement Area in a reasonable
manner and so as not to obstruct or otherwise use the Easement Area in a manner that would
unreasonably interfere with the use thereof by the other party hereto or its employees, officers,
customers, agents, contractors and assigns.

9. The Grantees and Grantor each hereby waives all rights of subrogation that either has or may
hereafter have against the other for any damage to the Easement Area or any other real or
personal property or to persons covered by such party's insurance, but only to the extent of the
waiving party's insurance coverage; provided, however, that the foregoing waivers shall not
invalidate any policy of insurance now or hereafter issued, it being hereby agreed that such a
waiver shall not apply in any case which would result in the invalidation of any such policy of
insurance and that each party shall notify the other if such party's insurance would be so
invalidated.

10. Either party hereto may enforce this easement by appropriate action, and should it prevail in such
litigation, that party shall be entitled to recover, as part of its costs, reasonable attorneys' fees.

11. This easement may not be modified or amended, except by a writing executed and delivered by
the Grantees and Grantor or their respective successors and assigns.

12. No waver of, acquiescence in, or consent to any breach of any term, covenant, or condition
hereof shall be construed as, or constitute, a waiver of, acquiescence in, or consent to any other,
furthe1, or succeeding breach ofthe same or any other term, covenant, or condition.

N-2



13. If any term or provision of this easement shall, to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable under
applicable law, then the remaining terms and provisions of this easement shall not be affected
thereby, and each such remammg term and provision shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest
extent permitted by applicable law.

14. This easement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the internal laws ofthe State of
Wisconsin.

15. Upon completion ofuse ofthe Easement Area for the specific use as a storm water management
access by the City, the easement shall be terminated by recording a release in recordable form
with directions for delivery of same to Grantor at his last address given pursuant hereto,
whereupon all rights, duties and liabilities created shall terminate.

N-3



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has hereunto set its hand and seals this

(Seal)

ON THIS DATE OF: October _, 2023
JES FRANKLIN OAKWOOD, LLC and SFT FRANKLIN
OAKWOOD, LLC7a

woy eorision ere»_'/21/27
OFFICIAL SEAL ary Public
ALINA DZAJ

NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ILLINOIS
COOK COUNTY

MY COMMISSION eXPIRlii8 0lt/l!IJ/2027

Name & Title: Eric Ogden, Manager

IllinoisSTATE OF _
ss

COUNTY OFCook
Before me personally appeared on the _3;.,L day of October, A.D. 2023, Eric Ogden, a Manager of
JES Franklin Oakwood, LLC and SFT Franklin Oakwood, LLC, to me known to be the person(s) who
executed the foregoing EASEMENT and acknowledged the same as the voluntary act and deed of said
eoromanuon. _, b-

CITY OF FRANKLIN

By: _
John R. Nelson, Mayor

By: _
Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

STATE OF WISCONSIN)
ss

COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE)

On this day ofA.D. 20 before me personally
appeared John R. Nelson and Karen L. Kastenson who being by me duly sworn, did say that they are
respectively the Mayor and City Clerk ofthe City ofFranklin, and that the seal affixed to said instrument
is the corporate seal of said municipal corporation, and acknowledged that they executed the foregoing
assignment as such officers as the deed of said municipal corporation by its authority, and pursuant to
resolution file No. adopted by its Common Council on__________ 20

Notary Public, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin
( )
My commission expires _

N-4



MORTGAGE HOLDER CONSENT

The undersigned, The Northern Trust Company, an Illmois banking corporation ("Mortgagee"), as
Mortgagee under that certain Mortgage encumbering the Property and recorded in the Office ofthe Register
of Deeds for Milwaukee County, Wisconsm, on December 23, 2022 as Document No. 11308114 and its
add1t1on as an encumbrance agamst title to the Property.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Mortgagee has caused these presents to be signed by its duly authorized officers
and its corporate seal to be hereunto affixed, as ofthe day and year first above written.

THE NORTHERN TRUST COMPANY,
An Illinois Banking Corporation

STATE OF PL:> )
S.S.

CHRISTOPHER S JOHNSON
Official Seal

Notary Public - State of Illinois
My Commission Expires May 12, 2026

sate or Dtta
County of_l_u_v_k _

My commission expire S/0/o2

COUNTY or (k
On this, the L{ day ofOctober, 2023 before me, the undersigned, personally appeared_

s ;d-, ,they5»Gu Q+.+k ofThe Northern Trust Company, an Illinois
banking corporation, and acknowledged that (s)he executed the foregoing instrument on behalf of said
corporation, by 1ts authonty and for the purposes therein contained.

»etlb pl-ST
Noey ."dP

This instrument was drafted by the City ofFranklin.

Approved as to contents
City Engineer
Date: _

Approved as to form only
City Attorney
Date: _

N-5



Exhibit A
(Description ofthe Property)

• Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map No 9362, as recorded mn the Register of Deeds office for
Milwaukee County as Document No 11183864, being a part of the Northeast 1/4 and Northwest
1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 36, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin,
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

CERTIFIED SURVEYMAPNO.__
Being a pan or the Northeast I/4 and Northwest /4 of the Nontheast M/4 of Section
36, Townshlp 5 North, Range 21 East, Cllyof Franhlln, Mllwauhee County,Wisconsin

I
_moo"o_ /SOUTH HICKORY STREET_J

woo2rsrw sa.a <Z (20 PU8LICR OW) (UN-IMPROVED) ; 0.s.
WESTLIIIEQFTltE 11 SEG.36.T5N R21E N00°21'57"W 1266.68' IQ

20725 I'l l\ lERfOWN ROAD I SUITE 100
UIIOOl(FIEW,1'1115318b
OfflCf! (2h21751 8888

N-6

PEGJOD#2S56.00
SHEET I OF 7'ls Instrumentdraftedby JohP Konopach} PS·kenseNa$-2461



Exhibit B
(Depiction ofthe Facilities)

Lot 1 of CSM 9362

-------------------------
NWCO~~~~ WEST OAKWOOD ROAD

CSM 9362 - 152 60'
r.o.o. N88°34'35"E - - - - -- - - - - - - - - -- - - T

7 ~ I
I tl1

e f#l 'I>· • or» NORTHcs ii.io.oas2I ~ ~ ~ ---------- I
I O N fi 1I I g z 'G GRAPHICAL SCALE (FEET)

I ~ z "' (/) STORM WATER MANAGEMENT I I I
[ ACCESS EASEMENT O 1" • 150' 300'

0 71.550SQ.FT I
I ,,, 1.6426ACRES

v sos3gorw ,
] 1 160 53°

I r----------------------7
M EXHIBIT 8 04/29/2022

•• lii'J ------------------------- .,---------
,,. 1§1 PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP PLAN I DESIGN I DELIVER

20725WATERTOWN ROAD I SUITE 100 I BROOKFIELD,WI 53186 WWW.PIMNACLE-ENGR.COM PEGJOl3#2556.00

N-7



Exhibit C
(Description ofEasement Area)

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

Being a part of Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 9362, as recorded in the
Register of Deeds office for MIiwaukee County as Document No. 11183864,
being a part of the Northeast 1/4 and Northwest 1 /4 of the Northeast 1 /4 of
Section 36, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin, MIiwaukee
County, Wisconsin, described as follows:

Beginning at the northwest corner of said L.ot 1; thence North 88°34'35" East
along the north line of said Lot 1, 152.60 feet; thence South 01°21'37" East,
457.10 feet; thence South 88°39'01"West, 160.53 feet to the west line of said
Lot 1; thence North 00°21 '57'' West along said west line, 456.97 feet to the Point
of Beginning.

.a. EXHIBIT C
a « PINNACLE ENGINEERINGGROUP

20725WATERTOWNROAD{SUnTEBO] OROOKFIELD0,85318 WWW.PINNACLE-ENGRCOM

04/29/2022
PLAN I DESIGN I DELIVER

PEG IOB#2556.00

L \ENGDOCS\Design Standards (7-2017)\Design Standards July 2017\Design Standards finalized for July 2017\2019 Des1gn Standards
Appendix N Easement for storm water management access # 12 doc

N-8



4
NORTH

LJ

GRAPHICAL SCALE (FEET)

I

0 1" = 150' 300'

69.08'

LOT2------
C.S.M. NO. 9362

N00°11 '55"W 4.54'

S00°11'55"E

N89°48'05"E

NORTH LINE OF THE NE 1/4 SEC36, T%P1f---
WESTOAKWOODROAD

I

I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

LOT1----
C.S.M. NO. 9362

STORM SEWER
EASEMENT

2,981 SQ FT
0 0684 ACRES

S88°34'33"W
S64°01 '35"W

N16°51'30"W

OUTLOT 1------
C.S.M. NO. 9362

WWWPINNACLE-ENGR.COM

.., STORM WATER ACCESS MANAGEMENT EASEMENT
• PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP

20725WATERTOWN ROAD ] SUITE IOO [ BROOKFIELD,W1 53186

SHEET 1 OF 2 10/12/2023
PLAN I DESIGN I DELIVER

PEG JO3#2556.00



LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

That part of Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 9362, as recorded in the Register of Deeds
office for Milwaukee County as Document No. 11183864, being a part of the Northeast 1/4 and
Northwest 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 36, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City of
Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, described as follows:

Commencing at the southeast corner of said Lot 1; thence North 00°11'55" West along the
east line of said Lot 1, 4.54 feet to the point of beginning; thence North 16°51 '30" West, 53.24
feet; thence South 64°01 '35" West, 134.45 feet to the south line of said Lot 1; thence South
88°34'33" West along said south line, 36.10 feet; thence North 64°01'35" East, 177.80 feet;
thence North 89° 48'05" East, 12.32 to the aforesaid east line of said Lot 1; thence South
00°11 '55" East along said east line 69.08 feet to the point of beginning .

20725WATERTOWN ROAD I SUITE 100I BROOKFIELD.W1 53186 WWWPINNACLE-ENGR.COM

SHEET 2 OF 2 10/12/2023
PLAN I DESIGN I DELIVER

PEG JO#2556.00

.mi. STORM WATER ACCESS MANAGEMENT EASEMENT
a PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP



WATER MAIN EASEMENT

WEST OAKWOOD RD DEVELOPMENT - HSA
3303 W OAKWOOD RD

TKN 9519994002

THIS INDENTURE, made by and between the CITY OF FRANKLIN, a municipal corporation of
the State of Wisconsin, hereinafter referred to as "City," and JES Franklin Oakwood, LLC and SFT
Franklin Oakwood, LLC, Wisconsin limited liability corporations, owner, (including heirs, executors,
administrators, successors and assigns of above owner(s) as may be or may become applicable),
hereinafter called "Grantor," (If more than one grantor is listed above, said language herein referring
thereto shall be interpreted in the plural and refer jointly and severally to such grantors).

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, Grantor is the owner and holder of record Title to certam real property described on
Exhibit "A" which is attached hereto and incorporated herein (the Property); and

WHEREAS, the City desires to acquire a permanent easement with the 1ight of entry in and across
the property hereinafter described with the ight to build and construct and/or operate, maintain, repair,
enlarge, reconstruct, relocate and mspect as may be or may become applicable the following facilities and
appurtenances thereto, hereinafter called "Facilities," in, upon and across said portion of the property; a
water main and associated fire hydrants, all as shown on the plan attached hereto as Exhibit "B"; and

WHEREAS, the initial construction and installation of the Facilities shall be made by Gantor at
Grantor's expense and the Facihties shall be the property of the City and be deemed dedicated to the City
upon the City's Inspect1on and approval of the Facilities as installed, subject to the terms and conditions
set forth below:

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the grant of the easement hereinafter described and the
payment of One Dollar ($1.00) and other valuable considerations to the Grantor, receipt whereof is
hereby acknowledged, said Grantor, being the owner and person interested in the land hereinafter
described does hereby grant unto the City a permanent easement in that part of the northeast quarter of
Section Thirty-Six (36), Township Five (5) North, Range Twenty-one (21) East, in the City of Franklin,
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, more particularly described on Exhibit C attached hereto (the "Easement
Area").

UPON CONDITION

1 That said Facilities shall be maintained and kept in good order and condition by the City.
Responsibility for maintaining the ground cover and landscaping within the Easement Area shall
be that of the Grantor (including heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns).

2. That in and during whatever construction, reconstruction, enlargement or repair work is or
becomes necessary in constructing and/or maintaining of said Facilities, so much of the surface or
subsurface of the property as may be disturbed, will at the expense of the City be replaced in
substantially the same condition as it was prior to such disturbance; except that the City will in no
case be responsible for replacing or paying for replacing any aesthetic plantings or improvements
other than ordinary lawns or standard walks, roadways, driveways and parking lot surfacing
which were required to be removed in the course of doing the above work. However, the City
shall save harmless the Grantor from any loss, damage, injury or liability resulting from
negligence on the part of the City in connection with said work involved in constructing and/or
maintaining of said Facilities; provided that if above loss, damage, injury or liability results from
the joint negligence of parties hereto, then the liability therefore shall be borne by them in
proportion to their respective degree of negligence; provided further, however, that these
provisions are subject to the legal defenses which under law the City is entitled to raise excepting
the defense of so-called "sovereign immunity "

G-1



3. That no structure may be placed within the limits of the easement by the Grantor except that
improvements such as walks, pavements for driveways and parking lot surfacing may be
constructed or placed within the Easement Area.

4. That, in connection with the construction by the grantor of any structure or building abutting said
easement defined limits, the Grantor will assume all liability for any damage to the Facilities in
the above described property. The Grantor will also save and keep the City clear and harmless
from any claims for personal injuries or property damage caused by any negligence of the Grantor
or person other than the Grantor, arising out of the construction by the Grantor of any structure or
building abutting the said easement defined limits, and shall reimburse the City for the full
amount of such loss or damage.

5. That no charges will be made against said lands for the cost of maintenance or operation of said
Facilities in the afore-described property. Whenever the Grantor makes application for a service
connection, the regular and customary service connection charge in effect at the time of the
application shall be charged and paid. The Grantor shall be responsible for the routine
maintenance ofland on which the easement is located.

6 All conditions pertaining to the "Maintenance of Water Service Piping" as set forth in Chapter
5.12 of the "Rules and Regulations Governing Water Service" and subsequent amendments
thereto shall apply to all water services which are within the easement defined limits and also
within the limits of any adjoining easements; except that the City of Franklin Water Works, a
utility owned by the City of Franklin shall in no case be responsible for maintaining at its expense
any portion of said water services outside of the easement defined limits and outside the limits of
any adjoining easements regardless of any statement to the contrary in said "Rules and
Regulations Governing Water Service."

7. The Facilities shall be accessible for maintenance by the City at all times. The Grantor shall
submit plans for approval to the City Engineer for any underground installation within the
Easement Area, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.

8. That the Grantor shall submit plans for all surface alterations of plus or minus 1 foot or greater
within the limits of said easement. Said alterations shall be made only with the approval of the
City Engineer of the City of Franklin, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld,
conditioned or delayed.

9. The City and Grantor shall each use, and take reasonable measures to cause their employees,
officers, customers, agents, contractors and assigns to use, the Easement Area in a reasonable
manner and so as not to obstruct or otherwise use the Easement Area in a manner that would
unreasonably interfere with the use thereof by the other party hereto or its employees, officers,
customers, agents, contractors and assigns.

10. The City and Grantor each hereby waives all rights of subrogation that either has or may hereafter
have against the other for any damage to the Easement Area or any other real or personal property
or to persons covered by such party's insurance, but only to the extent of the waiving party's
insurance coverage; provided, however, that the foregoing waivers shall not invalidate any policy
of insurance now or hereafter issued, it being hereby agreed that such a waiver shall not apply in
any case which would result in the invalidation of any such policy of insurance and that each
party shall notify the other if such party's insurance would be so invalidated.

11. Either party hereto may enforce this easement by appropriate action, and should it prevail in such
litigation, that party shall be entitled to recover, as part of its costs, reasonable attorneys' fees.

12. This easement may not be modified or amended, except by a writing executed and delivered by
the City and Grantor or their respective successors and assigns.

13. No waiver of, acquiescence in, or consent to any breach of any term, covenant, or condition
hereof shall be construed as, or constitute, a waiver of, acquiescence in, or consent to any other,
further, or succeeding breach of the same or any other term, covenant, or condition.

G-2



14. If any term or provision of this easement shall, to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable under
applicable law, then the remaining terms and provisions of this easement shall not be affected
thereby, and each such remaining term and provision shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest
extent permitted by applicable law.

15. This easement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the internal laws of the
State of Wisconsin.

16. It is understood that in the event the Property may become portions of public streets; in which
event, in the proceedings for the acquisition of the property needed for such streets by purchase,
dedication or by condemnation, said lands shall be considered the same as though this easement
had not been executed or any rights granted thereby exercised.

17. That the Grantor shall submit as-built drawings of the installed facilities on mylar for approval to
the City Engineer, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed.

G-3



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has hereunto set its hands and seals

ov Ts DATo."ct,2,2022
JES Franklin Oakwood, LLC and SFT Franklin Oakwood, LLC
Company Name

Com~inted

». Rerune and Title

Eric Ogden, Manager
Name & Title Printed

IllinoisSTATE OF _
ss

COUNTY OFCook

CITY OF FRANKLIN

Notary Public
( )
My commission expires {/z/27

I
OFFICIAL SEAL
AUNA DZAJ

NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ILLINOIS
COOK COUNTY

MY COMMIG@ION XPIAE 06/20/2027

~
Before me personally appeared on the 3rL day of October, 201'3 the above named Eric Ogden,
Manager of JES Franklin Oakwood, LLC and SFT Franklin OakwoJi, LLC to me known to be the
person(s) who executed the foregoing EASEMENT and acknowledged the same as the voluntary act and
deed of said corporation

By:. _
John R. Nelson, Mayor

STATE OF WISCONSIN
ss

COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE

By: _
Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

On this day of , 20_ before me personally appeared John R. Nelson and
Karen L. Kastenson who being by me duly sworn, did say that they are respectively the Mayor and City
Clerk of Franklin, and that the seal affixed to said instrument is the corporate seal of said municipal
corporation, and acknowledged that they executed the foregoing assigmnent as such officers as the deed
of said municipal corporation by its authority, and pursuant to Resolution File No.adopted
by its Common Council on __, 20_

Notary Public
( )
My commission expires _

G-4



MORTGAGE HOLDER CONSENT

The undersigned, The Northern Trust Company, an Illinois banking corporation ("Mortgagee"), as
Mortgagee under that certain Mortgage encumbering the Property and recorded in the Office of the Register
of Deeds for Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, on December 23, 2022 as Document No. 11308114 and its
addition as an encumbrance against title to the Property.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Mortgagee has caused these presents to be signed by its duly authorized officers
and its corporate seal to be hereunto affixed, as of the day and year first above written.

THE NORTHERN TRUST COMPANY,
An Illinois Banking Corporation

" #ateName: 5Gu ia"hi
Tide: cm Ur

Print Name & Title

STATE OR I ll:,-..S

COUNTY OR (»«
)

S.S.
)

n On this, the.. day of October, 2023 before me, the undersigned, personally appeared
wr· 9,«od, the .o{&Pc,,ark ofThe Northern Trust Company, an Illinois banking
corporation, and acknowledged that (s)he executed the foregoing instrument on behalf of saida.alillluddt.,bu.pgthority and for the purposes therein contained.

»..O-st.,Lu-. ll(
- · Notary Public

state or L I[X..>
County of LiJ " k
My commission expires• 1l, 206

This instrument was drafted by the City of Franklin.

CHRISTOPHER S JOHNSON
Official Seal

Notary Public - State of Illinois
My Commission Expires May 12, 2026

Approved as to contents
Date: ---------

Approved as to form only
Date: ---------

Glen Morrow, Manager of Franklin Municipal Water Utility

Jesse Wesolowski, City Attorney

G-5



Exhibit A
(Description of the Property)

• Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 9362, as recorded in the Register of Deeds office for
Milwaukee County as Document No. 11183864, being a part of the Northeast 1/4 and Northwest
1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 36, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin,
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO.__

PEG l0Dtt255b.OO
SHEET l OF 7T...ln&trument clrartedbyJohn P,Konopachl,l'LS·lkm••No.S-2461

691.0ll' i -570.00'

1/1m

OJI/I mzOGl
~)>;,g

r p
m-v 1/1
...... :c 0 I~.,,,.. z 5"" mn 1/1

~ ..... ""'.: ~1!: :r

I;
""' Oim • (0-- !!I

~ 1isq .... !
~

m ,, )>. Cl) -t
8 ">ID

... 8o0
"' 6g

~ I! Ill :::0 :,,
2j m~ _,. :-" 0 ffi gJ :-1
Z O (J\ "'-I C:
m 2+or., z
!? 0 6 0:, O t-' ~;g z~., )>. Cl) 0 ~2 309 26'
e ,Em_,

~ Cl) •..
S00151E

693.09' 570.03'

1326.6!1'

Reing a pan of the Northeast / and Northwest /4 oflhe No11heas1 I/ti ofSec1lon
36, Township S Nonh, Range 21 East, Chy of Franklin, MIiwaukee Counly, Wisconsin

I
_zoNEO;P0039_ 1§0UTH HICKORY STREET__ J

1100•21·s1-v1 2663.37' ,.X- (120' PUBLIC R.O.W) (UN-IMPROVED) 1;:; P.O.B.
WESTLINE OF THE NE 11 SEC 36, T5N,R21E N00°21'57"W 1266 68' IQ

G-6



Exhibit B
(Depiction of the Facilities)

Lot l ofCSM 9362

GRAPHICAL SCALE (FEET)

I I I I
0 1" • 150' 300'u

S45°50'51"E 36.72'

::r:
I- 1-3 »
::r: w
I- 0:::
::> lo (/)
(/)

___ J----- [_. --- -- -- - --S01%26$')4"E
28.17'

WEST OAKWOOD ROAD N88°34'35"E S46°26'04"E
20 00 1 20.00'

· 135.06' - r
- - - - ·- - - - - - - - - N01°26'04"W 36.46'_:_.. N88°33'56"E
~NWCORNERLOT1 N46°26'04"W 36.57' ---- I>- ] cs4oss2-Poc 88°33'56W 134.94'

0::: N45°50'51"W 20.14' I
0 I LOT 1 N01"25'27'W 105.45'- co
e+- g cs.MN@.oss? Ness«sse 1s.oo- }y
(..) W I " N01 °25'27"W 20.00' cork, sswsrw «so l
J: I- ~ PUBLICWATER N44°12'50"E 21.32' ~ ~IOI
I- Cl) (8 w EASEMENT N88"34'22"E 153.75' • t--::> <I) 41,157 SQ FT lO N

S46"25'38"E 17,45' 09448ACRES N88"34'22"E w <'l io ~
0
.... 1O o »Cl) N88°34'22"E 10.86' e N8834'22"E 20.00' 20.00 cv - CJ>

!'.OB. N01°24'21"W 15.00' S012526E NO12526w 2 [I Nsa•34•22"E 20.00· N -
~ 163.59' S01°24'21"E 1s.o <8 ss.oo s600 53

0 fo /N88°39'01"E N88"34'22"E 408.25' z l8 N88°34'22"E 460.00'

°#."-..,5.aaa-~ b S88"39'01"W S88"34'22"W 1109.29' S4412'60'W 37.89' I
9 155.66' N46°25'38"W 17.47' ·- __ - - -7

-------
.asiii.. EXHIBIT B
"'' tf.'I PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP

20725WATERTOWNROAD ISUITE l001 BROOKFIELD.WI 53186

04/29/2022
PLAN I DESIGN I DELIVER

WWW.PINNACLE-ENGR.C0M PEG)013#2556.00

G-7



Exhibit C
(Description of Easement Area)

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

Being a part of Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 9362, as recorded in the Register of
Deeds office for MIiwaukee County as Document No. 11183864, being a part of the
Northeast 1/4 and Northwest 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 36, Township 5 North,
Range 21 East, City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, described as follows:

Commencing at the northwest corner of said Lot 1; thence South 00°21'57" East along
the west llne of said Lot 1, 456.97 feet to the Point of Beginning:

Thence North 8839'01" East, 163.59 feet: thence South 46°25'38" East, 17.45 feet;
thence North 88°34'22" East, 10.86 feet; thence North 01°24'21" West, 15.00 feet;
thence North 88°34'22" East, 20.00 feet; thence South 01°24'21" East, 15.00 feet;
thence North 88°34'22" East, 408.25 feet: thence North 01 °25'26" West, 55.00 feet;
thence North 88°34'22" East, 20.00 feet; thence South 01°25'26" East, 55.00 feet;
thence North 8834'22" East, 460.00 feet: thence North 012526" West, 55.00 feet:
thence North 8834'22" East, 20.00 feet; thence South 01°25'26" East, 55.00 feet;
thence North 88°34'22" East, 153.75 feet; thence North 44°12'50" East, 21.32 feet:
thence North 0125'27" West, 252.35 feet; thence South 88°34'33" West, 15.00 feet:
thence North 0125'27 West, 20.00 feet; thence North 8834'33" East, 15.00 feet;
thence North 01 °25'27" West, 105.45 feet: thence North 45°50'51" West, 20.14 feet:
thence South 88°33'56" West, 134.94 feet; thence North 46°26'04" West, 36.57 feet:
thence North 01 °26'04" West, 36.46 feet to the north line of said Lot 1; thence North
88°34'35" East along said north line, 20.00 feet: thence South 01%26'04" East, 28.17
feet; thence South 46°26'04" East, 20.00 feet; thence North 88°33'56" East, 135.06
feet: thence South 45°50'51" East, 36.72 feet; thence South 01°25'27" East, 394.38
feet; thence South 44°12'50" West, 37.89 feet; thence South 88°34'22" West, 1109.29
feet: thence North 46°25'38" West, 17 .47 feet; thence South 88°39'01" West, 155.66
feet to the aforesaid west line of Lot 1; thence North 00°21'57" West along said west
line, 20.00 feet to the Point of Beginning.

d. EXHIBIT C
• « PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP

20725WATERTOWNROAD [ SUITE KOO] BROOKFIELD0, MO53186 WWW.PINNACLE-ENCR.COM

04/29/2022
PLAN I DESIGN I DELIVER

PEG JO##2556.00

L ENGDOCS\Design Standards (7-2017)\ Updated Des1gn Standards Appendix G Easement for Water #5 doc

G-8



APPROVAL

REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 2022-2521, an
Ordinance Adopting the 2023 Annual Budget for the

Capital Outlay Fund to Provide Carryforward
Appropriations from 2022 to 2023 of Unused Funds
for Police Department Computer Equipment in the

Amount of $25,000

MEETING DATE
October 17, 2023

ITEM NUMBER

BACKGROUND

On November 16, 2021, the Common Council moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2021-2486, an
Ordinance Adopting the 2022 Annual Budget for the Capital Outlay Fund. Within the 2022 Annual
Budget, $25,000 was appropriated to 41-0211-5841 Police Capital Outlay- Computer Equipment.
On April 19, 2022, the Common Council approved multiple Police Department Budget Purchases,
including a purchase from United Power & Battery for the total cost of $21,250 using the 41-0211
5841 budget appropriation for this item. The purchase of this item was not finalized in 2022.

In 2023, the Police Department requested the Purchase Order for United Power & Battery be
liquidated with the anticipation of purchasing this item from a different vendor. The reason for moving
forward with a different vendor is because the United Power & Battery lead time is 20 weeks and they
cannot provide the installation of the item. The Police Department has elected to go with another
vendor due to their lead time being significantly less and they provide installation services.

The Police Department requests the unused 2022 funds in the amount of $25,000 be carried forward
to 2023 for the purchase of an uninterruptible power supply needed.

FISCAL NOTE
The fiscal impact of this carryforward is that unused 2022 funds, as specifically identified by account
number 41-0211-5841 in the carryforward request, will be used to fund this item.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED
Motion to adopt Ordinance No. 2023- an Ordinance to amend Ordinance 2022-2521, an Ordinance
Adopting the 2023 Annual Budget for the Capital Outlay Fund to Provide Carryforward Appropriations from 2022
to 2023 of Unused Funds for Police Department Computer Equipment in the Amount of $25,000.

Roll Call Vote Required.

Finance-DB



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY

ORDINANCE NO. 2023----

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2022-2521, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING
THE 2023 ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND TO PROVIDE

CARRYFORWARD APPROPRIATIONS FROM 2022 TO 2023 OF UNUSED FUNDS FOR
POLICE DEPARTMENT COMPUTER EQUIPMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $25,000

WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Franklin adopted the 2023 Annual
Budgets for the City of Franklin on November 17, 2022; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council on April 19, 2022 approved the purchase of Capital
Outlay Computer Equipment for the Police Department; and

WHEREAS, the purchase was unsuccessful in 2022 due to a delay in lead time and the
exclusion of installation services of said equipment; and

WHEREAS, the Police Department is requesting the Common Council approve the
carryforward of unused Capital Outlay Funds to support this purchase in 2023; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Franklin does hereby ordain as
follows:

Section 1 That a 2023 Budget for the Capital Outlay Fund be amended as follows:

Capital Outlay Fund
Police - Computer Equipment Increase $25,000.00

Section 2

Section 3

Section 4

Section 5

Pursuant to Wis. Stat.§ 65.90(5)(ar), the City Clerk is hereby directed to post a
notice of this budget amendment within fifteen days of adoption of this Ordinance
on the City's web site.

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any term or
provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of competent
jurisdiction, the remaining terms and provisions shall remain in full force and
effect.

All ordinances and parts of ordinances in contravention to this ordinance are
hereby repealed.

This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage and
publication.



Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
this day of2023.

APPROVED:

John R Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--- --- ---



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS&
RECOMMENDATIONS

Background

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

A Resolution Approving the
Project Plan and Establishing the

Boundaries for and the Creation of
Tax Incremental District No. 9,

City of Franklin, Wisconsin

MEETING
DATE

October 1 7, 2023

ITEM NUMBER

G,17.

On July 18, 2023, a feasibility analysis report from Ehlers Municipal Advisors was presented to the City of
Franklin Common Council in closed session regarding the formation of TID 9, for a proposed mixed-use
development consisting of single-family residential, commercial, retail, industrial, and open space uses of an
approximate 240-acre project area generally surrounding the intersection of West Ryan Road, and South 76th
Street.

Following the timeline for creation ofTID 9, the following activities occurred on September 14 and September 21,
2023

The Joint Revenue Board met to review the plan on September 14
Plan Commission approved the Project Plan on September 21 and recommended that the Common
Council approve and adopt the project plan with boundaries as amended within the plan.

The next step on the timeline is consideration by the Common Council of the Project Plan, the boundaries for and
the creation of Tax Incremental District No. 9, City of Franklin.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt A Resolution Approving the Project Plan and Establishing the Boundaries for and the
Creation of Tax Incremental District No. 9, City of Franklin, Wisconsin
Economic Development - JR, Legal Services Dept - JW



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-

MILWAUKEE COUNTY

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PROJECT PLAN AND ESTABLISHING THE
BOUNDARIES FOR AND THE CREATION OF

TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 9,
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin (the "City") has determined that use of Tax
Incremental Financing is required to promote development and redevelopment within the
City; and

WHEREAS, Tax Incremental District No. 9 (the "District") is proposed to be created
by the City as a mixed-use district in accordance with the provisions of Wisconsin Statutes
Section 66.1105 (the "Tax Increment Law"); and

WHEREAS, a Project Plan for the District has been prepared that includes:

a. A statement listing of the kind, number and location of all proposed public works
or improvements within the District, or to the extent provided in Wisconsin
Statutes Sections 66.l 105(2)(f)l.k. and 66.l 105(2){f)l.n., outside of the District;

b. An economic feasibility study;
c. A detailed list of estimated project costs;
d. A description of the methods of financing all estimated project costs and the time

when the related costs or monetary obligations are to be incurred;
e. A map showing existing uses and conditions of real property in the District;
f. A map showing proposed improvements and uses in the District;
g. Proposed changes of zoning ordinances, master plan, map, building codes and

City ordinances;
h. A list of estimated non-project costs;
1. A statement of the proposed plan for relocation of any persons to be displaced;
J. A statement indicating how the District promotes the orderly development of the

City;
k. An opinion of the City Attorney advising that the plan is complete and complies

with Wisconsin Statutes Section 66.1105(4)(f).; and

WHEREAS, prior to its publication, a copy of the notice of public hearing was sent to
the chief executive officers of Milwaukee County, the Franklin Public School District, and
the Milwaukee Area Technical College District, and any other entities having the power to
levy taxes on property located within the District, in accordance with the procedures
specified in the Tax Increment Law; and



RESOLUTION NO. 2023
Page 2

WHEREAS, in accordance with the procedures specified in the Tax Increment Law,
the Plan Commission, on September 21, 2023 held a public hearing concerning the project
plan and boundaries and proposed creation of the District, providing interested parties a
reasonable opportunity to express their views thereon; and

WHEREAS, after said public hearing, the Plan Commission designated the
boundaries of the District, adopted the Project Plan, and recommended to the Common
Council that it create such District and approve the Project Plan.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that:

1. The boundaries of the District that shall be named "Tax Incremental District
No. 9, City of Franklin", are hereby established as specified in Exhibit A of
this Resolution.

2. The District is created effective as of January 1, 2024.

3. The Common Council finds and declares that:

(a) Not less than 50% by area of the real property within the District is suitable
for a combination of industrial, commercial and residential uses, defined as
"mixed-use development" within the meaning of Wisconsin Statutes
Section 66.1105(2)(cm).

(b) Based upon the finding stated in 3.(a) above, the District is declared to be a
mixed-use district based on the identification and classification of the
property included within the District.

(c) The improvement of such area is likely to enhance significantly the value
of substantially all of the other real property in the District.

(d) The equalized value of the taxable property in the District plus the value
increment of all other existing tax incremental districts within the City,
does not exceed 12% of the total equalized value of taxable property within
the City.

(e) That there are no parcels to be included within the District that were
annexed by the City within the three-year period preceding adoption of this
Resolution.



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-
Page 3

(f) The City estimates that less than 35% of the territory within the District
will be devoted to retail business at the end of the District's maximum
expenditure period, pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes Section 66.1105(5)(b).

(g) The project costs relate directly to promoting mixed-use development in
the District consistent with the purpose for which the District is created.

(h) Lands proposed for newly platted residential development comprise no
more than 35% ofthe real property area within the District.

(i) Costs related to newly platted residential development may be incurred
based on the proposed development having a density of at least three (3)
units per acre as defined in Wisconsin Statutes Section 66.1 105(2)(f)3.a.

4. The Project Plan for "Tax Incremental District No. 9, City of Franklin"
(attached as Exhibit B) is approved, and the City further finds the Plan is
feasible and in conformity with the master plan of the City.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed
to apply to the Wisconsin Department of Revenue, in such form as may be prescribed, for a
"Determination of Tax Incremental Base", as of January 1, 2024, pursuant to the provisions
of Wisconsin Statutes Section 66.l 105(5)(b).

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that pursuant to Section 66.1105(5)(f) of the
Wisconsin Statutes, that the City Assessor is hereby authorized and directed to identify upon
the assessment roll returned and examined under Wisconsin Statutes Section 70.45, those
parcels of property which are within the District, specifying thereon the name of the said
District, and the City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to make similar notations on
the tax roll made under Section 70.65 of the Wisconsin Statutes.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of,2023.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of,2023.

ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--- --- ---

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor



Exhibit A

LEGAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION OR MAP OF
TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 8, CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

[included within the Project Plan]



8

2

21

J

22

18

19 20

[ )
-- L

I I l I

Ir 1
1 r

17

12
16

13
15

R an Rd/Hw

7

5

4
3

r --
L,
klk.ti

t1' tl

'f I

T
1

I
I

11

6

-r.

rr-,--'
___L_ - - --·

GIS Department
9229 W Loomis Rd
Franklin, WI 53132
www.franklinwi.gov

Exhibit A

Franklin Proposed TIO 9
c:J TID 9 Boundary and Area

C Included Properties

1 ROWArea Included - 18.325 AC

r1Feet
0 100 200 400

This map shows the approximate relative location of property boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor.
This map is provided for informational purposes only and may not be sufficient or appropriate for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.

toddn - 8/16/2023
1:\Projecls\Finance\TIF_9\TIO_9_July_31_2023_map_ 1&2.mxd



Exhibit B

PROJECT PLAN



September 21, 2023

PROJECT PLAN

City of Franklin, Wisconsin
Tax Incremental District No. 9

EHLERSIll PUBLIC FINANCE ADVISORS

Prepared by:

Ehlers
Nl9W24400 Riverwood Drive,
Suite 100
Waukesha, WI 53188

BUILDING COMMUNITIES. IT'S WHAT WE DO.



KEY DATES
Organizational Joint Review Board Meeting Held: September 14, 2023

Public Hearing Held: September 21, 2023

Approval by Plan Commission: September 21, 2023

Adoption by Common Council: Scheduled for Oct. 17, 2023

Approval by the Joint Review Board: Scheduled for Oct 25, 2023

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Executive Summary ...

Preliminary Map of Proposed District Boundary

3

6

Map Showing Existing Uses and Conditions. 8

Preliminary Parcel List and Analysis

Equalized Value Test .

10

. 12

Statement Listing the Kind, Number and Location of All Proposed Public Works or
Improvements Within the District..................................... . 13

Map Showing Proposed Improvements and Uses .. . 79

Detailed List of Estimated Project Costs . .21

Economic Feasibility Study, Description of the Methods of Financing Estimated
Project Costs and the Time When Related Costs or Monetary Obligations are to be
Incurred . 22

Annexed Property . . ·······27

Estimate of Property to Be Devoted to Retail Business . . 27

Proposed Changes of Zoning Ordinances, Master Plan, Map, Building Codes and City
Ordinances .27

Statement of the Proposed Method for the Relocation of any Persons to be Displaced
.28

How Creation of the Tax Incremental District Promotes the Orderly Development of
the City .28

List of Estimated Non-Project Costs 29

Legal Opinion Advising Whether the Plan is Complete and Complies with Wis. Stat. §
66.1105(4)(f) 30

Calculation of the Share of Projected Tax Increments Estimated to be Paid by the
Owners of Property in the Overlying Taxing Jurisdictions .32

Tax Incremental District No. 9 Project Plan
Prepared by Ehlers

City of Franklin
Page I 2



SECTION 1:
Executive Summary

DESCRIPTION OF DISTRICT
Tax Incremental District "TID") No. 9 "District") is a proposed Mixed-Use
District comprising approximately 243 acres located generally in the vicinity of
76Street and Ryan Road. The District will be created to pay the costs of public
infrastructure, development incentives, and other costs to be incurred that will
allow for development to take place on the parcels to be included, which
presently lack access to sanitary sewer service and other public improvements
required for development ("Project"). The initial development precipitating
creation of the District is Carma Laboratories ("Company") plans to construct
a new 225,000 square foot headquarters facility including office, industrial and
warehousing space on lands the company owns at the northeast corner of Ryan
Road and 76th Street. The District will also include lands to the west, southwest
and south that require extension of public improvements to develop. In addition
to the incremental property value that will be created, the City expects the
Project to provide employment opportunities, increased income and sales tax
collection, development of housing, increased commercial and manufacturing
activity, and other benefits to the local economy resulting from the purchase
of goods and services related to construction and operation of the Project.

AUTHORITY
The City is creating the District under the provisions of Wis. Stat. § 66.1105.

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST EXPENDITURES
The City anticipates making total expenditures of approximately $11.4 million
"Project Costs") to undertake the projects listed in this Project Plan ("Plan").
Project Costs include an estimated $4.7 million for public infrastructure, $3.8
million for development incentives, $2.6 million for interest on long-term debt
and financing costs, and $340,000 for administrative costs.

INCREMENTAL VALUATION
The City projects that new land and improvements value of approximately
$102.2 million will result from the Project. Creation of this additional value will
be made possible by the Project Costs made within the District. A table
detailing assumptions as to the development timing and associated values is
included in the Economic Feasibility Study located within this Plan.

Tax Incremental District No. 9 Project Plan
Prepared by Ehlers

City of Franklin
Page I 3



EXPECTED TERMINATION OF DISTRICT
Based on the Economic Feasibility Study located within Section 9 of this Plan,
the City anticipates that the District will generate sufficient tax increment to
pay all Project Costs within 13 years, or 11 total years of tax increment collection.
The District is permitted to remain open for a maximum of 20 total years of tax
increment collection.

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS
As required by Wis. Stat. § 66.1105, and as documented in this Plan and the
exhibits contained and referenced herein, the following findings are made:

1. That "but for" the creation of this District, the development projected to
occur as detailed in this Plan: 1) would not occur; or 2) would not occur in
the manner, at the values, or within the timeframe desired by the City. In
reaching this determination, the City has considered:

a. Discussions with the Company pertaining to the economic viability of
the site taking into consideration the infrastructure requirements,
increased construction costs, increased financing costs, and the
Company's evaluation of the site as compared to other locations the
Company considered locating its new facility.

b. The substantial investment needed to provide the public infrastructure
necessary to allow for development within the District. Absent the use
of tax incremental financing, the City is unable to fully fund this program
of infrastructure improvements.

2. The economic benefits of the District, as measured by increased
employment, business and personal income, and property value, are
sufficient to compensate for the cost of the improvements. In making this
determination, the City has considered that in addition to the incremental
property value that will be created, the City expects the Project to provide
employment opportunities to include retention of approximately 200 jobs
in the City and potential creation of 100 additional jobs, increased income
and sales tax collection, development of housing, increased commercial and
manufacturing activity, and other benefits to the local economy resulting
from the purchase of goods and services related to construction and
operation of the Project.

3. The benefits of the proposal outweigh the anticipated tax increments to be
paid by the owners of property in the overlying taxing jurisdictions. As
required by Wis. Stat. § 66.1105(4)(i)4., a calculation of the share of
projected tax increments estimated to be paid by the owners of property in
the overlying taxing jurisdictions has been prepared and can be found in this
Plan However, because the Project would not occur without the use of tax

Tax Incremental District No. 9 Project Plan
Prepared by Ehlers

City of Franklin
Page I 4



incremental financing, these tax increments would not be paid but for
creation of the District. Accordingly, the City finds that the benefits
expected to be realized as set forth in this Plan outweigh the value of the
tax increments to be invested in the Project.

4. Not less than 50% by area of the real property within the District is suitable
for mixed use development as defined by Wis. Stat.§ 66.1105(2)(cm). Lands
proposed for newly-platted residential development comprise no more than
35% of the real property area within the District. Costs related to newly
platted res1dent1al development may be incurred based on the proposed
development having a density of at least three (3) units per acre as defined
in Wis. Stat. § 66.1105(2)(f)3.a.

5. Based on the foregoing finding, the District Is designated as a mixed-use
district.

6. The Project Costs relate directly to promoting mixed use development in
the District, consistent with the purpose for which the District is created.

7. Improvements to be made in the District are likely to significantly enhance
the value of substantially all of the other real property in the District.

8. The equalized value of taxable property mn the District, plus the incremental
value of all existing tax incremental districts within the City does not exceed
12% of the total equalized value of taxable property within the City.

9. The City estimates that less than 35% of the territory within the District will
be devoted to retail business at the end of the DIstrct's maxmmum
expenditure period, pursuant to Wts Stat.§ 66.1105(5)(b).

10. That there are no parcels to be included within the District that were
annexed by the City within the preceding three-year period.

11. The Plan for the DIstrct is feasible and is mn conformity with the Master Plan
of the Ctty.

Tax Incremental District No 9 Project Plan
Prepared by Ehlers

City of Franklin
Page I 5



SECTION 2:
Preliminary Map of Proposed District Boundary

Map Found on Following Page.

To the extent District boundaries include wetlands identified on a map
prepared under Wis. Stat. § 23.32, the wetlands are excluded from the District.

Tax Incremental District No. 9 Project Plan
Prepared by Ehlers

City of Franklin
Page I 6



,.,,,.
,!J"Franklin

►Vl5i:ONl!N

GISDepamnent
922g W Loomis Rd
Franklin, WI 53132
www.franklinwi.gov

Franklin Proposed TIO 9
c::] TIO 9 Boundary and Area

Included Properties

LIRow Area Included- 18.72 AC

Tl ms zhw; the arprctmsre reatecatcn ct praery bouaartez tut ws:nearedby aroh:ions and zureyr.
T¢ mp/ruedtrntratcnai purpoze corly and ray rctte zufer orarrate tcr /egs, engneerng, cr ure/ruTc:e.

Tax Incremental District No. 9 Project Plan
Prepared by Ehlers

City of Franklin
Page I 7



SECTION 3:
Map Showing Existing Uses and Conditions

Map Found on Following Page.

Tax Incremental District No. 9 Project Plan
Prepared by Ehlers

City of Franklin
Page I 8



IVJSCONlf/1

GIS Dep-a11ment
922W Loomis Rd
Franklin ., WI 53132
www.franklinwi .gov

Franklin Proposed TIO 9
Existing Land Uses

c:::J TIO 9 Boundary and Area

L Included Properties

c=J ROW Area Included - 18.72 AC

Tl; ma zhw: theaprrcmse restve orate ct paery tourasre: tut wssnrerared by aprote:ions and zureyr.
Ts ms/spruced tr ntmtcns purpozecorly and ray rct be zuncerrsrrte tr/egs, engneerng, or ureyrgrrcze:

Tax Incremental District No. 9 Project Plan
Prepared by Ehlers

City of Franklin
Page I 9



SECTION 4:
Preliminary Parcel List and Analysis

The parcels identified in the table below will become part of the District as of
January 1, 2024. Valuations noted are as of January 1, 2023. Actual District base
value will be calculated using January 1, 2024, values. Any increase in value after
that date will become incremental value for the District.

Map Total Suitable For Mixed Use
Parcel No. Address Acres Assessed Industrial Commerical ResidentialLegend Value Acres Acres Acres

R0W Areas - 18.9l - -

1 884-9995-000 9100 S 76TH ST 19.05 $ 503,400 0.00 0.00 0.00

2 884-9996-000 9220 S 76TH ST 9.99 $ 220,100 0.00 0.00 0.00

3 885-9999-009 6625 S. 46th Street 37.13 $ 18,700 0.00 1.50 31.49

4 885-9999-002 - 1.03 $ 25.100 0.00 0.93 0.00

5 885-9999-005 9371 S. 76th Street 1.29 $ 434.400 0.00 1.16 0.00

6 885-9999-008 8050 W. Ryan Road 10.43 $ 2,800 0.00 4.23 3.00

7 885-9999-007 7800 W. Ryan Road 23.00 $ 6.200 0.00 10.70 10.00

8 884-9997-000 9410 S. 76th Street 41.25 $ 11,200 29.25 12.00 0.00

9 884-9998-000 7520 W. Ryan Road 0.55 $ 57.400 0.00 0.55 0.00

10 896-9996-002 8035 W. Ryan Road 3.17 $ 132.000 0.00 3.17 0.00

11 896-9996-003 9545 W. Ryan Road 7.86 $ 1.939.400 7.66 0.00 0.00

12 896-9990-001 9600 S 80th Street 20.14 $ 0.00 0.00 0.00

13 896-9987-001 7761 W. Ryan Road 2.33 $ 2.236,300 2.33 0.00 0.00

14 896-9987-002 7709 W.Ryan Road 0.40 $ 227,800 0.00 0.40 0.00

15 896-9985-000 7623 W Ryan Road 2.57 $ 292,100 0.00 2.57 0.00

16 896-9986-000 9571 S. 76th Street 2.91 $ 361.700 0.00 2.91 0.00

17 896-9993-000 9621 S. 76th Street 2.92 $ 330.200 0.00 2.34 0.00

18 896-9994-003 9643 S. 76th Street 3.31 $ 560.600 0.00 3.31 0.00

19 896-9994-002 9671 S 76th Street 0.98 $ 28,800 0.00 0.98 0.00

20 896-9995-000 96 75 S. 76tl1 Street 0.69 $ 269,500 0.00 0.69 0.00

21 897-9996-000 9546 S. 76th Street 26.80 $ 7,300 0.00 12.76 10.00

22 897-9997-000 9.85 $ 2,700 0.00 9.18 0.00

23 884-9999-000 7220 W. Ryan Road 3.72 $ 387.300 0.00 3.72 0.00
Less: Wetland 7.27 -Acreage
Totals 243.0I $8,055,000 39.24 73.09 54.49

Estimated Assessment Ratio 99.69%

Estimated Equalized Value $8,079,668

Tax Incremental District No. 9 Project Plan
Prepared by Ehlers

City of Franklin
Page I 10



Of the 243.01 acres to be included in the District, a total of 166.83 acres, or
68.65%, are suitable for mixed-use development. Areas expected to be
developed as newly-platted residential total to 22.42% of the District. The
District meets the requirement that at least 50% of the area be suitable for
mixed use development, and that no more than 35% of the area be developed
with newly-platted residential uses. The areas to be developed as newly-platted
residential qualify as average density will be at least three units per acres.

Acres Sut able for Industrial Development 39 24 16 15%

Acres Suitable for Commencal Development 73.09 30 08%

Acres Suitable for Newly Platted Res1clent1al Development 54 49 22 42%

Total Acres Suitable for Med Use Development 166 83 68.65%

Acres Not Suitable for Mixed Use Development 76 19 31 35%

Total Acres 243 01 100 00%

Tax Incremental District No 9 Project Plan
Prepared by Ehlers

City of Franklin
Page I 11



SECTION 5:
Equalized Value Test

The following calculations demonstrate that the City expects to be in
compliance with Wis. Stat. § 66.1105(4)(gm)4.c., which requires that the
equalized value of the taxable property in the proposed District, plus the value
increment of all existing tax incremental districts, does not exceed 12% of the
total equalized value of taxable property within the City.

The equalized value of the increment of existing tax incremental districts within
the City, plus the base value of the proposed District, totals $178,173,400. This
value is less than the maximum of $735,488,268 in equalized value that is
permitted for the City.

Calculation of City Equalized Value Limit

City TID IN Equalized Value Jan. 1, 2023)

TID Valuation Limit@ 12% of Above Value

$ 6,129,068,900

$ 735,488,268

Calculation of Value Subject to Limit

Estimated Base Value of Added Territory

Incremental Value of Existing Districts Jan. 1, 2023)

Total Value Subject to 12% Valuation Limit

Tax Incremental District No. 9 Project Plan
Prepared by Ehlers

$

$

$

8,079,700

170,093,700

178,173,400

City of Franklin
Page I 12



SECTION 6:
Statement Listing the Kind, Number and Location of All
Proposed Public Works or Improvements Within the
District

Project Costs are any expenditure made, estimated to be made, or monetary
obligations incurred or estimated to be incurred as outlined in this Plan. Project
Costs will be diminished by any income, special assessments, or other revenues,
including user fees or charges, other than tax increments, received or
reasonably expected to be received in connection with the implementation of
the Plan. If Project Costs incurred benefit territory outside the District, a
proportionate share of the cost is not a Project Cost. Costs identified in this
Plan are preliminary estimates made prior to design considerations and are
subject to change after planning, design and construction is completed.

With all Project Costs, the costs of engineering, design, survey, inspection,
materials, construction, restoring property to its original condition, apparatus
necessary for public works, legal and other consultant fees, testing,
environmental studies, permits, updating City ordinances and plans, judgments
or claims for damages and other expenses are included as Project Costs.

The following is a list of public works and other tax incremental financing
eligible Project Costs that the City expects to make, or may need to make, in
conjunction with the implementation of the District's Plan. The map found in
Section 7 of this Plan along with the Detailed List of Project Costs found in
Section 8 provide additional information as to the kind, number, and location
of potential Project Costs.

Property, Right-of-Way, and Easement Acquisition

Property Acquisition for Development

To promote and facilitate development the City may acquire property within
the District. The cost of property acquired, and any costs associated with the
transaction, are eligible Project Costs. Following acquisition, other Project
Costs within the categories detailed in this Section may be incurred to make
the property suitable for development. Any revenue received by the City from
the sale of property acquired pursuant to the execution of this Plan will be used
to reduce the total project costs of the District. If total Project Costs incurred
by the City to acquire property and make it suitable for development exceed
the revenues or other consideration received from the sale or lease of that
property, the net amount shall be considered "real property assembly costs" as

Tax Incremental District No. 9 Project Plan
Prepared by Ehlers

City of Franklin
Page I 13



defined in Wis. Stat. § 661105(2)(f)l. c., and subject to recovery as an eligible
Project Cost.

Property Acquisition for Conservancy

To promote the objectives of this Plan, the City may acquire property within
the District that it will designate for conservancy. These conservancy objectives
include preserving historic resources or sensitive natural features; protection of
scenic and historic views; maintamning habitat for wildlife; mamntamnmng adequate
open space; reduction of erosion and sedimentation by preserving existing
vegetation; and providing adequate areas for management of stormwater. The
cost of property acquired for conservancy, and any costs associated with the
transaction, are eligible Project Costs.

Acquisition of Rights-of-Way

The City may need to acquire property to allow for installation of streets,
driveways, sidewalks, util1t1es, stormwater management practices and other
public infrastructure. Costs incurred by the City to identify, negotiate, and
acquire rights-of-way are eligible Project Costs.

Acquisition of Easements

The City may need to acquire temporary or permanent easements to allow for
installation and maintenance of streets, driveways, sidewalks, utilities,
stormwater management practices and other public infrastructure. Costs
incurred by the City to identify, negotiate, and acquire easement rights are
eligible Project Costs.

Relocation Costs

If relocation expenses are incurred m conjunction with the acquisition of
property, those expenses are eligible Project Costs These costs may include
but are not limited to preparation of a relocation plan; allocations of staff time;
legal fees; publication of notices, obtamnmng appraisals; and payment of
relocation benefits as required by Wis. Stat. Chapter 32 and WIs. Admmn Code
ADM 92.

Site Preparation Activities

Environmental Audits and Remediation

If 1t becomes necessary to evaluate any land or improvement within the District,
any cost incurred by the City related to environmental audits, testing, and
remediation are eligible Project Costs.

Tax Incremental District No 9 Project Plan
Prepared by Ehlers

Crty of Franklin
Page ] 14



Demolition

To make sites suitable for development, the City may incur costs related to
demolition and removal of structures or other land improvements, to include
abandonment of wells or other existing utility services.

Site Grading

Land within the District may require grading to make it suitable for
development, to provide access, and to control stormwater runoff. The City
may need to remove and dispose of excess material or bring in fill material to
provide for proper site elevations. Expenses incurred by the City for site
grading are eligible Project Costs.

Utilities

Sanitary Sewer System Improvements

To allow development to occur, the City may need to construct, alter, rebuild,
or expand sanitary sewer infrastructure within the District Eligible Project
Costs include, but are not limited to, construction, alteration, rebuilding, or
expansion of collection mains; manholes and cleanouts; service laterals; force
mains; interceptor sewers; pumping stations; lift stations; wastewater treatment
fac1l1t1es; and all related appurtenances. To the extent sanitary sewer projects
undertaken within the District provide direct benefit to land outside of the
District, the City will make an allocation of costs based on such benefit. Those
costs corresponding to the benefit allocated to land within the DIstrct, and
necessitated by the implementation of the Project Plan, are eligible Project
Costs. Implementation of the Project Plan may also require that the City
construct, alter, rebuild, or expand sanitary sewer infrastructure located outside
of the District. That portion of the costs of sanitary sewer system projects
undertaken outside the District which are necessitated by the implementation
of the Project Plan are eligible Project Costs.

Water System Improvements

To allow development to occur, the City may need to construct, alter, rebuild,
or expand water system infrastructure within the Distrct Eligible Project Costs
Include, but are not limited to, construction, alteration, rebuilding, or expans1on
of d1stnbut1on mains; manholes and valves, hydrants; service laterals, pumping
stations; wells; water treatment facilities; storage tanks and reservoirs; and all
related appurtenances. To the extent water system projects undertaken within
the District provide direct benefit to land outside of the District, the City will
make an allocation of costs based on such benefit. Those costs corresponding
to the benefit allocated to land within the District, and necessitated by the

Tax Incremental District No. 9 Project Plan
Prepared by Ehlers

City of Franklin
Page I 15



implementation of the Project Plan, are eligible Project Costs. Implementation
of the Project Plan may also require that the City construct, alter, rebuild, or
expand water system infrastructure located outside of the District. That
portion of the costs of water system projects undertaken outside the District
which are necessitated by the 1mplementat1on of the Project Plan are elgtble
Project Costs.

Stormwater Management System Improvements

Development within the District wll cause stormwater runoff. To manage this
stormwater runoff, the City may need to construct, alter, rebuild, or expand
stormwater management infrastructure within the District. Eligible Project
Costs include, but are not limited to, construction, alteration, rebuilding, or
expansion of stormwater collection mains; inlets, manholes and valves; service
laterals; ditches; culvert pipes; box culverts; bridges; stab1lizat1on of stream and
riverbanks; and infiltration, filtration, and detention Best Management Practices
(BMP's). To the extent stormwater management system projects undertaken
within the District provide direct benefit to land outside of the District, the City
will make an allocation of costs based on such benefit. Those costs
corresponding to the benefit allocated to land within the DIstrct, and
necessitated by the implementation of the Project Plan, are eligible Project
Costs. Implementation of the Project Plan may also require that the City
construct, alter, rebuild, or expand stormwater management infrastructure
located outside of the District. That portion of the costs of stormwater
management system projects undertaken outside the District which are
necessitated by the implementation of the Project Plan are eligible Project
Costs.

Electric Service

To create sites suitable for development, the City may incur costs to provide,
relocate or upgrade electric services. Relocation may require abandonment and
removal of existing poles or towers, installation of new poles or towers, or
burying of overhead electric lines. Costs incurred by the City to undertake this
work are eligible Project Costs

Gas Service

To create sites suitable for development, the City may incur costs to provide,
relocate or upgrade gas mains and services. Costs incurred by the City to
undertake this work are eligible Project Costs.

Tax Incremental District No 9 Project Plan
Prepared by Ehlers

City of Franklin
Page I 16



Communications Infrastructure

To create sites suitable for development, the City may incur costs to provide,
relocate or upgrade infrastructure required for voice and data communications,
including, but not limited to telephone lines, cable lines and fiber optic cable.
Costs incurred by the City to undertake this work are el1g1ble Project Costs.

Streets and Streetscape

Street Improvements

To allow development to occur, the City may need to construct or reconstruct
streets, highways, alleys, access dnves and parking areas. Eligible Project Costs
include, but are not limited to: excavation; removal or placement of fill,
construction of road base; asphalt or concrete paving or repaving; installation
of curb and gutter; installation of sidewalks and bicycle lanes; installation of
culverts, box culverts and bridges; rail crossings and signals; utility relocation,
to include burying overhead utility lines; street lighting; installation of traffic
control signage and traffic signals; pavement marking; right-of-way restoration;
installation of retaining walls; and installation of fences, berms, and landscaping.

Streetscaping and Landscaping

To attract development consistent with the objectives of thus Plan, the Crty may
install amenities to enhance development sites, rights-of-way, and other public
spaces. These amenities include but are not limited to landscaping; lighting of
streets, sidewalks, parking areas and public areas; installation of planters,
benches, clocks, tree rings, trash receptacles and smmlar items, and installation
of bnck or other decorative walks, terraces, and street crossings. These and any
other similar amenities installed by the City are eligible Project Costs

Community Development

Cash Grants (Development Incentives)

The City may enter into agreements with property owners, lessees, or
developers of land located within the District for sharing costs to encourage
the desired kind of improvements and assure tax base is generated sufficient
to recover Project Costs No cash grants will be provided until the City executes
a developer agreement with the rec1p1ent of the cash grant. Any payments of
cash grants made by the City are eligible Project Costs

Tax Incremental District No 9 Project Plan
Prepared by Ehlers

Crty of Franklin
Page I 17



Miscellaneous

Professional Service and Organizational Costs

The costs of professional services rendered, and other costs incurred, in relation
to the creation, administration and termination of the District, and the
undertaking of the projects contained within this Plan, are eligible Project Costs.
Professional services include but are not limited to architectural; environmental;
planning; engineering; legal; audit; financial; and the costs of informing the
public wIth respect to the creation of the District and the implementation of the
Plan.

Administrative Costs

The City may charge to the District as eligible Project Costs reasonable
allocations of administrative costs, including, but not limited to, employee
salaries. Costs allocated will bear a direct connection to the time spent by City
employees relating to the implementation of the Plan.

Financing Costs

Interest expense, debt issuance expenses, redemption premiums, and any other
fees and costs mncurred in conjunction with obtaining financing for projects
undertaken under this Plan are el1g1ble ProJect Costs.

Tax Incremental District No 9 Project Plan
Prepared by Ehlers

Crty of Franklin
Page I 18



SECTION 7:
Map Showing Proposed Improvements and Uses

Map Found on Following Page.

Tax Incremental District No. 9 Project Plan
Prepared by Ehlers

City of Franklin
Page I 19



GIS Department
9229WLoomis Rd
Franklin, W1 53132
www.franklinwi.gov

Franklin Proposed TIO 9
Future Project and Costs

lilllllll Future water
- Future Road Improvements
- Future Sidewalk
Future Sanitary......
::Jl:JI

c:Jr10 9 Boundary and Area
Included Properties

This map showsthe approximate relative loca tion of property boundaries but wa s not prepared by a professional land su rveyo r.
This map is prov ided fo r info rmational purposes only and may not be sufficient or appropriate fo r legal, engineering, or surv ey ing purposes

Tax Incremental District No. 9 Project Plan
Prepared by Ehlers

to&dn - 104r2023
tPree« tsFinunceT F_9710_9_Sept_25_2023_ma_4.md

City of Franklin
Page I 20



SECTION 8:
Detailed List of Estimated Project Costs

The following list identifies the Project Costs that the City currently expects to
incur in implementing the District's Plan. All projects identified and related costs
reflect the best estimates available as of the date of preparation of this Plan. All
costs are preliminary estimates and may increase or decrease. Certain Project
Costs listed may become unnecessary, and other Project Costs not currently
identified may need to be made. (Section 6 details the general categories of
eligible Project Costs). Changes in Project Cost totals or the types of Project
Costs to be incurred will not require that this Plan be amended. This Plan is not
meant to be a budget nor an appropriation of funds for specific Project Costs,
but a framework within which to manage Project Costs.

City of Franklin, Wisconsin
Tax Increment District #9

Estimated Project List

I IIII
269,100 1,800,000 2,069,100

1,430,000 1,430,000
212,160 212,160

(102,260) (102,260)
550,000 550,000

0
470,000 470,000

0
1,500,000 1,500,000

2,338,371 2,338,371
894,363 1,503,637 2,398,000
88,925 99,113 188,038

3,678 3,678
340,000 340,000

4,635,966 6,761,120 11,397,086

Project Name/TypeIII
1 Public Infrastructure

Sanitary Sewer Extensions
Acceleration/Deceleration Lanes
Sidewalk
Paid by Company
Water Extensions

2 Public Infrastructure (Taxable Financing)
Sanitary Sewer Service

3 Development Incentives
Carma Labs
Other Commercial or Industrial

4 Interest on Long Term Debt
5 Financing Costs
6 Interest on Advances
7 Administrative Costs

Total Projects

Notes:

Tax Incremental District No. 9 Project Plan
Prepared by Ehlers

City of Franklin
Page I 21



SECTION 9:
Economic Feasibility Study, Description of the Methods
of Financing Estimated Project Costs and the Time When
Related Costs or Monetary Obligations are to be Incurred

This Section includes a forecast of the valuation increases expected within the
District, the associated tax increment collections, a summary of how Project
Costs would be financed, and a projected cash flow demonstrating that the
District is economically feasible.

Key Assumptions

The Project Costs the City plans to make are expected to create approximately
$102.2 million in incremental value by January 1, 2035. Estimated valuations and
timing for construction of the Project are included in Table 1. Assuming the
City's current equalized TID Interim tax rate of $18.83 per thousand of equalized
value, and no economic appreciation or depreciation, the Project would
generate approximately $28.1 million in incremental tax revenue over the 20
year term of the District as shown in Table 2.

Tax Incremental District No. 9 Project Plan
Prepared by Ehlers

City of Franklin
Page I 22



City of Franklin, Wisconsin
Tax Increment District #9

Development Assumptions

Construction Lr] Other Comm.
Residential?

Construction
& Industrial

Annual Total
Year Year

1 2024 10,000,000 0 0 10,000,000 2024 1
2 2025 4,000,000 2,000,000 0 6,000,000 2025 2
3 2026 0 0 0 2026 3
4 2027 5,419,700 2,142,857 7,562,557 2027 4
5 2028 9,840,090 8,185,714 18,025,804 2028 5
6 2029 2,250,950 8,185,714 10,436,664 2029 6
7 2030 393,705 8,185,714 8,579,419 2030 7
8 2031 3,634,670 9,310,714 12,945,384 2031 8
9 2032 1,235,910 9,310,714 10,546,624 2032 9

10 2033 293,020 9,310,714 9,603,734 2033 10
11 2034 5,307,120 3,267,857 8,574,977 2034 11
12 2035 0 0 0 2035 12
13 2036 0 2036 13
14 2037 0 2037 14
15 2038 0 2038 15
16 2039 0 2039 16
17 2040 0 2040 17
18 2041 0 2041 18
19 2042 0 2042 19
20 2043 0 2043 20

Totals 14,000,000 30,375,165 57,900,000 102,275,165

Notes:

'Reflects proposed minimum value guarantee per term sheet received from J. Regetz 7-12-2023.

Assumes 436,000 sq. ft. of commercial or industrial development valued at an average of $65/sq. ft.

Assumes 193 total units of residential development with an average value of $300,000 per unit.

Table 1 - Development Assumptions

Tax Incremental District No. 9 Project Plan
Prepared by Ehlers

City of Franklin
Page I 23



City of Franklin, Wisconsin
Tax Increment District #9

Tax Increment Projection Worksheet

Type of District
District Creation Date

Valuation Date
Max Life (Years)

Expenditure Period/Termination
Revenue Periods/Final Year

Extension Eligibility/Years'
Eligible Recipient District'

Base Value
Appreciation Factor

Base Tax Rate
Rate Adjustment Factor

Constructio Value Valuation Inflation Total Revenue Tax
n Year Added Year Increment Increment Year Tax Rate Increment

1 2024 10,000,000 2025 0 10,000,000 2026 $18.83
2 2025 6,000,000 2026 0 16,000,000 2027 $18.83
3 2026 0 2027 0 16,000,000 2028 $18.83
4 2027 7,562,557 2028 0 23,562,557 2029 $18.83
5 2028 18,025,804 2029 0 41,588,361 2030 $18.83
6 2029 10,436,664 2030 0 52,025,026 2031 $18.83
7 2030 8,579,419 2031 0 60,604,445 2032 $18.83
8 2031 12,945,384 2032 0 73,549,829 2033 $18.83
9 2032 10,546,624 2033 0 84,096,454 2034 $18.83

10 2033 9,603,734 2034 0 93,700,188 2035 $18.83
11 2034 8,574,977 2035 0 102,275,165 2036 $18.83
12 2035 0 2036 0 102,275,165 2037 $18.83
13 2036 0 2037 0 102,275,165 2038 $18.83
14 2037 0 2038 0 102,275,165 2039 $18.83
15 2038 0 2039 0 102,275,165 2040 $18.83
16 2039 0 2040 0 102,275,165 2041 $18.83
17 2040 0 2041 0 102,275,165 2042 $18.83
18 2041 0 2042 0 102,275,165 2043 $18.83
19 2042 0 2043 0 102,275,165 2044 $18.83
20 2043 0 2044 0 102,275,165 $18.83

Notes:
'Tax rate shown is actual TID interim rate for the 2022/23 levy per DOR Form PC-202 (Tax Increment Collection Worksheet)

Table 2 - Tax Increment Projection Worksheet

Tax Incremental District No. 9 Project Plan
Prepared by Ehlers

City of Franklin
Page I 24



Financing and Implementation

The first phase of the Project will be construction of the new facility by the
Company. The City will issue approximately $2.01 million in General Obligation
bonds in 2024 to fund Phase 1 public infrastructure projects. Additionally, a
pay-as-you go ("PAYGO") developer incentive will be paid to the Company up
to a cap of $1.5 million leveraging the tax increment generated by the District.
City debt service will have priority of payment, with PAYGO payments limited
to remaining funds available. The Company has agreed to a minimum valuation
of $14 million to ensure that tax increments collected will be sufficient to pay
City debt.

Phase 2 will include additional public infrastructure projects, which will be
funded by approximately $3.15 million in General Obligation bonds to be issued
by the City. These projects will require a mix of tax-exempt and taxable
financing. For purpose of the Project Plan, Phase 2 financing 1s assumed to
occur mn 2026. Actual timing will be based on development and the need to
extend sanitary sewer to the west. The Plan also includes the potential for
PAYGO 1ncent1ves related to Phase 2 development. Whether incentives are
provided will be dependent on the City's evaluation of such requests and
determination that an incentive is needed to allow for the development to
occur.

The City may need to advance funds to the District prior to the availability of
tax increment and will recover those advance amounts with interest from tax
increments as they become available. These advances, along with the proceeds
of long-term debt will fund the public infrastructure costs and District
administrative costs. PAYGO incentives will be funded from tax increment as it
Is collected from the associated development, with payments limited to those
collections less any other obligations related to the corresponding
development agreement.

This summary is intended to provide a general explanation of the District plan
of finance. Specific terms and conditions pertaining to development projects
will be detailed in related development agreements.

Based on the Project Cost expenditures as included wthmn the cash flow exhibit
(Table 3), the District s projected to accumulate sufficient funds by the year
2036 to pay off all Project cost liabilities and obligations. The projected closure
Is based on the varous assumptions noted min thus Plan and wll vary dependent
on actual Project Costs incurred and the actual amount of tax Increments
collected.

Tax Incremental District No. 9 Project Plan
Prepared by Ehlers

Crty of Franklin
Page I 25



u
0)·e
Q.

"'oz
u

-~
as e-~n, _,:;;
«i
0) >
E .c
OJ "O;
C n,
- C.
X 0)

" A

;:
0
U::
.s::
II)

ltJu
I

t'l
a,
:0
ltJ
I-

0

m........s

0 0 0 5l 5l........
8 o
4 4

"'·~
"E
E
8



SECTION 10:
Annexed Property

A tax incremental district cannot include annexed territory unless at least three
years have elapsed since the annexation, or certain other requirements are met.
None of the property within the proposed District boundary was annexed
during the past three years.

SECTION 11:
Estimate of Property to Be Devoted to Retail Business

Pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 66.llOS(S)(b), the City estimates that less than 35% of
the territory within the District will be devoted to retail business at the end of
the District's maximum expenditure period.

SECTION 12:
Proposed Changes of Zoning Ordinances, Master Plan,
Map, Building Codes and City Ordinances

Zoning Ordinances

The proposed Plan is in general conformance with the City's current zoning
ordinances. Individual properties may require rezoning at the time of
development.

Master (Comprehensive) Plan and Map

The proposed Plan is in general conformance with the City's Comprehensive
Plan identifying the area as appropriate for mixed use development.

Building Codes and Ordinances

Development within the District will be required to conform to State Building
Codes and will be subject to the City's permitting and inspection procedures.
The proposed Plan conforms to all relevant State and local ordinances, plans,
and codes. No changes to the existing regulations are proposed or needed.

Tax Incremental District No. 9 Project Plan
Prepared by Ehlers

City of Franklin
Page I 27



SECTION 13:
Statement of the Proposed Method for the Relocation of
any Persons to be Displaced

Should implementation of this Plan require relocation of individuals or business
operations, relocations will be handled in compliance with Wis. Stat. Chapter
32 and Wis. Admin. Code ADM 92.

SECTION 14:
How Creation of the Tax Incremental District Promotes
the Orderly Development of the City

Creation of the District and the implementation of the projects in its Plan will
promote the orderly development of the City by creating new industrial sites,
creating opportunities for mixed use development, providing necessary public
infrastructure improvements, and providing appropriate financial incentives for
private development projects. Through use of tax increment financing, the City
can attract new investment that results in increased tax base. Development will
occur in an orderly fashion in accordance with approved plans so that the
Projects will be compatible with adjacent land uses. Development of new uses
in the District will add to the tax base and will generate positive secondary
impacts in the community such as employment opportunities, increased
income and sales tax collection, development of housing, increased commercial
and manufacturing activity, and other benefits to the local economy resulting
from the purchase of goods and services related to construction and operation
of the Project.

Tax Incremental District No. 9 Project Plan
Prepared by Ehlers

City of Franklin
Page I 28



SECTION 15:
List of Estimated Non-Project Costs

Non-project costs are public works projects which only partly benefit the
District. Costs incurred that do not benefit the District may not be paid with tax
increments. Examples of non-project costs are:

• A public improvement made within the District that also benefits
property outside the District. That portion of the total Project Costs
allocable to properties outside of the District would be a non-project
cost.

• A public improvement made outside the District that only partially
benefits property within the District. That portion of the total Project
Costs allocable to property outside of the District would be a non-project
cost.

• Projects undertaken within the District as part of the implementation of
this Project Plan, the costs of which are paid fully or in part by impact
fees, grants, special assessments, or revenues other than tax increments.

No improvements to be made within the District will benefit property outside
the District. Furthermore, there will be no improvements made outside the
District that will only partially benefit the District.

Tax Incremental District No. 9 Project Plan
Prepared by Ehlers

City of Franklin
Page I 29



SECTION 16:
Legal Opinion Advising Whether the Plan is Complete
and Complies with Wis. Stat. s 66.11054)f)

Legal Opinion Found on Following Page.

Tax Incremental District No. 9 Project Plan
Prepared by Ehlers

City of Franklin
Page I 30



WESOLOWSKI, REIDENBACH & SAJDAK, S.C.
ATTORNEYS AT LAW

11402 WEST CHURCH STREET
FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN 53132

JESSE A. WESOLOWSKI
FREDERICK E. REIDENBACH 1919-2002
BRIAN C. SAJDAK
EDUARDO M. BORDA
COOPER S. PRINDL

October 9, 2023

TELEPHONE (414) 529-8900
FACSIMILE (414)529-2121

Mayor John R. Nelson
City ofFranklin
9229 West Loomis Road
Franklin, Wisconsin 53132

re: Tax Incremental District No. 9, City ofFranklin, Wisconsin

Dear MayorNelson:

I have reviewed the Project Plan for the Creation ofTax Incremental District No. 9, City of
Franklin, Wisconsin. It is my opinion that the Project Plan is complete and in compliance
with Wis. Stat. § 66.1105. The Project Plan, additionally, was informed by the Tax
Increment District No. 9 Feasibility Analysis prepared by Ehlers & Associates, Inc. engaged
by the City. This opinion is provided as required pursuant to Wis. Stat. $ 66.1 105(4)f).

WS

ttorney
ofFranklin

Tax Incremental District No. 9 Project Plan
Prepared by Ehlers

City of Franklin
Page I 31



SECTION 17:
Calculation of the Share of Projected Tax Increments
Estimated to be Paid by the Owners of Property in the
Overlying Taxing Jurisdictions

The following projection is provided to meet the requirements of Wis. Stat. §
66.1105( 4)(i)4.

Milwaukee
Revenue Milwaukee City of Franklin Area Technical Revenue

Year County MMSD Franklin School District College Total Year
2026 46,859 16,619 53,234 60,598 10,972 188,281 2026
2027 74,974 26,591 85,174 96,957 17,555 301,250 2027
2028 74,974 26,591 85,1741 96,957 17,555 301,250 2028
2029 110,411 39,159 1.25,432 142,784 25,852 443,639 2029
2030 194,877 69,117 221,390 252,016 45,630 783,031 2030
2031 243,782 86,462 276,949 315,260 57,081 979,534 2031
2032 283,984 100,721 322,620 367,250 66,494 1,141_,069 2032
2033 344,644 122,235 391,533 445,696 80,697 1,384,806 2033
2034 394,064 139,763 447,677 509,606 92,269 1,583,379 20341
2035 439,066 155,724 498,801 567,803 102,806 1,764,200 2035
2036 479,247 169,975 544,449 619,765 112,214 1,925,650 2036
20237 479,247 169,975 544,449 619,765 112,214 1,925,650 2037
2038 479,247 169,975 544,449 619,765 112,214 1,925,650 2038
2039 479,247 169,975 544,449 619,765 112,214 1,925,650 2039
2040 479,247 169,975 544,449 619,765 112,214 1,925,650 2040
2041 479,247 169,975 544,449 619,765 112,214 1,925,650 2041.
2042 479,247 169,975 544,449 619,765 112,214 1,925,650 2042
2043 479,247 169,975 544,449 619,765 112,214 1,925,650 2043
2044 479,247 169,975 544,449 619,765 112,214 1,925,650 2044
2045 479,247 169,975 544,449 619,765 112,214 1,925,650 2045

Total 7,0l!J0,109 2,482,728 7,952,477 9,052,578 1,639,050 28,126,942

Tax Incremental District No. 9 Project Plan
Prepared by Ehlers

City of Franklin
Page I 32



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR
} COUNCIL ACTION

REPORTS & An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 2022-2521,
RECOMMENDATIONS an Ordinance Adopting the 2023 Annual Budget

for the Fire Department Grant Fund to Provide
for $11,916 of Grant Resources and up to
$11,916 of Grant Appropriations for the

Wisconsin Department of Health Leave Behind
Kits Project

MEETING DATE
October 17, 2023

ITEM NUMBER

.8.

BACKGROUND

The Fire Department was made aware of a grant funding opportunity from the Wisconsin Department
of Health Services in March, 2023. This grant provides Leave Behind Kits for various Wisconsin EMS
providers. These kits will come with education on how to use these products, both in-person through
contact with EMS providers, or handout information and resources contained in the kits. Kits would
be available upon request at every fire station, and would be left behind with any patient who has
overdosed on an opiate whether they are transported or not.

Over the past five (5) years, the City of Franklin has suffered nearly 50 confirmed overdose deaths
and almost 400 suspected nonfatal overdoses.

On 4/18/23, the Common Council approved the Fire Department to apply for and accept a grant from
the Wisconsin Department of Health for developing and distributing opioid Leave Behind Kits. The
Wisconsin Department of Health approved the City of Franklin application and awarded $11,916.

ANALYSIS

The 2023 Annual Budget did not include this grant opportunity. The Common Council directed the
Fire Department to apply and accept the granting funding on 4/18/23. A budget amendment is
necessary to account for incoming revenues as well as budget appropriations for spending of this
grant funding.

RECOMMENDATION

The Director of Finance & Treasurer recommends adoption of the Budget Amendment to provide for $11,916
Grant Resources and up to $11,916 of Grant appropriations.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to adopt Ordinance No. 2023-, an Ordinance to amend Ordinance 2022-2521, an Ordinance
Adopting the 2023 Annual Budget for the Fire Department Grant Fund to Provide for $11,916 of Grant Resources
and up to $11,916 of Grant Appropriations for the Wisconsin Department of Health Leave Behind Kits Project.

Roll Call Vote Required.

Finance-DB



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY

ORDINANCE NO. 2023---

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2022-2521, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING
THE 2023 ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE FIRE DEPARTMENT GRANT FUND TO
PROVIDE FOR $11,916 OF GRANT RESOURCES AND UP TO $11,916 OF GRANT

APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH LEAVE BEHIND
KITS PROJECT

WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Franklin adopted the 2023 Annual
Budgets for the City of Franklin on November 15, 2022;

WHEREAS, the Common Council directed the Fire Department on April 18, 2023 to apply
and accept a grant from the Wisconsin Department ofHealth for developing and distributing opioid
leave behind kits; and

WHEREAS, the grant was accepted and the City ofFranklin was awarded $11,916; and

WHEREAS, the 2023 Fire Department Grant Fund Budget did not include appropriations
for the leave behind kits; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Franklin does hereby ordain as
follows:

Section 1 That the 2023 Budget for the Fire Department Grant Fund be amended as follows:

Block Grants - Grant Resources
Fire Dept- Grant Appropriations

Increase
Increase

$11,916
$11,916

Section 2

Section 3

Section 4

Pursuant to §65.90(5)(ar), Wis. Stats., the City Clerk is directed to post a notice of
this budget amendment within fifteen days of adoption of this Ordinance on the
City's website.

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any term or
provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of competent
jurisdiction, the remaining terms and provisions shall remain in full force and
effect.

All ordinances and parts of ordinances in contravention to this ordinance are
hereby repealed.

This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage and
publication.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
this day of,2023.

Section 5



ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYES__NOESABSENT

APPROVED:

John R Nelson, Mayor



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

An Ordinance to Amend $121-9E(1) of the Municipal
Code to Allow for an Extension of the Consecutive Days
ofDuration and/or Daily Hours of a Spec1al Event Being
Open to the Public for a Special Event Determined to be
Extraordinary and Unique in the Benefits Provided to the
Public and the Community and the Special Event Being

Substantially Controlled and Contained Within the
Premises of the Special Event to Protect the Public

Health, Safety and Welfare

MEETING
DATE

October 17, 2023

ITEM NUMBER

Attached is a copy of a draft of the above entitled Ordinance.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt An Ordinance to Amend §121-9E.(1) of the Mumcipal Code to Allow for an Extension of
the Consecutive Days of Duration and/or Daily Hours of a Spec1al Event Being Open to the Public for a Special
Event Determined to be Extraordinary and Unique in the Benefits Provided to the Public and the Community
and the Special Event Being Substantially Controlled and Contamed Within the Premises of the Special Event
to Protect the Public Health, Safety and Welfare.

Legal Services Dept jw



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

ORDINANCE NO. 2023

MILWAUKEE COUNTY
draft 10/11/23

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND §121-9E.(1) OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE TO ALLOW
FOR AN EXTENSION OF THE CONSECUTIVE DAYS OF DURATION AND/OR
DAILY HOURS OF A SPECIAL EVENT BEING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC FOR A

SPECIAL EVENT DETERMINED TO BE EXTRAORDINARY AND UNIQUE IN THE
BENEFITS PROVIDED TO THE PUBLIC AND THE COMMUNITY AND THE

SPECIAL EVENT BEING SUBSTANTIALLY CONTROLLED AND CONTAINED
WITHIN THE PREMISES OF THE SPECIAL EVENT TO PROTECT THE PUBLIC

HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELFARE

WHEREAS, the Common Council having considered the provisions of $121-9E.(1)
of the Municipal Code, providing in part: "[t]he duration of any special event shall not
exceed four consecutive days and any permit issued under this section shall specify the days
upon which the event shall occur. No special event shall be open to the public except
between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m. on any Sunday through Thursday and 8:00
a.m. and 11 :00 p.m. on any Friday and Saturday occurring within the duration of the special
event"; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having considered events which are unique in
relation to the many other special events having occurred in the City through the years, and
extraordinary in the level of benefits to be provided to the public, and the precautions to be
provided by an experienced operator, planner and coordinator entity for the event to benefit
the public in attendance and the community and to protect the public health, safety and
welfare; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having determined that an amendment to the
Municipal Code to allow for an extension of consecutive days of duration and daily hours of
a special event upon unique and extraordinary facts circumstances to be reasonable and in the
public interest.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and Common Council of the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin, do ordain as follows:

SECTION 1: $121-9E.(1) of the Municipal Code of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin,
as it pertains to the duration and hours of operation of a special event, is
hereby amended to read as follows [note: deletions appear in strike
through text; additions appear in double-underlined text; unchanged
text is not highlighted]:

(1) Duration and hours of operation. The duration of any special event
shall not exceed four consecutive days and any permit issued under



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-
Page 2

SECTION 2:

SECTION 3:

SECTION 4:

this section shall specify the days upon which the event shall occur.
No special event shall be open to the public except between the
hours of 8:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m. on any Sunday through Thursday
and 8:00 a.m. and 11 :00 p.m. on any Friday and Saturday occurring
within the duration of the special event. Such permit shall also
specify the hours during which pre-event setup and postevent
takedown operations may occur and no such operations may be
conducted other than as so specified. The duration and hours of
operation as set forth above in this subsection (1) may be extended
following the review, consideration and any recommendation by the
License Committee, and the review and consideration thereof by the
Common Council, by a decision of the Common Council to grant
an exception to the not exceed four consecutive days and/or the
hours for the special event to be open to the public, to allow for an
extension of such days and/or hours to allow for more consecutive
days and/or more hours of being open to the public. The decision
of the Common Council to grant an exception shall specify the
actual consecutive days and/or the actual hours so permitted. Any
review, consideration, recommendation and decision made pursuant
to this subsection l) shall be based upon and subject to the receipt
by the License Committee and the Common Council of specific
facts that the subject special event, in addition to meeting all of the
Purpose and requirements set forth in this §121-9, is unique with
regard to being extraordinary not only because it is not ordinarily
conducted, but also because it is of a substantially more benefit to
the public and the interest therein by the public and a substantial
benefit to the community, and that it is a substantially controlled
and contained within the premises to protect the health. safety and
welfare of the public attending and mn the community by the
applicant event in the public interest.

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any
term or provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of
competent jurisdiction, the remaining terms and provisions shall remain
in full force and effect.

All ordinances and parts of ordinances mn contravention to this
ordinance are hereby repealed.

This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage
and publication.



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-

Page 3

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of,2023, by Alderman

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of __, 2023.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



APPROVAL

#
REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Authorize Promotion and Wage Adjustment for
Aimee Schlueter to
Permit Technician

(Grade Level 6; Hourly Rate of $30.50)
-Account 01-0231-5111

MEETING DATE
10/17/2023

ITEM NUMBER

G0.

Background
Amee Schlueter 1s a Permit Coordinator at Grade Level in the Department of Inspecton Servces. Aimee
has her certification as a UDC Construction and HVAC Inspector. She has consistently performed the
Permit Techmcan job duties in addition to those 1 1talics found within the following revised job
descript1on.

Fiscal Impact
The Department of Inspect1on Servces has had an unfilled position within thenr department for
approximately two years. As a result, the department has a substantial surplus in its full-time salary
account (01-0231-5111). The surplus is enough to cover the additional money for several years.

Aimee's hourly rate is currently $28 21. This promotion would increase her hourly rate to $30.50, an 8.1%
($2.29/hour) increase.

Estimated cost of hourly wages (est. 11 weeks):
• Total Estimated 2023 Increase: $1,007.60

Assumptions
Changes may be made in 2024 based on the results of a city-wide comprehensive study.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to authorize the promotion and grade level increase for Aimee Schlueter from Permit Coordinator
Grade Level 5 ($28.21/hr.) to Permit Technician Grade Level 6 ($30.50/hr.). The annual increase is
estimated at $4,763.20, with a yearly salary of $63,440.

DOA - KH/ Inspection - JL



Job Title:

Department:

Reports To:

Salary Level:

FLSA Status:

Prepared By:

Prepared Date:

Approved By:

Approved Date:

CITY OF FRANKLIN
Job Description

Permit Technician

Inspection Services

Director of Inspection Services

Salary Grade 6

Non-Exempt

Justin Ligocki, Director of Inspection Services; Dana Zahn, Human
Resources Manager; Kelly Hersh, Director ofAdministration

October 11, 2023

Common Council

October 17, 2023

Summary:
Coordinates the issuance of all permits issued by the department. Provides clerical support and
training for the department.

Essential Duties and Responsibilities:
Reports to the Director of Inspection Services.

Accepts Building Permit Application submittals for all "commercial" projects. Ensures plan
submittals are complete and routed to the proper plan review staff.

Coordinates issuing all permits issued by the Department from start to finish.

Works as staff liaison between Inspection Services and other City Departments for processing of
permits.

Acts as interdepartmental Zoning Administrator. Trains front office staff.

Conducts plan reviews and issues over-the-counter smallproject buildingpermits

Ability to inspect new and existing residential buildingsfor compliance with the Uniform
Dwelling Code Construction & HVAC Codes.



Ability to inspect alterations and repairs ofone & two-family buildings andpremisesfor code
compliance

Conducts erosion control code inspections and communicates with contractors involved.
Answers building and zoning questions through e-mail, over thephone, and at the counter

Assists in the coordination ofoverlappingfunctions in other departments Responds to
"commercial" use and other open records requests.

Acts as a "lead" staffpersonfor software implementation and management.

Attends Architectural Review Boardmeetings as back-up to the Director ofInspection Services.
Assists DIS with establishing standardized officeprocedures andplan reviews.
Prepares newsletter articles.

Creates, updates, and modifies handouts, forms, and applicationsfor public release.

Compose, type, and edit various correspondence, reports, memoranda, and other materials.

Receive and perform preliminary checks of building plans, surveys, and specifications submitted
for permit applications.

Prepare applications and enter permit application information into the computer system.

Coordinate and schedule inspections by the building, plumbing, electrical inspectors, and permit
technicians.

Maintain filing systems, control records, and indexes.

Prepare detailed monthly and yearly reports for federal and state governments, local utilities, and
city use, including the annual budget.

Enter permit records into department software and various computer databases. Coordinate

occupancy inspections between department staff and other departments.

Meet with contractors, owners, and the public to answer general questions regarding building,
housing, signs, soil erosion codes, and department procedures.

Provides backup support to the department Secretary, including coordinating the agendafor the
architectural board, mailing required notices, and transcribing minutes

Updates Inspection Services Department web page

Provides support to other departments on building inspection software.



Maintains account records and coordinates department purchasing.

Other duties as assigned by the Director of Inspection Services.

Peripheral Duties:
Assists as a backup to front office staff (Secretary and Permit Technician), answering phones,
servicing customers at the counter, and covering during the absence of other front office staff.

Process permits as directed by the Director of Inspection Services.

Minimum Qualifications:
Education and Experience:
Graduation from high school or GED equivalent with 1-3 years of experience in Building
Inspection and Zoning is required. Municipal experience preferred.

Language Skills:
Ability to read, analyze, and interpret general business periodicals, professional journals,
technical procedures, or governmental regulations. Ability to write reports, business
correspondence, and procedure manuals. Ability to effectively present information and respond
to questions from managers, clients, customers, and the general public. Strong interpersonal
skills are required.

Mathematical Skills:
Ability to calculate figures and amounts such as discounts, interest, commission proportions
percentages, area, circumference, and volume. Ability to apply concepts of basic algebra and
geometry. Ability to extrapolate measurements on a construction plan using architectural and
engineering scales.

Reasoning Ability:
Ability to solve practical problems and deal with various concrete variables in situations with
limited standardization. Ability to interpret multiple instructions furnished in written, oral,
diagram, or schedule form.

Necessary Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Working knowledge of zoning and building codes and the ability to explain in general terms
their requirements.

Ability to review plans and issue permits following completion of review.

Ability to acquire advanced knowledge of the Inspection Services Department computer
programs and teach others the operation of the systems.

Ability to demonstrate strong values in communication, teamwork, safety, initiative, continuous
improvement, and maintaining apositive work environment.

Skill in the operation of listed tools and equipment.



Maintains prompt, predictable, and regularphysical attendance.

Provides truthful and accurate written and verbal communications.

Ability to present and communicate ideas and concepts verbally and in writing to the public.

Ability to maintain effective working relationships with other departments, appointed officials,
elected officials, and the public.

Ability to make independent judgments that have moderate impacts on the organization.

Certificates, Licenses, and Registrations:
Certification as a UDC Construction Inspector and HVAC Inspector within 6 months of hire is
required.

Commercial Building and UDC Electrical certifications are desirable. A valid Driver's license is
required.

Supervision Received:
Works under the general supervision of the Director of Inspection Services.

Supervision Exercised:
Does not supervise other employees but does designate work to other employees in the
department

Responsibility for Public Contact:
Daily contact requires courtesy, discretion, and sound judgment.

Tools and Equipment Used:
Personal computer including word processing, permit tracking, complaint tracking, B S & A,
GIS, database and spreadsheet software, copy machine, fax machine, calculator, radio, and
telephone.

Physical Demands:
The physical demands described here represent those that an employee must meet to perform the
essential functions of this job successfully. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable
individuals with disabilities to perform essential functions.

Hand-eye coordination is necessary to operate computers and various pieces of office equipment.
While performing the duties of this job, the employee is occasionally required to stand, walk, use
hands and fingers to handle, feel, or operate objects, tools, or controls, and reach with hands and
arms. The employee is occasionally required to sit, climb, balance, stoop, kneel, crouch, crawl,
talk, and hear.

The employee must occasionally lift and move up to 10 pounds. Specific vision abilities this job
requires include close vision and the ability to adjust focus.



Work Environment:
The work environment characteristics described here represent those an employee encounters
while performing the job's essential functions. Reasonable accommodations may be made to
enable individuals with disabilities to perform essential functions.

Work is performed outdoors to inspect various land use developments and construction sites.
Work is also performed in an office setting. (The employee is primarily in the office setting but
will perform work site inspections when needed, up to 10% of the work time.) The employee
occasionally works near moving mechanical parts in high, precarious places and is occasionally
exposed to wet and humid conditions or airborne particles.

The noise level in the work environment is usually quiet in the office and moderate to loud in the
field.

The duties listed above are intended only as illustrations of various types of work that may be
performed. The omission of specific statements of duties does not exclude them from the
position if the work is similar, related, or a logical assignment to the position.

The job description does not constitute an employment agreement between the employer and
employee and is subject to change by the employer as the employer's needs and requirements of
the job change.



APPROVAL

¥
REPORTS AND

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

City personnel performance evaluation. The Common
Council may enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. §

19 .85(1)(c), considering employment, promotion,
compensation or performance evaluation data of any
public employee over which the governing body has
jurisdiction or exercises responsibility, Wis. Stat. §
19. 85( 1)(f), considering financial, medical, social, or

personal histories or disciplinary data of specific persons,
preliminary consideration of specific personnel

problems, or the investigation of charges against specific
persons except where par. (b) applies which, if discussed
in public, would be likely to have a substantial adverse
effect upon the reputation of any person referred to in
such histories or data, or involved in such problems or
investigations, and Wis. Stat.§ 19.85(l)(g), conferring
with legal counsel for the governmental body who is

rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy to be
adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which it
is likely to become involved, and to reenter open session

at the same place thereafter to act on such matters
discussed therein as it deems appropriate

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

MEETING
DATE

October 17, 2023

ITEM NUMBER

A motion to enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(l)(c), considering employment, promotion,
compensation or performance evaluation data of any public employee over which the governing body has
jurisdiction or exercises responsibility, Wis. Stat. § 19.85(1)(f), considering financial, medical, social, or
personal histories or disciplinary data of specific persons, preliminary consideration of specific personnel
problems, or the investigation of charges against specific persons except where par. (b) applies which, if
discussed in public, would be likely to have a substantial adverse effect upon the reputation of any person
referred to in such histories or data, or involved in such problems or investigations, and Wis. Stat. § 19.85(l)(g),
conferring with legal counsel for the governmental body who is rendering oral or written advice concerning
strategy to be adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which it is likely to become involved, and to
reenter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it deems
appropriate.



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

LICENSES AND

PERMITS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

MISCELLANEOUS LICENSES

MEETING DATE

10/17/23

ITEM NUMBER

H.

See attached License Committee Meeting Minutes from the License Committee Meeting of
October 17, 2023.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Approval of the minutes of License Committee Meeting of October 17, 2023.

CITY CLERK'S OFFICE



414-425-7500
License Committee

Agenda*
Franklin City Hall Health Wing Room

9229 W. Loomis Rd
Franklin, WI

October 17, 2023 - 5:40 p.m.

1. I Call to Order & Roll Call I Time:
I

2. License Applications Reviewed I Recommendations
Type/ Time Applicant Information Approve Hold Deny

Extraordinary ROC Ventures - Enchant Christmas
Entertainment & Person in Charge: Jeff Vetting & Laura NelsonSpecial Event
5:45 p.m. Location: 7035 S Ballpark Dr

Dates of Event: Select Dates from 11/22 through 12/31/2023
Operator Lynn Bagniewski
2023-2024 Root River CenterNew

Operator John F Hushek
2023-2024 Polish Center of WisconsinNew

Operator Alyssa Minturn
2023-2024 Iron Mike'sNew

Temporary Civic Celebration Committee - Home for the Holidays Event
Entertainment & Person in Charge: Mira KresovicAmusement Location: Franklin City Hall, Lions Legend Park I

Date of Event: 11/25/2023
Temporary Franklin Health Department - Trunk or Treat
Entertainment & Person in Charge: Megan Conway - Franklin Health DepartmentAmusement Location: Franklin Public Library Parking Lot - 9151 W Loomis Rd

Date: Thursday, 10/26/2023
3. Adjournment Time:

*Notice is given that a majority of the Common Council may attend this meeting to gather information about an agenda item over which they have
decision-making responsibility. This may constitute a meeting of the Common Council per State ex rel. Badke v. Greendale Village Board, even

though the Common Council will not take formal action at this meeting.



r
1.

9229 W Loomis Rd, Franklin, WI 53132-9630
Telephone: 414-425-7500

r·

City Clerk's Office
Fax: 414-425-6428

EXTRAORDINARY ENTERTAINMENT & SPECIAL EVENT
APPLICATION

Application must be received a minimum of 30working days prior to event.
Applicant Name_JeffVettlnJ
Name & Description of Event Enchant Christmas - the world's largest Chirstmas Maze and Market

Event Location (address and full description) 7035 S Ballpark Dr, Franklin, WI 53132 - Franklin Field

Owner of Property_FOG_Ventures
Day(s) and Dates(s)of Event Select Dates from Wednesday November 22, 2023-Sunday, December 31, z
Start TimeA.G9pm End Time 11:30pm

Duration of Show (for fireworks displays)_Nofireworks
Setup Date(s)/Time(s) October 30, 2023-November 21, 2023 - 8:00am-6:00pm

Breakdown Date(s)/Times) January 2, 2023 - January 14, 2023 - 8:00am-6:00pm

Maximum number attending per day_1,U
Maximum number of tickets to be sold (if any) per day_12OU0
(If corporation, attach certified copyof Articles of Incorporation togetherwith the name, age,
residence and mailing address of each person holding more than 10% of the stock.)

Person in Charge of Event Name_JeffVetting
Address (including City/State/Zip)

Home phone

E-mail

Fax n/a----------------
1. Provide plans to limit the maximum number of people permitted to assemble.

2. Provide plans for fencing the location of the special event and the gates contained in such fence. A
detailed drawing must be submitted as part of this application.

3. Provide plans for supplying potable water, including the source, amount available and location of outlets.

4. Provide plans for providing toilet and lavatory facilities, including the source, number, location, type and
means of disposing of waste.

Cell
Business phone _- · - -

Business E-Mail



5. Provide plans for holding, collecting & disposal of solid waste material.

6. Provide plans, if any, to illuminate the location, including sources and amounts of power and location of
lamps.

7. Provide plans and description for parking vehicles, including size and location of lots, highway
ingress/egress, parking lots and shuttle services.

8. Provide plans for telephone services, including source, number and location.

9. Provide plans for security, including number of guards, deployment, names, addresses, credentials and
hours of availability.

10. Provide plans for fire protection, including number, type and locations of all protective devices, including
alarms & extinguishers, number of emergency fire personnel available.

11. Provide plans for sound control and amplification, including numbers, locations and power of amplifiers &
speakers.

12. Provide plans for food and beverage concessions and concessionaires, including names, addresses and
license or permit numbers.

13. Provide plans and specific descriptions for each of any other type of vendor or provider of amusements
or entertainments, including names, addresses and license or permit numbers.

14. Provide Certificate of Insurance no later than 10 days prior to the event. (Wording: "City of Franklin as
Additional Insured" is required on certificate.)

15. [[$100.00 nonrefundable license & administration fee payable with application.

D bond D letter of credit [] cash deposit

(due no later than 10 days prior to the event, based upon anticipated cost of services)

Police services------
Fire services------
Registered Sanitarian (non-staff) services, if needed

Total estimated costs------

Applicant agrees to indemnify and save harmless the City of Franklin from and against any and all liabilities,
claims, demands, judgments, losses and/or all suits at law or in equity, costs and expenses, including
reasonable attorney fees, for injury or death of any person or loss or damage to the property of any person,
firm, organization or corporation, arising in any way as a consequence of the granting of a license for this
special event. Applicant affirms that the statements contained in this application are true and correct to the
best knowledge of Applicant.

Date 9/25/2023
Signature of Applicant

REcEnvD ?/?6/a0a poRrED To CouNcn //7/23 LucNsE # SERVICE FEE TO BE INVOICED7 T '7 
P: \SHARED\LICENSES\APPLICATIONS\APP EXTRAORDINARY ENTERTAINMENT & SPECIAL EVENT NEW LOGO



Enchant Christmas Application Answs:

1) Please see ticket sales cap enclosure.

2) Please see Site Map enclosure. The fencing surrounding Franklin Field will serve as the barrier perimeter.

3) Potable water will be accessed through the main concession building at Franklin Field.

4) Please see Site Map enclosure. Permanent rest rooms at Franklin Field will be in use, and there are plans
to supply portable restrooms in the first baseline bullpen.

5) Existing waste removal plan for Franklin Field will be supplemented with receptacles placed throughout
the field and venue.

6) Please see generator spec enclosure for supplemental power. Suffice it to say the venue will be well-lit.

7) Parking plan will be available soon. Much dedication is being applied to ensure that the flow, safety and
capacity of parking is more than adequate. The Venue is working closely with Enchant leadership with
detailed knowledge of the flow for this particular event. The event is timed entry at a carefully selected
capacity, as you can see by the ticket capacity enclosure. So, the historical issues faced at the Venue will not
repeat themselves. Enchant will work with law enforcement and City Officials to ensure all due diligence is
done.

8) Cellular coverage is sufficient, and Wi-Fi capacity is upgraded and able to manage all needs.

9) Event Security will be hired on as part-time seasonal staff, and will be present during all operating hours
and shoulder times.

10) Jeff Vetting will be doing a scheduled walk through with Franklin Fire Department to mitigate and issues
or concerns. A Fire Protection plan will be created and enforced.

11) There are no sound amplifications for this event. Unlike a hve performance (concert), or a sporting event
with announcers, the plans for sound are background music for a tranquil and family-oriented holiday
experience. Detailed plan will be available for review by the Permitting Meeting.

12) Main Concessions Station will be active at Franklin Field. Food Subcontractors are still in the selection
phase. The intention is to have 8 food trucks, and approximately 4 other food subcontractors preparing and
serving on-site. We will be sure to schedule an appointment with the Health Inspector to ensure all needs
are met and all licensure is obtained and kept up to date.

13) Retail vendors are also still in selection phase. Amusement and entertainment will be hired staff, the
genre of entertainment will be Santa/Mrs.Claus, Dancing Elves, and potential community choirs. A full list
can be provided once complete.

14) Provided

15) Paid

Please feel free to contact me for new information as it develops. I will work to keep the proper authorities informed.
This will be such a wonderful experience for community members and vrsttors. I will see to it.

Thank you!
Laura Nelson - Person mn Charge through ROC Ventures



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

MK-
Bills

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Vouchers and Payroll Approval

MEETING DATE
10/17/2023

ITEM NUMBER

I

Attached are vouchers dated September 29, 2023 through October 12, 2023, Nos. 194514 through Nos. 194681 m
the amount of$ 2,227,219 75 Also included in this listing are EFT's Nos 5473 through EFT Nos 5482, Library
vouchers totaling $ 911 99, Water Utility vouchers totaling$ 17,747 13 and Property Tax Refunds in the amount of
$ 542 07. Voided checks in the amount of$ (337,741 67) are separately listed.

Early release disbursements dated September 29, 2023 through October 11, 2023 in the amount of$ 819,723.73 are
provided on a separate listing and are also included in the complete disbursement listing These payments have been
released as authorzed under Resolutions 2013-6920, 2015-7062 and 2022-7834

Attached 1s a 11st of property tax disbursements, EFT No 490 dated October 2, 2023 in the amount of$ 542 07.
This payment has been released as authorzed under Resolutions 2013-6920, 2015-7062 and 2022-7834

The net payroll dated October 6, 2023 1s $ 466,003.95, previously estimated at$ 470,000 Payroll deductions dated
October 6, 2023 are $ 243,684 39, previously estimated at $ 245,000

The estimated payroll for October 20, 2023 1s $ 495,000 wth estimated deductions and matching payments of
$535,000

Approval to release payment to Velo Village Apartments LLC for TIO 7 2023 contractual MRO payment in the amount
of $765,000

The estimated payroll for November 3, 2023 1s $ 455,000 with estimated deductions and matching payments of
$250,000

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion approving the following

• City vouchers with an ending date of October 12, 2023 in the amount of$ 2,227,219.75

• Payroll dated October 6, 2023 in the amount of $ 466,003.95 and payments of the various payroll deductions mn the
amount of$ 243,684 39, plus City matching payments and

• Approval to release payment to Velo Village Apartments LLC in the amount of $765,000 and

• Estimated payroll dated October 20, 2023 mn the amount of $ 495,000 and payments of the various payroll
deductions in the amount of $ 535,000, plus City matching payments

• Estimated payroll dated November 3, 2023 mn the amount of $ 455,000 and payments of the various payroll
deductions mn the amount of $ 250,000, plus City matching payments.

ROLL CALL VOTE NEEDED

Finance Dept -- SB/CH


